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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE
HARRISBURG
December 20, 2007

MICHAEL J. MASCH
SECRETARY
OFFICE OF THE BUDGET

To the Honorable Governor, Lieutenant Governor, Members of the General Assembly, and Citizens of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

We are pleased to present this Comprehensive Annua Financial Report (CAFR) of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. The Office of the Budget, Office of Comptroller
Operations, prepared this report, which includes the Basic Financial Statements (BFS), pursuant to the power
vested in the Governor under Section 701 of the Administrative Code and delegated to the Secretary of the
Budget by Executive Order No. 1984-3, dated October 11, 1984.

The BFS were prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). We believe the financia statements are
fairly stated in al material respects; that they are presented in a manner designed to fairly report the
Commonwealth’ sfinancial position, results of operations, and changes in net assets/fund balances. All disclosures
necessary to enable the Governor, the members of the General Assembly, the public, and the financial community
to fully understand the Commonwealth’s operations and financial affairs have been included. The BFS include
information about discretely presented component units, which are legally separate organizations for which the
Commonwealth is financially accountable. Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Office of the Budget, Office of
Comptroller Operations. The Commonwealth relies on its comprehensive framework of internal control in the
preparation of basic financial statements. The Commonwealth has established a cost-effective system of internal
controls; that is however, subject to inherent limitations, as is in any system of internal controls, in that there is
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as to the effectiveness of the internal control system.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) precedes the June 30, 2007 BFS, provides an overview
of the Commonwealth’s financial position and activities thus helping readers to understand the government-wide
statements. This section immediately follows the auditors opinion. In addition to the MD&A and BFS, this
CAFR includes: budgetary comparison schedules, combining fund financial statements; supporting schedules;
certain narrative information describing individual funds; and statistical tables presenting financial trends, revenue
capacity, debt capacity, demographic and economic information, capital asset and operating information about the
Commonwealth.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

Located in the Mid-Atlantic region, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvaniais committed to providing awide
range of services to ensure the well-being of the people. It was the second of the 13 original colonies to ratify the
Consgtitution, but was the first state with a hospital, zoo, newspaper, and home computer. The state capitol,
located in Harrisburg, is where a strong foundation is laid for Pennsylvania s government system, which strives to
better the lives of the 12.5 million individuals who call the state home. Operating through a system of checks and
balances, Pennsylvania' s government consists of three branches. The Senate and the House of Representatives
make up the legislative branch. The executive branch consists of the Governor, Auditor General, State Treasurer,
and the Attorney General. The Supreme Court, Superior Court, Commonwealth Court, and other courts compose
the judicia branch. The following organization charts identify specific Commonwealth officials and staff within
Comptroller Operations, at June 30, 2007:
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THE GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY BASIS

The General Fund, the Commonwealth’'s largest operating fund, may be used to assess Pennsylvania's
financial position and activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. It accounts for all revenues and other
receipts that are not required by law to be accounted for or deposited in other special funds, and reflects a
significant portion of Commonwealth expenditures. Tax revenues, principally personal and corporate income, and
sales and use taxes, constitute approximately 88.8 percent of the non-federal General Fund budgetary basis
revenues. General Fund expenditures are reported in the following functional assignments, along with the related
percentage of non-federal expenditures. direction and supportive services (3.52), protection of persons and
property (11.89), health and human services (38.40), public education (37.66), recreation and cultural enrichment
(1.14), economic development (3.02), transportation (1.42) and transfers to debt service funds (2.95) for al
obligations except those incurred for highway or other special revenue fund purposes.

BUDGET ADOPTION AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

A discussion of the Commonwealth’s annual budget process is included as Required Supplementary
Information (RSI) immediately following the Notes to the Financial Statements. The legally adopted budget
provides statutory control over spending. Under Commonwealth law, expenditures cannot exceed amounts
appropriated. Budgetary control is exercised by specific, line-item appropriation. The Budgetary Comparison
Schedule, included as RSI, provides original budget, final budget and actual budgetary results for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007.

BUDGETARY BASISFUND BALANCE INCREASE/(DECREASE)
FIVE MOST RECENT FISCAL YEARS

The following table shows the Genera Fund's year end unreserved/undesignated fund balance and
increases or decreases on a budgetary basis at the end of the five most recent fiscal years (amountsin millions):

unreser ved/ Budgetary Basis

General Fund Undesignated Increase

At June 30 Fund Balance (Decr ease)

2003 (restated) $ 196.2 $ 537

2004 (restated) 775 (118.7)

2005 364.8 287.3

2006 (restated) 522.2 1574

2007 530.9 8.7

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, total General Fund revenues and other sources exceeded
expenditures and other uses by $8.7 and, at June 30, 2007, the Commonwedth reported an
unreserved/undesignated fund balance (budgetary basis) of $530.9 in the Genera Fund. This compares to a
budgetary basis fund balance of $522.2 (restated) at June 30, 2006. The budgetary basis results for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007 include revenue collections totaling $44,797.5, less appropriation authorizations totaling
$44,696.3, less other net financing uses totaling $92.5. Included in the $44,696.3 appropriation authorizations are
$197.1 of state supplemental appropriations and $94 in Federal supplemental appropriations authorized during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 (amounts in millions).



ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

The national economy slowed dramatically during the first quarter of 2007, 0.6 percent growth in gross
domestic product (GDP), before rebounding during the second quarter to 4.0 percent growth in GDP. This rapid
turnaround supported continued gains in employment both nationally and within the Pennsylvania economy.
Improvements in personal income, government finances, and jobs growth were recorded during the recently
completed fiscal year. Overall, growth in the national economy averaged 2.5 percent during fiscal year 2006-07.

From mid-2007 to mid-2008, growth in the national economy, as measured by GDP, is expected to
average 2.4 percent, below recent performances. Continued weakness in the housing market will likely lead to
slower growth in the economy. Significant increases in oil prices will negatively impact the economy and likely
reduce consumer expenditures. More cautious consumer spending and weakened foreign trade will adversely
impact the national and Pennsylvania economiesin during fiscal year 2008.

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

Based on the Governor’s Executive Budget for 2007-2008, issued in February 2007, during each of the
five fiscal years ending June 30, 2012, the Commonwealth expects to receive General Fund revenues between $28
billion and $32 bhillion along with similar, but lower, expenditures. During the same five fiscal years, it is
estimated surpluses ranging from $3.8 million to $87 million, after General Fund transfers to the Budget
Stabilization Reserve Fund (expected to be between $1 million and $29 million for each of the five years.) For all
Funds included in the Executive Budget, total revenues and available balances carried forward of between $60
billion and $65 hillion are expected, along with corresponding but lower expenditures. The next Executive
Budget is expected to be available in February 2008 and includes planned revenues and expenditures for five
fiscal years, through the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Commonwealth maintains ongoing training and information programs to reduce risks associated with
employee injury and negligence, contract compliance, tort liabilities and property losses. As more fully described
in Note M to the financial statements, the Commonwealth became self-insured for employee disability and
medical claims on July 1, 1983. The Commonwealth is also self-insured for annuitant medical/hospital benefits
and tort liabilities, including automobile, employee and transportation-related claims. Reserves have been
established to fund self-insured claims. First-party coverage is obtained for property lossesin excess of $1 million
per occurrence, to a limit of $250 million ($350 million, as of September 19, 2007) per occurrence. Coverage for
property losses less than $1 million or in excess of $250 million ($350 million, as of September 19, 2007) is
maintained through the Commonwealth’ s self-insurance program.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The Commonwealth’s June 30, 2007 Basic Financial Statements have been jointly audited by the
Department of the Auditor General and Ernst & Young LLP, an independent public accounting firm. The
independent auditors' opinion is included in the beginning of the Financial Section of this CAFR. The auditors
opinion provides a reasonable basis for users to rely on the information included in the BFS.



CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The CAFR will be submitted to the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and
Canada (GFOA) to determine its digibility for the GFOA’s Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting. The GFOA awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as of and for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2006. This represents the twenty-first consecutive year the Commonwesalth of Pennsylvania has
received this award.

To merit a certificate of achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized Comprehensive Annual Financia Report, which conforms to GFOA standards and satisfies both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable lega requirements. A certificate of achievement is valid
for a period of one year only. We believe the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 conforms to the GFOA’ s award criteria.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

We wish to express our appreciation to the staff of the various Commonwesalth agencies whose time and
dedicated effort made this report possible and, at the same time, to reaffirm our commitment to you to maintain
the highest standards of accountability in financial reporting to the citizens of the Commonwealth.

il § P, o O 2L

Michael J. Masch Harvey C. Eckert
Secretary Commonwealth Comptroller
Office of the Budget Office of the Budget
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Ell ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Two Commerce Square

3 > Suite 4000
: = 2001 Market Street
Department of the Auditor General Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 19103-7096

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17120-0018

Report of Independent Auditors

The Honorable Edward G. Rendell, Governor
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

We have jointly audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (the
Commonwealth), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2007, which collectively comprise the
Commonwealth’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Commonwealth’s management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We did not jointly audit the financial statements of the Tobacco Settlement Fund, a major
Specia Revenue Fund, the Tuition Payment Fund, a maor Enterprise Fund, and certain
component units, which represent 99 percent of total assets, 99 percent of total net assets and 99
percent of total revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units, and certain
agencies, which represent 2 percent of expenditures of the General Fund and 1 percent of
expenses of Governmental Activities. We also did not jointly audit 100 percent of the total
assets, 100 percent of total net assets and 100 percent of the total revenues of the Pension (and
Other Employee Benefit) and Private Purpose Trust Funds. This comprises 91 percent of total
assets, 96 percent of total net assets and 87 percent of total revenues of the aggregate remaining
fund information. The financial statements of the Tobacco Settlement Fund, Tuition Payment
Fund, and these component units, agencies, and Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) and
Private Purpose Trust Funds were audited by other auditors, including Ernst & Young LLP
acting separately, whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinions, insofar as
they relate to the amounts included for the Tobacco Settlement Fund, Tuition Payment Fund, and
those component units, agencies, and the Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) and Private
Purpose Trust Funds, are based solely on the reports of the other auditors. Ernst & Young LLP
has audited, separately, 100 percent of the Tuition Payment Fund, 16 percent of total assets, 28
percent of total net assets and 16 percent of total operating revenues of the discretely presented
component units, as well as 2 percent of expenditures of the General Fund and 1 percent of
expenses of Governmental Activities.

12



The Honorable Edward G. Rendell, Governor
Page 2

The transactions of the Department of the Auditor Genera are included in the basic financial
statements and are immaterial to the overall presentation of the basic financial statements. The
expenses of the Department of the Auditor General equal less than 1 percent of the expenses
reported for Governmental Activities on the Statement of Activities and less than 1 percent of
the expenditures reported for the General Fund on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance. Agency Fund assets and liabilities of the Department of the Auditor
General equal less than 1 percent and less than 2 percent, respectively, of the total assets and
liabilities reported for the aggregate remaining fund information. The Auditor General is the
Commonwealth’ s independently-elected auditing officer. Article VIII, 8 7, of the Pennsylvania
Constitution mandates the Auditor General to act jointly with the Governor and State Treasurer
to vote on the incurrence of debt. Title 72 of the Pennsylvania Statutes, § 1102, mandates the
Department of the Auditor General to approve the disposition of petitions for corporate tax
resettlements filed with the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue’'s Board of Appeals, which
may be appealed to the Board of Finance and Revenue. Title 71 of the Pennsylvania Statutes, 8
115, mandates the Auditor General to be one of the six members of the Board of Finance and
Revenue, which is an independent board whose decisions may be appealed to Commonwealth
Court. The above-mandated responsibilities are performed by personnel separate from those
involved in the performance of the audit of the Commonwealth’s basic financial statements, and
are being disclosed as required by and in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabl e assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged
to perform an audit of the Commonwealth’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audit
included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Commonwealth’s internal control over financia reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overal financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other
auditors provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financia position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as of June 30, 2007, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
United States generally accepted accounting principles.

13



The Honorable Edward G. Rendell, Governor
Page 3

Management’s discussion and anaysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 16
through 36 and 128 through 132 are not a required part of the basic financia statements but are
supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania's basic financial statements. The
introductory section, combining non-major fund and component unit financial statements,
budgetary comparison schedules for budgeted non-major funds, and statistical section are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The combining non-magjor fund and component unit financial statements and
budgetary comparison schedules for budgeted non-major funds have been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, are fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
by us and the other auditors in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we

express no opinion on them.
émt ¥ MLLP

December 11, 2007
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MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS June 30, 2007

The Management’s Discussion and Anaysis (MD&A) of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania's Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) is presented as Required Supplementary Information and provides a review and analysis of the
Commonwealth’s financia statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 and a comparison to the prior fiscal year. The
MD&A should be reviewed in conjunction with the Letter of Transmittal, which begins on page 4 of this report, and with the
Commonwealth’ s financial statements, which follow.

Executive Summary

Gover nment-wide Statements at-a-glance

Net Assets — Governmental activities net assets totaled $24.3 billion at June 30, 2007, compared to $22.6 billion at June 30,
2006. This represents a year over year increase in net assets of $1.7 hillion, following a prior year increase in net assets of
$1.8 billion. For business-type activities, net assets were $3.6 billion at June 30, 2007, an increase of $0.3 billion compared to
$3.3 billion at June 30, 2006. This represents a year over year increase in Total Net Assets of $2.0 billion for the primary
government.

General Obligation Bonds — During the fiscal year, total general obligation bond indebtedness increased by $.6 billion ($1.4
billion issued and $.8 billion repaid) from $7.6 billion to $8.2 billion, while total governmental activities liabilities increased by
$1.0 hillion.

Fund Statements at-a-glance

Governmental Funds — Fund Balances — Were $8.526 hillion at June 30, 2007 compared to $7.650 hillion at June 30, 2006, for
ayear-over-year increase of $.876 billion.

General Fund — Fund Balance — Was $3.371 hillion at June 30, 2007, compared to $2.970 billion at June 30, 2006, for a year
over year increase of $.401 billion.

Overview and discussion of basic financial statements

The Financia Section of the CAFR consists of several parts: the Independent Auditors' Report, Management’ s Discussion and
Analysis, Basic Financia Statements (BFS), Required Supplementary Information, Combining Financial Statements, and
Statistical Section. The BFS includes two sets of statements that present different views of the Commonwealth — the
government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements. The Notes to the Financia Statements present
additional details and clarification regarding the information presented in these statements.

Government-wide financial statements

Government-wide financial statements portray the Commonwealth's overall financial position (Statement of Net Assets) at
June 30, 2007 and its aggregate revenues and expenses (Statement of Activities) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. The
Statement of Net Assets presents the assets, liabilities, and net assets for the Commonwealth as a whole. The Statement of
Activities presents, by function or program, the expenses, offsetting revenues, and changes in net assets. Both statements
classify amounts by Governmental Activities, Business-Type Activities, and Component Units. The component units are
organizations that are legally separate from the Commonwealth’ s primary government. Information related to component units
is not included in the MD&A. Each component unit is identified and described in Note A — Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies. Audited financial statements for component units are available through the Commonwealth Comptroller.

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. This basis of accounting is similar to the basis used by most business entities and recognizes
revenues and expenses when they occur, regardless of when related cash was received or paid.

Fund financial statements— governmental funds

Funds are groups of related accounts that are used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The Commonwealth uses fund accounting to demonstrate compliance with finance related legal
requirements. The Commonwealth’s funds are categorized as governmental funds, proprietary funds or fiduciary funds.
Further discussion of these fund categories can be found in Note A — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. Fund
financial statements differ from government-wide financial statementsin afew ways:
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1) While the government-wide statements focus on the government taken as a whole, the fund statements reveal more
detailed, fund-specific information for magjor governmental and proprietary funds, and for aggregated, non-major fund
information.

2) Unlike the aggregated columns for governmental and business-type activities in government-wide statements, the fund
statements report individual funds which are established by state law and used to account for specific, mandated
activities. Two examples of specific funds are the Motor License Fund, a specia revenue fund where gasoline taxes and
motor vehicle registration fees are collected and used to repair and build highways, and the Unemployment
Compensation Fund, an enterprise fund, used to collect amounts from employers to pay for unemployment compensation
to workers.

3) The government-wide statements use the full accrual basis of accounting. In the funds statements, governmental funds

use the modified accrual basis of accounting and current financial resources measurement focus; whereas the proprietary
funds and fiduciary funds use the accrual basis of accounting and economic resources focus.

Government—wide financial analysis

The following presents condensed financial statement information from the Statement of Net Assets (amountsin billions):

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2007 2006 Change 2007 2006 Change 2007 2006 Change
Assets:
Cash and investments................... $ 126 $ 111 $ 15 $70 $62 $ 08 $ 196 $ 173 $ 23
Capital assets (Net).......eeveereeeeenns 239 228 11 01 - 01 240 228 12
All other aSSEtS......cvvereererreneenns 6.2 6.1 0.1 13 14 (0.1) 75 75 -
TOtal ASTELS....oonvvererreieerreeeeeens 42.7 40.0 2.7 84 76 0.8 511 47.6 35
Liabilities:
Accounts payable............oouerennenes 4.5 41 04 06 05 01 51 4.6 05
All other current ligbilities............ 4.3 4.0 0.3 15 14 0.1 5.8 54 0.4
Total current liabilities................ 8.8 8.1 0.7 21 19 0.2 109 10.0 09
Bonds payable..........cooevveneeerneens 1.7 71 0.6 - - - 7.7 71 0.6
All other long-term lighilities....... 19 2.2 (0.3 27 24 0.3 4.6 4.6 -
Total long-term liabilities............. 9.6 9.3 0.3 27 24 0.3 12.3 117 0.6
Total Liabilities.....ooceereerrererneneens 18.4 174 1.0 48 43 0.5 23.2 217 15
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt..........ccoveeveenn. 20.0 191 09 01 - 01 201 191 10
[REES (7[00 RN 40 39 01 35 33 0.2 75 72 0.3
Unrestricted (deficit).........occeennnee. 0.3 (0.4) 0.7 - - - 0.3 (0.4) 0.7
Total Net 8SELS....covovmerveerrrieennns $ 243 $ 226 $ 17 $36 $33 $ 03 $ 279 $ 259 $ 20

Changesin assetsand liabilities

As of June 30, 2007, total governmental activities cash and investments increased by $1.5 billion, primarily as a result of
increases in governmental activities tax revenues, caused by improving economic conditions during the fiscal year, and
relatively smaller increases in governmental activities expenses. This cash and investments increase follows a $1.1 billion
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increase for the prior year. The net capital assets increase of $1.1 billion follows a $0.9 billion increase in the prior year and
reflects an expansion of, and improvements to, the Commonwealth’s reported highway and bridge infrastructure, along with
other capital assets. Governmental activities current liabilities accounts payable and accrued liahilities, increased by $.4 billion
due to overall expense increases and the timing of voucher payment requests. Other governmental activities current liabilities
increased by $0.3 hillion, net, resulting primarily from 1) relatively larger Treasury securities lending program obligations
($0.13 billion); and 2) an increase in tax refunds payable ($.06 billion) as of June 30, 2007. General obligation bonds payable,
non-current portion, increased by $0.55 billion over the prior year; roughly $1.32 billion were issued, and $.0761 billion was
repaid during the fiscal year. Year over year changes in business-type activities assets and liabilities resulted in a net increase
in net assets of $0.3 billion; total  assets increased by $0.8 billion and total liabilities increased by $0.5 billion. Total assets
increased primarily as a result of increases in investments reported by the Unemployment Compensation Fund, the State
Workers' Insurance Fund, the State Lottery Fund and the Tuition Payment Fund. Among these four Funds, the Unemployment
Compensation Fund reported an increase in net assets of over $0.2 hillion.
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The following presents condensed, financial statement information from the Statement of Activities (amountsin billions):

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2007 2006 Change 2007 2006 Change 2007 2006 Change
Revenues:
Program revenues:

Charges for sales and services.............. $43 $51 $ (08 $73 $72 $01 $116 $123 $(0.7)

Operating grants and contributions....... 17.3 16.5 0.8 0.6 04 0.2 17.9 16.9 1.0

Capital grants and contributions........... - 0.1 (0.1) - - - - 0.1 (0.1)
Total program revenues...........cccceeeeeee. 21.6 21.7 (0.1) 7.9 7.6 0.3 29.5 29.3 0.2
General revenues:

Taxes and investment income............... 29.0 27.7 1.3 - - - 29.0 27.7 1.3
Total general revenues..........cccceeveunee. 29.0 27.7 1.3 - - - 29.0 27.7 1.3
Total revenUES........cccoevvvveveeeeeee e 50.6 49.4 12 7.9 7.6 0.3 58.5 57.0 15
Expenses:

Governmental activities:

Direction and supportive services......... 12 22 (2.0 - - - 12 2.2 (2.0

Protection of persons and property....... 45 44 0.1 - - - 45 4.4 0.1

Public education..........cc.cceecvvereneninnns 12.6 11.8 0.8 - - - 12.6 11.8 0.8

Health and human services................... 24.4 24.1 0.3 - - - 24.4 24.1 0.3

Economic development...........ccceeuenne 17 14 0.3 - - - 17 14 0.3

Transportation..........cccveeeerereeeereeneenns 39 32 0.7 - - - 39 32 0.7

Recreation and cultural enrichment...... 0.6 0.6 - - - - 0.6 0.6 -

101 (= RSN 0.3 0.4 (0.1) - - - 0.3 04 (0.2)
Business-type activities:

State [otery...oveeeriveeeeceeeree e - - - 3.0 2.7 0.3 30 2.7 0.3

Unemployment compensation.............. - - - 21 20 0.1 21 20 0.1

Liquor control..........cccveeevenenencrinennes - - - 13 12 01 13 12 0.1

Workers compensation............cc.cceeee.. - - - 0.6 0.4 0.2 0.6 04 0.2

Tuition payment.......cccceeevevenieieeeenns - - - 0.3 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.1 0.2
Total eXPEeNSES.....ccveeereerereverereeeeeens 49.2 48.1 1.1 7.3 6.4 0.9 56.5 54.5 2.0
Excess/(deficiency) before

tranSfErS.. ..o 14 13 0.1 0.6 12 (0.6) 2.0 25 (0.5)
TraNSFErS. ..o vveeeievieeee e 0.3 0.5 (0.2) (0.3) (0.5) 0.2 - - -
Increase (decrease) in net assets.............. 17 18 $ (0.1 0.3 0.7 9%0.4) 2.0 25 $(0.5
Net assets, beginning..........ccccvvvveeniennne, 22.6 20.8 3.3 2.6 25.9 23.4
Net assets, ending.......coccecverernenenennenn $243 $22.6 $ 36 $ 33 $279 $259
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The following chart provides a year-over-year comparison of governmental activities revenues:

Governmental Activities Revenues
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Below is a chart comparing governmental activities expenses by fiscal year:
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Overall changesin net assets

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the overal financial position (net assets) of the Commonwealth, including both
governmental and business-type activities, increased by $2.0 billion, or 7.7 percent of total beginning net assets of $25.9
billion. For governmental activities, the net increase in net assets was $1.8 billion or nearly 8.0 percent of beginning net assets
of $22.6 hillion. Total investments, excluding the State Employees Retirement Fund and all other fiduciary funds, totaled over
$17.6 billion and total cash balances were over $1.9 hillion. These amounts represent considerable financial resources for the
current and future fiscal years. The increase in governmental activities net assets ($1.7 billion) almost equaled the prior year
change, where revenues, transfers and special items also exceeded expenses by $1.8 hillion. These increases represent
significant year-over-year improvements in the Commonwealth’s overall financial position, respectively, during the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006.

The $.3 hillion increase in total net assets for business-type activities follows a $.7 billion increase during the prior fiscal year.
The $.4 billion year over year decrease is primarily attributable to a net assets increase of $0.2 billion in the unemployment
compensation program, where the prior year net assets increase was over $0.5 billion. During the current fisca year,
unemployment compensation revenues decreased while expenses increased; in the prior year revenues increased and expenses
decreased by alarge amount. Statutory contribution decreases occurred during the current fiscal year, while increases occurred
during the prior year. (Such prior year increases are intended to eliminate or avoid net assets decreases in the unemployment
compensation program.) During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, combined decreases in net assets of the State Workers
Insurance Fund and the State Lottery Fund ($103 million) more than offset an increase in net assets of the Tuition Payment
Fund ($52 million), after net transfers to other Funds.

Changesin revenues and expenses

For governmental activities, general revenues increased by $1.3 billion, largely as a result of significant increases in Genera
Fund tax revenues during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. Such increases were the result of improving overall economic
conditions in the Commonwealth; the largest of such increases was in personal income taxes. Program revenues for charges
for sales and services decreased $.8 billion because of 1) a reported decrease in revenues of $1.4 billion related to cash receipts
and disbursements related to Commonwealth employee benefit costs which are charged to Commonwealth agencies on a
biweekly basis. (Such cash receipts and disbursements were formerly reported on a ‘gross’ basis and reported as part of
General Fund revenues (Charges for sales and services) and expenditures (Direction and supportive services)) and 2) a reported
net increase of $.6 hillion, consisting primarily of new Gaming Fund revenues ($.32 billion) and escheated property ($.29
billion). Operating grants and contributions, which includes Federal participation in specific General Fund and other programs,
increased by $.8 hillion during the fiscal year. Federal revenues in General Fund programs increased $.5 billion, while Federa
revenues in Motor License Fund programs were nearly flat. Investment income, also reported as part of operating grants and
contributions, increased by $.34 billion during the current fiscal year. Program charges for business-type activities increased
by $.1 billion, net, primarily because of increases in acoholic beverage sales ($.09 hillion), lottery sales ($.03 billion), tuition
payment credit sales ($.04 billion) and other programs, offset by decreases in unemployment compensation revenues ($.2
billion), and state workers insurance program revenues ($.05 billion). Operating grants and contributions for business-type
activities increased by $.2 hillion largely due to increases in investment income (over $.16 hillion); Federa participation
revenues were only slightly higher than the prior year.

For governmental activities, total expensesincreased $1.1 billion (less than 2.3 percent) largely because of significant increases
in expenses for public education ($.8 billion), and transportation ($.7 billion). There were less significant increases in reported
expenses for direction and supportive services ($.4 billion, before the effects of the above-mentioned $1.4 billion reporting
change), health and human services ($.3 billion) and economic development ($.3 billion).

During the current fiscal year, total business-type activities revenues exceeded total expenses by $0.6 billion; in the prior fiscal
year, total revenues were $1.2 hillion higher than expenses. Including the effects of net transfers to other funds of $.3 billion
($.5 billion in the prior year), business-type activities net assets increased by $.3 billion versus a $.7 billion increase in the prior
year. The primary reason for this increase was a $.2 billion improvement in Unemployment Compensation Fund net assets.
Current-year Fund revenues decreased $257 million but expenses increased by $76 million; this follows a net increase in net
assets of $.5 billion during the prior fiscal year.

Overall, expenses for business-type activities increased by $.9 billion, a 14 percent increase over the prior fiscal year.
Expenses for different programs increased as follows: state lottery ($.4 billion), workers' compensation ($.14 billion), tuition
payment (almost $.13 billion) and unemployment compensation (over $.07 billion) during the current fiscal year. Net expenses
for other programs increased aimost $.1 hillion.

21



MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS June 30, 2007

General Fund —economic factors during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007

Continued weakness in the housing sector and escalating oil prices were two of the main factors that resulted in slower growth
of the national economy during fiscal year 2006-07. Growth in real gross domestic product (GDP) finished at 2.5 percent for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, down from 3.4 percent for the prior fiscal year. Corporate profits, growth in wages and
salaries and consumer expenditures were al lower during fiscal year 2006-07 than in the prior fiscal year. Economic
growth proved erratic as said growth was 0.4 percent in the first quarter of 2007 but rebounded to reach 4.0 percent in the
second quarter of 2007. Job growth continued during the fiscal year and the unemployment rate continued to drop throughout
the fiscal year. Overall, economic conditions positively impacted state revenue growth, as revenues exceeded the budget
estimate. These additional revenues were used in part to replenish portions of reserve funds and to support an increased
demand for governmental goods and services, particularly in the area of health care costs.

Budgetary Comparison

Budgetary Comparison Schedules are included as required supplementary information for the General Fund and the Motor
License Fund immediately following the Notes to the Financia Statements. Budgetary comparison schedules for nonmajor
Special Revenue Funds are included as supplementary information following combining statements for Special Revenue
Funds. These schedul es provide a measurement of compliance with legally adopted budgets.

General Fund — budgetary basis— comparison between original budget and final budget

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the General Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 is presented immediately
following the Notes to the Financial Statements. In the Final Budget, State Program revenues were adjusted to include
revenues received by fiscal year-end (but not included in the Commonwealth’s official revenue estimate), in an amount equal
to fiscal year 2006-07 supplemental appropriations passed on July 17, 2007 by Act 8A.

Final budgeted revenues for total state programs exceed the origina budget by $469 million. This increase includes a net $204
million increase in tax revenues resulting from a $197 million adjustment for supplemental appropriations referred to in the
preceding paragraph and a $50 million change in revenue refunds from original to final budget. The $469 million increase also
includes a net increase of $222 million in departmenta services revenue. This increase is attributable primarily to a $520
million decrease in the Department of Public Welfare's Health Care Provider Retention program where origina budgeted
revenues were not realized, and transfers of $418 million in augmenting revenues from the Motor License Fund for State Police
protection of Commonwealth highways (in this case there is no true increase in funds available to the State Police).

The General Fund Schedule also discloses that the final budget includes $638 million more expenditures than the original
budget. The $638 million increase includes $427 million in state program expenditure increases and $211 million of increased
Federal participation in various programs. Of the $427 million net state program difference, a $498 million increase in
Protection of Persons and Property expenditures results primarily from a $418 million increase in spending authority for State
Poalice protection of Commonwealth highways. Further, a $66 million decrease in Public Education expenditures includes $72
million reported as estimated augmentations in the original budget for the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency
for which no actual augmentations were received. Also, supplemental appropriations increased by $20 million and Public
Utility Realty Tax (PURTA) and the State Tax Equalization Board (STEB) were originally included as Original Budget
amounts, but were later removed. The increase of $211 million in Federal programs relates primarily to additional
appropriations and executive authorizations passed or authorized throughout the fiscal year.

General Fund —budgetary basis— comparison between final budgeted and actual results

Actual budgetary State Program revenues exceeded the final budgeted State Program revenues by $453 million. The $453
million net increase results primarily from improving national and state economic conditions which exceeded expectations and
produced a $355 million increase in tax revenues and a $78 million increase in investment income. Budgetary lapses for a
variety of specific appropriations and executive authorizations in the amount of $21 million were also posted to reduce State
Program spending authority. Actua Federal revenues and corresponding expenditures were $178 million lower than budgeted
for the following agencies: Executive Offices, $81 million; Public Welfare, $37 million; Health, $34 million; Education, $12
million; and all other affected agencies, $14 million.
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M easur ement focus and basis of accounting — gover nmental funds

The General Fund, special revenue, debt service and capital projects funds are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus, only current assets and current
liahilities are normally included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and
other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Unreserved fund
balance represents a measure of available, spendable resources. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, governmental
funds recognize revenue in the year that it becomes susceptible to accrual (both measurable and available) to pay current fiscal
year liabilities. Grant revenues, including Federal government grant revenues, are recognized when earned. Revenue
recognition from most other sources occurs at receipt. Recognition of expenditures generally occurs in the fiscal year the
goods or services are received and the related fund liability isincurred. Debt service expenditures for principal and interest on
general long-term obligations are recognized when due. Prepaid items and inventory purchases are reported as current fiscal
year expenditures, rather than allocating a portion of related cost to the fiscal year when the items are actually used.

Expenditures for claims, judgments, compensated absences and employer pension contributions are reported as the amount
accrued during the fiscal year that normally would be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

Discussion of individual funds, balances, and tr ansactions

General Fund
Revenues and Other Hnancing Sources The General Fund, the Commonwealth’s largest fund, accounts for
Licenses, 82 percent of the total governmental fund type revenues and other
fCharlges  fees, financial sources and 82 percent of the total governmental fund
or sates investment type expenditures. The General Fund collects 91 percent of the
and services and other al d is th . fundi f
2% ncome total tax revenues and is the primary funding source for most

2% Commonwealth agencies. The charts depicted on this page and
the following page present a comparison of the major types of
revenues and expenditures reported in the General Fund. Taxes

Intergovernmental \ and intergovernmental revenues represent the largest sources of
Total taxes revenue, while health and human services and education represent

35% i in milli
6 60% the largest outflows or expenditures (amounts in millions).

The largest significant source of tax revenue-net of refunds
($25,992) is Personal Income Tax (PIT). Reported PIT ($9,813)
accounts for 38 percent of all taxes reported. Sales tax, which
represents a tax on various items purchased by consumers, is the
second largest category. Reported sales tax ($8,614) accounts for
personalincome 33 percent of all taxes reported. Corporate income tax, which
8% represents different taxes (including the Corporate Net Income
Tax and the Capita Stock/Foreign Franchise Tax) on various
corporations, is the third largest category. Reported corporate
income tax ($4,976) accounts for 19 percent of all taxes reported.
These three tax categories represent the Commonwesdlth’s largest
own-source revenues. Although not available for the current year,
prior year statistical information for these three tax categories is
presented in the Revenue Capacity portion of the Statistical
Section (amountsin millions).

Tax Revenues
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The General Fund reported a total of $43,350 in total expenditures ($42,308) and other financing uses ($946) during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2007. Expenditures for health and human services ($23,574) accounted for 54 percent of all General Fund
expenditures and other financing uses. Of these health and human services expenditures, 95 percent ($22,443) were reported
by the Department of Public Welfare. The second largest category, public education, accounts for 29 percent ($12,372) of the
reported expenditures. Of the public education expenditures, 92 percent ($11,463) are reported by the Department of
Education (amounts in millions). The following chart shows the percentages expended in each category:

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Transfersout
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Directionand
supportive services
Transportation 2%

1%
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and property

8%
Economic development
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29%
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services
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Condensed comparative General Fund balance sheets at June 30, 2007 and 2006 are as follows (amountsin millions):

Increase (Decrease)
2007 2006 Change Per cent
Assets:
Cash and INVESIMENTS.......c.covveeereerereeeeeeeeeeeeeseseeeasenens $ 6,072 $ 5,192 $ 880 17%
RECEIVADIES, NEL......coceereriereee s 3,511 3,419 92 3%
Due from other funds/governments/advances/other........... 1,579 1,789 (210) -12%
TOtAl @SSELS.....cvveeeeeerereereeeeereesereeee e sessee st sese e eesenees $ 11,162 $ 10,400 $ 762 7%
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and tax refunds payable........................ $ 4,044 $ 3,787 $ 257 %
Securities lending Obligations...........cocvvvnniinesnennienes 620 569 51 9%
Due to other funds/governments/advances/other................ 1,113 1,178 (65) -6%
UNEAMNEA FTEVENUE........ccveceeieeceee sttt 2,014 1,896 118 6%
Total aDIltIES. ... 7,791 7,430 361 5%
Fund Balance:
RESEIVEL. ...t 2,078 1,460 618 42%
Unreserved
DESIGNALEM.......ceceieeieirieiritieere e eeeees 924 720 204 28%
UNAESIGNALED. ..o 369 790 (421) -53%
Total fund DalANCE........cocveeeeeeeieeeeeee e 3,371 2,970 401 14%
Total liabilitiesand fund balance...........ccceveeveevvceeereene. $ 11,162 $ 10,400 $ 762

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, cash and investments increased by $880 million (17 percent) compared to the prior
year. Thisincrease is attributed to three factors: 1) total liabilities increased $361 million during the fiscal year, due to the
timing of voucher payment requests involving ordinary vendors ($194 million); tax refunds increased ($63 million); and
unearned revenue increased ($118 million) because of the higher deferral of the unavailable portion of modified accrua taxes
receivable; 2) the timing of cash collections during the fiscal year caused total receivables to decrease by $118 million, net, and
3) aggregate revenues and other financing sources exceeded aggregate expenditures and other financing uses by $401 million.

Fund balance reservations increased $618 million primarily due to a $405 million increase in restricted revenues and a $367
million increase in the statutory Budget Stabilization Fund, which is reported as part of the General Fund. Offsetting these two
increases was a $139 million decrease in amounts reserved for encumbrances. Fund balance designations increased $204
million, net, due primarily to changes in specific designations as follows: 1) increases: $128 million increase for
Commonwealth employee health benefits and life insurance, $49 million for Public Welfare and medical assistance programs,
$35 million for State Police statewide radio project, $25 million for job creation tax credits, $14 million for judicial computer
system and, 2) offsetting decreases: $38 million for Corrections programs (which were new in the prior year) and $23 million
for volunteer fire companies programs (which were new in the prior year). Overall fund balance increased by $401 million
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, and unreserved/undesignated fund balance decreased by $421 million, as a result of
the aforementioned increases in fund balance reservations and designations exceeding the overall fund balance increase of
$401 million.
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Condensed, comparative, General Fund operating statements for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 follow
(amountsin millions):

Increase (Decrease)
2007 2006 Change Per cent
Revenues:
Taxes, net of refunds
Personal iNCOME.........cuvverververrisessiessesesssssens $ 9,813 $ 9,088 $ 725 8%
Saesand use 8,614 8,339 275 3%
(O0]1 070! o] TR 4,976 4,824 152 3%
[NNEIEANCE. ..o eeees 768 724 44 6%
LO]0 T (=R 963 1,013 (50) -5%
REEl ESALE.......ovovererereeeiee s 565 557 8 1%
(6101 OO 293 238 55 23%
Total taxes, net of refunds..........cocvvveeeereeeceverrinn. 25,992 24,783 1,209 5%
Intergovernmental.........coeeveeevveeneersseensseeneennns 15,161 14,663 498 3%
Charges for sales and SErVICES......ouvvevrerreverereennnns 1,335 2,751 (1,416) -51%
Licenses/fees/investment and other income............ 814 515 299 58%
TOtaAl FEVENUES. ... 43,302 42,712 590 1%
Expenditures.
Direction and SUPPOItive SErViCeS........ccewveeriennees 892 2,062 (1,170) -57%
Protection of persons and property...........ccceeeee. 3,336 3,279 57 2%
Health and human services 23,537 23,135 402 2%
Public edUCatiON.........ocernrererrerereiereeene, 12,373 11,667 706 6%
Recreation and cultural enrichment...........cccvvvvenne 353 298 55 18%
Economic development...........ocvereeneeneerceneeneeneenees 1,204 957 247 26%
Transportation 435 443 (8 -2%
Capital outlay........... 25 28 (3) -11%
Other expenditures...........ccevreerrernrsseenseeseennnes 3 5 (2 -40%
Total eXpenditureS........c.cveereerencneeeeeeeeieeeineenes 42,158 41,874 284 1%
Revenues over expenditures 1,144 838 306 37%
Other financing sour ces (uses):
TrANSFOISIN. .o 201 89 112 126%
Transfers out (946) (827) (119) 14%
Capital lease and installment
purchase obligations...........ceveeerreeeireereireeneene 2 1 1 100%
Net other finanCing USES........c.oceevreeeereeneereeneereineens (743) (737) (6)
Net changein fund balance...........c.ccccovevververennnes 401 101 $ 300
Fund balance, beginning........c.ccocvereneeneneeneeneenens 2,970 2,869
Fund balance, ending........ccccccovevervsrneineineenernnene, $ 3,371 $ 2,970

General Fund tax revenues increased overall by 5 percent during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. Although most of the
overall increase is attributable to economic growth, increases/decreases within several specific tax types were larger or smaller.
Personal income tax (PIT) revenues rose by 8 percent - most of this growth occurred in estimated PIT tax types, that is, non-
employer-withheld PIT. This growth can be attributed to strong capital gains that caused regular, quarterly PIT payments in
April 2007 being 19.5 percent over April 2006. Overall corporation tax revenues increased by 3 percent due to strong
corporate profit growth and both telecommunications and electric company gross receipts tax revenues that were higher than
the prior year. However, these increases were offset by a scheduled decline in Capital Stock/Foreign Franchise Tax revenues
due to the continuance of the capital stock and foreign franchise tax phase-out. Finally, cigarette tax revenues decreased by 5
percent due to a decline in consumption.
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Charges for sales and services decreased by $1.416 billion due almost exclusively to a $1.411 billion decrease related to the
reporting of cash receipts and disbursements related to Commonwealth employee benefit costs which are charged to
Commonwealth agencies on a biweekly basis. Such cash receipts and disbursements were formerly reported on a‘gross’ basis
and reported as part of General Fund revenues (Charges for sales and services) and expenditures (Direction and supportive
services. Intergovernmental revenues increased by $498 million, net, resulting primarily from certain newer Federal programs
and higher amounts accrued for certain Federal programs. Total General Fund revenues increased by $590 million (1.36
percent) during the fiscal year.

Total General Fund expenditures increased by less than 1 percent during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, by $284 million.
Reported expenditures for direction and supportive services decreased by $1,170 million, net, due primarily to 1) a $1,378
million decrease related to the reporting of cash receipts and disbursements related to Commonwealth employee benefit costs
which are charged to Commonwealth agencies on a biweekly basis. Such cash receipts and disbursements were formerly
reported on a ‘gross’ basis and reported as part of General Fund revenues (Charges for sales and services) and expenditures
(Direction and supportive services) and 2) on a net basis, other increases of $208 million, including a higher expenditure
posting ($107 million) associated with intra-fund expenditure/transfer eliminations, higher Revenue Department ($19 million)
collection and enforcement efforts (including new expenditures for Gaming compliance) and higher interest payments on tax
refunds/credits, and higher General Services Department ($14 million) expenditures for structural repair/maintenance. Public
education expenditures increased by $706 million due primarily to increases in basic education ($294 million), school
employee retirement ($114 million) and several other subsidies to school districts ($298 million), including newer state-funded
programs; net changes in higher education subsidies were not significant. Health and human services expenditures increased
by $402 million, caused by a higher aggregate need for child protection and development services, medical services, and
income or cash grant assistance. Overall, Federa funding of health and human services declined by $187 million and state
funding increased by $589 million during the fiscal year. Expenditures for economic development increased by $247 million
primarily because of 1) much higher budgetary control waivers ($98 million), new programs ($30 million), higher grant awards
(%20 million) and higher amounts appropriated ($6 million) for the Community and Economic Development Department and 2)
higher Labor and Industry Department expenditures for modernization and training programs ($85 million).

Actua, final General Fund expenditures (budgetary basis) increased by 3.1 percent over the prior fiscal year, while revenues
(budgetary basis) increased 2.8 percent.

Reported Transfers to the General Fund increased by $112 million primarily because of 1) a $70 million increase in the State
Stores Fund profits transfer, 2) a new $25 million transfer from the State Gaming Fund, and 3) a new $17.5 million transfer
from the Manufacturing Fund. Reported Transfers from the General Fund increased by $119 million, net, mainly because of 1)
a $136 million increase to debt service funds, and 2) offsetting that increase, no current year transfer to Emergency Energy
Assistance, which was over $19 million in the prior year.

The overall increase in fund balance, $401 million, during the fiscal year was $300 million more than the prior fiscal year
increase in fund balance $101 million.
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Motor License Fund

Condensed, comparative, financial statement information for the Motor License Fund is as follows (amounts in millions):

2007 2006 I ncrease (Decr ease)

Description Amount Per cent Amount Amount Per cent
Cash and inVestMents.........ccccceeveereereerenenns $ 1,854 82% $ 1,884 $ (30) -2%
Other @SSEtS........covrereeeriireneeese e 396 18% 413 (17) -4%

Total @SSEtS.....oveererireirere s $ 2,250 100% $ 2,297 $ (47 -2%
Accounts payable..........coccoreeeerneneneeneens $ 525 63% $ 434 $ 91 21%
Securities lending obligations....................... 207 25% 213 (6) -3%
Other liabilities......ccovveerereireee e 99 12% 101 (2 -2%

Total liabilities......cccovevvireniiiecne 831 100% 748 83 11%

Total fund balance.........c..cccoeeveveieeneen. 1,419 100% 1,549 (130) -8%

Total liabilitiesand fund balance.......... $ 2,250 100% $ 2,297 $ (47) -2%
TaX FEVENUES......ccvvrveeereireireeetestesee e sseneenes $ 2,072 45% $ 2,033 $ 39 2%
License and fees.......ccovvevveveeiescn i 879 19% 900 (21) -2%
Federal revenues..........cocccoeevevenenciceceeens 1,448 31% 1,413 35 2%
Other reVENUES.........oeveeeeereiiieesese e 250 5% 186 64 34%

Total revenues.........coeeeeeeenenie e 4,649 100% 4,532 117 3%
Direction and supportive services................. 67 1% 52 15 29%
Protection of persons and property............... 667 14% 554 113 20%
TranspPortation.........cecveeeereeseeseereeseeesee s 2,327 49% 1,679 648 39%
Capital OULlaY......cccovvereerieereiee e 1,672 35% 1,925 (253) -13%
Other expenditures............cocevereeeenenenennens 1 1 -

Total expenditures........cccceevevreereesnene, 4,734 100% 4,211 523 12%
Net transfers out..........cccceveeeeeieeccee v, (45) 100% (49) 4 -8%

Net changein fund balances................. $ (130) $ 272§ (402)

Overall, total revenues increased by $117 million during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007; this represents a 3 percent
increase over last fiscal year. The most significant factor in the increase was a $47 million increase in investment income
(Other revenues). The next largest factor was higher tax revenues ($39 million). This represents a combination of decreased
consumption in the current year ($10.9 million less revenue) netted against the increase in the average wholesale gas and diesel
price (affecting Oil Company Franchise Taxes) that took effect halfway through the prior year ($43.7 million more revenue).
Federa revenues increased $35 million due to increases in certain Federally-reimbursable expenditures; reimbursement for
flood-related costs from 2004 and 2006 floods, bridge construction, and highway maintenance a one totaled $32.9 million.

On a net basis, the combination of Transportation ($648 million increase) and Capital Outlay ($253 million decrease)
expenditures increased by $395 million over the prior fiscal year. The Highway Maintenance and the Highway and Safety
Improvements appropriations increased by $357.5 million over last year with a large portion of that ($255.8 million)
attributable to road and bridge repairs and construction. This was due to a combination of damage from severe flooding in
June and July of 2006 and the exceptionally good construction weather the remainder of the fiscal year. Two programs within
the Highway Maintenance appropriation, Inventory Procurement and Maintenance and Operation of Equipment & Machinery,
were affected by the rising costs of fuel and oil, with increases of $31.7 million. Anocther program, Winter Traffic Services,
was affected by the 2007 Valentine's Day snow storm. Snow removal and related highway/bridge treatments caused increases
in payroll and equipment rental costs amounting to $24 million.

The Motor License Fund includes State Police appropriations for highway patrols and other public safety functions, reported as
part of Protection of Persons and Property expenditures; these increased by $113 million, or 20 percent, over the prior last
fiscal year. The largest portion of this increase, $69.9 million is attributable to an increase in the state (employer) share of
Retired State Police hedlthcare benefits, along with general salary increases. Also, a new appropriation this fiscal year,
Additional State Troopers, caused additional expenditures of $17 million. Accounts Payable increased by $91 million,
primarily as aresult of overall increasesin expenditures.
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Tobacco Settlement Fund

Condensed, comparative, financia statement information for the Tobacco Settlement Fund is as follows (amounts in millions):

2007 2006 Increase (Decr ease)

Description Amount Per cent Amount Amount Per cent
Cash and investments.........coecvevreeerereenreens $ 1,586 85% $ 1,390 $ 196 14%
Other @SSEtS.....ccovvireeerie e 289 15% 295 (6) -2%

Total aSSEtS......cceeveeviirieiiese e $ 1875 100% $ 1685 $ 190 11%
Accounts payable........cccoeoerrrreeeeeeenn, $ 144 2% % 141 $ 3 2%
Securities lending obligations....................... 274 43% 184 90 49%
Other l1abilitieS......covvvveireveee e 226 35% 265 (39 -15%

Total liabilities.....cooovevirerierene 644 100% 590 54 9%

Total fund balance.........c.ccoeevvirecenenn 1,231 100% 1,095 136 12%

Total liabilitiesand fund balance.......... $ 1875 100% $ 1685 $ 190 11%
Intergovernmental..........cccceeevrenereeecereenenns $ 121 17% $ 125 % 4 -3%
Investment iNCOME..........cccveeeecreeiecee e, 148 21% 94 54 57%
Other revenues..........oceeevvveneveeeeeee s 445 62% 473 (28) -6%

Total revenues.........cccceeeeeceececcecee e, 714 100% 692 22 3%
Protection of persons and property............... 166 30% 134 32 24%
Health and human services..........cccoeeeevennens 382 69% 384 2 -1%
Economic development.............ccocoovenenenne 3 1% - 3

Total expendituresS.......ccoeeveeeeeeeriveeenennn, 551 100% 518 33 6%
Net transfersin (OUt)........ccooeeeveeeeceeseiennens (27) 100% (29) 2 -7%

Net changein fund balances................. $ 136 $ 145 % (9

The year-over-year increase in cash and investments of $196 million is due to 1) a$90 million increase in the size of Treasury's
Securities Lending program, 2) the successful active management of specific portfolios (investment income increased by $54
million), and 3) the timing of reimbursements received from the Federal government. Other Liabilities decreased by $39
million because of 1) a prior year $29 million accrua for the PACE program, 2) a prior year $6 million accrual for the Medical
Assistance for Workers with Disabilities program (during the current fiscal year both of these items were remitted and posted),
and 3) unearned revenue related to the Community Health Reinvestment (CHR) and Master Settlement Agreement (MSA)
estimated receivables decreased by $5 million.

During the fiscal year, CHR revenues decreased by $44 million; $135 million was collected in the prior year while only $92
million was collected in the current year. CHR revenues are calculated based on the performance of the participating insurance
companies. MSA revenues increased $16 million; $336 million was collected in the prior year compared to $352 million in the
current year. MSA revenues are based on tobacco product sales. The net year-over-year changes in both CHR and MSA
programs caused a $28 million decrease in Other Revenues. Protection of Persons and Property expenditures increased by $32
million due to an increase in CHR expenditures for the Adult Basic Insurance Program administered by the Department of
Insurance. Expenditures for Economic Development increased $3 million due to expenditures for Life Science Greenhouses
administration.
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M easur ement focus and basis of accounting — proprietary funds

The enterprise funds and internal service funds (proprietary funds) are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the
operations of these funds are included on the statement of net assets. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are
recoghized in the fiscal year earned, and expenses are recognized in the fiscal year incurred. Enterprise funds that report loan,
insurance and tuition payment programs report most revenues as operating revenues; non-operating revenues are reported for
other programs and include grant revenues and all investment income. Four enterprise funds are reported as major funds and
are discussed below (amountsin millions).

Unemployment Compensation Fund

Condensed, comparative, financial statement information for the Unemployment Compensation Fund is as follows (amountsin
millions):

2007 2006 I ncr ease (Decr ease)
Description Amount Per cent Amount Amount Per cent
Cash and iNVEStMENES.......c.eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeanns $ 1,815 74% $ 1,554 $ 261 17%
Other aSsatS....ccooeeeeiiiiiiieee e 652 26% 670 (18) -3%

Total assets.......cccoveeeeeeeeeeieeeeee e 2,467 100% 2,224 243 11%
Accounts payable...........ccccooiiiiiiiis 95 94% 93 2 2%
Other liabilities.........ccccceeeeeeciiiiieiee e, 6 6% 8 (2) -25%

Total liabilities.......ccceeeeceeeeviiieecciieeens 101 100% 101 -

Total Net asSEtS.....ccoveeeeeeciiiiiieeee e $ 2,366 100% $ 2,123 $ 243 11%
Sales and SEIVICES......coeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen $ 2172 96% $ 2,372 $ (200) -8%
INnvestment iNCOME............coeeviivieeeeeeeececinenes - 50 (50) -100%
Other revVeNUES..........coeeeeieeceiieeiee e 79 4% 86 (7) -8%

Total operating revenues...................... 2,251 100% 2,508 (257) -10%
Cost of sales and services 2,075 100% 1,999 76 4%

Total operating expenses........cccceeeeueeeee 2,075 100% 1,999 76 4%

Operating iNCoOME........ccceeeeeeeeeeeieieeeeennn. 176 509 (333) -65%

I nvestment income (nonoper ating)....... 70 - 70

Income beforetransfers...........cocooceeee 246 509 (263) -52%

Transfers.....ccooooieiiiieeeeeee, 3 (3) -

Increase(decrease) in net assets........... $ 243 $ 506 $ (263)

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, employer assessment revenues decreased by $200 million based, mostly, on the
overall employer tax rate dropping from 5.4 percent in fiscal years ended 2005 and 2006 to 5 percent during the current fiscal
year. The employer tax rate is established by the Department of Labor & Industry’s Unemployment Compensation Tax
Services Unit. Thisrateis based on an employer’s experience. Experience is computed using a formulathat takes into account
how much unemployment benefits an employer was charged versus how much unemployment taxes were paid over the last
three years for that particular employer. New employers are given a base rate. Businesses that experience a higher percentage
of layoffs, such as construction, are assessed a higher rate compared to businesses that do not have as many layoffs. The
reason the rate has dropped is due to the balance maintained in Pennsylvania s Trust Fund (a component of the overall Fund).
Once the balance rises to a certain amount, a solvency ‘trigger’ causes the employer tax rate to drop. Currently the average rate
ison adownward trend, which iswhy fewer employer assessments are being collected.

Although layoffs actually decreased during the current fiscal year, expenses for unemployment compensation benefit claims
increased by $76 million during the fiscal year. The average benefit payment increased based on inflationary factors; the
average benefit payment is based on average wages. Since wages have increased, so have benefit payment amounts. Also,
during calendar years 2005 and 2006, a 2.3 percent benefit reduction was in place. This reduction ended with the beginning of
calendar year 2007, which also explains the increase in benefit payments.

Overall revenues exceeded expenses by $243 million, exactly matching the net increase in total assets during the fiscal year,
compared to $506 million during the prior fiscal year.

Investment income was reported as operating revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 and was reported as
nonoperating revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.
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State Workers' Insurance Fund (December 31, 2006)

Condensed, comparative, financial statement information for the State Workers' Insurance Fund is as follows (amounts in
millions):

2007 2006 I ncrease (Decr ease)
Description Amount Per cent Amount Amount Per cent
Cash and short-term investments.................. $ 804 31% $ 872 $ (68) -8%
Long-term investments..........ccccccveeveeveeennen. 1,686 64% 1,539 147 10%
Other aSsatS......cccevereeii e 128 5% 143 (15) -10%
Total aSSELS....ccevevieeieceerie e 2,618 100% 2,554 64 3%
Securities lending obligations...............c.c..... 684 28% 629 55 9%
Unearned revenue..........ccccoceeeeeeveecieeceveene 156 6% 167 (12) -7%
Insurance loss liability..........cccoveeieiiieeennn, 1,523 63% 1,426 97 7%
Other liabilities........ccooeoeevivecerecceeee e, 72 3% 56 16 29%
Total liabilities.......cccoveverveneniecisiens 2,435 100% 2,278 157 7%
NEL @SSELS...cviiiiiieeiieeeree e $ 183 100% $ 276 $ (93) -34%
Sales and SErVICES.......ooevveeeeeeeeeeeeeceeieens $ 374 104% $ 27 3 (53) -12%
INvestment iNCOME..........ccccevereenenienieseeee - 67 (67) -100%
Other reVENUES.........ceeecveeceeeree et - 1 D -100%
Provision for uncollectible accounts............. (13) -4% (17) 4 -24%
Total operating revenues...................... 361 100% 478 (117) -24%
Cost of salesand Services........coceveeierieennnne 536 100% 391 145 37%
INtErest eXPENSE.......ccovecveeeieeeree et - 4 (4 -100%
Total operating eXpenses.......ceceveuvveee... 536 100% 395 141 36%
Operating iNCOME.........cceevvererrcveereennns (175) 83 (258) -311%
I nvestment income (nonoper ating)....... 82 - 82
Incr ease(decr ease) in net assets........... $ (93) $ 83 $ (176)

During calendar year 2006, reported year over year premium revenue (Sales and Services) decreased from $427 million to
$374 million. A review of application statistics shows that new applications are up by 1 percent from 2005 (17,603 vs. 17,457)
while renewals are down 6 percent (41,485 vs 44,198). These dtatistics also indicate that private insurance carriers are
beginning to provide coverage that they have not recently been providing and that a continuing decline in applications for
benefits can be expected. Insurance loss liability increased as a result of SWIF's experience and changes to actuaria
assumptions. Investment income increased due to realized gains on sales of investments and relatively higher investment fair
values. Investment income was reported as operating revenues for the prior year and was reported as nonoperating revenues
for the current year.
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State L ottery Fund

Condensed, comparative, financial statement information for the State L ottery Fund is as follows (amounts in millions):

2007 2006 I ncrease (Decr ease)
Description Amount Per cent Amount Amount Per cent
Cash and short-term investments.................. $ 764 91% $ 643 $ 121 19%
Long-terminvestments..........ccccoecveeeeeeeniens 8 1% 9 D -11%
Other assetS.......coveeeveeierece e 65 8% 62 3 5%
Total aSSELS....c.ecvceeceieieceeeeeee e, 837 100% 714 123 17%
Accounts payable.........cccooverrinienennesee 370 76% 234 136 58%
Securities lending obligations............c.cc....... 88 18% 76 12 16%
Other liabilities.......cooeeeeeeecieecececeeeee, 31 6% 46 (15) -33%
Total liabilitieS......ceeeverierrcireeecieins 489 100% 356 133 37%
NEL ASSELS......oecviceicieeiecreee e $ 348 100% $ 358 $ (10) -3%
Sales and SErVICES.......ccovcveiveveceirecieece s $ 3,076 97% $ 3,047 $ 29 1%
Other reVENUES........cceeivieiece e 79 3% 77 2 3%
Total operating revenues...................... 3,155 100% 3,124 31 1%
Cost of salesand Services.........cooceeeveeevveennee. 3,014 97% 2,618 396 15%
Other EXPENSES......cccvveievie e 87 3% 86 1 1%
Total operating expenses.........c.cccveeee. 3,101 100% 2,704 397 15%
Operating iNnCoOMe.........ccccceeeeereeesveeennen. 54 420 (366) -87%
Nonoperating revenues.............c.cceeeee... 40 27 13 48%
Income beforetransfers.......ooovvevveeenne 94 447 (353) -79%
Transfers, Net.......cccceeeeeceececcee e, (104) (380) 276 -73%
I ncrease(decr ease) in net assets............ $ (10) $ 67 % (77)

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the relatively small year-over-year increase in overal sales ($29 million) was
primarily attributable to increased Instant Game sales of $119 million and increased online sales of $58 million. The increase
in on-line sales was the result of new games: Mix & Match and Treasure Hunt. Those increases were offset by decreases in
online sales of Powerball/Powerplay ($122 million) and Lucky for Life ($13 million). Theincrease in cash and investments of
$121 million was primarily the result of atransfer from the Gaming Fund, which is described in the following paragraph. Cost
of sales and services increased by $396 million; much of this increase ($248 million) was related to the initiation of the
Medical Assistance — Long Term Care program. This program was administered by the Department of Public Welfare and
provided a continuum of services that ranged from at-home independent living with community support to institutional care.

Transfers in from other funds increased by $100 million; funding was transferred from the Gaming Fund to help meet the
requirements of the expansion of the Property Tax Rent Rebate (PTRR) program. This program was administered by the
Department of Revenue and was significantly expanded by Act 1 of Special Session 1 of 2006. The Act expanded both the
population of citizens who are eligible for the rebate and the dollar amount of the rebate. The Gaming Fund was required to
reimburse the Lottery Fund for the PTRR program expansion. This expansion increased expenses by $195 million.
Implementation of the Federal Medicare Part D program pharmacy benefit reduced demand for the Pharmaceutical Assistance
Contract for the Elderly (PACE) program. This, in turn, reduced the amount of transfers out from the Lottery Fund to the
PACE Fund by $176 million.
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Tuition Payment Fund

Condensed, comparative, financial statement information for the Tuition Payment Fund is as follows (amounts in millions):

2007 2006 Increase (Decr ease)
Description Amount Per cent Amount Amount Per cent
Cash and short-term investments.................. $ 297 20% $ 310 $ (13) -4%
Long-term investments..........ccocevvvereeeeens 1,153 79% 950 203 21%
Other aSSEtS......coveeiiececeeece e 4 4 -

Total assetS.....coovvveeeeeceeceeceeeee e, 1,454 100% 1,264 190 15%
Securities lending obligations....................... 155 11% 166 11 -1%
Tuition benefits payable...........cocoeeeenenne. 1,231 88% 1,078 153 14%
Other liabilities.....cccovevivieeeieece e, 10 1% 14 (4) -29%

Total liabilities......cccooeveeeeecieeeceeene 1,396 100% 1,258 138 11%

NEL ASSELS....ccve i $ 58 100% $ 6 $ 52 -867%
Sales and SEFVICES.......cecveeveeeeeeceeeeeee s $ 151 100% $ 114 $ 37 32%
Investment iNCOME.........ccccveveerieeeierieesnennn, - 74 (74) -100%

Total operating revenues...................... 151 100% 188 (37) -20%
Cost of salesand Services........ccceveveeveennee. 268 100% 138 130 94%

Total operating expenses.........cccoeevenee. 268 100% 138 130 94%

Operating inCome.........coeceveevveeeveennnen, (117) 50 (167) -334%

I nvestment income (nonoper ating)....... 169 - 169

Increasein Net assets........ooeeeveveneenane. $ 52 $ 50 $ 2

Net assets increased by $2 million during the fiscal year, resulting in total net assets of $52 million at June 30, 2007, from
$50 million at June 30, 2006. The Fund is 104 percent funded at June 30, 2007, compared to 101 percent funded at June 30,
2006.

Total revenues for the current fiscal year were $132 million more than the total revenues for the prior fiscal year. Increasesin
tuition credit purchases of $37 million and increases in investment earnings of $95 million accounted for the majority of the
increased revenues between the two fiscal years. The increase in revenue was offset by an increase in total expenditures of
$130 million. Increases of $123.1 million for tuition benefit expenses account for the majority of increased expenses.

The fair value of the Fund's net investments (short-term and long-term investments net of securities lending investments)
increased to $1,295 million at June 30, 2007, from $1,094 million at June 30, 2006. Effective September 26, 2006, the Fund
initiated a limited partnership agreement with GKM Newport Pennsylvania Fund I, L.P. with a total commitment of $60
million at June 30, 2007. The purpose of the new investment vehicle was to enhance investment returns and improve the
overall performance of plan assets. Tuition benefits payable increased to $1,231 million at June 30, 2007 from $1,078 million
at June 30, 2006.

Actual payments to educational institutions increased to $94.6 million in the June 30, 2007 fiscal year from $74.8 million in the
June 30, 2006 fiscal year as 10,047 beneficiaries used 240,002 creditsin the current fiscal year compared to 8,544 beneficiaries
using 203,347 creditsin the prior fiscal year.

Investment income was reported as operating revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 and was reported as
nonoperating revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.
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Capital asset activity during thefiscal year ended June 30, 2007

Throughout the fiscal year, Commonwealth agencies acquire or construct capital assets. In governmental fund statements,
expenditures for capital assets are typically reported as capital outlay. Funding for a significant portion of capital asset
acquisition is provided by proceeds of general obligation bonds issued; such proceeds are generally accounted for in the capital
projects funds in the funds financial statements as an other financing source. In the government-wide statements, bond
proceeds are reported as additions to long-term bond liabilities and completed project expenditures and construction in progress
at fiscal year end are reported as part of general capital assets. Construction in progress for Department of General Services
(public works) and Department of Transportation (highway and bridge) projects at June 30, 2007 amounted to $0.4 and $1.8
billion, respectively. Authorized but unissued genera obligation bonds at June 30, 2007 totaled $57.2 billion.

General capital assets of the Commonwealth are those used in the performance of specific governmental functions during more
than one fiscal year. Capital assets of the proprietary funds are reported in both fund statements and in government-wide
statements. Fiduciary fund capital assets are reported in fund statements; fiduciary funds are not included in government-wide
statements. General capital assets as of June 30, 2007 amounted to $23.8 billion at actual or estimated historical cost, net of
accumulated depreciation of $12.6 hillion. In the government-wide statements, depreciation expense for all capital assets is
reported to recognize the cost of “using up” capital assets over their estimated useful lives. This treatment differs from
reporting capital outlay as current year expenditure in governmental funds. Highway and bridge infrastructure assets are
typically funded with Motor License Fund taxes, license and registration fees and Federal revenues. The Motor License Fund
reports transportation and capital outlay expendituresin fund statements; a portion of such expenditures is reported as additions
to capital assets in government-wide statements. Depreciation of highway and bridge infrastructure assets is not related to the
quality or relative value of these assets; rather, it is a specific accounting treatment to recognize the cost of “using up” the
assets over long periods of time (25 years for highways and 50 years for bridges.) Depreciation is an allocation of an asset’s
cost over its estimated useful life and is reported in government-wide statements. Note E to the financial statements provides
more information on capital asset activities during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.

L ong-term debt activity during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007

The congtitution of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania permits the incurrence of debt, without approval of the electorate, for
capital projects specifically authorized in a capital budget. Capital project debt outstanding cannot exceed one and three
quarters (1.75) times the average of the annual tax revenues deposited in al funds during the previous five fiscal years. The
certified congtitutional debt limit at August 31, 2007 was $51.3 billion. Outstanding capital project debt at August 31,
2007 amounted to $6.9 hillion, for a remaining legal debt margin of $44.4 billion. In addition to constitutionally authorized
capital project debt, the Commonwealth may incur debt for electorate-approved programs, such as economic revitalization,
land and water development, water facilities restoration, and certain environmenta initiatives; and for special purposes
approved by the General Assembly, such as disaster relief.

Total general obligation bond indebtedness outstanding at June 30, 2007 was $8.246 hillion. Total debt service fund transfers
paid from General Fund and Motor License Fund appropriations to make principal and interest payments to bondhol ders during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 amounted to $849 million and $41 million, respectively. The table that follows shows total
outstanding long-term indebtedness for general obligation bonds at the end of the eight most recent fiscal years (expressed in
billions).

Outstanding
At June 30 Bond I ndebtedness
2000 $ 5.367
2001 5.545
2002 6.072
2003 7.031
2004 7.225
2005 7.151
2006 7.658
2007 8.246

Note K to the financial statements provides more specific details on long-term debt balances and activity during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007.
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Debt administration —fiscal year ending June 30, 2008

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008, the Office of the Budget currently plans general obligation bond issuances,
excluding refundings, amounting to $981 million, a decrease of $92 million as compared to actual bond issuances of $1,073
million, excluding refundings, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. This plan reflects the need to make continued
investments in the Commonwealth’s capital infrastructure, local capital projects and mass transportation. Additionaly, a
significant portion of the projected issuances for the 2008 fiscal year is attributable to two major environmental programs
which would target capital improvements to water supply and sewage treatment facilities associated with economic
development, as well as, general environmental capital improvement projects. Debt principal retirements of $555.3 million are
currently planned for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008.

The Commonwealth continues to evaluate refunding opportunities for its outstanding bonds to reduce interest costs. During
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the Commonwealth closed a refunding issue that refunded $239 million of outstanding
bonds and will produce $14 million of interest savings over the remaining life of those bonds. As market conditions provide
additional opportunities, the Commonwealth may pursue additional refundings.

In addition to genera obligation bonds, the Commonwealth may issue tax anticipation notes to meet operating cash needs
during certain months of the fiscal year. Tax anticipation notes may be issued only for the General Fund and the Motor
License Fund. They may not exceed 20 percent of the funds' estimated revenues for the year and must mature during the fiscal
year in which they were issued. Cash shortages may occur during the fiscal year because tax receipts, unlike cash
disbursements, are concentrated in the last four months of the fiscal year. The Commonwealth has not issued tax anticipation
notes during the past ten fiscal years and has no plans to issue any during the 2008 fiscal year. There were no changesin credit
ratings, and there were no debt limitations, restrictions or commitments during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 that may
affect the Commonwealth’s plans during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008.

L egislative changes during fiscal year 2007-2008

During the fiscal year that began July 1, 2007, the legislature approved several new laws which are expected to change the
Commonwealth’s financial position in the future.

Act 44, signed July 18, 2007 provides for a new system of funding public transportation and highway and bridge repair in
Pennsylvania. On average, the new law will make $532 million available annually over the next 10 years to fund state and
local road and bridge repairs and $414 million available to support the 73 public transit systems that provide more than 400
million rides a year to residentsin all of Pennsylvania’ s 67 counties. The new transportation funding law replaces a patchwork
transit funding system with the new Public Transportation Trust Fund, which will be funded by sales and other taxes, lottery
proceeds and amounts from the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission.

Act 45, signed July 20, 2007 contains the enabling legidation for a number of important education initiatives funded in Act
8A, the General Appropriations Act of 2007 including: $75 million for the Pre-Kindergarten Counts program, $6 million for
School Nutrition Incentives, $20 million additional Accountability Block Grant funds to promote Full-Day Kindergarten. The
Act aso includes the enabling legislation for the basic education subsidy which will provide $4.9 billion to loca school
districts. There is aso an increase in the Education Improvement Tax Credit which will reduce tax revenues by $16 million
during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008.

Act 55, signed July 25, 2007 amends the Tax Reform Code to make a number of changes including 1) the creation of a Film
Tax Credit and the Resource Enhancement and Protection Tax Credit, 2) the treatment of credit losses (bad debts) for the
purposes of calculating certain taxes and 3) various other revisions to the Tax Reform Code. The estimated tax revenue
decrease for all changesincluded in Act 55 is approximately $50 million for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008.

General Fund fiscal year 2007-2008 budget

The General Fund's fiscal year ending 2008 enacted budget increases General Fund expenditures by $864 million, or
3.3 percent. Major increases include education funding at $597.2 million, or 5.5 percent, public welfare funding at $358
million or 3.8 percent, and corrections institutional funding at $18 million or 12.7 percent. In education, the Basic
Education appropriation is increased $167.2 million or 3.5 percent and Special Education funding is increased by $54.7
million or 4.3 percent. The new Pre-Kindergarten Counts program provides $75 million to expand early learning
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opportunities. Classrooms for the Future provides a $70 million increase in funding for technology in high schools.
Additionally, the Pennsylvania Accountability Block Grant to school districts is increased by $25 million to $275
million annually and the Commonwealth's contribution to the Public School Employees Retirement System is
increased $68.4 million in the fiscal year ending 2008.

In public welfare, cost savings initiatives hold the line on increases in some medical assistance funding; however long
term living costs increase by $67 million or 9.7 percent. The Cover All Kids program, providing the second year of
expanded access to affordable health care for uninsured children, funds an enrollment increase of 10 percent at a cost
increase of $16 million.

Funding for administration of state government maintains efficient and effective operations at minimal increases,
totaling 2.3 percent less than the fiscal year 2002-03 costs. Cost reductions in the General Fund include non-recurring
funding for certain grant programs and disaster relief programs.

Management’s discussion and analysis is intended to enhance the reader’s understanding of the basic financial statements,
which immediately follow. This supplementary information should be read in conjunction with the government-wide financial
statements, the fund financia statements and the notes to financial statements.

36



Basic Financial Statements

Allegheny National Forest

Warren County

37



- THISPAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK -

38



Government-Wide
Financial Statements

Capitol Building, Harrisburg
Dauphin County

39



STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Primary Government

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cast—NOLE D.......oveiireceeee s
Cash with fiscal agents—Note D........cccceiiiriricenrnecceeeeene
Temporary investments—NOte D.........ccvvvrecenveneirrecenee
Receivables (net):
TaXES—NOLE Gt e
Unemployment assessments...
ACCOUNLS......covvirinrerienieeieienne
Accrued interest
Loans—Note G.....
Lease rentals—Note G....

Due from pension trust funds—Note H...........cccooeeennicinnncnene.
Due from primary government—Note H.........c.cccooeernrecccnninnne.
Due from component units—Note H.........c.cccooeonnieiiiinnccnenne
Due from Federal government...........ccccovveeiennneennenieenenesieeens
Due from political subdivisions...
Due from other governments....
INVeNtory.......ccoeevivnineccniee .
Prepaid and deferred eXpenses.........cccoveeennerieenenneeeseseeeens
Other @SSELS.....cveieiiieerere e

TOtal CUMTENt @SSELS.......ceceeeceererererererer et

Noncurrent assets:
Long-term investments—NOte D.........ccccorrerenenieeenriseeeseeenes
Receivables (net):
Taxes—Note G
Loans—Note G
Lease rental S—NOLE G.......cccovrvrueiriririeeeresie e
Due from component units—Note H............cccovvrniiiiccccenns
Non-depreciable capital assets—Note E:

CONSLTUCEION 1N PIrOGIESS.....cucuerereererirereeieeeseeieesesessenesesesesseesesnas
Depreciable capital assets—Note E:
Land iMProvEMENES..........courierieieererieeeesesie e
Buildings and building improvements............ccoceoveereeeneiensneneens
Machinery and equipment................. .
Turnpike iNfrastruCtUre. ...
Highway iNfrastruCture...........cceiverieieienernec e
Bridge infrastruCture...........ooeeeeiecinncesec e
Waterway iNfrastrUCtUre...........cocererereeenenenieeerreee e
INFrastruCture-Other..........cvciiiiecrc e
Library BOOKS..........cceriririeiiririeeneeee e
Other capital @SSELS.........cceiririiieeirree e
Less: accumulated depreciation............coceeeeerreeeeieneresieceseens
Net depreciable capital assets.....

Total NON-CUMTENt @SSELS.....c.ccvverireeerereeestereseseeeseeesseseeeseeseenes
TOTAL ASSETS...co ettt ettt eaeeeaeeens

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

$ 89,155 $ 40,885 $ 130,040 $ 1,465,131
- 1,797,051 1,797,051 -
11,261,068 2,274,554 13,535,622 1,820,373
2,345,522 - 2,345,522 -
- 510,372 510,372 -
676,065 214,259 890,324 182,902
19,788 36,770 56,558 283,690
10,723 48,221 58,944 1,796,782
652 - 652 6,774
12,477 - 12,477 -
27,742 55 27,797 41,416
2,914 18 2,932 -
- - - 9,712
30,937 434 31,371 81
1,613,304 3,424 1,616,728 104,070
6,624 9,526 16,150 -
8 24,629 24,637 30
88,163 189,132 277,295 30,904
- - - 31,578
3,171 23,475 26,646 168,319
16,188,313 5,172,805 21,361,118 5,941,762
1,260,723 2,846,447 4,107,170 1,948,215
1,242,012 - 1,242,012 -
40,249 233,706 273,955 16,079,816
- - - 8,380
92,769 - 92,769 -
1,998,693 323 1,999,016 220,508
2,200,232 4,813 2,205,045 1,439,546
477,927 - 477,927 218,092
5,487,172 40,656 5,527,828 2,345,481
844,329 115,350 959,679 715,676
- - - 4,362,098
18,109,439 - 18,109,439 -
7,421,580 - 7,421,580 -
19,650 - 19,650 -
9,663 - 9,663 -
- - - 80,836
- - - 57,046
(12,701,023) (87,757) (12,788,780) (4,271,054)
19,668,737 68,249 19,736,986 3,508,175
- - - 303,522
26,503,415 3,153,538 29,656,953 23,508,162
$ 42,691,728 $ 8,326,343 $ 51,018,071 $ 29,449,924

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Primary Government

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities............coovevenriccininnee.
Investment purchases payable...........ocoeernnreinninecereeees
Tax refunds Payable..........ccoveeirreieee s
Tuition benefits payable—NGote F..........ccoireiinnircceeecee
Securities lending obligations............ccccccrnnnnnnnceens
Internal balances—Note H..............
Due to pension trust funds—Note H...
Due to primary government—Note H .
Due to component units—NOote H..........cccoovieenniciicnnccene
Dueto political SUBAiVISIONS........ccccoiueiiririeeeeee e
Due to other goVENMENLS.........covviveeiiirriecrreeee e
INterest Payable.........ccoirrireiree e
UNEAINEM FEVENUE.........coveiiiieietce ettt
Notes payable—NOLE J..........ceirrireiirriee e
General obligation bonds payable—Note K..
Bonds payable—NoteK..............
Revenue bonds payable—Note K... .
Self insurance liabilities—NOte M.........ccovvrrrrrcecccccerennes
Compensated absence liability—Notes F, K.........cccccovviivicinneens
Other financing obligations—Note J...........ccccvrreenennieecneriniees
Other HabilitiES......ccviieiricireeeiee e

Total current liabilities...........oeeiierrcree e

Noncurrent liabilities:
Tuition benefits payable—Note F.........cccoiiiiniieceeece
Due to primary government—Note H.........ccoveiinnneicnnnccens
Unearned revenue...........ooeeenererienenene
Demand revenue bonds payable—Note J..
Insurance loss liahility—Note F............. .
Notes payable—NOte J...........coovvviviiiiiiree s
General obligation bonds payable—Note K..........cccooeeeirnninenne.
Bonds payable—Note K.
Revenue bonds payable—Note K..........coccoeennrreninneeienerneene
Capital lease/installment purchase obligations—Notes F, K...........
Other financing obligations—Note J...........ccccerrireienrerieenenenieeeeas
Compensated absence liability—Note F, K..
Self insurance liabilities—Note M.
Other liabilities—NoteK............. .

Total non-current liabilities..........covvrrerereeeeeeeeeeeeene

TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..ttt
NET ASSETS—NoteC
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt............cccovreecinnnnee
Restricted for:
Smoking cessation and other health-related programs..................
TraNSPOMTALION.....c.civeieieeresietec ettt
Capital PrOJECES.......cvvevereiiriririeitesi et
DEDL SEIVICE.....eevevercrerererere et
Unemployment/worker's Compensation.............cooeeveeeecenenennn
Elderly programs........coceeeerrieeienineseee st
Environmental and conservation programs..............ceevvvvnenenes
Economic stimulus........cccceveveererenenencneenes
Gaming licensing/regulation................
Correctional industries and procurement. .
EMErgency SUPPOIT.........cceirieiririeerieeseese e
Other PUMPOSES.......eueiiieieiererieieesesie ittt
UNTESHICLEH. ...t
TOTAL NET ASSETS....c ottt

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

$ 4,377,948 $ 620,605 $ 4,998,553 $ 507,552
34,718 - 34,718 -
677,234 - 677,234 -
- 156,006 156,006 -
1,358,944 973,937 2,332,881 50,174
(88,181) 87,331 (850) -
7,873 227 8,100 -
- - - 22,769
9,134 - 9,134 81
1,101,546 - 1,101,546 -
50,081 6,482 56,563 -
143,048 - 143,048 155,018
92,771 168,680 261,451 85,898
- - - 961,301
559,402 - 559,402 -
- - - 30,694
- - - 282,788
154,816 4,610 159,426 2,262
117,313 4,979 122,292 22,883
6,000 - 6,000 4,849
84,933 52,926 137,859 339,838
8,687,580 2,075,783 10,763,363 2,466,107
- 1,075,222 1,075,222 -
- - - 92,769
- - - 3,900
- - - 9,089,176
- 1,523,871 1,523,871 -
- - - 1,643,464
7,686,271 - 7,686,271 -
- - - 571,606
- - - 7,997,369
40,649 17,375 58,024 -
70,500 - 70,500 182,874
575,512 27,829 603,341 105,213
605,411 18,233 623,644 16,308
628,954 - 628,954 967,039
9,607,297 2,662,530 12,269,827 20,669,718
18,294,877 4,738,313 23,033,190 23,135,825
20,015,677 56,010 20,071,687 1,338,228
1,454,502 2,413 1,456,915 3,000
1,266,928 58,085 1,325,013 255,444
213,556 - 213,556 2,828,346
20,474 - 20,474 436,824
104,579 2,547,726 2,652,305 -
10,808 340,836 351,644 -
473,210 - 473,210 -
16,217 288,246 304,463 72,251
299,396 - 299,396 -
30,348 - 30,348 -
60,917 129,546 190,463 -
87,077 165,168 252,245 1,202,002
343,162 - 343,162 178,004
$ 24,396,851 $ 3,588,030 $ 27,984,881 $ 6,314,099
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Charges for Operating Capital Primary Government
Sales and Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type Component
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions ~ Contributions Activities Activities Total Units
Primary gover nment:
Governmental activities:
Direction and SUPPOIiVE SEIVICES........cccceveveireeerersiecaereseseesenns $ 1,208,409 $ 143,290 $ 40999 $ - $ (10241200 % - $ (1,0241200 $ -
Protection of persons and property.. 4,487,633 1,309,256 979,685 5,102 (2,193,590) - (2,193,590) -
Public education..... 12,464,663 14,793 1,568,038 - (10,881,832) - (10,881,832) -
Health and human services... 24,264,933 1,730,965 12,388,172 - (10,145,796) - (10,145,796) -
Economic devel opment 1,738,172 12,277 605,400 - (1,120,495) - (1,120,495) -
L 1 )4 0] OO 3,922,517 952,866 1,584,372 18,260 (1,367,019) - (1,367,019) -
Recreation and cultural enrichment. 569,510 162,168 62,334 133 (344,875) - (344,875) -
INtErest....covveieeennene 344,557 - - - (344,557) - (344,557) -
Total governmental activities 49,000,394 4,325,615 17,229,000 23,495 (27,422,284) - (27,422,284) -
Business-type activities:
SEAE NOMONY ...t 3,100,523 3,076,013 119,092 - - 94,582 94,582 -
State WOrKers iNSUrANCE.........c.cveveeereereeeireereeseseesseseeseeeseeseenns 553,512 374,088 86,696 - - (92,728) (92,728) -
TUILION PAYMENL......coiiiirierrice e 267,941 151,121 169,458 - - 52,638 52,638 -
Unemployment compensation.. 2,074,382 2,172,900 147,616 - - 246,134 246,134 -
Liquor control..........coeveuevenee 1,277,871 1,364,524 15,693 - - 102,346 102,346 -
Economic development and other... 14,470 20,068 80,764 - - 86,362 86,362 -
Total business-type activities.........cccovvicrerrnecnsenicnenns 7,288,699 7,158,714 619,319 - - 489,334 489,334 -
Total primary OVEIMMENL..........ccrurriierereeriererseressessseeseserenseneens $ 56,280,093 $ 11484329 $ 17848319 $ 23,495 (27,422,284) 489,334 (26,932,950) -
Component units:
Total COMPONENE UNITS......c.coovierieeriiiriereeeiereereeeeese e $ 4789084 $ 2792273 $ 2047079 $ 171,900 - - - 222,168
General revenues:
Taxes:
Personal iNCOME........cccviueeiiceiiiecieeciceeeee st 9,951,585 - 9,951,585 -
SAlES AN USE......coveeeir e 8,629,815 - 8,629,815 -
COMPOIaLiON.....covviiieisieie et beseteaas 4,985,031 - 4,985,031 -
2,072,442 - 2,072,442 67,071
251,059 - 251,059 -
INNEFTTANCE. ..o 716,788 - 716,788 -
CHAELE. ...t 983,580 - 983,580 -
RE&l EStALE. ... 583,991 - 583,991 -
OtNEN .t 475,197 - 475,197 -
TOtAl tBXES. ...t 28,649,488 - 28,649,488 67,071
INVESIMENE INCOME........ecvieiieeieeeeeieeete st 320,342 - 320,342 -
Total general revenues... 28,969,830 - 28,969,830 67,071
Transfers—Note H 257,343 (257,343) - -
Net general revenues and transfers..... 29,227,173 (257,343) 28,969,830 67,071
Changein net assets. 1,804,889 231,991 2,036,830 289,239
Net assets, July 1, 2006 (restated)—NoteB..........ccccoo.... 22,591,962 3,356,039 25,948,001 6,024,860
Net assets, June 30, 2007—NOote C........cccevrererrererrnenicrenns $ 2439851 $ 3588030 $ 27,984,881 $ 6,314,099

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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BALANCE SHEET
Governmental Funds June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Motor Tobacco
General License Settlement Nonmajor
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
ASSETS
Assets:
Cash—Note D $ 72,962 $ 810 $ 2,409 $ 8,678 $ 84,859
Temporary investments—Note D..........cocvvvivininnsinininiens 5,999,154 1,853,077 799,953 2,557,896 11,210,080
Long-term investments—Note D - - 784,045 476,678 1,260,723
Receivables, net:
Taxes—Note G 3,384,779 178,355 - 24,400 3,587,534
Accounts. 112,366 16,800 211,753 23,902 364,821
Accrued interest 2,319 9 8,089 9,373 19,790
Loans—Note G 11,113 - - 39,859 50,972
Lease rentals—Note G - - - 652 652
Investment sale proceed: - - 10,747 1,730 12,477
Other. - 6,853 - 20,889 27,742
Due from other funds—Note H 28,828 804 - 49,149 78,781
Due from pension trust funds—Note H............cccoceuriccninininnns 1,550 416 - - 1,966
Due from component units—NOte H.........cccceureeurereerncernennne 1,198 - - 25,570 26,768
Due from Federal government. 1,423,656 193,053 58,582 19,557 1,694,848
Due from political subdivisions. 6,416 117 - 91 6,624
Due from other government 1 - - - 1
Advances to other funds—NoOte H..........cccocvvrinininininennenes 114,108 - - 3,000 117,108
Other assets. 3,000 - - - 3,000
TOTAL ASSETS, $ 11,161,450 $ 2,250,294 $ 1875578 $ 3,261,424 $ 18,548,746
LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities............cccccoeiricrinnnnee $ 3,369,250 $ 522,642 $ 118,160 $ 342,552 $ 4,352,604
Investment purchases payable. - - 27,357 7,361 34,718
Tax refunds payable. 674,057 3,177 - - 677,234
Securities lending obligations. 619,759 206,509 273,551 253,442 1,353,261
Due to other funds—Note H 52,543 22,307 988 14,913 90,751
Due to component units—Note H............cccvevennecrecinnans 2,427 6,695 - 12 9,134
Due to pension trust funds. 6,262 1,347 - 244 7,853
Due to political subdivisions. 960,171 34,456 12,764 94,155 1,101,546
Due to other government 13,032 27,505 1 9,495 50,033
Unearned revenue. 2,014,430 4,700 211,753 23,851 2,254,734
Advances from other funds—Note H..........cccocoverirvivinininnnne 76,500 2,175 - 10,333 89,008
Other liabilities. 2,153 - - - 2,153
TOTAL LIABILITIES. 7,790,584 831,513 644,574 756,358 10,023,029
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances, 570,027 596,304 897 1,329,950 2,497,178
Advances—Note C. 114,108 - - 3,000 117,108
Loansreceivable. 11,113 - - 39,859 50,972
Budget Stabilization fund, 538,764 - - - 538,764
Other—Note C. 844,229 2,014 1,230,107 97,586 2,173,936
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Capital projects. - - - 65,455 65,455
Debt service:

Retirement of general obligation bonds............cccceuccuniuen - - - 20,474 20,474
Highways. - 235,730 - - 235,730
Other—Note C 923,966 - - 11,268 935,234

Undesignated (deficit)-reported in:
Genera Fund 368,659 - - - 368,659
Specia Revenue Funds. - 584,733 - 1,387,096 1,971,829
Capital Projects Funds. - - - (449,622) (449,622)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 3,370,866 1,418,781 1,231,004 2,505,066 8,525,717
TOTAL LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES. $ 11,161,450 $ 2,250,294 $ 1,875,578 $ 3,261,424 $ 18,548,746

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDSTO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

The governmental funds balance sheet reports total fund balance for al governmental funds. In the governmental activities column in the
Statement of Net Assets, amounts are reported for all governmental funds and are adjusted to account for specific items that are treated
differently on the Statement of Net Assets than on the governmental funds balance sheet. Under the modified accrua basis of accounting,
numerous governmental assets are not reported because they may not be "available," (that is, they are not current financial resources) and,
similarly, numerous governmental liabilities are not reported because they are not due and payable until after fiscal year end. The following
reconciliation begins with total governmental funds fund balance and ends with total net assets for governmental activities. It includes all of
the adjustments made to "convert" governmental fund information in the fund financial statements to governmental activities information in

the Statement of Net Assets.

Total Fund Balances--GoVEer NMENTAI FUNGS.........cooiiiii ittt st s a st s s s st e s e s saes st e e bessbessaresbessreesanesas $ 8,525,717

General capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and are therefore not reported in the governmental
funds balance sheet. (Refer to Note E.)

These assets consist of:
0o U $ 1,998,687
Land improvements...........ccccveeeereneeenenas 477,506
Buildings and building improvements............cocooeeveerennenenesenenennas 5,481,642
Machinery and eqUIPMENL...........cccorveerreierineerere e 744,506
INFrASIIUCIUNE.........ocueeeiecieeeeee ettt ettt 25,560,332
CONSLIUCLION IN PrOGIESS.......cererueuererieereriesesesiesesesiesesesie e seesesessenens 2,200,232
Accumulated depreCiation..............cccvcucueucuccrreeeeeeese s (12,638,726)
Net general CaPItal BSSELS.........cceruruiieririeieririee sttt st 23,824,179
Certain revenues are earned but not available at fiscal year-end and therefore
are reported as unearned revenues in the governmental funds balance Sheet...........ooeiiiniiirccnrce s 2,161,971
Certain receivables are not reported as governmental fund assets because they
are not collected during the availability period under the modified accrual
DESIS Of BCCOUNTING. ...ttt bbbtttk bbb bbbt e bt e b et b e bt st e b et b e b et st ebe e nbenene 324,550
Internal service funds are proprietary in nature and charge the costs of certain goods
and services to governmental funds. Therefore, the assets and liabilities of the
internal service funds are included in the Statement of Net Assets as governmental actiVities...........coceevioverieneernnnnene, 73,831
The Statement of Net Assets includes inventories that are not reported in the
governmental funds balance sheet because they are not current financial rESOUICES............covviririrrrirnieeeee e 77,504
Certain general long-term liabilities are not due and payable at fiscal year-end and
therefore are not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. (Refer to Note K.)
These ligbilities are:
BONds payabIe..........covvrrriceccc s (8,245,673)
Accrued bond interest payable (143,048)
Capital lease and installment purchase obligations..............cccoeueueee. (40,649)
Compensated absence [1aDility.........covverereeeieeiececcccceeseseseeene (691,100)
Self-insurance [1aDilitieS..........c.cviinrrnrrre e (758,693)
Other [HahilitiES......cveveveveveieteieicceeesesesse e (711,738)
(10,590,901)
Total Net ASSEtS---GOVE NMENTAI ACHIVITIES......ccveiieieeeiecteceeece ettt ettt ettt et et eebe e e et e sbesaeentesbeeseentesbeeseensesaeeneenees $ 24,396,851

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
Governmental Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF

PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)

General
Fund
REVENUES:
Taxes, net of refunds. $ 25,992,166
Licenses and fees. 366,519
Intergovernmental 15,160,953
Charges for sales and services. 1,334,855
Investment income. 307,810
Lease rental principal and interest...........cocoveeurerereeerenencnnens -
Interest on notes and loans. 6
Other 139,838
TOTAL REVENUES 43,302,147
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Direction and supportive services. 892,397
Protection of persons and Property...........coceveeeeeeeneeennenens 3,335,713
Health and human services. 23,536,324
Public education. 12,372,125
Recreation and cultural enrichment............cccceninccnininnns 353,018
Economic devel opment 1,204,253
Transportation. 434,737
Capital outlay. 25,275
Debt service:
Principal retirement. -
Interest and fiscal charges. 3,230
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ...t 42,157,072
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 1,145,075
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bonds issued. -
Refunding bonds issued. -
Premium on bonds/refunding bonds issued............cccovviucuene -
Discount on bonds i ssued, -
Transfersin—Note H 200,564
Transfers out—Note H (945,904)
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent.. -
Capital lease and installment purchase obligations. 1,582
NET OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) (743,758)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES.........cccoovivininnne 401,317
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 2006.........cccccruruerirnmnriniririna 2,969,549

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 2007........c.cccovuvmrimmninnininnas $ 3,370,866

Motor
License
Fund

$ 2,072,442
878,679
1,448,007
116,586
131,211

2,234

4,649,159

66,572
667,318

991
408

2,326,944
1,672,026

4,734,259

(85,100)

(45,197)

(130,297)
1,549,078
$ 1,418,781

Tobacco
Settlement
Fund

$ -

120,544

147,529

444,752

712,825

166,060
380,701

550,204

162,621

(26,898)

26,898

135,723
1,095,281

S 1231004

Nonmajor
Funds

$ 483672
709,590
161,708
147,123
183,270

99
128
20,144

1,705,734

145,824
452,028
375,986

66,804
190,691
528,692
327,863
424,331

521,773
357,858

3,391,850

1,686,116)

1,008,104
250,557
58,166
(157)
1,263,056
(170,626)
(253,892)

2,155,208

469,092
2,035,974

S 2505066

- The notesto the financia statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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Total

$ 28,548,280
1,954,788
16,891,212
1,598,564
769,820

99

134

606,968

50,369,865

1,104,793
4,621,119
24,293,011
12,439,920
544,117
1,736,388
3,089,544
2,121,632

521,773
361,088

50,833,385

(463,520)

1,008,104
250,557
58,166
(157)
1,463,620
(1,188,779)
(253,892)
1,736

1,339,355
875,835

7,649,882
S 885717



RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGESIN FUND

BALANCES-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDSTO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

The governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances reports events and activities that affect, on a current
financia resources basis, fund balance changes during the fiscal year. The governmenta activities column on the government-wide Statement of
Activities conveys information on an economic basis. In effect, the government-wide statement demonstrates all expenses and revenues related to the
operation of the government for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. Expenses such as depreciation and certain claims and judgments and revenues that
may not be collected for several months after fiscal-year end are included in the government-wide statement but are not included in the governmental funds
statement. This reconciliation reports all economic events during the fiscal year that appear on the government-wide Statement of Activities but are not

included in the governmental funds statement.

Net changein total fund balances of gover NMENAl FUNAS.........c.ooiii bbb $

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds; however, in the
government-wide statements capital outlays are reported as increases in capital assets
(not expenses) and the cost of general capital assetsis allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. All depreciation is reported

as part of functional program expenses. (Refer to Note E) The current amounts were:

Capital asset aCqUISItIONS (NEL).......covrurreueeeecieiirerereeeie et $ 2,131,495
Depreciation EXPENSE. ..o (998,468)
Capital lease, installment purchase and related payments............ccceveenne. 3,146

Net excess of capital asset additions/installment purchase

PaYMENtS OVEr AEPIrECI LI ON EXPENSE. ....c.vivvveeeeerereuttreresest et tesese et ss s st ebesee st e s bbb se et e se st etenenens

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds; however, issuing
bonds increases general long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. During the
current fiscal year, proceeds were received from:

General obligation bonds, including a premium/discount of $54,673......... $ (1,062,779)
Refunding bonds, including apremium of $3,336...........cccocvrreeeenininenens (253,892)

TOtal DON PrOCEEAS ...ttt bt b et e ettt nb bbbt be e nan

Repayment of general long-term liabilitiesis reported as an expenditure in governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces general long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.
During the current fiscal year, these amounts consisted of:

Bond prinCipal FetiremMent...........ccoeeeerinrsrreeeeese e $ 521,773
Payments to refunded bond escrow agent.. 253,892

Total 10Ng-term debt FEPAYMENL........couvieiereiieeirr ettt

Internal service funds charge the costs of certain goods and services to
individua funds. The net loss of the internal service fundsis reported

as part Of GQOVENMENLAl BCHVITIES EXPENSES.......uciiueuiiiteirieesteeiste sttt ettt e e s ba e et e se s ese st et ese st e b e seebessebeseaseseseesenesbesesbebansebenens

Certain tax and other revenues due by fiscal year end will not be collected for several months
or years after fiscal year end; they are not considered available revenues

in the governmental funds, but they are reported as revenues in the statement of aCtiVItIES...........ceeveeiirnrrrsreee e

Certain expense adjustments are reported in the statement of activities because they are due
and payable and are funded with future economic resources rather than current available

FINANCIBI TESOUICES.......cuecuiitietiite ettt ettt et et e et e st et et e e e seebeebesbeebe s essesseseebe et e ebesbessessensenseseebeebeebesbesbesbessenseseebeebeebenbenbensenseneesessenseas

Net changein governmental net assetsin the statement Of ACHIVITIES..........cciiiiiiiiri s

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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875,835

1,136,173

(1,316,671)

775,665

(34,880)

167,245

201,522

1,804,889



STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Proprietary Funds June 30, 2007
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA Enterprise Funds
(Expressed in Thousands) State
Workers'
Unemployment Insurance State Tuition Internal
Compensation Fund Lottery Payment Nonmajor Service
Fund (Dec. 31, 2006) Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash, $ 11,744 $ 9,498 $ 206 $ 252 $ 19,185 $ 40,885 $ 4,29
Cash with fiscal agents—Note D.. 1,797,051 - - - - 1,797,051 -
Temporary investments—Note D. 6,041 794,399 763,408 296,981 413725 2,274,554 50,988
Receivables (net):
Unemployment asseSSmENtS............c.eeeereerereereureneaeens 510,372 - - - - 510,372 -
Accounts 82,484 104,216 25,139 - 2,420 214,259 1,480
Accrued interest 19,080 13,153 - 4,077 460 36,770 -
Loans—Note G. - - - - 48,221 48,221 -
Other - - 13 - 42 55 -
Due from other funds—Note H. 3233 - - - 2,886 6,119 10,177
Due from pension trust funds.... 2 - - - 16 18 948
Due from component units—Note H 428 - - - 6 434 606
Due from Federal government 2,658 - 709 - 57 3,424 -
Due from political subdivisions. 9,526 - - - - 9,526 -
Due from other governments ... 24,629 - - - - 24,629 7
Inventory - - - - 189,132 189,132 10,659
Other assets. - 8,746 14,729 - - 23,475 171
Total current assets 2,467,248 930,012 804,204 301,310 676,150 5,178,924 79,332
Noncurrent assets:
Long-term investments - 1,685,969 7,741 1,152,737 - 2,846,447 -
Receivables (net):
Loans—Note G - - - - 233,706 233,706 -
Non-depreciable capital assets—Note E:
Land, - - - - 323 323 6
Construction in progress - - - - 4,813 4,813 -
Depreciable capital assets—Note E:
Land improvement: - - - - - - 421
Buildings and building improvements. . - - - - 40,656 40,656 5,530
Machinery and equipment - 2,678 43,625 - 69,047 115,350 99,823
Less: accumulated depreciation ............ccooeeeeeiinnae - (1,095) (18,808) - (67,854) (87,757) (62,297)
Net depreciable capital assets. - 1,583 24,817 - 41,849 68,249 43,477
Total noncurrent assets .... - 1,687,552 32,558 1,152,737 280,691 3,153,538 43,483
TOTAL ASSETS 2,467,248 2,617,564 836,762 1,454,047 956,841 8,332,462 122,815
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities...................... 94,961 12,931 369,891 9,267 133,555 620,605 25,339
Tuition benefits payable—Note F. . - - - 156,006 - 156,006 -
Securities lending obligations, 673 684,183 88,263 155,038 45,780 973,937 5,683
Dueto other funds—Note H.. 10 - 284 6 3,330 3,630 326
Due to pension trust funds. - - 17 - 210 227 21
Due to other government: 5322 - 219 - 941 6,482 48
Unearned revenue. 77 155,841 9,584 - 3,178 168,680 8
Self insurance. - 335 258 - 4,017 4,610 310
Compensated absences. - 379 252 - 4,348 4,979 276
Advances from other funds. - 1,820 - - 88,000 89,820 14,300
Other liabilities. - 52,926 - - - 52,926 -
Total current liabilities. 101,043 908,415 468,768 320,317 283,359 2,081,902 46,311
Noncurrent liabilities:
Tuition benefits payable—Note F. . - - - 1,075,222 - 1,075,222 -
Insurance |oss liability—Note F - 1,522,869 - - 1,002 1,523,871 -
Capital lease. - - 17,375 - - 17,375 -
Compensated absences. - 1,850 1321 96 24,562 27,829 1,449
Self insurance. - 1,326 1,020 - 15,887 18,233 1,224
Tota noncurrent liabilities.........coovveveverrerinicrnns - 1,526,045 19,716 1,075,318 41,451 2,662,530 2,673
TOTAL LIABILITIES. 101,043 2,434,460 488,484 1,395,635 324,810 4,744,432 48,984
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt................. - 1,583 7,442 - 46,985 56,010 43,483
Restricted for:
Smoking cessation and other health-related programs. - - - - 2,413 2,413 -
Transportation. - - - - 58,085 58,085 -
Unemployment/workers compensation..............cce... 2,366,205 181,521 - - - 2,547,726 -
Elderly program: - - 340,836 - - 340,836 -
Economic stimulus. - - - - 288,246 288,246 -
Correctional industries and procurement..................... - - - - - - 30,348
Emergency support. - - - - 129,546 129,546 -
Other purposes—Note C.........coovvirieirieeniinisisinins - - - 58,412 106,756 165,168 -
Unrestricted (deficit) - - - - - - -
TOTAL NET ASSETS.. $ 2,366,205 $ 183,104 $348,278 $ 58412 $632,031 $3,588,030 $ 73831

- The notes to the financia statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGESIN FUND NET ASSETS

Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales and services,
INEErESE ON 10BNS........cuiiiiicii s
Other

OPERATING REVENUES BEFORE PROVISION
FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS.......cccoemiiniiinieiniiininnns

Provision for uncollectible accounts.

NET OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales and services.
Depreciation.
Other

6V

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS).....cccovimiiiiniininiiniinsisisssnssnssnnes

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income.
Investment expense.
Other revenues.
Other expenses.

NONOPERATING REVENUES, NET

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
AND TRANSFERS.......ccooiiiiii s

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS:
Capital contributions.
Transfers in—NOtE H.....c.cocuiiiiiiiciciccc e
Transfers out—Note H

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS, NET....

TOTAL NET ASSETS, JULY 1, 2006

TOTAL NET ASSETS, JUNE 30, 2007

Enterprise Funds

State
Workers'
Unemployment Insurance State Tuition Internal
Compensation Fund Lottery Payment Nonmajor Service
Fund (Dec. 31, 2006) Fund Fund Funds Total Funds

$ 2,171,789 $ 373,999 $ 3,076,572 $ 151,121 $ 1373248 $ 7,146,729 $ 59,656
- - - - 7,384 7,384 -

78,741 89 78,576 - 2,260 159,666 27
2,250,530 374,088 3,155,148 151,121 1,382,892 7,313,779 59,683
- (13,280) - - (629) (13,909) (3,579)

2,250,530 360,808 3,155,148 151,121 1,382,263 7,299,870 56,104
2,074,382 535,671 3,013,490 267,941 1,283,876 7,175,360 71,586

- - 7,893 - 7,836 15,729 6,494

- - 79,135 - - 79,135 -

2,074,382 535,671 3,100,518 267,941 1,291,712 7,270,224 78,080
176,148 (174,863) 54,630 (116,820) 90,551 29,646 (21,976)
69,986 86,696 39,957 169,458 36,457 402,554 6,118

- (4,561) - - - (4,561) -

- - - - 1,700 1,700 1
- - (5 - - (5 (1,523)

69,986 82,135 39,952 169,458 38,157 399,688 4,596
246,134 (92,728) 94,582 52,638 128,708 429,334 (17,380

- R - - 60,000 60,000 -

- - 100,000 - 2,057 102,057 -
(3,400) - (204,000) - (152,000) (359,400) (17,500)
(3,400) - (104,000) - (89,943) (197,343) (17,500)
242,734 (92,728) (9,418) 52,638 38,765 231,991 (34,880)
2,123,471 275,832 357,696 5,774 593,266 3,356,039 108,711

$ 2,366,205 $ 183,104 $ 348,278 $ 58,412 $ 632,031 $ 3,588,030 $ 73,831

- The notesto the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

CASH FLOWSFROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Enterprise Funds

Receipts from employers.
Receipts from customer:

Receipts from borrowers.
Receipt of premiums.

Payments to programs for the elderly.
Payments to prize winners.

Payments to participants.
Payments to claimants.

Payments to borrowers.

Payments for vendors, employees and other costs.

Other receipts (payments)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES...

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net borrowings under advances from other funds.

Transfersin

Transfers out

Capital contributions.

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWSFROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Acquisition and construction of capital assets.

Disposition of capital assets.
Capital |ease payments

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES................

CASH FLOWSFROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investment

Sales and maturities of investments.

Investment income.

Investment expense.

Change in securities lending obligations.

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) INVESTING ACTIVITIES.

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH AT JULY 1, 2006.

CASH AT JUNE 30, 2007

State
Workers'
Unemployment Insurance State Tuition Internal
Compensation Fund Lottery Payment Nonmajor Service
Fund (Dec. 31, 2006) Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
$ 2189918 $ 378859 $ - $ - 8 - $ 2568777 $ -
- - 3,064,865 151,203 1,368,782 4,584,850 66,127
- - - - 23,067 23,067 -
R - - - 6,566 6,566 -
- - (745,435) - - (745,435) -
- - (1,710,387) - - (1,710,387) -
- - - (109,298) - (109,298) -
(2,074,711) (352,307) - - (3,068) (2,430,086) -
- - - - (37,167) (37,167) -
- (70,961) (425,861) (10,614)  (1,238,740) (1,746,176) (65,014)
78,741 89 (559) - 1,827 80,098 27
193,948 (44,320) 182,623 31,291 121,267 484,809 1,140
- 151 - - - 151 -
- - 100,000 - 2,057 102,057 -
(3,400) - (204,000) - (152,000) (359,400) (17,500)
- - - - 60,000 60,000 -
(3,400) 151 (104,000) - (89,943) (197,192) (17,500)
- - (944) - (3,771) (4,715) (12,281)
- - - - 21 21 -
- - (10,884) - - (10,884) -
- - (11,828) - (3,750) (15,578) (12,281)
(7,462) (1,570,289)  (1,413778)  (1,568,153) (964,036) (5,523,718) (281,072)
5,449 1,496,842 1,302,309 1,512,813 899,866 5,217,279 306,456
69,930 70,024 32,782 34,434 31,241 238,411 5,547
- (4,561) - - - (4,561) -
218 54,937 11,798 (10,446) 6,430 62,937 (2,996)
68,135 46,953 (66,889) (31,352) (26,499) (9,652) 27,935
258,683 2,784 (94) (61) 1,075 262,387 (706)
1,550,112 6,714 300 313 18,110 1,575,549 5,002
$ 1808795 $ 9498 $ 206 $ 252 $ 19185 $ 1837936 $ 4,296




TS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Proprietary Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Enterprise Funds

State
Workers'
Unemployment Insurance State Tuition Internal
Compensation Fund Lottery Payment Nonmajor Service
Fund (Dec. 31, 2006) Fund Fund Funds Total Funds
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (|0ss) $ 176,148 $ (174863) $ 54630 $ (116820) $ 90551 20646 $ (21,976)
Depreciation and amortization. - - 7,893 - 7,836 15,729 6,494
Provision for uncollectible accounts. - 13,280 - - 629 13,909 3,579
Non-operating revenues. - - - - 1,700 1,700 1
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable. (21,214) 21,783 (12,696) 82 (21,717) (33,762) 342
Unemployment compensation assessments receivable. 44,315 - - - - 44,315 -
Inventory. - - - - 26,160 26,160 (139)
Due from other funds. (424) - - - (779) (1,203) 6,190
Due from component units. (66) - - - 1 (65) (99)
Due from other government: (9,554) - 990 - (57) (8,621) 209
Due from political subdivisions. 4,995 - - - - 4,995 50
Other current assets. - (6,159) 1,001 - 4 (5,154) (83)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. 1,500 2,004 135,954 (4,730) 16,965 151,783 6,806
Tuition benefits payable. - - - 152,748 - 152,748 -
Due to other funds. 5 - 229 9) (127) 98 (111)
Due to political subdivisions. - - (910) - - (910) -
Due to other government (1,834) - 117 - 264 (1,453) 8
Unearned revenue. 77 (10,764) (4,574) - 209 (15,052) -
Insurance loss liability - 96,692 - - 392 97,084 -
Other liabilities. - 13,617 (11) 20 (764) 12,862 (131)
Total Adjustments. 17,800 130,543 127,993 148,111 30,716 455,163 23,116
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES........cccoovunriiniiiniinnns $ 193948  $ (44320) $ 182623 $ 31291 $ 121267 484809 $ 1,140
Increase in fair value of investments during the fiscal year $ 56 $ 10812 $ 7175 $ 134939 $ 5,616 158598 $ 571

There were no material investing, capital or financing activities that did not result in cash receipts or cash payments during the fiscal year.

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -



STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

Fiduciary Funds June 30, 2007
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands) Investment Private Purpose
Trust Trust
Fund Fund
Pension (and INVEST Program Tuition
Other Employee for Local Account
Benefit) Trust Governments Investment Agency
Funds (December 31, 2006) Program Funds
ASSETS
$ 1,899 $ - $ 56 $ 31,962
Cash with fiscal agents—Note D - - - 67,990
Temporary investments—Note D.. 8,413 763,447 - 1,037,241
Long-term investments—Note D.. 20,839 - 437,187 2,405,887
Short-term funds—Note D 4,868,235 - - -
Corporate obligations—Note D 5,176,830 - - -
Collective trust funds—Note D. 9,303,216 - - -
Real estate—Note D.... 6,409,404 - - -
Alternative—Note D... 10,066,729 - - -
Securities lending collatera—Note D.. 12,046,440 - - -
Asset-backed securities—Note D.. 345,839 - - -
Domestic equities—Note D 25,450,734 - - -
International equities—Note D.. 25,471,978 - - -
International private debt securities—NoteD.... 672,500 - - -
International public debt securitiess—Note D.. 2,032,769 - - -
Mortgage-backed securities—Note D.. 6,789,729 - - -
Private placements—Note D................ 358,177 - - -
State and municipal obligations—NoteD... . 234 - - -
U.S. Treasury obligations—Note D...........cccoerirencnnes 4,506,393 - - -
U.S. government agency debt securities—NoteD........ 668,687 - - -
Receivables, net:
Taxes—Note G... - - - 24,992
Accounts. - - 13 213,225
Accrued interest 86,140 - 581 1,988
Loans—Note G... - - - 2,030
Pension contributions.... 525,368 - - -
1,288,707 - - 295
233,866 - - 183,964
1,987 - - -
Due from pension trust funds—Note H 3,917 - - -
Due from component units—Note H 2,959 - - -
Due from political subdivisions. 3,321 - - -
Due from other governments..... 23 - - -
Advances to other funds—Note H. - - - 76,500

Depreciable capital assets:
Machinery and equipmMEeNt...........cceeeirurnirerrenirineniens 11,526 - - -

Less: accumulated depreciation... (10,656) - - -
Net depreciable capital assets. 870 - - -
- - - - - - 2254319
TOTAL ASSETS...ooiiiirnieiseseiee et 116,346,203 763,447 437,837 6,300,393
LIABILITIES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities..............cc..... 144,339 2,676 238 36,446
Investment purchases payable... 2,648,573 - 56 587
Securities lending obligations.... 12,046,440 - - 49,821
Due to other funds—Note H 852 - - -
Due to pension trust funds—Note H. . 4,989 - - -
Due to political subdivisions - - - 366,484
Due to other governments... - - - 13
Self insurance liabilities.. - - - 345
Other liabilities..... 228,826 - - 5,846,697
TOTAL LIABILITIES. 15,074,019 2,676 294 6,300,393
NET ASSETS:
Held in trust for:
Pension and other employee benefits...................... 99,393,827 - - -
Healthcare benefits...........ocerenienicnicnicine 181,707 - - -
Employee salary deferrals. 1,696,650 - - -
INVEST Program participants.. . - 760,771 - -
Tuition Account Investment Program participants.... - - 437,543 -
TOTAL NET ASSETS.....cniiienierrcieenesersesens $ 101,272,184 $ 760,771 $ 437,543 $ -

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

Fiduciary Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA Private Purpose
(Expressed in Thousands) Investment Trust Trust
Fund Fund
Pension (and INVEST Program Tuition
Other Employee for Local Account
Benefit) Trust Governments Investment
Funds (December 31, 2006) Program
ADDITIONS:
Pension contributions:
EMPIOYEN ... oottt $ 970,517 $ - $ -
EMPIOYEL.....c.oiiiire e 1,443,764 - -
Transfer in from other plans..........cccoveerreinsensereeene 20,731 - -
Total CONrIDULIONS........ovceierirccce e 2,435,012 - -

Investment income:
Net appreciation in

fair value of inVeStMeNtS.........ccccvvevveereseesee e 14,963,243 - 11,758
INEEIESt INCOME......eccviceeeieeceectecteete ettt e 1,279,758 31,087 38,063
Dividend iNCOME.......ccveueiireerietereseeeree e sees 1,172,012 - -
Rental and other iNCOME..........covvieiieieieeeese e 760,004 - -

Total investment activity iNCOME..........cccvveerereenereinessenees 18,175,017 31,087 49,821

Less: investment expenses

Investment activity expense.... (613,470) (958) (2,880)
Net INVEStMENE BAIMNINGS.......c.crvrveerieieireee st 17,561,547 30,129 46,941
Securities lending activities:
INCOME....ccii ittt e st esre e nreas 590,437 - -
EXPENSES......ciiiiireeteisieiesee ettt e (554,006) - -
Total securitieslending iNCOME.........ccoeeevrerereeriree e 36,431 - -
Total net iNVeStMENt INCOME..........oeiirirerireeerere e 17,597,978 30,129 46,941
Share transactions (at net asset value
of $1.00 per share):
Shares pUrChased..........coceerurererieieieiee e - 1,777,309 218,965
Sharesissued in lieu of cash distributions.............ccccceveveernnee. - 26,389 3,916
Shares redeemed.........ccoviiririririrririe e - (1,623,561) (159,876)
Net increase (decrease) in net assets from
Share tranSACHIONS........c.vuiuieiireri e - 180,137 63,005
TOTAL ADDITIONS. ...t seeseenes 20,032,990 210,266 109,946
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefit PaymMeNntS.......c.ooeveinreere s 6,248,860 - -
Refunds of CONtribULioNS..........ocovvriririeieeeeeeeeerec s 26,276 - -
Transfersto other Plans.........oveeveereneennei e 79,725 - -
AdMINISTatiVe EXPENSES.......c.crueviuiuirierieseresesisesieseeeeeeee e eaeeas 74,574 - -
OthEr EXPENSES......c.evveieirieriirieereeteresteeseseeesessesessesenessesseesnsens 2,811 - -
Distributions to participants..........cccoeeerreeeeresereseeeneseeeseseens - 30,129 -
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS. 6,432,246 30,129 -
CHANGE IN PLAN NET ASSETSHELD IN TRUST FOR
Pension and other employee benefits.........ccveinieiinnciincens 13,406,289 - -
Healthcare benefits.......... . 73 - -
Employee salary deferrals....... " 194,382 - -
INVEST program participants............ccoeeeeeeerecns . - 180,137 -
Tuition Account Investment Program participants..................... - - 109,946
Net assets, JUly 1, 2008.........ccoerereereernmreiecieinenieeerseneeeeresneneaes 87,671,440 580,634 327,597
Net assets, June 30, 2007.........cveruereeeecuereeeieieierieeresese s $ 101,272,184 $ 760,771 $ 437,543

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Discretely Presented Component Units June 30, 2007
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA Pennsylvania Nonmajor
(Expressed in Thousands) Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pennsylvania Discretely
Turnpike Housing Education Infrastructure State System Presented
Commission Finance Assistance Investment of Higher Component
(May 31, 2007) Agency Agency Authority Education Units Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash—Note D $ 130,469 $ 749,170 $ 148,398 $ 399 $ 89,780 $ 346,915 $ 1,465,131
Temporary investments—Note D 461,194 35,114 363,752 460,950 296,766 202,597 1,820,373
Receivables:
AACCOUNES ...ttt 29,054 - 18,504 - 134,393 951 182,902
Accrued interest 10,068 4,646 263,858 2,442 - 2,676 283,690
Loans—Note G - 91,113 1,504,183 134,078 5,962 61,446 1,796,782
- - - - - 6,774 6,774
Other - - - - 38,009 3,407 41,416
Due from primary government—Note H 7,400 - - - 57 2,255 9,712
Due from component units—Note H.. - 30 - 51 - - 81
Due from Federal government..... - - 100,624 3,426 - 20 104,070
Due from other governments .. - - - - - 30 30
INVENEOrY.....cooveiiiniicinaee 16,679 - - - 13,927 298 30,904
Prepaid and deferred expenses. - - 3,333 19,740 7,176 1,329 31,578
- 24,043 128,430 - 9,977 5,869 168,319
TOtal CUMTENE BSSELS .....ocvuiicii i 654,864 904,116 2,531,082 621,086 596,047 634,567 5,941,762
Noncurrent assets:
o LOng-terminvestments—NOte D.......oooviiiisisisisssssns 544,855 361,749 70,673 - 922,083 48,855 1,948,215
»  Receivables (net):
Loans—Note G - 3,768,101 9,977,908 1,653,204 30,265 650,338 16,079,816
Leaserentals—Note G.... - - - - - 8,380 8,380
Non-depreciable capital assets—Note E:
L@NG. 1t 174,661 2,454 2,946 - 34,730 5,717 220,508
CONSLIUCEION IN PrOGIESS.......vevviaieceetersereseieiesee e esseenees 1,194,364 - - - 236,634 8,548 1,439,546
Depreciable capital assets—Note E:
Land improvements. 58,831 - - - 155,464 3,797 218,092
Buildings and building improvements 666,087 29,647 72,451 - 1,435,994 141,302 2,345,481
Machinery and equipment 319,524 9,854 26,032 - 320,516 39,750 715,676
Turnpike infrastructure. 4,362,098 - - - - - 4,362,098
Library books. - - - - 80,351 485 80,836
Other capital assets.. - - 56,894 - - 152 57,046
Less: accumulated depreciation (3,344,628) (6,544 (84,639) - (732,917) (102,326) (4,271,054)
Net depreciable capital assets............ 2,061,912 32,957 70,738 - 1,259,408 83,160 3,508,175
26,290 17,843 50,236 - 189,418 19,735 303,522
Tota noncurrent assets .. 4,002,082 4,183,104 10,172,501 1,653,204 2,672,538 824,733 23,508,162

TOTAL ASSETS....ooicicieeirssnssns st 4,656,946 5,087,220 12,703,583 2,274,290 3,268,585 1,459,300 29,449,924




SS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Discretely Presented Component Units

June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA Pennsylvania Nonmajor
(Expressed in Thousands) Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pennsylvania Discretely
Turnpike Housing Education Infrastructure State System Presented
Commission Finance Assistance Investment of Higher Component
(May 31, 2007) Agency Agency Authority Education Units Total
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities....... 102,960 5,115 231,233 3,428 153,581 11,235 507,552
Securities lending obligations................. - - 46,184 - 3,990 50,174
Due to primary government—Note H - 4 136 3,656 18,575 398 22,769
Due to component units—Note H... - 51 - 30 - - 81
Interest payable...... 40,655 44,293 55,096 942 - 14,032 155,018
Unearned revenue.. 22,845 - 15,211 - 43,067 4,775 85,898
Notes payable—Note J. - - 960,919 - - 382 961,301
Bonds payable—NoteK... - - - - 30,694 - 30,694
Revenue bonds payable—Note K 52,645 164,693 - 13,100 - 52,350 282,788
Self insurance................... 2,262 - - - - - 2,262
Compensated absences.. 9,001 - 1,292 274 11,845 471 22,883
Other financing obligations—Note J.. - - 4,849 - - - 4,849
Other liabilities.. - 24,073 128,430 - 186,953 382 339,838
Tota current liabilities... 230,368 238,229 1,397,166 67,614 444,715 88,015 2,466,107
Non-current ligbilities:
Due to primary government—NOte H...........ccoeerrrrreeeneenrneeieeeene - - - 92,769 - - 92,769
Unearned revenue............coeeevveeeniennne. - - - - 3,900 - 3,900
Demand revenue bonds payable—Note J.. - - 9,089,176 - - - 9,089,176
Notes payable—Note J..... - - 1,547,106 - 69,518 26,840 1,643,464
Bonds payable—Note K - - - - 571,606 - 571,606
Revenue bond payable—Note K. 2,631,488 3,811,863 - 47,760 517,740 988,518 7,997,369
Other financing obligations—Note J.. - - 182,874 - - - 182,874
Compensated absences..... 7,346 - 15,945 - 79,944 1,978 105,213
Self insurance..... 16,308 - - - - - 16,308
Other liabilities... 11,288 325,391 1,546 - 616,199 12,615 967,039
Tota non-current liabilities. 2,666,430 4,137,254 10,836,647 140,529 1,858,907 1,029,951 20,669,718
TOTAL LIABILITIES....... 2,896,798 4,375,483 12,233,813 208,143 2,303,622 1,117,966 23,135,825
NET ASSETS—Note C:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt...........ccocvcvicniciiicininns 772,709 15,456 (606) - 504,112 46,557 1,338,228
Redtricted for:
Smoking cessation and other health-related programs............ccccvvniees - - - - - 3,000 3,000
Transportation. 255,444 - - - - - 255,444
Capital projects.... 731,995 - - 2,066,147 29,629 575 2,828,346
Debt service................ - 83,060 346,771 - - 6,993 436,824
Economic stimulus. - - - - - 72,251 72,251
Other purposes. - 613,221 123,605 - 431,222 33,954 1,202,002
Unrestricted - - - - - 178,004 178,004
TOTAL NET ASSETS.....ciiiiriieieeeeresesiie et sesnenees 1,760,148 711,737 469,770 2,066,147 964,963 341,334 6,314,099

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -



STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Discretely Presented Component Units For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands) Pennsylvania Nonmajor
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pennsylvania Discretely
Turnpike Housing Education Infrastructure State System Presented
Commission Finance Assistance I nvestment of Higher Component
(May 31, 2007) Agency Agency Authority Education Units Total
EXPENSES.....oovreiiineiieieteieisisese et $ 703,684 $ 535457 $ 1,458,706 $ 39577 % 1,787,739 $ 263921 % 4,789,084
Program revenues:
Charges for goods and services........ 608,444 223,362 933,036 26,589 956,259 44,583 2,792,273
Operating grants and contributions... 97,094 356,083 497,213 34,969 912,043 149,677 2,047,079
Capital grants and contributions............coceeeeerineneenee 24,306 - - 104,233 32,707 10,654 171,900
Total program revenuUES...........ccvvrereeeeeeueeeererenens 729,844 579,445 1,430,249 165,791 1,901,009 204,914 5,011,252
Net (EXPENSE) FEVENUE.......c.cuevrereerereeeiereieieeeererenes 26,160 43,988 (28,457) 126,214 113,270 (59,007) 222,168
General revenues:
Taxes and other general revenues..........ccccocevereeeecenne 67,071 - - - - - 67,071
Changein Net @SSELS.......cccvvvvrerreiceceeieininersereenees 93,231 43,988 (28,457) 126,214 113,270 (59,007) 289,239
Net assets, July 1, 2006 (restated)—Note B............. 1,666,917 667,749 498,227 1,939,933 851,693 400,341 6,024,860
o Net assets, June 30, 2007.........c.oceeeiiereceeiciecieeeeines $ 1,760,148 $ 711,737  $ 469,770 $ 2,066,147 $ 964,963 $ 341,334 % 6,314,099
[o)]

- The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. -
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NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2007

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The basic financial statements of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States applicable to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements for governments.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements report financial position and results of activities for the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
as a whole. Separate columns are presented for governmental and business-type activities within the primary government
(defined below) and discretely presented component units. The Statement of Net Assets reports all economic resources (assets)
and al liabilities for the primary government of the Commonwealth. The Statement of Activities reports the total cost of
providing governmental services, by function, net of related program revenues, and, after including general revenues, reports
whether the total net assets of the government increased or decreased during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. The
government-wide financial statements do not include any fiduciary fund assets, liabilities or activities for the primary
government or component units (defined below) that are fiduciary in nature. Governmental activities within government-wide
financial statements include specific balances and transactions related to Internal Service Funds that are reported as proprietary
fundsin fund financial statements. Business-type activities include information for all Enterprise Funds.

Financial Reporting Entity

Government-wide financia statements include separate columns and/or rows for the primary government and discretely
presented component units.  Fiduciary component unit balances are reported in the Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets and
combining statements for all discretely presented component units are presented following fund financial statements as a
Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Activities.

Primary Government: For financia reporting purposes, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvaniais a primary government (PG).
The PG includes all publicly elected members of the executive, legislative, and judicia branches of the Commonwealth. The
PG aso includes all Commonwealth departments, agencies, boards, and organizations that are not legally separate.

Component Units: In addition to the PG, the financial reporting entity includes discretely presented component units.
Component units include all legally separate organizations for which the PG is financially accountable, and other organizations
for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the PG are such that exclusion would cause the financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete. The criteria used to define financial accountability includes appointment of avoting
majority of an organization’s governing body and (1) the ability of the PG to impose its will on that organization or (2) the
potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the PG. Fiscal
dependency is also considered. The following organizations are included in the financial reporting entity as component units,
either by discrete presentation or as a Fiduciary Fund:

State Employees’ Retirement System (SERS) (Fiduciary Fund) - The SERS is a public employee retirement system that
covers Commonwealth employees. The PG appoints all voting board members and, on a very limited basis, imposes its will on
the SERS. The PG uses the SERS to provide pension benefits to PG employees. The PG makes essentialy all employer
contributions to the SERS; PG employees make almost al of the employee contributions to the SERS (virtualy all PG
employees are required to join the SERS). The PG is responsible for al of the SERS pension obligations. The SERS provides
services and benefits almost exclusively to the PG. The SERS administers both a defined benefit plan and a defined
contribution plan. The defined benefit plan is funded through a combination of employee contributions, employer contributions
and investment earnings. The defined contribution plan is funded by voluntary employee contributions and investment
earnings. The SERS s reported for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA) and Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority (PHEFA) -
The SPSBA and the PHEFA issue limited obligation revenue bonds, the proceeds of which are used to finance the construction
of facilities for school districts and public/private colleges and universities. These bonds are repaid solely from lease/loan
payments from the schools. The PG appoints all nine voting members of the SPSBA and the PHEFA governing boards; nine
high-ranking members of the PG serve as ex-officio members of each board. As aresult, the PG is able to impose its will. The
PG’s Department of Education approves the SPSBA projects (which indicates imposition of will and fiscal dependency).
Neither the PG nor the Authorities are obligated for debt service payments (beyond lease/loan payments from schools).
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NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2007

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Ben Franklin Technology Development Authority (BFTDA) - Similar to the predecessor Ben Franklin/IRC Partnership, the
BFTDA promotes economic development through interaction of technology development, modernization and training
programs. Industrial resource centers and technology centers, established through the BFTDA, also increase Pennsylvania
business competitiveness. The BFTDA works closely with the Department of Community and Economic Development
(DCED) and includes a Revolving Loan Program. The PG appoints all 21 voting members of the governing board. The PG
may appropriate funding for the BFTDA from the General Fund.

Port of Pittsburgh Commission (PPC) - The PPC promotes economic development throughout waterways in southwestern
Pennsylvania by constructing and/or financing transportation and recreation facilities. The PG appoints all 15 voting members
of the governing board and can remove board members at will. The PG provides funding for the PPC but is not required to do
0.

Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority (IFPA) - The IFPA assists in the prevention, discovery, investigation and prosecution
of insurance fraud. The IFPA is funded through assessments paid by the insurance industry and through certain criminal and
civil fines, pendties and awards. The PG appoints six of seven voting members of the IFPA governing board; the Attorney
General serves ex-officio as one of these six members. A significant portion of IFPA expenditures funds the Section on
Insurance Fraud in the Office of Attorney General; this indicates afinancial benefit/burden. The IFPA is not fiscally dependent
on the PG.

Philadelphia Shipyard Development Corporation (PSDC) - The PSDC was created as a nonprofit corporation to assist the PG
and other governmental entities in financing a shipbuilding facility at the former Philadelphia Naval Shipyard. The PSDC
obtains funding from the PG and a variety of other governmental sources to fund development, construction and job
recruitment and training costs. The PG appoints three of five voting board members and provides a significant portion of
funding for the PSDC. The PSDC isreported for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

Philadelphia Regional Port Authority (PRPA) - The PRPA operates a port facility and manages port-related activities to
promote commerce and economic development in southeastern Pennsylvania. The PRPA charges rental and other fees to port
users and obtains other funding from the PG. The PRPA also issues revenue bonds to finance its activities. The PG appoints
all eleven voting board members and can remove board members at will. The PG provides operating and capital subsidies and
pays rent in amounts equal to PRPA debt service requirements. The PRPA is fiscally dependent on the PG, as the Governor
must approve the issuance of its debt.

Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA) - The PHEAA makes grants and loans to students to help fund
the cost of higher education. Lending institutions and post-secondary schools are involved in the loan program. The PG funds
the PHEAA grant program; the PHEAA issues revenue bonds to fund the student loan program. Revenue bonds are repaid
from student loan repayments. The PHEAA also services student loan portfolios for lending ingtitutions. The PG appoints all
20 voting board members but does not significantly impose its will on the PHEAA. A significant PG financial burden exists
through subsidizing the grant program; also, although the PG is not obligated for the PHEAA revenue bonds, the PG could take
certain actions to satisfy bondholders. The PHEAA is fiscally dependent, as the Governor must approve the issuance of its
debt.

Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA) - The PHFA makes loans to dligible individuals and organizations to
purchase or construct housing. The loans benefit older adults, persons of modest means, persons with disabilities, and low and
moderate-income individuals and families. The PG appoints all voting board members; four of the fourteen members may be
removed at will. The Secretary of Banking, the Secretary of Community and Economic Development, the Secretary of Public
Welfare, and the State Treasurer serve as ex-officio members. The Governor is required to request an appropriation from the
General Assembly for the PHFA whenever a deficiency existsin the capital reserve account or if additional funds are needed to
avoid a default on the PHFA debt. This represents a PG mora obligation for the PHFA debt. The Governor must approve the
issuance of the PHFA debt.

Patient Safety Trust Authority (PSTA) - The PSTA is charged with taking steps to reduce and eliminate medical errors by
identifying problems and recommending solutions that promote patient safety in hospitals, ambulatory surgical facilities and
birthing centers. The Board of Directors has 11 members: the Pennsylvania Physician General, who serves as the Board chair,
six members appointed by the Governor representing specific professional occupations, and four members appointed by the
General Assembly. The Pennsylvania Department of Health determines whether or not PSTA recommendations will be
adopted, establishing PG imposition of will; further, the enabling legislation limits the amount of assessments PSTA charges
medical facilitiesto fund PSTA activities.
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority (PIDA) - The PIDA collaborates with local industrial development
corporations to make loans that help preserve or expand the work force, assist targeted economic areas or assist specific
companies. Loans are made at lower-than-market interest rates; the interest rates are based on local unemployment and other
economic conditions. The PIDA issues revenue bonds to finance the loan program. Loan repayments are used for debt service
payments. The PIDA operates closely with the DCED. The PG appoints al voting board members and is able to impose its
will on the PIDA. The PG has provided contributed capital; “excess’ PIDA funds are transferred to the General Fund. The
PG is not obligated for the PIDA debt, but the PG could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders.

Pennsylvania I nfrastructure I nvestment Authority (PENNVEST) - The PENNVEST makes grants and low-interest loans to
local governments and authorities, businesses and nonprofit organizations for the construction, improvement, repair or
rehabilitation of drinking and waste water systems. The PENNVEST aobtains funds through Commonwealth general obligation
bond proceeds (approved by referendum), revenue bonds, the Federal government and contributed amounts from
Commonwealth funds. Loan repayments finance the PENNVEST debt service costs. The PENNVEST operates closely with
the Department of Environmental Protection. The PG appoints all voting board members; there are limitations on three of the
thirteen appointments. By issuing general obligation debt and providing the proceeds to the PENNVEST as contributed
capital, the PG creates a significant financial burden. The PG is not obligated for the PENNVEST debt, but the PG could take
certain actions to satisfy bondholders. Upon dissolution, the assets of the PENNVEST revert to the Commonwealth.

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC) - The PTC was created to construct, maintain and operate a turnpike system in the
Commonwealth. Activities are financed through user tolls and the issuance of revenue bonds. Debt service payments are
funded through user tolls.  The PTC works closely with the Department of Transportation. The PG appoints all voting
members. When al the PTC bondholders have been satisfied, the PTC assets revert to the Department of Transportation. The
Governor must approve the issuance of all PTC debt. The PG is not obligated for PTC debt, but the PG could take certain
actions to satisfy bondholders. The PTC isreported for itsfiscal year ended May 31, 2007.

State System of Higher Education (SSHE) - The SSHE was created to provide instruction for postsecondary students. The
SSHE is composed of fourteen universities and an administrative headquarters. Resources are provided by student tuition,
grants and PG subsidies. The PG appoints all 20 voting board members, which in turn appoint the university presidents and
chancellor. Five of the appointments must be trustees of universities; three must be students. The PG provides significant
operating and capital subsidies to the SSHE. The PG is not obligated for the SSHE debt, but the PG could take certain actions
to satisfy bondholders.

Commonwealth Financing Authority (CFA) - The CFA administers and funds economic stimulus programs; the programs
offer financial assistance through loans, grants, guarantees, sales, leases, investments, lines and letters of credit, and other
authorized financial arrangements. The PG appoints the four voting members of the Board of Directors and may remove these
members at will. The Secretary of Community and Economic Development, Secretary of the Budget, and Secretary of
Banking serve as ex-officio members of the Board. The CFA is authorized to issue limited obligation revenue bonds and other
types of limited obligation revenue financing. The bonds are payable solely from CFA revenues or funds appropriated to the
CFA by the Commonwealth. While the enabling legidation provides that CFA bonds are not a debt or obligation of the
Commonwealth, it is anticipated that General Fund appropriations will be required to support the annual debt service cost on
CFA debt. The CFA isfiscally dependent on the PG, as the Secretary of the Budget must certify that the General Fund can
support any appropriations needed to pay the debt service payments or costs incurred in any bond issuance.

Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology (College) - Founded in the early twentieth century, the College was financialy
reported as part of the PG through and including the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. Legislation effective July 1, 2003
amended the Board of Directors to abody politic and corporate constituting a public corporation, making the College an entity
legally separate from the PG. The Governor, with the advice of the Senate, appoints nine members of the Board, and the
Secretary of Education serves as an ex-officio member. Although the PG selects the members of the Board, the members have
great latitude to manage the College subsequent to their appointment. The PG has some ability to influence the structure or
content of the College’ s budget through overview of the Department of Education. The College presents a financial burden to
the PG, as the PG appropriates monies for College operations.

Pennsylvania Life and Health I nsurance Guaranty Association (PLHIGA) (Fiduciary Fund) - The PLHIGA was created to
protect insurance policy owners, insured persons, beneficiaries, annuitants, payees and assignees of direct non-group life,
health, annuity and supplemental policies or contracts from potential insurer failure due to the impairment or insolvency of the
insurer. The PLHIGA guarantees the payment of insurance benefits and continuation of coverage by assessing member
insurers. The PLHIGA is also authorized to assist the Pennsylvania Insurance Commissioner in the prevention and detection of
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NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

insurer impairments or insolvencies. The PG has appointment approval authority for all governing board members and the
Insurance Commissioner has broad authority to impose will on the PLHIGA. There is a minor financia burden on the PG.
The PLHIGA isreported for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

Pennsylvania Property and Casualty Insurance Guaranty Association (PPCIGA) (Fiduciary Fund) - The PPCIGA was
created to provide for the payment of insured property and casualty policy claim losses and to avoid losses to claimants or
policyholders as a result of insurer insolvency. The PPCIGA guarantees the payment of insurance benefits and continuation of
coverage by assessing member insurers. The PG has appointment approval authority for al governing board members and the
Insurance Commissioner has broad authority to impose will on the PPCIGA. Thereisaminor financial burden on the PG. The
PPCIGA isreported for itsfiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

Public School Employees’ Retirement System (PSERS) (Fiduciary Fund) - The PSERS was created to administer and
provide pension benefits to public school employees in Pennsylvania. The PSERS covers almost all such employees. Covered
elementary and secondary school employers make employer contributions with the PG reimbursing each employer at least half
their required annual contribution. Employer contributions for covered employees of higher education institutions and covered
employers and the PG share state-owned schools equally; all covered public school employees also contribute. The PG
appoints eight of fifteen voting board members; the seven other members are appointed by active or retired public school
employees or are appointed by public school boards. In addition to making significant contributions to the PSERS, the PG
guarantees the payment of all annuities and other pension benefits. This represents a compelling PG financia burden.

Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority (PEDFA) - The PEDFA was created to lend money primarily to
businesses to promote economic development in the Commonwealth. The PEDFA issues revenue bonds to fund specific
projects only and repayments are derived solely from project revenues. The debt is considered non-recourse, asthe Authority is
not obligated to bondholders beyond amounts received by the Authority from the funded projects. Financial statement
information for the PEDFA is not reported because its only activity involves conduit debt. The PG appoints al sixteen board
members; five members are ex-officio. The PG is not obligated for the PEDFA debt, but the PG could take certain actions to
satisfy bondholders. Upon dissolution, the assets of PEDFA revert to the Commonwealth.

Pennsylvania Energy Development Authority (PEDA) - The PEDA was created to promote the development of energy
sources within the Commonwealth. The PEDA issued revenue bonds and lent the proceeds to fund four specific projects. Loan
repayments are derived solely from project revenues. The debt is considered non-recourse, as the PEDA is not obligated to
bondholders beyond amounts received from the funded projects. The PEDA has not issued any debt since 1990. Financial
statement information for the PEDA is not reported because its only significant economic activity involves conduit debt. The
PG appoints al 19 board members; six members are ex-officio. The Governor must approve the issuance of Authority debt.
The PG is not obligated for the PEDA debt, but the PG could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders. The PEDA board
reviewed and approved funding for certain alternative energy grant applications during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.

Financial Statementsfor Component Unitsand Investment Trust Fund

Audited financia statements for component units are available by writing to the Commonwealth Comptroller, 303 Walnut
Street, Sixth Floor, Verizon Tower, Harrisburg, PA 17101. The Commonwealth sponsors the INVEST Program for Local
Governments, an external investment pool, which is reported as an Investment Trust Fund. Audited financia statements for
that Program are also available through the Commonwealth Comptroller.

Related Organizations

The Commonwealth created the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System (PMRS). The PG appoints all eleven
governing board members but is not financially accountable, as there is no imposition of will, no financial benefit/burden, nor
fiscal dependency associated with the PMRS. Local governments are the only participants in the PMRS. Participation is
voluntary and there are variations among different municipal pension plans. Local participating governments are financialy
responsible only for their own plan obligations. The Commonwealth provides accounting services to the PMRS on a cost
reimbursement basis.

The Commonwealth also created the Automotive Theft Prevention Authority (ATPA). The PG appoints all seven governing
board members but is not financially accountable due to a lack of imposition of will and no financial benefit/burden. The
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ATPA isnot fiscally dependent on the PG. The operation of the ATPA is funded by an annual assessment paid by companies
providing automobile insurance in the Commonwealth. The PG processes cash receipts and disbursements for the ATPA.

The Philadelphia Parking Authority (Authority) is financially reported as a discretely presented component unit in the City
of Philadelphia’s (City) financial reporting entity. Act 22 of 2001 provided, in part, for the Commonweslth to appoint a voting
majority of the Authority’s governing board. The Act provided for an increase from five to eleven board members; the
Commonwealth appointed six new members by June 30, 2001. Effective June 30, 2006, the terms of board members appointed
prior to June 2001 expired. No replacement appointments for those positions were made, pursuant to the provisions of the
Act. Beginning June 1, 2006, the board consists of the six members appointed in 2001, whose terms expire in 2010, 2011 and
2012.

The Philadelphia School District (School District) is financially reported as a discretely presented component unit in the City
of Philadelphia’s (City) financial reporting entity. During 2001, the General Assembly passed Senate Bill 640 that provided, in
part, for several changes to the Public School Code. Among other things, the changes provide for the Commonwealth to
appoint a voting mgjority of the School Reform Commission that now governs the School District. Despite these changes, the
School District remains fiscally dependent on the City.

Joint Venture

The Commonwealth, through its Office of Administration, created the Pennsylvania Employees Benefit Trust Fund (PEBTF)
using a contractual agreement with various Commonwealth employee labor unions. The PEBTF establishes and provides
Commonwealth employee health and welfare benefits. A governing board administers the PEBTF; one-haf of the board is
appointed by the Commonwealth and one-half is appointed by the various unions. Neither the Commonwealth nor the unions
control the governing board or the PEBTF; administration is jointly and equally shared. The Commonwealth and certain of its
employees pay for the cost of providing benefits. Contribution amounts are based on the terms contained in collective
bargaining agreements. Employee unions are not financially responsible for making contributions.  Neither the
Commonwealth nor the employee unions have an equity interest or any ongoing financial interest in the PEBTF. Aside from
its obligation to make periodic, established contributions, the Commonwealth is not responsible for any obligations of the
PEBTF.

Excluded Organizations

School districts, local governments and counties are considered separate, stand-alone primary governments because they are
governed by popularly elected officials. Secondary vocational-technical schools, intermediate units and community colleges
were considered as potential component units, but have been excluded from the financial reporting entity. These schools may
receive significant PG operating and/or capital subsidies, but the PG does not appoint a voting majority of governing board
members, nor does the PG impose its will on these organizations. Although various Commonwealth laws affect or strongly
influence these organizations, the PG does not control day-to-day operating decisions. These organizations are not fiscally
dependent. The PG appoints a portion, but not a voting majority, of the governing boards at the following four universities
(commonly referred to as state related): Pennsylvania State University, University of Pittsburgh, Lincoln University and
Temple University. The PG provides significant subsidies; however, given the absence of PG appointment of a governing
board voting magjority and the lack of fiscal dependency, these universities are excluded from the financial reporting entity.

Primary Government — Fund Structure

Fund Accounting: In governmental accounting, a fund is defined as an independent fiscal and accounting entity, with a self-
balancing set of accounts, recording cash and/or other resources together with all related liabilities and equities which are
segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with the fund’ s special
regulations, restrictions or limitations. In the Commonwealth, funds are established by legidative enactment or, in certain rare
cases, by administrative action.

The fund financial statements include: three major governmental funds and total nonmajor governmental funds; four major

enterprise funds and total nonmajor enterprise funds; and al fiduciary funds. The Commonwealth uses the following fund
categories to account for each fund included in the primary government:
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Governmental Funds
General Fund—Accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The General Fund is the Commonwealth’s main operating fund and is reported as a Major Fund. Other Major Funds are
displayed in bold print in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Special Revenue Funds—Account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than debt service or capital projects
funds) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The Motor License Fund and the Tobacco Settlement
Fund are reported as Mgjor Funds.

The Motor License Fund receives revenues from liquid fuels taxes, licenses and fees on motor vehicle registrations and
operating privileges, aviation fuel taxes, federal aid for highway and aviation purposes, contributions from local subdivisions
for highway projects and other miscellaneous revenues. The Fund makes expenditures for highway and bridge improvement,
design, maintenance, and purchases of rights-of-way, as well as aviation activities and transportation licensing and safety
activities. It also finances State Police highway patrol operations and pays subsidies to local subdivisions for construction and
maintenance of roads.

The Tobacco Settlement Fund was originally established to deposit all payments received by the Commonwealth pursuant to
the Master Settlement Agreement with tobacco product manufacturers. Deposits into this fund include: jurisdictional
payments received by the Commonwealth from the master agreement, strategic contribution payments from the master
agreement, quarterly payments from certain Pennsylvania health insurance companies and earnings from investments.
Expenditures from this fund are determined by the annual budget appropriated to each program. For the fiscal year ended June
30, 2007 payments from the Master Settlement agreement were distributed as follows. 8 percent to the Health Endowment
Account; 13 percent for Home and Community Based Services; 9 percent for Tobacco Use Prevention and Cessation; 19
percent for Health Related Research; 10 percent for Uncompensated Care; 26 percent for Health Investment Insurance; 8
percent for the expansion of the PACENET Program and 7 percent for various health-related programs. Amounts received
from the Pennsylvania health insurance companies are held in a restricted account and used exclusively for Department of
Insurance initiatives.

Debt Service Funds—Account for the accumulation of resources, principally transfer from other funds, for the payment of
general long-term debt principal and interest. There are no major debt service funds.

Capital Projects Funds—Account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities, including those provided to political subdivisions and other public organizations (other than those financed by
Proprietary or Fiduciary Funds). There are no major capital projects funds.

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds—Account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises.
Costs of providing goods and services to the general public on a continuing basis, including depreciation, are financed or
recovered primarily through user charges. The State Lottery Fund, State Workers Insurance Fund, Unemployment
Compensation Fund and Tuition Payment Fund are all reported as Major Funds.

The State Lottery Fund provides for the operation of the Pennsylvania State Lottery and for programs to support older
Pennsylvanians. Revenues are derived from the sale of lottery tickets, interest earned on securities and deposits, unclaimed
prize monies and Federal grants. Fund expenses pay for prizes to holders of winning lottery tickets and commissions to local
lottery agents. Amounts remaining after payment of lottery prizes and commissions are used to fund programs benefiting older
Pennsylvanians including PENNCARE, PACE, PACENET, free mass transit and reduced fare shared-ride programs, and
property tax and rent rebates.

The State Workers' Insurance Fund (SWIF) was created by legislation on June 2, 1915 and operates within the Department
of Labor and Industry. It is a self-sustaining fund providing workers' compensation insurance to employers, including those
who are refused policies by private insurance firms. SWIF is subject to underwriting rules, classifications and rates
promulgated by rating bureaus authorized by the Commonwealth Insurance Commissioner. Premium rates are established by
the bureaus based on the history of accidents by industry classification. Revenues are generated by premiums charged to
policyholders plus investment income. Workers compensation payments and administration costs are paid from the Fund. The
State Workers' Insurance Fund is reported for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.
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The Unemployment Compensation (UC) Fund is comprised of four basic components: the Employer Contribution Fund,
the UC Benefit Payment Fund, the Special Administration Fund, and the UC Trust Fund in Rockville, MD. The purpose of
these funds is to collect employer assessments for UC and transfer the assessments to the Federal government for deposit in the
UC Trust Fund. As needed, these funds are drawn back to pay unemployment compensation payments to claimants. The
Special Administration Fund is used to isolate penalty and interest charges from employers and claimants. It is used to
supplement grant-funding shortfalls and pay audit disallowances with any remaining amounts over $200 thousand being
transferred to the UC Trust Fund each June 30. The UC Benefit Payment Fund also receives funds from the Federal
government to reimburse Pennsylvaniafor those Federal workers who collected UC benefits from Pennsylvania.

The Tuition Payment Fund offers a college savings program with a guaranteed rate of return based on increases in the cost of
tuition. The program is administered by the Tuition Account Program Bureau within the Treasury Department with oversight
by the Tuition Account Program Advisory Board. Revenueisderived primarily from application fees, participant contributions
and investment income. Fund expenses consist mainly of payments to educational institutions and administrative costs.

The State Stores Fund is reported for its fiscal year ended June 26, 2007.

Internal Service Funds—Account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or agency to other
departments or agencies of the Commonwealth, or to other governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement basis. The Purchasing
Fund is used to purchase materials, supplies, services, and equipment for use by departments, agencies, boards, and
commissions of state government, and to pay costs associated with administering the fund. The fund receives reimbursements
from the various Commonwealth departments, boards, and commissions for the materials, services, and supplies they obtain
from appropriations and periodic loans from the General Fund, from the sale of vehicles and unserviceable property and from
interest earned on securities. The Manufacturing Fund is a fund that uses inmate labor to produce items for the Department of
Corrections and other state agencies. The revenue source is the sale of items produced or services provided. Expenses are for
raw materials, inmate labor, and general and administrative costs.

Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds—Account for assets held by the Commonwedlth in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. These include Pension (and other employee
benefit) Trust Funds, an Investment Trust Fund, a Private Purpose Trust Fund and Agency Funds.

The State Employees Retirement System, a pension trust fund, is a component unit and accounts for the payment of retirement,
disability and death benefits to members of the State Employees Retirement System and their beneficiaries. The Deferred
Compensation Fund is an other employee benefit pension trust fund that collects and administers amounts contributed by
Commonwealth employees who are deferring a portion of their income until future years, in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code Section 457.

The INVEST Program for Local Governments is an Investment Trust Fund that invests amounts owned by local governments
and school districts. The Tuition Account Investment Program is a Private Purpose Trust Fund that invests amounts on behalf
of participants who are saving for college tuition costs.

The largest Agency Fund, the Statutory Liquidator Fund, converts the remaining assets of insolvent insurance companies to
cash for remittance to policyholders, creditors and stockholders in accordance with the order of distribution established in
Article V of the Pennsylvania Insurance Department Act of 1921 and on a Commonwealth Court approved percentage of claim
basis.  Although not yet determined, the actual amounts to be paid based on the amount of the remaining assets are expected to be
less than the amounts actually claimed by creditors, policyholders and stockholders. The Underground Storage Tank
Indemnification Fund holds assets on behalf of owners and operators of underground storage tanks who incur a liability for
taking corrective actions associated with underground storage tank releases. The Municipal Pension Aid Fund holds a portion
of casualty insurance company tax assessments, which are remitted to municipalities to help defray municipal police and fire
fighter pension costs.

The State Employees’ Retirement System, a pension trust fund, the Deferred Compensation Fund, an other employee benefit
trust fund, and the INVEST Program for Local Governments, an Investment Trust Fund, are reported for their fiscal years
ended December 31, 2006.
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M easur ement Focus and Basis of Accounting- Gover nment-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of
accounting. This means that the Statement of Net Assets reports all assets (including receivables regardless of when collected
and capital assets, such as heavy trucks, highways and bridges) and liabilities regardiess of when payment is due. The
Statement of Activities includes al revenues and expenses, regardless of when cash is respectively received or paid. The
Statement of Activities reports program revenues, which are revenues derived directly from a specific governmental function
and are reported by the function, which generates the revenue. Charges for goods or services, most investment income, grant
revenues and fines are reported as program revenues. Neither program revenues nor expenses are reported for donated works
of art, historical treasures or similar assets received during the fiscal year because such donations are not material. Except for
unemployment compensation tax revenues, which are reported as charges for sales and services program revenues, all tax
revenues are classified as general revenues in the Statement of Activities. The Statement of Activities aso reports
governmental activities expenses that include governmental fund expenditures (those which are not eliminated or reclassified)
and current year depreciation on capital assets, which recognizes the cost of ordinary use of the assets over their estimated
useful lives. The costs of most employee benefits earned during the fiscal year (such as vacation time earned) and increases in
self-insurance liabilities are al so reported as expenses in the statement, regardless of when the benefits are used or the liabilities
are paid.

M easur ement Focus and Basis of Accounting — Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds

The General Fund, specia revenue, debt service and capital projects funds (governmental funds) are reported using the
current financial resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus, only
current assets and current liabilities are normally included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present
increases (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current
assets. Unreserved fund balance represents a measure of available, spendable resources. Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting, revenues of governmental funds are recognized in the year that they become susceptible to accrual (both
measurable and available) to pay current fiscal year ligbilities. The Commonwealth accrues the following major revenue
sources that are both measurable and available (available is treated as being received within 60 days of fiscal year end for these
revenues): sales and use taxes, cigarette taxes, corporation taxes, personal income taxes, liquid fuels taxes, inheritance taxes,
liquor taxes, investment income, ingtitutional revenues and sales of goods and services.

Grant revenues, including Federal government grant revenues, are recognized when earned. Revenues from most other sources
are recognized when received. Expenditures are generally recognized in the fiscal year the goods or services are received and
the related fund liability isincurred. Debt service expenditures for principal and interest on general long-term obligations are
recognized when due. Prepaid items and inventory purchases are reported as current fiscal year expenditures, rather than
allocating a portion of related cost to the fiscal year when the items are actually used. Expenditures for claims, judgments,
compensated absences and employer pension contributions are reported as the amount accrued during the fiscal year that
normally would be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

Proprietary Funds, Pension (and other employee benefit) Trust Funds and Investment Trust Fund

The enterprise, internal service (proprietary funds), pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds and the investment trust
funds, are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this
measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the operations of these funds are included on the Statement of Net
Assets.  Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the fiscal year earned and expenses are recognized
in thefiscal year incurred.

Proprietary Funds classify revenues and expenses as either ‘operating’ or ‘nonoperating’, depending on the nature of the
activities reported in the individual Fund. The majority of transactions are reported as ‘operating’; however, investment
income is reported as ‘nonoperating’ revenues by all Proprietary Funds. Under the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board’'s (GASB) Statement 20, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities
That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,” the Commonwealth has elected not to adopt the Financial Accounting Standards
Board pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989.
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Agency Funds

Assets and liabilities of agency funds are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Agency funds do not report operating
Statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

Pooled Cash: In accordance with the Fiscal Code, cash balances of most Commonwesalth funds are pooled by the Treasury
Department. Cash balances are segregated by fund, but accounted for centrally for receipt and disbursement purposes. The law
requires that collateral be pledged by banks and other financial institutions to guarantee the Commonwealth’ s cash on deposit.

Cash Equivalents: No investments that could be defined as cash equivalents have been treated as such on the Statement of
Cash Flows; therefore, only net changesin cash are displayed.

Investment Pools: The Fiscal Code provides the Treasury Department with investment control over most Commonwealth
funds. The Treasury Department uses a variety of sophisticated internal investment pools that seek to provide preservation of
principal, liquidity, diversification and income for Commonwealth funds. All participating funds report amounts invested in
such pools as temporary and/or long-term investments; the pools themselves are not financialy reported. The Treasury
Department maintains an externa investment pool, the INVEST Program for Local Governments, which separately issues
audited financial statements and is reported as an Investment Trust Fund. Financia statements for the INVEST Program
include a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Changes in Net Assets prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

Temporary Investments: The Treasury Department manages the Treasury Investment Program (TIP); practically all
individual funds that are part of primary government are participants in the TIP. The Treasury Department accounts for each
participating fund’'s equity (considered “shares’) in the TIP on adaily basis. “Share” balances of participating funds fluctuate
considerably during the fiscal year, based on the timing of cash receipts and disbursements in the participating fund, and are
reported as temporary investments. The TIP is considered an internal investment pool. Periodic TIP earnings are allocated to
specific participating funds based on either the weighted daily average share balance or the net asset value on redemption date
combined with share balances on declaration date.

Severd individual funds may directly own investments in specific securities. Such investments, which are expected to be
realized in cash within twelve months after fiscal year end or less, are reported as temporary investments. Temporary
investments are reported at fair value (typically using published market prices) except for nonparticipating interest-bearing
contracts, which are reported at cost.

Long-Term Investments: Investments expected to be realized in cash after more than twelve months from fiscal year end are
reported as long-term investments. Such investments are generally not managed by the Treasury Department. Long-term
investments are reported at fair value, except for certain nonparticipating interest-bearing contracts, which are reported at cost.
Fair values are based on published market prices, quotations from national securities exchanges and securities pricing services,
or by the respective fund managers for securities that are not actively traded. Certain pension trust fund investments, including
real estate, venture capital, private equity, private placements and alternative investments are valued based on appraisals,
independent advisors or the present value of projected future income.

Investment Income: Investment income includes interest, dividends, realized gains and losses and the change in the fair value
of investments, if any, during the fiscal year. Certain investment income from specific funds investments is assigned to
another fund and is reported by the receiving fund if the income is transferred for legal or contractua reasons; otherwise, the
investment income is reported as a transfer by the receiving fund. Specific fund disclosures for assigned investment income
are provided in Note H.

Grants. Federal grants and assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement periods are recorded as intergovernmental
revenues when entitlement occurs. Federal reimbursement-type grant revenues are recorded when the related expenditures or
expenses are incurred.

Inventories and Prepaid Expenses. Inventories of operating materials and supplies are reported by certain governmental
activities and operating and merchandise inventories are reported by Proprietary Funds and the State System of Higher
Education, a discretely presented component unit. Operating materials and supplies inventories are valued at cost (first-in,
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first-out) and merchandise inventories are reported at the lower of cost or market. In the governmental fund financial
statements, inventories are accounted for using the purchases method whereby expenditures are reported for current-year
purchases of operating materials and supplies. Also, in governmental fund financial statements, prepaid expenses are not
reported.

Capital Assetsand Depreciation: Genera capital assets (including infrastructure) and other capital assets are reported at cost
or estimated historical cost in the Statement of Net Assets. Donated capital assets are reported at fair market value at the time
of donation. The cost of all land is reported; for other types of capital assets, the following minimum dollar reporting
thresholds are used (in thousands):

Land improvements, buildings and building improvements.... ........... $25
Machinery and eqUIPMENE ..........c.cueievereeeeeiceee e $25
Highway and bridge infrastructure.............ccoeeveveeeveeiesenee e $100
All Other INfrastrUCtUIE.........cvevevevevceeieceece s $25

Commonwealth agencies maintain inventories of al their respective capital assets, including assets acquired for less than the
above minimum amounts, which are not reported in the Basic Financial Statements. Certain waterway and other non-highway
institutional infrastructure acquired prior to July 1, 2001 are not reported in the Statement of Net Assets. The Pennsylvania
Historical and Museum Commission (PHMC) owns diverse collections of historical, architectural, prehistoric and artistic
artifacts, archives and manuscripts and scientific specimens. The Commonwealth does not capitalize these collections, as they
meet the following criteriaz  PHMC's mission in acquiring these collections is for the purpose of preservation, education,
research and exhibition; PHMC secures and preserves all collections in order to adequately preserve Commonwealth history;
and all acquisitions and deaccessions must be approved by the PHMC Collections Committee and the PHMC Executive
Director. All amounts received from the deacessioning of artifacts/collections are placed in a restricted account that can only
be used for the purchase of new artifacts/collections. The Commonwealth does not capitalize expenditures for software or
expenditures to protect farmland under the Agricultural Area Security Law. Capital assets (excluding land and construction in
progress) are depreciated over the estimated useful lives of major capital asset classes using the straight-line method.
Depreciation expense is reported in the Statement of Activities as part of direct functional expenses; al depreciation is
allocated to a specific function. Capital assets reported by proprietary funds are reported in those funds at cost or estimated
historical cost. Depreciation is reported on the straight-line basis over the capital assets' estimated useful lives. The following
useful lives are used for primary government governmental activities:

Buildings and building improvements............cccecveenenennenenesesees 40 years
Improvements other than buildings...........cccoeeiiennneinc 30 years
Machinery and qUIPMENT ..........ccoererereriereeeeree e e 10 years
Highway heavy equipment ... 15 years
Highway infrastruCture............cooo e 25 years
Bridge infrastrUCture ..........cocevvceie s e 50 years
Dams, dikes and pier infrastruCture............ccoceeeveceniecceevesese e 50 years
Other INfrastrUCIUNE........c..ocueceieeeesecec e 20 years

Primary government business-type activities report depreciation expense using useful lives that are very similar to the above
and do not report any infrastructure. Certain land, buildings and improvements owned by the Commonwealth and used by the
State System of Higher Education (SSHE), a discretely presented component unit, which were acquired or constructed before
July 1, 1983 (the inception date for the SSHE), are financially reported as governmental activities general capital assets. All
general capital assets acquired or constructed for the SSHE subsequent to June 30, 1983 without the use of university funds or
incurrence of SSHE debt are also reported as governmental activities general capital assets. This reporting treatment is used to
conform to the enabling legidation for the SSHE, which includes the vesting of title for the SSHE-used property. Capital
assets reported by the SSHE are stated at cost. Depreciation of SSHE capital assets is recognized over the estimated useful life
of the assets.

Capital Asset Impairments: Through a variety of policies, Commonwealth management requires agencies to perform
periodic assessments of general and other capital assets. Beyond initial reporting (upon acquisition), agencies must adhere to
continuing policies regarding usability, function and condition of reported capital assets. With few exceptions, reported capital
assets are used by Commonwealth agencies on a daily or other periodic basis and agencies must report impairments promptly.
In particular, Commonwealth highways and bridges are inspected on a frequent, scheduled basis. As a matter of public safety,
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such assets are inspected very closely as part of routine operating procedures. Other general capital assets, such as structures,
are used for housing or office space. Many pieces of equipment, including rolling stock, are used ailmost daily.

Self-Insurance: The Commonwealth is uninsured for property losses and self-insured for annuitant medical/hospital benefits,
employee disability and tort claims. Note M provides disclosures for self-insurance liabilities.

Compensated Absences: Employees earn annual |leave, depending on length of credited service, from between 2.7 percent to
10 percent of regular hours paid. Generally, a maximum of 45 days may be carried forward at the end of each calendar year.
Employees are paid for accumulated annual |eave upon termination or retirement.

Employees earn sick leave based on 5 percent of regular hours paid. Generally, a maximum of 300 days may be carried
forward at the end of each calendar year. Retiring employees that meet service, age or disability requirements are paid in
accordance with the following schedule:

Days Available Per centage Maximum
at Retirement Payment Days Paid
0-100 30% 30
101-200 40% 80
201-300 50% 150
over 300 (in last year 100% of days
of employment) over 300 13

Accumulated annual and sick leave liabilities payable with expendable available financia resources are reported by
Governmental Funds; all compensated absences payable are reported by governmental activities and Proprietary Funds and
Pension Trust Funds.

Liabilities: Inthe Statement of Net Assets, governmental activities liabilities are presented as either “current” or “noncurrent.”
Liabilities are segregated into these categories by establishing an average maturity for the liability class and classifying the
portion due within one year of the statement date as current and the portion due beyond one year of the statement date as
noncurrent. For liabilities without specific maturity or due dates, estimates are made of maturities. Liabilities without specific
due dates include those related to self-insurance and compensated absences.

Pension Costs. The Commonwealth’s policy is to fund pension costs incurred and to amortize prior service costs over varying
periods not exceeding 20 years.

Indirect Expenses: In the Statement of Activities, the full-cost alocation treatment is used, whereby reported program
expenses, by function, include any expenses which could be treated as indirect expenses of another function.

Interest Expense: In the Statement of Activities, no interest expense is reported by direct program costs.
I ntergover nmental Revenues: These amounts represent revenues received principally from the Federal government.

Restricted Net Assets: These amounts were primarily determined based on enabling legislation that provides for restrictions
on how the resources of specia (non-General Fund) funds may be used. At June 30, 2007, a portion of governmental
activities net assets was restricted based on a Federal government purpose restriction. Practically al reported restricted net
assets could become unrestricted based on possible future legislative changes.

Budget Stabilization Reserve Fund: Act 91 of 2002 provided for this Fund effective July 1, 2002 to gradually provide a
budgetary reserve amounting to 6 percent of the revenues of the General Fund. For the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2002 and
in any fiscal year thereafter in which the Secretary of the Budget certifies that there is a surplus in the General Fund, 25
percent of the surplusis to be deposited by the end of the next succeeding quarter into this Fund. This requirement resulted in
atransfer of $177.0 million to be deposited by the end of the next succeeding quarter for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007;
thistransfer isincluded in the General Fund budgetary comparison schedule for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.

Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement Proceeds. In 1997, the Pennsylvania Attorney General began litigation in the
Philadelphia court of common pleas against several defendant tobacco product manufacturers to recover specified damages.
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Similar litigation was filed by many other states. In 1998, the Commonwealth joined in the Master Settlement Agreement
which settled litigation against certain defendant manufacturers and 52 governmental entities, including Pennsylvania. As part
of the settlement, the manufacturers agreed to remit periodic payments to the Commonwealth and other states in perpetuity.
Amounts remitted are calculated based on a variety of specific settlement provisions; actual tobacco product sales are one key
factor. The Agreement contains procedures for resolving disputes over payment or other issues that may arise. A dispute
regarding the amount to be paid for cigarette sales that took place in 2003 is currently being litigated.

Due From Other Governments. This receivable represents amounts due primarily from the Federal government for various
department programs.

Bond Proceeds, Bond Proceeds Premium/Discount and Bond | ssuance Costs: In governmental fund financia statements,
the face amount of bonds issued and related premium/discount are separately reported. Bond issuance costs are reported as
expenditures. In government-wide financial statements, the face amount of bonds issued is reported as a liability and related
premium/discount is amortized over the life of the outstanding debt and is reported as interest expense as part of functional
governmental activities expenses. Bond issuance costs are reported as expenses.

Interfund Transactions. The Commonwealth has the following types of transactions between funds, between primary
government governmental activities and business-type activities and between primary government and discretely presented
component units:

Statutory Transfers—L egally required transfers from specific Funds that subsidize receiving Fund programs are reported when
paid as“Transfersin” by the receiving Fund and as “ Transfers out” by the disbursing Fund. Legaly required payments from
the primary government to component unit organizations are reported when paid as governmental activities program expenses
and as either Operating Grants and Contributions or Capital Grants and Contributions by component unit organizations.
Interfund balances (amounts due from/to other funds) are reported for unremitted, due and payable, transfers at fiscal year end.
In the Statement of Activities, only transfers between governmental activities and business-type activities are reported as
transfers.

Transfers of Expenditures (Reimbursements)—Reimbursement of expenditures made by one fund for another that are recorded
as expendituresin the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expenditures in the reimbursed fund.

Interfund Services Provided and Used—Charges or collections for services provided by one fund to another that are recorded
as revenues of the recipient fund and expenditures or expenses of the disbursing fund are reclassified and treated as
reimbursements (above) in fund financial statements and the Statement of Activities. Interfund balances (amounts due from/to
other funds) are reported for unremitted charges or collections at fiscal year end that arise in connection with routine, ordinary
governmental fund and proprietary fund operations.

Interfund balances: The composition of the Commonwealth’s interfund receivables/payables at June 30, 2007 and transfers
infout during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 are presented in Note H. Interfund balances between two governmental funds
or two proprietary funds are not reported in the Statement of Net Assets.

New Accounting Pronouncements — Adopted: Effective July 1, 2006 the Commonwealth adopted the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board's (GASB’ s) Statement No. 47, “ Accounting for Termination Benefits.” GASB Statement No. 47
requires reporting termination benefit costs for involuntary terminations during the period the Commonwealth becomes
obligated and for voluntary terminations when the termination offer is accepted. Implementation had no effect on the
Commonwealth’sfinancial statements during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 as no termination programs were in effect.

New Accounting Pronouncements — To Be Adopted: In June 2004 the GASB issued Statement No. 45, “ Accounting
and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.” GASB Statement No. 45 changes
how other postemployment benefits (OPEB) costs are reported by employer governments, so that employer OPEB costs are
charged during the periods when employees render services. Presently, OPEB costs for retiree healthcare benefits are reported
as charged as a component of payroll expenditures to employing agencies in amounts expected to be sufficient to fund such
benefits on a 'pay-as-you-go' basis. It is expected that reported expenses for OPEB would increase upon implementation.
Actuarial valuations have been in process since early 2006; other steps necessary for implementation are being taken.
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In September 2006, the GASB issued Statement No. 48, “ Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-
Entity Transfers of Assets and Future Revenues.” GASB Statement No. 48 distinguishes between sales or collateralized
borrowings when governments exchange their rights to future cash flows for immediate cash proceeds or other consideration.
The new standard establishes new reporting and disclosure requirements for such transactions and balances.

In December 2006, the GASB issued Statement No. 49, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation
Obligations.” GASB Statement No. 49 establishes recognition ‘triggers,’” any one of severa obligating events, and requires
governments to estimate expected outlays for pollution remediation costs at polluted sites. Liabilities and expenses are to be
estimated using ‘ expected cash flows.’

In May 2007, the GASB issued Statement No. 50, “Pension Disclosures.” GASB Statement No. 50 amends GASB Statement
Nos. 25 and 27 (both related to pension plans) and provides for enhanced pension disclosures to be consistent with disclosure
and required supplementary information requirements established by GASB Statement Nos. 43 and 45 (both related to OPEB).

In June 2007, the GASB issued Statement No. 51, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets.” GASB
Statement No. 51 clarifies pertinent provisions of GASB Statement No. 34 which address capital asset reporting requirements.
Among other things, the Commonwealth must begin to report such intangible assets as computer software, which are not
presently capitalized and amortized over varying periods of time.

In November 2007, the GASB issued Statement No. 52, “Land and Other Real Estate Held as Investments by Endowments.”
GASB Statement No. 52 changes how permanent and term endowments, including permanent funds, report land and other real
estate held as investments. The prior standard required reporting at historic cost; the new standard requires reporting at fair
value, along with several disclosures.

The Commonwealth must adopt the new standards as follows:

GASB Statement No. 45 Effective July 1, 2007, for financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008
GASB Statement No. 48  Effective July 1, 2007, for financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008
GASB Statement No. 49  Effective July 1, 2008, for financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009
GASB Statement No. 50 Effective July 1, 2007, for financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008
GASB Statement No. 51 Effective July 1, 2009, for financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2010
GASB Statement No. 52 Effective July 1, 2008, for financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009
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Primary Government — General Fund Employee Benefits Reclassification

Effective July 1, 2006 the Commonwealth changed the method used to report certain General Fund activities associated with
Commonwealth employee benefit costs which are charged to Commonwealth agencies on a biweekly basis. Such activities
were formerly reported as part of General Fund revenues (Charges for sales and services) and expenditures (Direction and
supportive services); for the fisca year ended June 30, 2006 such previously reported General Fund revenues ($2,750,226)
and expenditures ($2,062,113) would have been $1,336,185 and $648,072, respectively. For the fiscal year ended June 30,
2007, before the effects of this change, reported revenues would have been $2,745,929 and reported expenditures would have
been $2,270,553 (amounts in thousands).

Discretely Presented Component Units - Restatements Dueto Correction of Errors

Effective July 1, 2006, the previously reported net assets of the Ben Franklin Technology Development Authority are being
corrected and increased from $50,961 to $61,338 to account for previously over-reported expenses and related accounts
payable of $10,377 during several fiscal years ended June 30, 2006 (amounts in thousands).

Effective July 1, 2006, the previously reported net deficit of the Commonwealth Financing Authority is being corrected and
changed from $(20,157) to $(23,134) to account for previously unreported accrued interest payable and related interest expense
of $2,977 as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 (amounts in thousands).

As aresult of these two restatements, aggregate non major discretely presented component unit net assets are being corrected
and increased, on a net basis, from $392,941 to $400,341 as of July 1, 2006. Total discretely presented component unit net
assets are being corrected and increased, on a net basis, from $6,017,460 to $6,024,860, as of July 1, 2006 (amounts in
thousands).
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Governmental Activities and Business-Type Activities Net Assets: Total Net Assets are the difference between Total
Assets and Total Liabilities reported on the Statement of Net Assets. Total Net Assets are reported in three distinct
components; Invested in capital assets, net of related debt; Restricted net assets; and Unrestricted net assets. Invested in
capital assets, net of related debt represents total capital assets less accumulated depreciation and the outstanding liability for
debt specifically related to the acquisition of the capital assets. At June 30, 2007, governmental and business-type activities,
respectively, reported $20,015,677 and $56,010 in net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt. Restricted net assets
for specia funds are those that are statutorily established and for which net assets may only be used for specific legislated
purposes. Governmental fund balance “designations’ are not treated as restricted net assets because they represent plans and
can easily be changed. Restraints established by enabling legislation, on the other hand, are not easily changed. At June 30,
2007, governmental and business-type activities, respectively, reported $4,038,012 and $3,532,020 in restricted net assets. Net
assets restricted for other purposes of $87,077 and $165,168 for governmental activities and business-type activities,
respectively, at June 30, 2007 include amounts for a range of dissimilar statutory purposes. Unrestricted net assets represent
total net assets minus the totals of invested in capital assets, net of related debt and restricted net assets. At June 30, 2007,
governmental activities reported unrestricted net assets of $343,162 (amounts in thousands).

Governmental Fund Balance Reservations: Fund balance reservations reported in governmental fund balance sheets
represent portions of governmental fund balances that are legally segregated for a specific future use or are not available for
expenditure.

The amount reserved for advances in the General Fund, $114.1 million, is applicable to advances as follows: $14.3 million
to the Purchasing Fund, an Internal Service Fund; $2.3 million to the State Workers' Insurance Fund and $85.0 million to
the State Stores Fund, both Enterprise Funds, $2.2 million to the Motor License Fund; and $10.3 million to the
Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund, both Special Revenue Funds.

The amount reserved for advances in the Hazardous Sites Cleanup Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, is applicable to a $3 million
advance to the Small Business First Fund, an Enterprise Fund.

Governmental funds reported total fund balance “other” reservations of $2,173,936 at June 30, 2007. This amount consists of
$844,229 reserved in the General Fund, $822,644 for restricted revenue and $21,585 for continuing programs; $1,230,107
reserved in the Tobacco Settlement Fund for various health-related programs; $2,014 in the Motor License Fund for
transportation-related programs, and $97,586 reserved in nonmagjor Funds for the following programs: (amounts in
thousands):

Land reclamation and other mining operations.................... $ 31,193
Pharmaceutical assiStanCe..........ccoovvivvveererieeeeseeere e 10,947
(RS0 (<" (0] o FR 3,189
Conservation, recycling and economic development........... 1,464
WOrKers COMPENSALiON........c.crueeeeereeeniereeeseeseeeseeseeeseeseenes 28,508
Gaming aCtiVItIES......ccceverririeire e 18,489

Total nonmajor Special Revenue programs...........ccc.ee.... 93,790

General State Authority maintenance in the

Capital Facilities Fund...........ccccoovviieeieeeeeeee e 2,159
Land and water reclamation...........cccoeveeeeereenenence e 1,637
Total nonmajor Capital Projects programs............cccceeee 3,796
Total nonmajor funds other reservations.............cccuuee... $ 97,586
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Governmental Fund Balance Designations. Designations of unreserved fund balances reported in governmental funds
balance sheets reflect managerial plans for the future use of financia resources. At June 30, 2007 the Commonwealth had
included the following amounts as “ Designated—Other” for the General Fund (amounts in thousands):

General Fund:

Group medica and lifeinsurance...........cccceeeeeeevevevcnenee. $ 386,402
Agency conStruCtion ProjeCES.......c.eovrereeerereneresesie e 138,583
Judicial COMPULEr SYSEEM ........ooviirieerereeeee e 133,826
Job creation tax credits..... ..o 105,533
Waste tire and safe water programs.........ccoceeeeveeereneeeens 22,255
State Police statewide radio project...........covveeereeeeneenen. 47,820
Conservation and Natural Resources radio project ............ 20,786
Volunteer fire company assiStanCe.........c.ovvveeerieeveerennens 1,886
COIrectionS PrOgraMS......c.ceuereereresesesresresseeseseeseesaeseenes 8,482
Public Welfare and medical assistance programs............... 51,453
Information Management & ACCESS Project.........ovveeerenee 3,000
Probation and Parole state and county supervision............ 1,395
(1 0= S 2,545

Total General FuNd ... $ 923,966

Governmental Fund Balance Deficits: One fund has reported a fund balance deficit in the governmental funds balance sheet.
The State Racing Fund, a Specia Revenue Fund, reported a fund balance deficit of $700 at June 30, 2007 (amounts in
thousands).

The Capital Facilities Fund, a Capital Projects Fund, reported a deficit unreserved/undesignated fund balance of $447,281 at
June 30, 2007. In total, the Capital Facilities Fund reported a fund balance of $413,921 at June 30, 2007. The Land and Water
Development Fund and the Local Criminal Justice Fund, both Capita Projects Funds, reported a deficit
unreserved/undesignated fund balance of $380 and $1,961, respectively, at June 30, 2007. Total Capita Projects Funds
reported reservations for encumbrances of $945,051; other reservations of $3,796; designations for Capital Projects of $65,455;
and a deficit unreserved/undesignated fund balance of $449,622; for total combined fund balances of $564,680 at June 30,
2007 (amounts in thousands).

Proprietary Fund Net Assets: Nonmajor funds reported total restricted net assets for “other purposes’ of $106,756 at June
30, 2007 for the following programs: mine subsidence insurance, $58,735; liquor control, $35,557; vocational rehabilitation,
$3,957; and $8,507 for other programs (amounts in thousands).

Component Unit Net Assets. Net assets of most component units are restricted, consistent with enabling legislation for
component units. Net assets are restricted to purposes specifically identified by the legislation that created the component unit
entity. The Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority reported unrestricted net assets of $270,773 and the
Commonwealth Financing Authority reported an unrestricted net assets deficit of $92,769 (amounts in thousands).

73



NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2007

NOTE D -DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTSAND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTSWITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

Authority for Deposits and | nvestments

Treasury Department

The deposit and investment policies of the Treasury Department are governed by Sections 301, 301.1 and 505 of the
Pennsylvania Fiscal Code (Act of 1929, P.L. 343), and Section 321.1 of the Pennsylvania Administrative Code (Act of 1929,
P.L. 177, No. 175).

Treasury deposits must be held in insured depositories approved by the Board of Finance and Revenue and must be fully
collateralized. The Fiscal Code grants the Treasury Department the authority to invest in any deposits and investments. This
authority is subject, however, to the exercise of that degree of judgment and care under the circumstances then prevailing
which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence who are familiar with such matters exercise in the management of their
own affairs not in regard to speculation but in regard to the permanent disposition of the funds considering the probable income
to be derived there from as well as the probable safety of their capital. Treasury Department deposits and investments may
include equity securities and mutual funds.

As of June 30, 2007, the Treasury Department manages the Treasury Investment Program (TIP). Practically all
Commonwealth Funds of the primary government are invested on a temporary basis in the TIP. The objectives of the TIP are
preservation of principal, liquidity, diversification and income. All investments are made in accordance with the statutory
authority described in the preceding paragraph. The TIP investment pool structure invests in both equity securities and fixed
income securities to achieve the investment objectives of the funds of the Treasury Investment Program. Asset allocation
targets between equity securities and fixed income securities are established in order to meet these overall objectives.

The TIP consists of two types of pools, currently known as The Common Investment Pool and The Treasury Liquid Asset
Pool. The Common Investment Pool consists of three portfolios as follows: the Short-Term Diversified Portfolio, which
consists of fixed income investments in a Short-Term Funds segment and a 2-Y ear Duration Target segment; the Mixed-Term
Diversified Portfolio, which consists of fixed income investments, including high yield, and equity investments; and the
Discretionary Assets Portfolio, which includes certain economically targeted investments deemed appropriate by the State
Treasurer. The Treasury Liquid Asset Pool is a portfolio consisting of fixed income investments with a maximum term not
greater than 13 months managed by the Treasury Department.

Other Investing Organizations

Certain investing organizations have statutory authority, which is comparable to the Treasury Department ‘prudent person’
authority above. The investments of such organizations are accounted for in the following Funds. Tobacco Settlement,
Workers Compensation Security Trust, State Workers Insurance, Tuition Payment, INVEST Program for Local
Governments (INVEST), Statutory Liquidator, and Underground Storage Tank Indemnification (collectively, other investing
organizations). Among other things, the other investing organizations typically invest for longer periods of time than the TIP.
Therefore, the other investing organizations own, in relative terms, more intermediate or long-term investments than the TIP.
Most of the other investing organizations establish contractual arrangements with investment managers, which identify
investment objectives without providing strict limitations on ‘allowable’ investment purchases. Most of the other investing
organizations prohibit investing in certain assets, such as commaodities and futures contracts, private placements, except Section
144, options, limited partnerships, real estate properties, and corporations that are engaged in the tobacco industry. Several of
the organizations also prohibit short selling and marginal transactions. One notable exception is Tobacco Settlement; this
organization permits some or all of the previously mentioned prohibited assets and transactions as well as foreign investments.

Pension Trust Funds

The State Employees Retirement System (SERS), the Deferred Compensation Program (DCP) and the Public School
Employees Retirement System (PSERS) constitute Pension Trust Funds reported in the basic financial statements. Pension
Trust Funds avoid deposit risks; as such deposits must be authorized by the Treasury Department. Several state laws govern
investment authority for the SERS and the PSERS; such laws provide ‘prudent person’ investing authority. Allowable DCP
investment options are established by the SERS under its applicable statutory authority. A very large portion of total Pension
Trust Fund investments consists of equity securities, real estate and awide variety of mutual funds.
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Deposit Risks

At June 30, 2007, Treasury Department bank balances of $7,718 were subject to custodial risk; $7,468 was uninsured and
uncollateralized and $250 was uninsured, with collateral held by the pledging institution’s trust departments and not in the
name of the Commonweadlth. In addition, $68,731 of Statutory Liquidator Fund deposits were subject to custodial credit risk;
all such deposits were uninsured and uncollateralized. The PSERS had deposits totaling $45,318 at June 30, 2007 that were
not required to be collateralized by statute or policy at M&T Bank which has a credit rating of A/A2. None of the other
investing organizations or the Pension Trust Funds was exposed to either custodial credit risk or foreign currency risk for its
deposits at June 30, 2007 (December 31, 2006 for the State Worker s I nsurance, SERS, and DCP) (amounts in thousands).

| nvestment Risks

Risk Management Policies: The Treasury Department, which is responsible for the TIP, Tuition Payment and INVEST
programs, has formally adopted a written investment policy. Provisions of the written investment policy and current
management of the investments address custodial credit risk, concentration risk, credit risk, interest rate risk, and foreign
currency risk. Most of the other investing organizations have adopted investment policies intended to reduce the various risks
or, in the case of foreign currency risk, to avoid it entirely. Pension Trust Fund policies avoid custodial credit risk entirely but
are exposed to credit quality, interest rate, and foreign currency risk. To a large degree, credit risk is avoided by following
policies to purchase only ‘investment grade’ securities (Baa/BBB/BBB or better). Where interest rate risk policies have been
adopted, risk is avoided by establishing maximum maturities. To a degree, the establishment of policies limiting investment
purchases from a single issuer avoids concentration risk. The individual risk policies and related disclosures are discussed in
greater detail below. Either collectively or individually, none of the five non-Treasury investing organizations subject
themselves to significantly higher risks than the Treasury Department. Based on the long-term nature of Pension Trust Fund
investments, those Funds are exposed to interest rate risk and foreign currency risk and, to asmaller degree, credit quality risk.

Investments by Type

At June 30, 2007 the TIP and the other investing organizations disclosed a total of $21,341,995 in investments. This consists
of 79 percent fixed income securities ($16,800,519), 19 percent common stock securities ($4,023,447), and the remaining two
percent consists of private equity, mutual funds, annuities, foreign cash and cash equivaents, and others. The investment types
and related amounts are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Investment Type Amount
ANNUILIES. ..o, $ 1,718
Asset-backed securities.............c.o.eene 210,258
Certificates of deposit.............covvenneen. 485,986
Commercial paper.......cccoevviieinieeninnn, 2,027,067
Common stock securities...................... 4,023,447
Corporate obligations......................... 1,766,706
International fixed income.................... 1,374
Limited partnerships...........ccceeevevennnn. 6,716
Money markets mutual funds................. 3,965,653
Mortgage-backed securities.................. 1,438,378
Mutua funds.........cccoovviiii 437,188
Preferred securities...........o.covveine s 1,032
Private equity.......c.oooviiiiiiiine e, 73,094
Repurchase agreements....................... 1,744,515
State and municipal obligations.............. 45,223
U.S. government agency obligations........ 3,081,816
U.S. private placements..................o... 64,633
U.S. Treasury obligations..................... 1,967,191
Total...oiie e $ 21,341,995

Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event a counterparty fails to uphold its

agreement to a transaction, with either the Treasury Department, the other investing organizations or the Pension Trust Funds,

they would not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities in the possession of an outside party. In

accordance with a contractual relationship between the Treasury Department and its custodial agents, substantially all
75



NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2007

NOTE D —-DEPOSITS, INVESTMENTSAND FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTSWITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK (continued)

investments, where securities are used as evidence of the investment, are held by the custodians in book entry form in the name
of the Commonwealth or the custodian. The TIP, Tuition Payment and INVEST investments are insured or registered; and
the securities are held by the Treasury Department or its agent. Similarly, investments of the other investing organizations and
the Pension Trust Funds are almost always registered in the name of the Commonwealth, as the Treasury Department is the
statutory custodian for such investments. At June 30, 2007, only the Statutory Liquidator Fund owned investment securities
subject to custodial credit risk, in the amount of approximately $1.56 billion. Such securities are neither insured nor registered
and are either held by the counterparty or the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the name of the
Commonwealth. The investments types and related amounts are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Investment Type Amount
Asset-backed securities...............ovvevvinne $ 121,520
Commercial paper........ccooevviivine i, 30,080
Common SOCK. .. ... 112
Corporate obligations.............cccovveenennnn. 413,462
International fixed income........................ 1,374
Mortgage-backed securities..................... 302,222
Repurchase agreements............coccveeennnns 327,883
State and municipa obligations................. 16,600
U.S. government agency obligations........... 160,276
U.S. Treasury obligations........................ 188,643
Total v $ 1,562,172

Concentration Risk: Concentration risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the government’s investment in a
single issuer. The Treasury Department places a 10 percent limit on the concentration of investments in any one fixed income
issuer within both the TIP, Tuition Payment and INVEST. This limitation excludes government-sponsored enterprises
(GSEs), direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury or U.S. agencies, and repurchase agreements. The Treasury Department also
places a five percent limit on the concentration of investments in one equity issuer within the Common Investment Pool.
Similarly, to a degree, the five other investing organizations limit exposure to concentration risk. Several other investing
organizations have adopted policies, which alow greater than five percent of portfolios to consist of securities issued by the
U.S. Treasury. At June 30, 2007, over nine percent of total Treasury and other investing organization portfolio investments
($21,341,995) consisted of U.S. Treasury obligations ($1,967,191); this amount is over 11 percent of total fixed income
investments ($16,800,519). Also, among Treasury and other investing organizations, the following concentrations existed as of
June 30, 2007 (December 31, 2006 for the State Workers I nsurance Fund) (amounts in thousands):

Issuer Name Total

Federal National Mortgage Association.............c.cco.eceeivinna $ 2,656,963
United StateS TrEaSUNY ... v vv e et e et e e e e 1,967,191
Bank of AMENCa.......o v 1,239,104

Among the Pension Trust Funds, the SERS disclosed that $1.9 billion of U.S. Treasury securities were owned at its fiscal year
ended December 31, 2006.

As of and during the year ended December 31, 2006 the State Workers Insurance Fund (SWIF) owned more equity
securities at cost than alowed by applicable statutory authority. Act 41 of 2005 permits the SWIF to invest in equities at cost
not exceeding the lesser of 1) 20 percent of the Fund's assets or 2) the statutory surplus after discount. Based on the reported
statutory surplus after discount of $175.8 million, equity investments reported at cost exceeded the surplus by $57.7 million.
SWIF's governing board has directed its investment consultant to make recommendations to rebalance the portfolio and
specify action necessary to ensure compliance with Act 41.

Credit Quality Risk: Credit risk isthe risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
The credit risk of adebt instrument is measured by nationally recognized statistical rating agencies (NRSRA) such as Moody’s
Investors Service (Moody’s), Standard & Poor’'s (S&P), and Fitch Ratings (Fitch). The Treasury Department requires
purchases of TIP assets to be investment grade (Baa/BBB/BBB or better) at the time of purchase. The fixed income portfolio
includes a provision for the asset allocation to alow up to 10 percent of the portfolio to be in high yield investments. These
investments, by definition, are not restricted to the investment grade regquirements and include investments rated at Ba/BB/BB
or below. Generally the other investing organizations limit exposure to credit risk through policies which prevents purchasing
below investment grade (Baa/BBB/BBB or better).
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At June 30, 2007 approximately $16,800,519 of total TIP and other investing organization investments of $21,341,995 are
fixed income investments, susceptible to credit quality rating; the remainder is primarily common stock ($4,023,447), mutual
funds ($437,188) or other types of investments, including private equity ($73,094). Of the amount susceptible to credit quality
rating, $6,045,441 is rated; ratings are not available for $10,755,078 of fixed income investments. The following tables
discloses aggregate fair value, by the lowest rating obtained by credit quality rating category, at June 30, 2007 for the Treasury
Department and the other investing organizations fixed income investments (amounts in thousands):

Moody's I nvestor Services Amount
X - $ 991,392
AlL. . 19,678
A2, 63,623
ABB. 156,334
Al 141,446
A2, 215,892
A 115,078
Baal......coooiiiiii 45,462
Baa2.......oeii 102,261
Baa3. ..o 100,526
Bal......ivuiitiitiin i 39,227
Ba2....oi 45,980
Ba3.. . 38,634
Bl 29,208
B 33,401
B3 31,451
Caal.....cooviie 11,802
CaAB2...ceiiiii i 1,282
Cad3....co it 42
G 155
P-d. 510,965
VMIGL. .o 414
Moody's Investor Servicessubtotal......... $ 2,694,253

Fitch Ratings

AAA $ 1,654,956
AR 91
AA 3,196
A 13,648
At 5,684
A 1,008
A 6,703
BBBH. e 1,101
BBB..i i 460
BBB-.. 268
BBt 68
BB . 194
B, 368
B 47
B 2,925
i 116

Fitch Ratingssubtotal........................ $ 1,690,833
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Standard and Poor's Amount
AAA $ 589,589
A A 6,856
A 21,895
A A 59,429
At 62,024
A 46,945
A 39,833
BBB+..oii i, 50,041
BBB...o o 21,496
BBB-..oe s 8,682
BB+, 2,710
BB 19,137
BB, 21,941
Bt 17,788
B, 30,297
B 17,344
CC i 6,904
CCC i 3,404
ALt 380,032
A-d 254,008
Standard and Poor'ssubtotal............... $ 1,660,355
Unrated
U.S. Government agency obligations®............ $ 3,258,846
U.S. Treasury obligations’................cccoee... 332,613
Other. ..o 7,163,619
Unrated subtotal............coceevvvviiiieeennnn. $ 10,755,078
Total fixed incomeinvestments............... $ 16,800,519

& U.S. Government agency obligations that were not rated by a Nationally Recognized Securities Rating
Agency (NRSRA) and consists of Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSEs) and government-owned
corporations. Some widely known GSEs include Federal National Mortgage Association, Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation and several other entities. Agency (or GSE) bonds are not normally rated.
GSE bonds are not explicitly backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government but they have

implied government backing and an implied Aaa/AAA rating.

P U.S. Treasury obligations not rated by a NRSRA and consists of securities issued by the U.S. Treasury.
They are negotiable debt obligations of the U.S. Government secured by its full faith and credit. U.S.
Treasury obligations are not usualy rated by a NRSRA. Assuming they are held to maturity they are

considered extremely credit worthy.
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At June 30, 2007 approximately 34 percent of the Treasury fixed income portfolio is rated investment grade or better and less
than two percent is rated below investment grade. Approximately 64 percent ($10,755,078) of the fixed income portfolio in
TIP and the other investing organizations is not rated by any of the NRSRA. The unrated securities consisted of U.S.
Government agency obligations ($3,258,846) U.S. Treasury obligations ($332,613), and the remainder ($7,163,619) consists of

the following types of investments as of June 30, 2007 (amounts in thousands):

June 30, 2007

Investment Type Amount
ANNUILIES. ..o $ 1,718
Asset-backed securities.............cooevven. 55
Certificates of deposit.............cocevvnennn. 485,987
Commercial Paper........ccoovveviiiiiiiii 1,203,620
Corporate obligations..............ccccovevevenn. 65,828
Money market mutua funds..................... 3,214,650
Mortgage-backed securities..................... 71,197
U.S. private placements................cocevenes 1,497
Repurchase agreements...............cocceueee. 1,422,957
State and municipa obligations................ 696,110
Total Unrated..........ccovvviiiienieennns $ 7,163,619

The Pension Trust Funds may expose themselves to greater credit quality risk than Treasury programs or other investing
organizations to meet specific investment objectives. SERS and DCP fixed income securities, which are exposed to credit

quality risk, are rated as follows (amounts in thousands):

M oody's I nvestor Services’ SERS DCP

Ada....ooi $ 607,179 $ 28,751
Al 73,426 32,437
A 192,881 64,766
Baa.........o. o, 362,952 12,416
Ba.....o 676,537 132
B 703,816 -
Cal..coo i 149,795 -
G 3,575 -
e 1,963 -
D 3,662 -
AGY . 457,369 382,773
Unrated..........covevvieeeeieieennn 149,871 12,042
Short-term market neutral contracts” (22 -
Treasury Investment Program......... 573,720 41,935
Total..oee i $ 3,956,724 $ 575,252

#The Moody's rating represents all of the securities that fall within subcategories of the ratings shown in
thistable. For example, a security with arating of Bal is shown as arating of Bain thistable.

® AGY rating is assigned to securities issued by Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSEs) and
government-owned corporations. Some widely known GSEs include Federal Nationa Mortgage
Association, Federa Home Loan Mortgage Corporation and severa other entities that do not have a
Moody’s ratings. Agency (or GSE) bonds are not normally rated. GSE bonds are not explicitly backed by
the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government but they have implied government backing and an implied
AaalAAA rating.

° Represents securities that were either not rated by Moody's, or had a withdrawn rating. Unrated also
includes the market value of certain swaps, which by nature do not have credit quality ratings.

4 Represents investments of the SERS Market Neutral investment strategy and includes cash and cash
equivalents. The investments represent deposits for short sales and cash collatera and are invested
primarily in U.S. Treasury Obligations.
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PSERS fixed income securities, which are exposed to credit quality rating, are listed below using the rating
(expressed as S& P equivalent), available from Fitch, Moody’s, and/or S& P that indicates the greatest degree of risk
at June 30, 2007 (amounts in thousands):

Standard and Poor’s Equivalent*  Amount
AAA $ 7,608,036
AA 907,907
A 1,254,699
BBB...ooi 1,291,445
BBandbelow...........c..coieinnni. 957,173
Unrated®.......co.ooieiieieiee e 1,970,560
U.S. Treasury and U.S. government

agency obligations”.................... 2,858,041
Treasury Investment Program....... 3,236,147
Total....ooee $20,084,008

#The Standard and Poor's rating represents al of the securities that fall within subcategories of the ratings
shown in thistable. For example, a security with arating of A+ is shown asarating of A in thistable.
® Unrated represents securities that were not rated by S& P and $1,202,848 of securities in collective trust

funds at June 30, 2007.

° Represents securities issued by U.S. Treasury, Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSEs) and
government-owned corporations. Some widely known GSEs include Federal Nationa Mortgage
Association, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, and several other entities. Agency (or GSE)
bonds are not normally rated. GSE bonds are not explicitly backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S.
Government but they have implied government backing and an implied Aaa/AAA rating. U.S. Treasury
obligations are backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government and are implied to have a AAA

rating.

Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk isthe risk that an investment’s value will change, advantageously or adversely, due to a
change in the absolute value of interest rates. The Treasury Department measures interest rate risk using duration. To limit
Treasury’s exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, Treasury’s long-term asset allocation diversifies its
fixed income core segment between intermediate duration and longer duration strategies. Duration is a measure of an
investment’ s sensitivity to changesin interest rates. The higher the duration, the greater the changes in fair value when interest
rates change. Treasury measures interest rate risk using option-adjusted duration, which takes into account embedded options
affecting cash flows. Other investing organizations use less sophisticated measurements to manage interest rate risk; severa
limit the maximum term-to-maturity of investment purchases. Further, to avoid interest rate risk, many other organizations
deliberately hold a given percentage of total investments in very short-term securities to avoid the potential need to sell such
securities at a loss. At June 30, 2007, TIP and other investing organizations, excluding Statutory Liquidator, fixed income
portfolio had the following option-adjusted durations (in years) by investment type (amounts in thousands):

Securities
Option-Adjusted with no

Investment Type Amount Duration Duration
Asset-backed securities..........o.ocoeennnis $ 87,527 1.540 $ 1,211
Certificates of deposit...........ccvvvivvvinnnn 472,610 0.661 13,154
Commercial paper........ccooveviiieieninnnn 1,996,987 0.094 -
Corporate obligations..............c.covvvennen. 1,303,831 4.000 49,412
Money markets..........cccoeviiveiieviinnn, 2,470,000 0.083 689,910
Mortgage-backed securities.................... 1,117,525 4.130 18,632
Repurchase agreements........................ 1,416,632 0.001 -
State and municipal obligations.............. 22,423 6.498 6,200
U.S. government agency obligations......... 2,915,574 1.030 5,966
U.S. private placements........................ 61,636 3.424 2,997
U.S. Treasury obligations...................... 1,778,548 4.928 -
Total.o i $ 13,643,293 $ 787482
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The Statutory Liquidator Fund does not use option-adjusted duration as a means of managing interest rate risk; the following
provides segmented time distribution for that Fund (amounts in thousands):

Maturesin Matures Matures Matures Matures Matures Matures
lessthan inlto5 in 6to 10 in1lto in21to in31to in4lto

Investment Type OneYear Years Years 20Years 30 Years 40 Years 50 Years Total
ANNUItIES........ccceeeeeenn, $ 1,718 $ - $ - $ - $ $ - $ $ 1718
Asset-backed securities........ - 17,462 5,822 3,637 89,187 5,412 121,520
Certificates of deposit.......... 222 - - - 222
Commercia paper.............. 30,080 - - - - - - 30,080
Corporate obligations.......... 51,425 256,806 72,526 6,124 10,431 6,450 9,700 413,462
International Fixed Income.... - 1,374 - - 1,374
Money markets.................. 805,743 805,743
Mortgage-backed securities... 2,601 34,248 23,495 25,653 216,225 302,222
Repurchase agreements........ 327,884 327,884
State and municipal
obligations.............ccceeeee. - 90 375 1,490 5,680 8,965 16,600
U.S. government agency
obligations...........c.cceeveee 33,797 104,120 12,674 9,685 160,276
U.S. Treasury obligations...... 17,935 134,944 35,764 188,643

Total..ooovieic e, $1,271,405 $549,044 $150,656 $ 46,589 $321,523 $20,827 $ 9,700 $2,369,744

Based on specific investment objectives, the Pension Trust Funds may expose themselves to greater interest rate risk than

Treasury programs or other investing organizations.

Several investment choices, which may be selected by Deferred

Compensation Program participants, include the Stable Value Account, Aggregate Bond Index, and U.S. Tactical Asset
Allocation Fund, include a variety of fixed income securities. Each Pension Trust Fund uses option-adjusted duration (in
years) as ameasure of interest rate risk, as follows (amounts in thousands):

SERS DCP
SERS DCP Option-Adjusted  Option-Adjusted

Investment Type Amount Amount Duration Duration
Asset-backed securities............... $ 332,130 $ 13,709 1.0 21
Corporate obligations................. 1,290,576 102,967 33 4.8
International fixed income........... - 1,048 n/a 1.6
Mortgage-backed securities.......... 550,471 369,070 21 34
Short-term market neutral............ (22) - 0.1 n/a
State and municipal obligations...... - 234 n/a 131
Sovereigndebt..........ccooveieeennnn. 561,376 8,011 5.6 45
Treasury Investment Program....... 573,720 41,935 0.1 01
U.S. government agency obligations 201,960 26,087 2.2 2.7
U.S. private placements............... 345,986 12,191 39 35
U.S. Treasury obligations............ 1,898,745 119,447 4.2 50
Other Investments™..................... 97,019 - n/a n/a
Total...oii $5,851,961  $ 694,699

%0ther | nvestments represents certain SERS securities with maturities ranging through the year 2046 and the value of
swap agreements as of December 31, 2006.
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PSERS:
Option-Adjusted

Investment Type Amount Duration
Corporate obligations and taxable municipal obligations.. $ 3,633,248 3.0
Fixed income collective trust funds................cc.cvveeee. 1,202,848 4.2
International fixedincome................cocciviiiiiiinn e, 2,134,833 5.2
Miscellaneous domestic fixed income........................ 150,039 1.0
Mortgage-backed securities.............ccooveviini i, 6,190,646 3.3
Treasury Investment Program.............cccvevvve i vennnn. 3,236,147 0.1
U.S. Treasury and agency obligations........................ 2,608,384 6.6
TOtAl. et $ 19,156,145

Foreign Currency Risk: Foreign currency risk is the risk of an investment’s value changing, advantageously or adversely,
due to changes in currency exchange rates. The Treasury Department’s policy requires all investments to be denominated in
U.S. dollars, issued under U.S. laws and regulations, designed for U.S. investors, and traded in U.S. markets. Among the other
investing organizations, the Tobacco Settlement Fund and the Tuition Payment Fund are authorized to purchase securities
denominated in a foreign currency. At June 30, 2007, the Tobacco Settlement Fund reported $77.5 million and the Tuition
Payment Fund reported $42.9 million of foreign currency-denominated holdings. The foreign currency holdings make up
nearly 30 percent of the Tuition Payment Fund’s total investment portfolio and less than six percent of the Tobacco
Settlement Fund’stotal investment portfolio. The amounts invested, by currency, are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Short Term

Foreign Currency Holdings’ Equity Total
Euro Currency Unit........ $ 2,259 $ 34,685 $ 36,944
British Pound Sterling....... 203 23,088 23,291
JapaneseYen................. 176 22,447 22,623
SwissFranC................... 61 10,453 10,514
Hong Kong Dallar............ 285 9,188 9,473
Canadian Dallar.............. 12 6,841 6,853
Austrdian Ddllar.............. 8 2,698 2,706
Mexican New Peso.......... 5 1,817 1,822
DanishKrone................. 14 1,405 1,419
Singapore Dollar.............. 8 800 808
Malaysian Ringgit............ 78 703 781
South African Rand......... 66 707 773
Swedish Krona............... 8 675 683
Thailand Baht................. 13 644 657
Russian Rubel (New)........ - 624 624
New Turkish Lira............. - 408 408
New Zealand Dollar.......... 9 - 9
Norwegian Krone............. 6 - 6

Total.eooiee e $ 3,211 $ 117,183 $ 120,394

#Includes receivables and payables for futures contracts, securities sold, and securities purchased.
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Each Pension Trust Fund is exposed to foreign currency risk as part of meeting specific investing objectives or alocations
among different classes of investments. The SERS is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily for equity securities at
December 31, 2006 as follows (amountsin thousands):

Short Term Fixed Alternative
Foreign Currency Investments® Income Equity Real Estate Investments Total

Euro Currency Unit......... $ 35,573 $ 8630 $ 1,292,941 $ 52434 $ 165,942 $ 1,555,520
British Pound Sterling..... (707) - 918,534 64,835 - 982,662
Japanese Yen............... (1,486) - 735,881 61,299 - 795,694
Hong Kong Dollar......... 1,158 - 314,094 35,942 - 351,194
SwissFranc.................. (607) - 340,506 - - 339,899
South Korean Won......... (559) - 213,389 - - 212,830
Australian Dallar........... (141) - 101,932 56,959 - 158,750
Swedish Krona.............. (364) - 122,224 5,019 - 126,879
Singapore Dallar............ 365 - 82,377 10,249 - 92,991
New Taiwan Dallar......... 1,274 - 88,684 - - 89,958
Norwegian Krone........... 3,280 - 81,396 2,444 - 87,120
South African Rand......... 2,429 - 52,853 - - 55,282
Brazil Real.................. 467 730 49,011 - - 50,208
Canadian Dallar............ 17 3,568 25,197 13,086 - 41,868
Mexican New Peso......... 137 3,186 36,035 - - 39,358
Danish Krone............... 144 - 38,748 - - 38,892
Indian Rupee................ 2,147 - 33,692 - - 35,839
Malaysian Ringgit.......... 44 - 27,785 - - 27,829
Thailand Baht............... 53 - 22,401 - - 22,454
Other Currencies (13)...... 1,019 - 87,705 - 1 88,725

Total...oooiiieee $ 44243 $ 16,114 $ 4,665,385 $ 302,267 $ 165,943 $ 5193952

Includes receivables and payables as of December 31, 2006 for securities sold and purchased.

One of several investing choices that may be selected by DCP participants is the European, Australian and Far East Equity
(EAFE) Index Fund, which owns international equities and is managed by an external manager. The EAFE Equity Index Fund
within the program seeks to track the more than 1,000 foreign stocks representing established companies in 21 countries
located in Western Europe and the Pacific Rim that are a part of the Morgan Stanley Capital International EAFE Index. At
December 31, 2006, the DCP had the following currency exposures related to equity securities (amounts in thousands):

Foreign Currency Fair Value
Euro Currency Unit......... $ 33512
British Pound Sterling..... 23,675
JapaneseYen............... 23,216
SwissFranc.................. 6,911
Australian Dollar........... 5,599
Swedish Krona.............. 2,619
Hong Kong Dallar.......... 1,788
Singapore Dallar............ 975
Norwegian Krone.......... 930
Danish Krone............... 828
New Zealand Dallar....... 160
Chinese Yuan Renminbi... 17

Total.....oooveviiinns $ 100,230
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The PSERS is exposed to foreign currency risk for equity and other securities as follows (amounts in thousands):

Short Term Alternative
Foreign Currency Investments®  Fixed Income Equity Investments  Currency Hedge Total
Euro Currency Unit...... $  (232932) $ 924033 $ 4543147 $ 720273 $ (1,864,314) $ 4,090,207
British Pound Sterling... 596,752 242,722 3,330,681 67,078 (864,825) 3,372,408
Japanese Yen.............. (177,619) 218,152 3,096,446 - (1,056,235) 2,080,744
Australian Dallar......... 244,290 7,225 779,589 - - 1,031,104
Canadian Dallar........... (120,701) 127,283 845,365 15,675 - 867,622
Hong Kong Dallar......... 6,503 - 856,048 - (86,725) 775,826
South Korean Won....... 38,661 12,076 529,302 - - 580,039
Swedish Krona............. (64,834) 75172 475,061 - - 485,399
New Zedand Dollar...... 316,422 14,251 13,059 - - 343,732
Taiwan Dollar............. 40,574 - 298,257 - - 338,831
South African Rand...... 10,776 - 305,065 - - 315,841
Norwegian Krone......... 129,486 3,156 169,799 - - 302,441
Other Currencies (27)..... (697,691) 99,498 2,544,082 - (363,529) 1,582,360
Total.....oooevveiienn, $ 89687 $ 1,723568 $ 17,785901 $ 803,026 $ (4,235628) $ 16,166,554

2 Includes investment receivables and payables.

Securities Lending Program

The Treasury Department provides a securities lending program authorized by the Fiscal Code, which provides the Treasury
Department with numerous custodial responsibilities; the securities program is an integral part of the custodial function. A
contract between the Treasury Department and its custodian, acting as lending agent, provides that the custodian lends
securities owned by the participants to independent brokers, dealers and banks, acting as borrowers.

Lending agreements between the custodian and the borrowers require that the custodian receive collateral from the borrowers
in exchange for the securities lent. For securities lent which are not denominated in U.S. dollars or whose primary trading
market is located outside the U.S,, the fair value of the collateral received must be at least 105 percent of the fair value of the
securities lent. For all other securities lent, the fair value of the collateral received must be at least 102 percent. Securities lent
consist of both domestic and foreign equity securities and U.S. Treasury and foreign debt obligations. Almost all collateral
received consists of cash; a very small portion of collateral received consists of letters of credit, U.S. Treasury, corporate
and/or foreign debt obligations. Collateral is marked to market daily. Additional collateral from borrowers is required if the
fair value of the collateral received declines below lending agreement requirements. The lending agent cannot pledge or sell
collateral securities received unless the borrower defaults. Accordingly, neither collateral securities received from borrowers
nor the related obligations to borrowers are reported.

To the extent collateral received consists of cash, the lending agent may use or invest the cash in accordance with reinvestment
guidelines approved by the Treasury Department. Either the participant or the borrower may terminate lending agreements on
demand. Lending agreements are typically of very short duration - usually overnight. Therefore, the duration of lending
agreements do not generally match the maturities of the investments made with cash collateral. The resulting rate risk is
mitigated by the lending agent’ s ability to reallocate lending agreements among program participants.

The program requires that the lending agent indemnify the Treasury Department for al claims, liabilities and costs resulting
from the lending agent’s negligence or intentional misconduct. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 (December 31,
2006 for the State Workers Insurance Fund (SWIF) and the SERS), there were no failures by any borrower to return
securities lent or pay distributions thereon. Also, there were no losses resulting from a lending agent or borrower default and
there were no Treasury Department restrictions on the amount of the loans that could be made.
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At June 30, 2007 (December 31, 2006 for the SWIF and the SERS), there was no Treasury Department or participant credit
risk to the borrowers because the fair value of collateral received was greater than the fair value of the securities lent, consistent
with the lending agreements outstanding. The fair value of the securities lent, along with type of investments lent, are
(amounts in thousands):

Securities Lent U.S. Treasury Govgr'r?r'nent Corporate Sovereign
Amount Obligations Agency Obligations Equities Debt

Tobacco Settlement FUN......ovoovevveeenennn, $ 268,058 $ 118,093 $ 82,956 $ 1,768 $ 657241 $
State Lottery FUNd...........cccoveeeeeeeeienie e, 3522 3522
StateWorkersinsurance Fund........oooovveniio. 685,155 516,411 136,139 19,795 12,810
Tuition Payment Fund.............ccccceveveereennn 161,047 43,614 19,022 1,673 96,738
Workers Compensation Security Trust Fund...... 122,270 84,836 15,985 6,345 15,104
Underground Storage Tank Indemnification Fund 14,327 9,941 1,873 743 1,770
State Employees Retirement System................ 3,299,923 1,976,881 109,978 171,025 933,937 108,102
Public School Employees Retirement System...... 9,843,769 2,195,066 361,750 333,660 6,633,423 319,870
Treasury Investment Programs........................ 1,502,001 856,422 277,360 54,130 314,089

Financial Instrumentswith Off-Balance Sheet Risk

Tobacco Settlement Fund

The Tobacco Settlement Fund enters into derivatives and structured instruments primarily to enhance the performance and
reduce volatility of its investment portfolio. It enters into futures contracts to gain or hedge exposure to certain investment
markets and to manage interest rate risk.

Futures contracts are standardized, exchange-traded contracts to purchase or sell a specific financia instrument at a
predetermined price. Gains and losses on futures contracts are settled daily based on a notional (underlying) principal value
and do not involve an actual transfer of the specific instrument. Because of daily settlement, the futures contracts have no fair
value.

The Tobacco Settlement Fund has entered into certain futures contracts maturing through March 2010. The notional value of
these contracts at June 30, 2007 is as follows (amounts in thousands):

Buy Sl
Futures Contract Contracts Contracts
U.S. Treasury futures.... $ - $ (5,168)
Eurodollar futures....... - (29,837)
S& P 500 futures......... 121,990 -

State Employees’ Retirement System (SERS)

The SERS enters into certain derivative and structured financia instruments primarily to enhance the performance and reduce
the volatility of its investment portfolio. It enters into foreign exchange contracts and foreign currency options contracts to
hedge foreign currency exposure, futures contracts to gain or hedge exposure to certain equity markets and to manage interest
rate risk, and swaps to gain equity exposure on its absolute return fund-of-funds investments, as well as hedge against the
effects of inflation.

Foreign exchange contracts are agreements to exchange the currency of one country for the currency of another country at an
agreed upon price and settlement date. The SERS uses these contracts primarily to hedge the currency exposure of its
international investments. To reduce the risk of counterparty nonperformance, the SERS generally enters into these contracts
with institutions regarded as meeting high standards of credit worthiness. The unrealized gain/loss on contracts is included in
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the SERS' net assets and represents the fair value of the contract on December 31. At December 31, 2006, the SERS had
contracts to purchase and sell by mgjor foreign currency were as follows (amounts in thousands):

Buy Unrealized Sl Unrealized

Foreign Currency Contracts Gain/(L 0ss) Contracts Gain/(L 0ss)
Japanese Yen.........coevvennen $2,035,285 $ (99,167) $2,926,774 $ 106,071
Euro Currency Unit............ 1,494,543 34,171 1,627,684 (49,116)
British Pound Sterling......... 979,649 36,015 1,101,384 (46,925)
SWiSSFranc...........c.ccoeueee 607,661 (2,890) 712,462 (3,192
Swedish Krona.................. 110,668 5,054 121,841 (6,957)
Australian Dallar............... 76,156 2,271 87,0901 (3,893)
Other ..o, 6,390 34 8,203 (34)
Total...oooeieiii $5,310,352 $ (24,512 $6,585,439 $ (4,046

Futures contracts are standardized, exchange-traded contracts to purchase or sell a specific financia instrument at a
predetermined price. Gains and losses on futures contracts are settled daily based on a notional (underlying) principal value
and do not involve an actual transfer of the specific instrument. Because of daily settlement, the futures contracts have no fair
value.

The exchange on which futures contracts are traded assumes the counterparty risk and generally requires margin payments to
minimize such risk. The SERS pledges investment securitiesto provide theinitial margin requirements on the futures contracts
it buys. In addition to that collateral, the SERS aso pledges securities for sales of securities that it does not presently own
(short sales). The SERS enters into those short sales to neutralize the market risk of certain equity positions.

The SERS has entered into certain futures contracts maturing through June 15, 2009. The notional value of these contracts at
December 31, 2006 is as follows (amounts in thousands):

Buy Sl
Futures Contract Type Contracts Contracts
U.S. Treasury futures.......... $ 236,184 $ 28972
Eurodollar futures.............. 168,337 142,155

Swap agreements provide for periodic payments between parties based on the change in value of underlying assets, indexes,
rates, or credit worthiness. During 2006, the SERS entered into commodity swaps, S& P 500 total return swaps, Russell 2000
swaps, MSCI-EAFE swaps, credit default swaps, and interest rate swaps. Under the commodity swap arrangement, the SERS
receives the net return of the Goldman Sachs Commodity Index from the swap counterparty in return for a spread, which it
pays to the counterparty. The commodity swaps are used as an inflation hedge and settle on a monthly basis. The S& P 500
total return swaps, Russell 2000 swaps, and M SCI-EAFE swaps are used to gain equity exposure on its absolute return fund-of-
funds and global macro investments. Under those arrangements, the SERS receives the net return of the respective equity
indices in exchange for a short-term rate plus a spread. The SERS uses multiple contracts with counterparties as well as
collateral posting requirements to manage its credit risk. The contracts have varying maturity dates ranging from March 16,
2007 through December 17, 2007. Credit default swaps are agreements with counterparties to either purchase or sdll credit
protection. The SERS advisors use credit default swaps to either increase or decrease credit exposure to certain credit
markets. Interest rate swaps are over-the-counter contracts that allow counterparties to exchange a fixed rate liability for a
floating rate liability. The SERS uses interest rate swaps as the most cost-effective way of gaining exposure to certain sectors
of the fixed income market.
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The table below presents the SERS' swap exposure at December 31, 2006 (amounts in thousands):

Swap Type Notional Value Receivable/(Payable)
S& P 500 Total Return Index........ $ 5,493,078 $ 440,484
MSCI-EAFE IndeX..........couunnnes 2,451,978 97,293
Goldman Sachs Commodity Index. 1,595,177 (117,788)
Russell 2000.......c..ccvvvvvvviininnn. 498,704 (500)
Interest Rate..........ocoevvvvivnnnen. 22,550 867
Credit Default.............c.cevvnen. 239,200 1,577

The SERS mitigates its legal risk on investment holdings, including the previously discussed instruments, by carefully
selecting portfolio managers and extensively reviewing their documentation. |t manages its exposure to market risk within risk
limits set by management.

The SERS also indirectly holds foreign exchange contracts, futures contracts, and certain swap contracts through its
investmentsin collective trust funds. Those collective trust funds invest in those investments directly and indirectly (through a
securities lending collateral pool), to hedge foreign exchange exposure, to synthetically create equity-like returns, and to
manage interest rate risk by altering the average life of the portfolio.

Deferred Compensation Program (DCP)

The DCP, through the Barclays Global Investors (BGI) managed accounts, indirectly holds certain derivative financia
instruments. Certain accounts directly participate in futures contracts, which are standardized, exchanged-traded contracts to
purchase or sdll a specific financial instrument at a predetermined price. The accounts enter into future contracts to gain
exposure to certain equity markets. In those accounts where the use of futures contracts is permitted, BGI limits the accounts
positions to a small amount of the account’s total assets, subject to each account’s investment and credit risk guidelines. The
exchange on which the futures are traded assumes counterparty risk and generally requires margin payments to minimize such
risk.

The BGI-managed accounts may also indirectly hold foreign exchange contracts, futures contracts, and certain swap contracts
through a securities lending collateral pool. Those instruments are held to create “synthetic cash transactions.” Generally,
synthetic cash transactions involve investing in one or more instruments that taken either individually or together have an
interest rate, credit, or liquidity exposure similar to that of a conventional money market instrument. This may be so even
though none of the individual instruments themselves have money market risk. Foreign exchange contracts are agreements to
exchange the currency of one country for the currency of another country at an agreed-upon price and settlement date. As of
December 31, 2006, the portfolio had no foreign exchange contracts. Swap agreements provide for periodic payments between
parties based on the net difference in cash flows of underlying assets, indexes, or rates. To reduce the risk of counterparty
nonperformance, the collateral pool generaly enters into these contracts with institutions deemed to meet high standards of
credit worthiness.

BGI mitigates its legal risk of derivative financia instruments by using them only in the accounts for which they are
authorized. BGI manages its exposure to market risk within risk limits set for the accounts by buying and selling instruments
or entering into offsetting positions. The following table discloses the futures contracts held and the derivatives held indirectly
in the security lending collateral pool as of December 31, 2006 (amounts in thousands):

Notional Amount

Equity Index Fund

Futuresdirectly held..........ooviiir i $ 3,945

Derivatives held indirectly in security lending cash collateral funds.......... 21,417
Extended Market Fund

Futuresdirectly held. ..o, 2,084

Derivatives held indirectly in security lending cash collateral funds.......... 21,900
EAFE Equity Index Fund

Futuresdirectly held. ..., 3,993

Derivatives held indirectly in security lending cash collateral funds.......... 4,909
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Public School Employees’ Retirement System (PSERS)

The PSERS entersinto a variety of financial contracts, which include options and futures. The PSERS also enters into foreign
exchange positions, such as forward and spot contracts to obtain or hedge foreign currency exposure; swap agreements to gain
exposure to certain sectors of the equity and fixed income markets; collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs); other forward
contracts, and U.S. Treasury STRIPS. The PSERS is not adealer, but an end-user of these instruments. The contracts are used
primarily to enhance performance and reduce the volatility of the portfolio. The PSERS is exposed to credit risk in the event of
non-performance by counterparties to financia instruments. As the PSERS generally enters into transactions only with high
quality institutions, no losses associated with counterparty nonperformance on derivative financial instruments have been
incurred. Legal risk is mitigated through selection of executing brokers and review of all documentation. The PSERS is
exposed to market risk, the risk that future changes in market conditions may make an instrument less valuable. Exposure to
market risk is managed in accordance with risk limits set by senior management, through buying or selling instruments or
entering into offsetting positions.

The notional or contractual amounts of derivatives indicate the extent of the PSERS' involvement in the various types and uses
of derivative financial instruments and do not measure the PSERS' exposure to credit or market risks and do not necessarily
represent amounts exchanged by the parties. The amounts exchanged are determined by reference to the notional amounts and
the other terms of the derivatives.

The following table summarizes the aggregate notional or contractual amounts for the PSERS' derivative financial instruments
at June 30, 2007 (amounts in thousands):

Notional

Type of Derivative Value

Futures contracts —1oNg..........c.vviiiiie i $ 11,887,271
Futures contracts — Short........oveuvieii i 4,528,407
Foreign exchange forward and spot contracts, gross......... 21,675,965
Options—callspurchased............ccovvviiiiii e, 1,622,129
Options—putspurchased...............coev i, 278,896
Options—callssold........cccovie i 1,675,223
Options—puUtSSOId. .. ...cevveiee e, 363,893
Swaps—total return.........cooeeiii i 949,347
Swaps—interestrated..........ooiiviii i 183,000

Futures contracts are contracts in which the buyer agrees to purchase and the seller agrees to make delivery of a specific
financial instrument at a predetermined date and price. Gains and losses on future contracts are settled daily based on a
notional (underlying) principal value and do not involve an actua transfer of the specific instrument. Futures contracts are
standardized and are traded on exchanges. The exchange assumes the risk that a counterparty will not pay and generally
requires margin payments to minimize such risk. In addition, the PSERS enters into short sales, sales of securities it does not
presently own, to neutralize the market risk of certain equity positions. Initial margin requirements on futures contracts and
collateral for short sales are provided by investment securities pledged as collateral and by cash held by various brokers.
Although the PSERS has the right to access individual pledged securities, it must maintain the amount pledged by substituting
other securities for those accessed. The value of securities pledged and the amount of cash held at June 30, 2007 represent a
restriction on the amount of assets available as of year-end to use for other purposes.

Option contracts provide the option purchaser with the right, but not the obligation, to buy or sell the underlying security at a
set price during aperiod or at a specified date. The option writer is obligated to buy or sell the underlying security if the option
purchaser chooses to exercise the option. The System generally uses exchange listed currency, index, stock, and futures
options. The PSERS has authorized an investment manager to write covered call stock index option spreads up to a notional
amount of $1.5 billion.

Foreign exchange contracts involve an agreement to exchange the currency of one country for the currency of another country
at an agreed-upon price and settlement date. The $21,676 million of foreign currency contracts outstanding at June 30, 2007
consists of “buy” contracts, which represent the U.S. dollar equivalents of commitments to purchase foreign currencies of
$9,327 million and “sell” contracts, which represent U.S. dollar equivalents of commitments to sell foreign currencies of
$12,348 million. The unrealized gain on contracts of $26 million at June 30, 2007 is included in the PSERS' net assets and
represents the fair value of the contracts. The PSERS' has authorized an investment manager to manage a currency hedge
portfolio consisting of foreign exchange spot and forward contracts, currency futures, and currency options to hedge up to a
notional amount of $5.1 billion of the MSCI-EAFE Index currenciesto U.S. dollars.
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Swap agreements provide for periodic payments at predetermined future dates between parties based on the change in value of
underlying indexes or interest rates. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the PSERS entered into total return swaps and
interest rate swaps. Under the total return swap arrangements, the PSERS receives the net return of certain equity indexes in
exchange for a short-term rate minus a spread. The payable on the total return swap contracts of ($7.11 million) at June 30,
2007 isincluded in the Statements of Plan Net Assets and represents the fair value of the contracts. The contracts have varying
maturity dates ranging from January 30, 2008 to April 11, 2008. Interest rate swap agreements involve the exchange by the
PSERS with another party of their respective commitments to pay or receive interest, eg. an exchange of floating rate
payments for fixed rate payments with respect to a notional amount of principal. The PSERS uses interest rate swaps as the
most cost-effective way to gain exposure to certain sectors of the fixed income market. The receivable on the interest rate
swap contracts of $2.424 million at June 30, 2007 isincluded in the Statements of Plan Net Assets and represents the fair value
of the contracts. The contracts have varying maturity dates ranging from April 15, 2010 to April 15, 2028.

The PSERS also invests in mortgage-backed securities (MBS) such as CMOs and MBS forwards to maximize yields. These
securities are sensitive to prepayments of mortgages, which may result from a drop in interest rates. The MBS forwards are
subject to credit risk in the event of nonperformance by counterparties. The fair value of CMOs at June 30, 2007 is $2.6 billion.

The PSERS investsin U.S. Treasury STRIPS, which essentially act as zero coupon bonds and are subject to market volatility
from an increase or decrease in interest rates.

Through certain collective trust funds, the PSERS also indirectly holds various derivative financial instruments. The collective
trust funds invest in futures and options thereon; forward foreign currency contracts; options; interest rates, currency, equity,
index, and total return swaps; interest-only STRIPS, and CMOs, to enhance the performance and reduce the volatility of their
portfolios.

Discretely Presented Component Units
Authority for Deposits and | nvestments

Component unit organizations typically control receipt and disbursement of their own deposits, often through a trustee.
Enabling legidlation provides varying authority for investments; several component unit organizations participate in the TIP.

Deposit Risks

At June 30, 2007, the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency had $15,900 of deposits with financial institutionsin
excess of federal depository insurance limits that were uninsured and collateralized following an agreement to pledge assets on
a pooled basis to secure public deposits in Pennsylvania. The Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency had $830,219 of cash
deposits that were uninsured and collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, its trust department or
agent, but not in their name. Commonwealth Financing Authority had $335,234 in deposits that were uninsured and collateral
held by pledging bank’s trust department not in the Authority’s name. At June 30, 2007, the State System of Higher Education
had $1,107 uninsured and uncollateralized deposits; and $19,798 uninsured and uncollateralized deposits, but covered under
the collateralization provisions of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Act 72 of 1971, as amended. The Philadelphia Regional
Port Authority had $395 in deposits uninsured but collateralized by the financia institution and $1 in deposits that were
uncollateralized. The Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority disclosed $399 in deposits that were uninsured and
uncollateralized and included both cash and U.S. Treasury money market funds. The Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority had
deposits of $254 that were uncollateralized (amounts in thousands).

Investment Risks

Risk Management Policies. At June 30, 2007 component unit policies for certain risks are established by governing boards;
policies for the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission are established by its bond indentures. Most of the organizations' policies
address credit quality risk by establishing minimum NRSRA ratings for allowable investment purchases. Concentration risk is
also avoided by most of the organizations by limiting the concentration of investments in any one issuer. Some organizations
have policies in place that prohibit a certain percent of the overall portfolio, whereas others determine concentration limits
based on security type. Custodial credit risk is typically avoided through registration. The Pennsylvania Higher Education
Assistance Agency investment policy does not contain requirements that limit the exposure to custodial credit risk.
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Investments by Type

At June 30, 2007 the discretely reported component units disclosed a total of $3,496,120 in investments. This consists of
approximately 99 percent fixed income securities ($3,470,625), and the remaining 1 percent consists of common stock
(%$2,805), mutual funds ($22,561), preferred stock ($23), and cash and cash equivalents ($106). The investment types and
related amounts are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Investment Type Amount
Asset-backed securities.............o..v..... $ 48,294
Cash and cash equivadents.................. 106
Commercial paper.......ccooevveeiiecnnnnn. 310,452
Common stock securities.................... 2,805
Corporate obligations........................ 282,331
Fixed income mutual funds................. 3,861
Guaranteed investment contracts........... 281,049
Money market mutual funds................. 166,861
Mortgage-backed securities................. 140,807
Mutual funds..........cooeiiiiii i, 22,561
Preferred securities................cooeeevnee 23
Repurchase agreements..................... 225,556
State and municipal obligations............ 25,958
Treasury Investment Program............... 509,613
U.S. government agency obligations...... 1,353,338
U.S. Treasury obligations................... 122,505
Total...ooiiee $ 3,496,120

Custodial Credit Risk: Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event a counterparty fails to uphold their
agreement to a transaction, with any of the discretely presented component units, they would not be able to recover the value of
investment or collateral securities in the possession of an outside party. At June 30, 2007 the Pennsylvania Higher Education
Assistance Agency had $11,970 in U.S. government agency obligations and $85,924 in commercia paper subject to custodial
credit risk that were held by the same counterparty that was used to buy the securities (amounts in thousands).

Concentration Risk: Concentration risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the organizations' investment in a
single issuer. Several of the organizations limit concentration to five percent or more of their total investments, with the
exception of U.S. Treasury and U.S. Government Agencies. The State System of Higher Education has policies that do not
limit the concentration in any single issuer for corporate bonds, collateralized mortgage obligations, and asset-backed
securities. The Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency has not established a formal concentration risk policy. Also, anong the
organizations, the following concentrations existed as of June 30, 2007 (May 31, 2007 for the Pennsylvania Turnpike
Commission) (amounts in thousands):

PA Higher
Education
PA Turnpike Assistance

| ssuer Commission Agency
Federal Home Loan Bank.............ccouvveivinninienninninnnn $ 234,448 $ -
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation.................. 159,348 -
Federal National Mortgage Association...................... 266,165 -
IXISFUNAING. .. c.eve i e e e e - 51,064
MBIA, INC..tiiie i e e e - 65,620
Trinity Plus Funding Company...........ccccovveviiinieennn - 83,326

Credit Quality Risk: At June 30, 2007, $3,470,625 of total discretely presented component unit investments of $3,496,120
are fixed income investments, susceptible to credit quality rating. Of the amount of fixed income securities susceptible to credit
quality rating, $2,121,317 are rated and $1,349,308 of fixed income investments do not have ratings available. The following
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M oody's I nvestor Services® Amount
AQA . $ 654,071
Al 287,472
A 7,018
Baa......... o 7,924
P 224,528
M oody's Investor Servicessubtotal......... $1,181,013
Standard and Poor's
AAA $ 759,235
AA 19,964
A-dH 90,894
AL 70,211
Standard and Poor'ssubtotal............... $ 940,304
Rated subtotal..............ccceoeeeiiiinnnn. $2,121,317
Unrated Amount
U.S. government agency obligations™.......... $ 391,174
U.S. Treasury obligations’........................ 122,505
Treasury Investment Program.................... 509,613
Other . 326,016
Unrated subtotal..................coceeeneeinnis $1,349,308
Total Fixed Income Investments............... $ 3,470,625

table discloses aggregate fair value, by Moody’s or Standard and Poor’s credit quality rating category, at June 30, 2007 (May
31, 2007 for Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission) (amounts in thousands):

#The Moody’s rating represents all of the securities that fall within subcategories of the ratings shown in

thistable. For example, a security with arating of Baal is shown asarating of Baain thistable.

P U.S. government agency obligations rating is assigned to securities issued by Government Sponsored
Enterprises (GSEs) and government-owned corporations. Some widely known GSEs include Federal
National Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation and several other entities.
Agency (or GSE) bonds are not normally rated. GSE bonds are not explicitly backed by the full faith and
credit of the U.S. Government but they have implied government backing and an implied Aaa/AAA rating.

“U.S. Treasury obligations rating is assigned to securities issued by the U.S. Treasury. They are negotiable
debt obligations of the U.S. Government secured by its full faith and credit. U.S. Treasury bonds are not

usualy rated by the NRSRA.
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Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is managed using different techniques: weighted average maturity, maximum maturity
dates, effective duration, modified duration or operational cash needs. The following table discloses option-adjusted duration
(in years) by investment type for the fixed income portfolio of the discretely presented component units, excluding the
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency, the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency, and the Pennsylvania
Industrial Development Authority, at June 30, 2007 (May 31, 2007 for the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission) (amounts in

thousands):

Securities
Option-Adjusted with no

Investment Type Amount Duration Duration
Asset-backed securities........................ $ 48,294 1.098 $ -
Commercial paper........cccoevevieiiieienn. 224,528 0.050 -
Corporate obligations..............c..ccocee e 257,016 1.160 51
Fixed income mutual funds.................... 3,861 4.630 -
Guaranteed investment contracts............. 16,827 0.481 -
Mortgage-backed securities.................... 140,807 4.803 -
Repurchase agreements..................ccouee. - n/a 131,026
State and municipal obligations.............. 25,958 5.523 -
Treasury Investment Program.................. 439,540 0.083 -
U.S. government agency obligations......... 1,064,413 2914 291
U.S. Treasury obligations...................... 70,998 1.319 -
Total..o i $ 2,292,242 $ 131,368

The Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency, the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency, and the Pennsylvania
Industrial Development Authority do not use option-adjusted duration as a means of managing interest rate risk; the following

provides segmented time distribution for those organizations at June 30, 2007 (amounts in thousands):

Maturesin Maturesin Maturesin Maturesin

Lessthan 1to5 6to 10 Morethan 10
Investment Type 1Year Years Years Years Total
Commercial PapEr..........vvvvrieeeinanennnn $ 85924 $ - $ - $ - $ 85,924
Corporate obligations..............cccovveenns 4,216 12,998 6,565 1,485 25,264
Guaranteed investment contracts.............. 193,549 65,620 5,053 264,222
Money market mutual funds.................... 166,861 - 166,861
Repurchase agreements......................... 94,530 94,530
Treasury Investment Program.................. 70,073 - - 70,073
U.S. government agency obligations......... 42,868 202,460 451 42,855 288,634
U.S. Treasury obligations...................... 582 53 44,323 6,549 51,507

Total e $ 658,603 $ 281,131 $ 51,339 $ 55,942 $ 1,047,015

Foreign Currency Risk: Foreign currency risk is the risk of an investment’s value changing, advantageously or adversely,
due to changesin currency exchangerates. The State System of Higher Education disclosed that $29 of local investments were

exposed to foreign currency risk. The amounts invested, by currency, are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Foreign Currency Amount
Euro Currency Unit............. $ 22
British Pound Sterling.......... 7

Total ..o $ 29
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Financial I nstrumentswith Off-Balance Sheet Risk

As of June 30, 2007, the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency, the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, the Pennsylvania
Higher Education Assistance Agency, the Philadel phia Regional Port Authority, and the Pennsylvania Industrial Development
Authority al had financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk. To obtain further information regarding the nature and
notional value of the financial instruments refer to their separately audited and issued financial statements.
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A summary of capital assets by category at June 30, 2007 is as follows (amounts in thousands):

Primary Gover nment iscretely Present
Governmental Business-Type Component Units
Activities Activities
Internal Total
General Service Governmental Enterprise
Capital Assets Funds Activities Funds

Land......coooveiiiiiiiinn, $ 431003 $ 6 $ 431,009 $ 323 $ 220,508

Highway right-of-way........... 1,567,684 - 1,567,684 - -

Buildings .......cccoveveveennnnn. 5,481,642 5,530 5,487,172 40,656 2,345,481
Improvements other than

buildings...........ccooeee 477,506 421 477,927 - 218,092

Machinery and equipment....... 744,506 99,823 844,329 115,350 715,676

Library books and other......... - - - - 137,882

Turnpikeinfrastructure......... - - - - 4,362,098

Bridge infrastructure............ 7,421,580 - 7,421,580 - -

Highway infrastructure......... 18,109,439 - 18,109,439 - -

Waterway infrastructure......... 19,650 - 19,650 - -

Other infrastructure............... 9,663 - 9,663 - -

Construction in progress......... 404,350 - 404,350 4,813 245,182

Highway and bridge
construction in progress...... 1,795,882 - 1,795,882 - 1,194,364
Total.oooeee e $36,462,905 $ 105,780 $ 36,568,685 $ 161,142 $ 9,439,283

Changesin general capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
2006 Additions Retirements 2007
Non-Depreciable General Capital Assets:
Land ..o $ 314,855 $ 116,173 $ 25 $ 431,003
Highway right-of-way ..........ccceeverveeenns 1,475,916 91,768 - 1,567,684
Construction in progress.........c.ccoeeeeeeee. 366,706 657,127 619,483 404,350
Transportation construction in progress. 1,817,217 1,020,488 1,041,823 1,795,882
Subtotal .....cooveeeereee e 3,974,694 1,885,556 1,661,331 4,198,919
Depreciable General Capital Assets:
BUIlAINGS...cvevieieieeeeeeesee e 5,267,906 221,911 8,175 5,481,642
Improvements other than buildings....... 469,044 9,097 635 477,506
Machinery and equipment..................... 692,808 73,310 21,612 744,506
Highway infrastructure............ccccocueueee. 16,965,413 1,145,058 1,032 18,109,439
Bridge infrastructure...........cccoceveveeuenne. 7,013,354 415,255 7,029 7,421,580
Waterway infrastructure............cccocu..... 52 20,546 948 19,650
Other infrastructure............ccceeeeveevenene 6,991 2,672 - 9,663
Subtotal .....ccceevreeeeeee 30,415,568 1,887,849 39,431 32,263,986
Total genera capital assets...........co....... $34,390,262 $ 3,773,405 $ 1,700,762 $36,462,905
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Changes in general capital assets accumulated depreciation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 are as follows (amounts in
thousands):

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
2006 Additions Retirements 2007

BUIAINGS ..o $ 1,944,378 $ 113,822 $ 280 $ 2,057,920
Improvements other than buildings............... 205,456 13,405 33 218,828
Machinery and equipment ..........ccceeeeevvennene. 365,448 44,249 19,057 390,640
Highway infrastructure.............cccccveeveriennne. 7,594,374 682,204 53 8,276,525
Bridge infrastructure...........ccccceeevireeneennene. 1,547,618 143,691 160 1,691,149
Other infrastructure.........coceceveeeveeveeeeieeceeenns 2,567 1,097 - 3,664
Total accumulated depreciation............. $11,659,841 $ 998,468 $ 19,583 $ 12,638,726

Depreciation expense, by function, related to governmental activities capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 is as follows
(amounts in thousands):

General Capital Internal

Assets Service
Direction and SUPPOItiVE SEIVICES. .. ... .vuivevievin it et et e e ein e e e s e s e e eansaneen $ 24,098 $ 5,276
Protection of persons and PropPerty ... ... ...oeceeieeier e et e e 68,726 1,218
[0 TTol=o [0 o= (o o TR 22,465 -
Health and NUMEN SENVICES. .. .....e i et e e e e e e e e e e e e et aas 12,128 -
ECONOMIC deVEIOPMENE. .. ...ttt e e e e et e et e e e e eeee 184 -
LI5S 10 1 =1 o T 858,941 -
Recreation and cultural enfiChMeENt..........oo i e e 11,926 -
Total dEPreCiation EXPENSE. .. ... uuvve it een et ettt et et et et s s e e aanaana $ 998,468 $ 6,494

Changesin Interna Service funds capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
2006 Additions Retirements 2007
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:
LANG oot $ 6 $ - $ - $ 6
SUBLOtE ......vveeieicree e 6 - - 6
Depreciable Capital Assets:
BUIlAINGS.....coovririrerieieiccirr s 3,521 2,009 - 5,530
Improvements other than buildings....... 317 104 - 421
Machinery and equipment .................... 94,805 13,275 8,257 99,823
SUBLOLEl ... 98,643 15,388 8,257 105,774

Total Internal Service fund capital assets.. $ 98,649 $ 15388 $ 8,257 $ 105,780
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Changesin Internal Service fund capital assets accumulated depreciation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 are as follows
(amounts in thousands):

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
2006 Additions Retirements 2007
BUIIINGS...vcviiieeeevceees e $ 1,611 $ 117 $ - $ 1,728
Improvements other than buildings 203 14 - 217
Machinery and equipment...........cccceeveeirenene 57,616 6,363 3,627 60,352
Total accumulated depreciation.................... $ 59430 $ 6,494 $ 3,627 $ 62,297

Changesin Enterprise fund capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
2006 Additions Retirements 2007
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:
Land ..o $ 323 $ - $ - $ 323
Construction in progress...........ccoeeveeene. 3,622 1,291 - 4,813
Subtotal .......ooveeeieiee e 3,845 1,291 - 5,136
Depreciable Capital Assets:
(21011 1o [T SR 40,014 642 - 40,656
Machinery and equipment 112,010 3,444 104 115,350
Subtotal ......ccoeerieeeee 152,024 4,086 104 156,006
Total Enterprise fund capital assets........... $ 155,869 $ 5,377 $ 104 $ 161,142

Changes in Enterprise fund capital assets accumulated depreciation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 are as follows
(amounts in thousands):

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
2006 Additions Retirements 2007
BUIliNGS......coveiieiiieeecees e $ 13655 $ 3,915 $ - $ 17,570
Machinery and equipment...........ccccoeveveeeenenn 59,518 11,814 1,145 70,187
Total accumulated depreciation.................... $ 73173 $ 15729 $ 1,145 $ 87,757
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Construction in progress included in general capital assets at June 30, 2007 includes project information as follows (amounts
in thousands):

Amounts
Expended but
Project not Capitalized Authorization
Authorization at June 30, 2007 Available

Capitol COMPIEX ...cveereereicreeecese e $ 166,646 $ 61,915 $ 104,731
Department of Corrections Ingtitutions ..................... 39,983 10,681 29,302
Educational InStitutions...........ccceeevveeeeieceeineseennene 218,254 78,066 140,188
State Parks and Forests.............. 74,824 38,605 36,219
State-wide Radio Project 143,216 142,828 388
Veterans Homes and Military Armories...........ccce.... 53,446 12,715 40,731
Department of Public Welfare Ingtitutions................. 30,644 10,533 20,111
Transportation FaCilities..........cocooevveneieneiecce 46,367 11,220 35,147
Historical and Museum Commission Facilities.......... 22,497 15,516 6,981
State Police Facilities 2,692 1,301 1,391
Agriculture Fecilities................. 5,043 905 4,138
(@1 27=) ST 24,359 20,065 4,294

TOA oo $ 827971 $ 404,350 $ 423,621

The Commonwealth’s initial valuation of general capital assets was made as of June 30, 1986 using appraisal and historical
cost reconstruction techniques. Subsequent to June 30, 1986, general capital asset acquisitions are reported at cost or, for
donations or confiscations, at fair market value. At June 30, 2007 the amount of general capital assets related to the initial 1986
valuation amounted to $1,752 million and did not include highway, bridge or waterway infrastructure.
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Tuition Benefits Payable

The reported liability for tuition benefits payable of $1,231,228 (amounts in thousands) of the Tuition Payment Fund, an
Enterprise Fund, at June 30, 2007, is based on several actuarial assumptions, including those related to future sales of tuition
credits, tuition cost increases, investment experience and program expenses for the Guaranteed Savings Plan of the Tuition
Account Program. The June 30, 2007 actuarial analysis includes several changes in assumptions to reflect the current view of
tuition inflation, updated expense projections and incorporation of the investment advisor's outlook regarding investment
returns. The per-unit credit expense assumption was increased from 47 to 49 cents. The effect of this change decreased the
aggregate actuarial reserve (actuarial value of assets lessliabilities) by $25.5 million.

Insurance Loss Liability

The reported insurance loss liability of the State Workers' Insurance Fund (SWIF), an Enterprise Fund, is primarily based on
historical claims experience. One of the assumptions used to determine the reported liability amount includes using a discount
rate of 3.5 percent at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005. There is uncertainty asto whether the reported liability will be
supported by future claim experience, including payments; this uncertainty must be considered when evaluating the reported
insurance loss liability.

For the calendar years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, the following summary provides information on prior year reported
insurance loss liability, incurred claims and payments, and current year reported insurance loss liability (amounts in thousands).

Year Ended Prior Year Incurred Claims 1 Payments——— Current Year

December 31  Liability Current Prior Current Prior Liability
2006......cceeeeeerierinanns $1,426,177 $ 496,273 $ (45,826) $ 69,983 $ 283,772 $1,522,869
2005.....cceerereeiene $1,373,810 $ 486,100 $ (162,258) $ 59,105 $ 212,370 $1,426,177

Additionally, nonmajor Enterprise funds reported $1,002 of insurance loss liability at June 30, 2007 (amounts in thousands).
Compensated Absences

The reported compensated absence liability for the proprietary funds totaled $32,808 at June 30, 2007. Of that amount, the
lighility is primarily owed by the State Stores Fund ($26,770), the State Worker’s Insurance Fund ($2,229), and the State
Lottery Fund ($1,573), all enterprise funds. The following summary provides aggregated information reported on June 30,
2006 compensated absence liabilities; additions and reductions during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 and reported
compensated absence liabilities at June 30, 2007 (amounts in thousands):

Liability at Liability at
June 30, 2006 Additions Reductions June 30, 2007
$ 34,945 $ 20,747 $ 22,884 $ 32,808

Capital Lease Obligation

The State Lottery Fund, an Enterprise Fund, has entered into an agreement to lease vending machines used for lottery ticket
sales. This agreement is an in-substance purchase (capital lease) and is reported as a capital lease obligation. The following isa
schedule by fiscal year of future minimum payments under the capital lease agreement, together with the present value of the net
minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2007 (amounts in thousands):

Fiscal year ending June 30

2008 ..ot $ 12,159
2009 ... 6,080
Total minimum lease payments............c.cc..... 18,239

Less: amount representing interest ............ 864
Total capital lease obligations...............c....... $ 17,375

At June 30, 2007 proprietary fund capital assets included $42.3 million of equipment being procured by this capital lease.
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Taxes Receivable: Taxesreceivable at June 30, 2007 consisted of the following (amounts in thousands):

Statement of Net Assets
Governmental Activities

Current Noncurrent Total

Salesand use....... $ 855719 $ 243287 $ 1,099,006

Personal income.. 550,864 156,625 707,489

Corporation......... 346,955 728,499 1,075,454

Liquid fuels......... 178,355 - 178,355

Inheritance........... 332,500 113,601 446,101

Cigarette.............. 56,729 - 56,729

Other.....ccocvvenenee 24,400 - 24,400

Total...cocrrreenee $ 2345522 $ 1242012 $ 3,587,534

Fund Financial Statements
General Fund M otor Nonmaj or
Expected to be Collected License Governmental Fiduciary
From Fund Funds Funds
September 1, 2007 Expected to be Expected to be Expected to be
By through After Collected by Collected by Collected by

August 31, 2007  June 30, 2008 June 30, 2008 Total August 31,2007  August 31,2007  August 31, 2007
Salesand use.......... $ 776,044  $ 79675 $ 243287 $ 1,099,006 $ - 8 - $ 24,372
Personal income..... 406,286 144,578 156,625 707,489 -
Corporation............ 47,583 299,372 728,499 1,075,454 - -
Liquid fuels............ - - - 178,355 -
Inheritance.............. 147,919 184,581 113,601 446,101 - -
56,729 - - 56,729 - -
- - - - - 24,400 620
$ 1434561 $ 708206 $ 1242012 $ 3384779 $ 178,355 $ 24,400 $ 24,992

On the governmental funds balance sheet, the General Fund taxes receivable of $1,950,218 expected to be collected after
August 31, 2007 is reported as an unearned revenue liability. The total amount of taxes receivable reported on the
governmental funds balance sheet, $2,345,522 ($2,142,767 reported in the General Fund, $178,355 reported in the Motor
License Fund, and $24,400 reported in nonmgjor governmental funds), expected to be collected from July 1, 2007 through
June 30, 2008 is also reported as current taxes receivable in governmenta activities on the Statement of Net Assets. The
remaining General Fund taxes receivable of $1,242,012 reported on the governmental funds balance sheet expected to be
collected after June 30, 2008 is reported as noncurrent taxes receivable in governmental activities on the Statement of Net
Assets. All of the revenue associated with the taxes receivable reported in governmental activities on the Statement of Net
Assets isreported as tax revenue in governmental activities on the Statement of Activities.

L oans Receivable: Loans receivable at June 30, 2007 consisted of the following (amounts in thousands):

Mortgage 10ans..........cccceeerereeeenennns
Student [0ans........cccevvverereeeenen
Economic development loans...........
Drinking water, storm water and sewer system loans -
Volunteer fire company loans..........
Environmental program loans..........
Other notes and loans............cccc......

Less: allowance for uncollectible amounts................
Loansreceivable, net..........coovveuveeees

Primary Government
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Governmental Bl_:_s;g(;ss
Activities Activities
Special
General Revenue Enterprise Fiduciary  Discretely Presented
Fund Funds Funds Funds Component Units

......................... $ - 3% - $ - % - $ 4,064,001
......................... - - - - 11,528,163
......................... 13,506 19,755 209,984 - 731,987
12,330 - - 1,825,607
......................... - - 110,013 - -
......................... - 12,908 - - -
......................... 110 - - 2,030 4,608
13,616 44,993 319,997 2,030 18,154,366
2,503 5,134 38,070 - 277,768
......................... $ 11113 $ 39,859 $ 281,927 $ 2,030 $ 17,876,598



NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2007

NOTE G - TAXES, LOANSAND LEASE RENTALSRECEIVABLE (continued)

The General Fund reports $5,356 in loans due after June 30, 2008, Specia Revenue funds report $34,893 in loans due after
June 30, 2008 and the Enterprise funds report $233,706 in loans due after June 30, 2008. Discretely presented component units
reported $16,079,816 in loans receivable due after June 30, 2008 (amounts in thousands).

The General Fund reported $11,113 in loans receivable for program objectives, al of which represented governmental
activities lending and of which, $5,356 is due after June 30, 2008. Agency Funds reported $2,030 in loans receivable to
replace underground storage tanks, of which $1,812 is due after June 30, 2008 (amounts in thousands).

Lease Rentals Receivable: The Capital Facilities Fund, a Capital Projects fund, reports expenditure amounts related to
construction projects for educational institutions funded through the issuance of general obligation bonds, the principal and
interest of which are paid through the collection of lease rental payments and deposited in the Capital Debt Fund, a Debt
Service fund. At the conclusion of the lease terms, the project facilities are conveyed to the educational institutions.
Accordingly, these lease arrangements are classified as direct financing leases. Lease rental receivables and associated
deferred revenue equa to the principal |ease payments to be received are recorded in the Capital Debt Fund. At June 30, 2007
the total remaining minimum lease payments to be received were $834, consisting of principal present value of $652 and
interest of $182 (amounts in thousands).

The Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority, a discretely presented component unit, reported a lease rental receivable
with total remaining minimum payments to be received of $15.4 million, consisting of principal present value of $14.5 million
and interest of $.9 million at June 30, 2007.

Minimum |ease payments receivable for the four fiscal years succeeding June 30, 2007 are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ending Primary Discretely Presented
June 30 Government Component Units
2008......ccceererrenene $ 194 $ 6,582
2009.....cccoeireirenn 194 3,517
2010.....ccieirieirn 127 3,517
2011 - 1,759

Except for $194 owed to the primary government and $6,582 owed to discretely presented component units, all amounts
receivable under lease rentals are due after June 30, 2008 (amounts in thousands).

Governmental Funds Unearned Revenue: The General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Debt Service Funds reported
unearned revenue at June 30, 2007. The following chart provides the portion of total unearned revenue which was 1)
unavailable or 2) not yet earned as of June 30, 2007 (amounts in thousands):

General Specia Revenue Debt Service
Unavailable........ccoeeeeveeeeeiieeins $ 1,950,218 $ 24,520 $ 4,031
UNEaAMNEd .......cveeeeeeee e 64,212 211,753 -
Tota unearned revenue............... $ 2,014,430 $ 236,273 $ 4,031
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NOTE H —INTERNAL/INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

Statement of Net Assets

Internal Balances
In the Statement of Net Assets, reported internal balances of ($88,181)/$87,331 for governmental activities/business-type
activities differ by $850 because the State Workers' Insurance Fund, an Enterprise Fund, reports for its fiscal year ended
December 31, 2006.

Fund Financial Statements

Interfund Balances

The composition of governmental and proprietary funds interfund balances reported at June 30, 2007 is as follows, with Mg or
Fund titles in bold. Aggregate nonmajor governmental funds receivables from other funds and from component units,
respectively, amount to $49,149 and $25,570; aggregate nonmajor enterprise funds receivables amount to $2,902 and $6;
aggregate internal service funds receivables amount to $11,125 and $606 (amounts in thousands):

DUE FROM DUETO
FUND TYPE/FUND OTHER COMPONENT OTHER COMPONENT
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT FUNDS UNITS FUNDS UNITS
General FUN.......cooviieinieerereeseee e $ 30378 $ 1198 $ 58,805 $ 2427
Specia Revenue:
Motor License FUNd.........cccoveevineenenncnnesenenes 1,220 - 23,654 6,695
Tobacco Settlement FuNd ... - - 988 -
Gaming FUNQ.........cccoovveve e - - 27 -
State Racing FUNd ........ccoooveieeeeevece e - - 1,791 -
Vocational Rehabilitation Fund.............coovevveeinvennen. - - 3,233 12
Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund...........cccceeveveiieenne 12,150 - 508 -
Agricultural Conservation Easement Purchase Fund 10,243 - - -
Public Transportation Assistance Fund..................... 7,323 - 4 -
Other FUNAS........ccoiiiecece e 214 - 1,150 -
31,150 - 31,355 6,707
Capital Projects:
Capital FacilitiesFund .........ccccvevvevviineinineeceee 11,697 25,570 4 -
K eystone Recreation, Park and Conservation Fund... 7,522 - 8,440 -
19,219 25,570 8444 -
Enterprise:
Unemployment Compensation Fund..................... 3,235 428 10 -
State Lottery FuNd ... - - 301 -
Tuition Payment FUNd..........cccoviveininnieneneee - - 6 -
State SIoresS FUNd........cveeeveeeiee e 29 - 3,429 -
Rehabilitation Center Fund ..........cccccvvveeicciecnecnee, 2,792 - 27 -
Other FUNAS......ccoeieiieice s 81 6 84 -
6,137 434 3,857 -
Internal Service:
Purchasing FUNd..........cccoeveiinininie e 8,610 603 303 -
Manufacturing FUNd..........cccccoevvieneieneeeeeereie s 2,515 3 44 -
11,125 606 347 -
Fiduciary - Pension Trust:
State Employees’ Retirement System .......ccocceveeeeen. 3,836 2,959 270 -
Public School Employees Retirement System........ 2,068 - 5,468 -
Deferred Compensation Fund ............cccecevenecenienne - - 103 -
5,904 2,959 5841 -
Total primary government ..........cccccecceveveneneneennes $ 103,913 $ 30,767 $ 108,649 $ 9134
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NOTE H —INTERNAL/INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

DUE FROM DUETO
DISCRETELY PRESENTED PRIMARY COMPONENT PRIMARY COMPONENT
COMPONENT UNITS GOVERNMENT UNITS GOVERNMENT UNITS
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission..................... $ 7,400 $ - $ - $ -
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority - 51 96,425 30
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency ................ - 30 4 51
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance
AGENCY ..ot - - 136 -
State System of Higher Education......................... 57 - 18,575 -
Patient Safety Trust Authority.........cccceevecvevennenne. 2,255 - 4 -
Commonwealth Financing Authority .................... - - 359 -
Other component UnitS.........coovveeeveeverenceveseneenns - - 35 -
Total component UNitS.........ccceveeeveereereerereeneenn, $ 9,712 $ 81 $ 115538 $ 81

The amount of total reported interfund receivables of $144,473 does not agree with total reported interfund payables of
$233,402 at June 30, 2007 due to different fiscal year ends and reporting differences for certain Funds included in the Fund
Financial Statements at June 30, 2007. The amount reported for the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, a discretely
presented component unit, is reported at its fiscal year ended May 31, 2007; the State Stores Fund, an Enterprise Fund, is
reported at its fiscal year ended June 26, 2007; the amounts reported as interfund balances for the State Employees’ Retirement
System and Deferred Compensation Fund, Pension Trust Funds, the INVEST Program for Local Governments, an Investment
Trust Fund, and the State Workers Insurance Fund, an Enterprise Fund, are reported at their fiscal years ended December
31, 2006. The following presents a reconciliation of interfund balances reported at June 30, 2007 and those amounts that
would have been reported if al Funds reported at the same fiscal year end (amounts in thousands):

Governmental  Proprietary  Fiduciary = Component

Funds Funds Funds Units Total
Due from other funds..........ccccovuueee $ 78781 $ 1629% $ 1987 $ - $ 97,064
Due from pension trust funds.......... 1,966 966 3,917 - 6,849
Due from component units............. 26,768 1,040 2,959 8l 30,848
Due from primary government ....... - - - 9,712 9,712
TOtE v $ 107515 $ 18302 $ 8,863 $ 9,793 $ 144473
Reported Interfund RECEIVADIES ..........ocueieeieecece s $ 144,473
State Employees’ Retirement System decrease in receivables from January 1, 2007 through June 30, 2007 ...... (1,531)
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission decrease in receivables from June 1, 2007 through June 30, 2007............. (749)
Interfund receivables reported as accounts receivable by component Units..........cccovvoreenncnsennnenees 172
Interfund receivables reported as tax receivables by Fiduciary FUNGS...........cocccvireinineisccee e 685
Payroll accrual at June 30, 2007 — receivables attributable to State Employees’ Retirement System................... 6,765
General Fund receivable from Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (full accrual) ........cccoceeveeeee. 96,332
Reconciled Interfund RECEIVADIES ..........ccoiiircirc e $ 246,147
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NOTE H —INTERNAL/INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

Governmental  Proprietary Fiduciary = Component

Funds Funds Funds Units Total
Dueto other funds..........cceevverinene $ 90,751 $ 3,956 $ 852 $ - $ 95559
Dueto pension trust funds.............. 7,853 248 4,989 - 13,090
Due to component units.................. 9,134 - - 81 9,215
Dueto primary government............ - - - 115,538 115,538
TOtal oo $ 107,738 $ 4,204 5841 $ 115619 $ 233,402
Reported INterfund Payables.........ccoceeiieeiiseiisieees et nesaenas $ 233,402
State Employees’ Retirement System increase in payables from January 1, 2007 through June 30, 2007 ........... 2,310
Deferred Compensation Fund decrease in payables from January 1, 2007 through June 30, 2007 ...........c......... (95)
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission increase in payables from June 1, 2007 through June 30, 2007 ................. 178
State Workers' Insurance Fund increase in payables from January 1, 2007 through June 30, 2007 ................ 370
INVEST Program for Local Governments increase in payables from January 1, 2007 through June 30, 2007 ... 22
Interfund payables reported as accounts payable by component units 8,448
Interfund payables reported as accounts payable by Fiduciary Funds 1512
Reconciled Interfund Payables ..........coo et e $ 246,147

Advances — Fund Financial Statements

At June 30, 2007 the General Fund reported Advances to Other Funds of $114,108. Specifically, this amount has been
advanced as follows: $2,300 to the State Workers' Insurance Fund and $85,000 to the State Stores Fund, Enterprise Funds;
$2,175 to the Motor License Fund and $10,333 to the Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund, Specia Revenue Funds; and, $14,300
to the Purchasing Fund, an Internal Service Fund. These amounts have been reported by the respective owing Funds as
Advances from Other Funds, except for the State Workers' Insurance Fund, which reported an advance of $1,820 at its fiscal
year ended December 31, 2006. At June 30, 2007 the Hazardous Sites Cleanup Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, reported an
Advance to Other Funds of $3,000. This amount was advanced to the Small Business First Fund, an Enterprise Fund. All
amounts advanced are expected to be repaid subsequent to June 30, 2008. The Underground Storage Tank Indemnification
Fund, an Agency Fund, reported a $76,500 statutory advance to the General Fund at June 30, 2007. Subsequent to June 30,
2008, $70,500 (amounts in thousands) are expected to be repaid.

Primary Government Transactionswith Discretely Presented Component Units

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 éMay 31, 2007 for PA Turnpike Commission), Commonwealth support reported by
the discretely presented component units is (amounts in thousands):

State System of Higher Education (appropriation, grant, SUBSIAY) .......ccccoveviernncenennas $ 626,511
PA Higher Education Assistance Agency (appropriation, grant, SUDSIdy) ........cc.cecevueneee $ 452,003
PA Turnpike Commission (oil franchise tax, vehicle registration fees) ..........cccveevnueneee $ 95071
Ben Franklin Technology Development Authority (appropriation, grant, subsidy)........ $ 50,200
PA Infrastructure Investment Authority (capital contribution) ..........c.ccoceveveinierecenenns $ 13148

Assigned Investment Income: Certain assigning Funds, as follows, receive but do not financially report investment income
that is assigned to (and reported by) another Fund for legal or contractual reasons. Investment income and related interfund
transfers are reported by those Funds which assign/receive investment income for other than legal/contractual reasons (in
thousands).

Assigning Fund Recelving Fund Reason Amount
Liquor License General L egal/contractual $ 105
Liquid Fuels Tax Motor License L egal/contractual $ 580
Land and Water Devel opment Land and Water Development Sinking Legal/contractua $ 90
Remining Financial Assurance Land and Water Development Sinking Other than legal/contractual $ 196
Fire Insurance Tax State Insurance L egal/contractual $ 2,142

103



NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2007

NOTE H —INTERNAL/INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS (continued)

Transfers

A summary of transfers reported for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 is as follows, with Major Fund titles in bold.
Aggregate nonmajor governmental fund transfers from other funds amounted to $1,263,058 during the fiscal year ended June
30, 2007 and include a $204,000 transfer from the State Lottery Fund to the Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund. Aggregate
nonmajor governmental fund transfers to other funds amount to $170,626. Aggregate nonmajor proprietary fund transfers to
other funds amount to $169,500 (amounts in thousands):

TRANSFERS TRANSFERS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT IN ouT
General FUNG ..o $ 200,564 $ 945,904
Specia Revenue:

Tobacco Settlement FuNd .........ccooeveeeeiiieceecce e - 26,898

Motor LicenSe FUNG .........oooveeiiiiiie et - 45,351

State RaCing FUN .......cooeieieee e - 1,678

Vocational Rehabilitation Fund............cocoooeiiiiiininieieee 38,083 -

Pharmaceutical Assistance FuNnd..........c.ccocoeeverieeiencncnenee, 230,898 -

Community College Capital FUNd..........cccocooeerenniriienenens 42,006 -

Environmental Stewardship Fund ..., - 38,210

Hazardous Sites Cleanup Fund ...........cccovereneniniencneneee, 30,000 -

Gaming FUNG.........ooiiiieiiee s - 125,000

Agricultural Conservation Easement Fund ..........cccceevvevienene 8,210 -

Educational Assistance Program Fund............ccccceeevviereneennn, 8,100 -

Other FUNAS........ooiieieceeeeeeres e 15,207 5,738

372,504 242,875
Debt Service:

Land and Water Development Sinking Fund............ccccooeeeee. 25 -

Water Facilities Loan Redemption Fund............ccccooeiininenene 2,058 -

Capital Delt FUNG ... 862,447 -

Local Criminal Justice Sinking FUNd. ...........coceevrieveienenecienen 918 -

Agricultural Conservation Easement Sinking Fund.................. 1,885 -

Keystone Recreation, Park and Conservation Sinking Fund.... 776 -

Disaster Relief Redemption Fund ...........cccccevvveieececcereseenn, 1,958 -

Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Sinking Fund.............. 506 -

Volunteer Companies Loan Sinking Fund...........ccccceeeveiennnns 616 -

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority
Redemption FUNG..........ccoovviiieeeee e 7,142 -

Growing Greener Bond Sinking Fund............cccoceveeninnicnienns 9,400 -

Water Supply and Wastewater Treatment Sinking Fund ......... 2,823 -

890,554 -
Enterprise:

State Lottery FUNd ........ocevveireeeec e 100,000 204,000

Unemployment Compensation Fund..........ccccoceverereceniennnn - 3,400

State SEOreS FUNC.......c.ovveerieeeeee e - 152,000

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Bank Fund ............ccccocevevevnnnnee, 2,057 -

102,057 359,400
Internal Service:

Manufacturing FUN...........cocovennniee e - 17,500
Total transfers, fund financial statements............cccoceeeveneene. 1,565,679 1,565,679
Less: net elimination of governmental fund transfers........... (1,308,336) (1,308,336)
Total transfers, Statement of ACtiVItieS.......cccveevvieveiiinenns $ 257,343 257,343
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NOTE | - RETIREMENT AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Pension Systems

Commonwealth laws established contributory defined benefit pension plans covering substantially all Commonwealth and
public school employees. Generally, Commonwealth employees are members of the State Employees Retirement System
(SERS) and public school employees are members of the Public School Employees Retirement System (PSERS). Both the
SERS and the PSERS are reported as Pension Trust Funds, Fiduciary funds. Both the SERS and the PSERS issue stand-alone,
audited financial statements, which are available to the public. Written requests for SERS or PSERS financial statements and
other financial statement inquiries should be directed to the following addresses:

State Employees’ Retirement System Public School Employees’ Retirement System
30 North Third Street, Suite 150 Bureau of Communications
Harrisburg, PA 17101-1716 P.O. Box 125

Harrisburg, PA 17108-0125

State Employees Retirement System

Plan Description: The SERS is the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit retirement system
established to provide pension benefits for employees of state government and certain other organizations. At December 31,
2006 there were 108 employer state agencies and other organizations participating in the SERS. The SERS provides
retirement, death, and disability benefits.

Retirement Benefits. Article |1 of the Pennsylvania Constitution provides the General Assembly the authority to establish and
amend benefit provisions. Retirement benefits generally vest after five years of credited service. Employees who retire at age
60 with three years of service, or with 35 years of service if under age 60, are entitled to a normal (unreduced) annual
retirement benefit. Members of the General Assembly and certain employees classified in hazardous duty positions can retire
with full benefits at age 50 with at least three years of service.

Act 2001-9 (Act 9), signed into law on May 17, 2001 established Class AA membership whereby, generally, annua full
retirement benefits for electing active members is 2.5 percent of the member’s highest three-year average salary (final average
salary) multiplied by years of service. State employees hired after June 30, 2001 are Class AA members. Members hired
before May 17, 2001 had the option, but were not required, to elect Class AA membership. Substantially all eligible members
chose the Class AA option. For legidatorsin office on May 17, 2001 Act 9 established Class D-4 membership whereby the
general annual benefit is 3 percent of final average salary for each year of service.

The genera annual benefit for full retirement for Class A members is 2 percent of the member’'s highest three-year salary
multiplied by years of service. State police troopers are entitled to an annual benefit equal to a percentage of their highest
annual salary (excluding their year of retirement). The annual benefit is 75 percent of salary for 25 or more years of service and
50 percent of salary for 20-24 years of service. Judges are entitled to a benefit of 4 percent of final average salary for each of
the first 10 years of service and 3 percent for subsequent years. District Justices are entitled to a benefit of 3 percent of final
average salary for each year of service.

Funding Policy: Commonwealth law determines all member contribution rates. The active plan member contribution rate is 5
percent of covered payroll for most employeesin Class A; for Class AA members, the contribution rate is 6.25 percent. Higher
contributions are required for certain members of the General Assembly and judges and district justices who elect higher
contribution rates. The SERS Board has the authority to establish or amend periodic employer contributions at actuarially
determined rates, expressed as a percentage of annual covered payroll. The employer rate-setting process is intended to
provide employer contributions which, when combined with member contributions and investment returns, are adequate to pay
benefits when due.

Act 9 provided that new benefits arising therefrom were to be funded over a ten-year period, with level dollar funding,
beginning July 1, 2002. Act 9 aso provided that all the existing actuarial assets and liabilities were to be combined and
refinanced over a ten-year period using level dollar funding and future actuarial gains and losses were to be amortized using
ten-year level dollar funding. On December 10, 2003, Governor Rendell signed Act 2003-40 (Act 40) into law. The
significant provisions of the law were to change certain actuarial methods and periods used to amortize actuarial assets and
liabilities.
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NOTE | - RETIREMENT AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Pursuant to Act 40, beginning July 1, 2005, the SERS established employer contribution rates which resulted in total 2005 and
2006 employer contributions which were lower than the minimum annual required contribution as defined by GASB Statement
No. 25. Since the SERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit retirement system and all SERS-required
employer contributions were made, no unfunded pension liability is reported by the Commonwealth as of June 30, 2007.

During each of the three years ended December 31, the annual required employer contributions (amounts in thousands) and the
related percentage of that amount actually contributed are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Y ear ended December 31 Annua Required Contribution Percentage Contributed
2006 $ 548,745 35.6
2005 $ 319,190 46.1
2004 $ 105,229 100.0

At December 31, 2006, the SERS disclosed no long-term contracts for contributions to the plan.

Summary of Significant Accounting Poalicies: The SERS financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting,
whereby expenses are recorded when the liability isincurred, revenues are recorded in the accounting period in which they are
earned and become measurable, and investment purchases and sales are recorded as of the related trade date. Member and
employer contributions are recognized in the period in which employee salaries are reported. Benefits and refunds are
recoghized when due and payabl e in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Investment Valuation: Investments are reported at fair value, which is the amount that the SERS can reasonably expect to
receive for an investment in a current sale between a willing buyer and a willing seller, that is, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The investment in the Commonwealth Treasury short-term investment pool is reported at cost plus allocated
interest, which approximates fair value. Collateral received under the Commonwealth Treasury securities lending program is
reported at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value. United States government obligations, corporate and
foreign bonds and notes, and common and preferred stocks are generally valued based on published market prices and
guotations from national security exchanges and securities pricing services. Securities that are not traded on a national security
exchange are valued by the asset manager or third parties based on similar sales. The System has entered into certain swap
contracts with a notional amount equivalent to the System'’s original investment in the absolute return fund-of-funds and global
macro limited partnerships to provide S& P 500, Russell small/midcap, and Morgan Stanley’ s Europe, Australasia, and Far East
(EAFE) indices returns. The combination of the swaps and the underlying investments result in a return consistent with an
actively managed equity portfolio. Accordingly, those investments have been classified as common stocks and preferred
stocks on the statement of net assets. Real estate is primarily valued based on appraisals performed by independent appraisers
or, for properties not appraised, at the present value of the projected future net income stream.

Alternative investments, which include interests in limited partnerships invested in venture capital, leveraged buyouts, private
equities, and other investments are valued based on estimated fair value amounts established by valuation committees, which
are subject to an annual independent audit. The values for real estate and alternative investments are reported on a one-quarter
lag (September 30), adjusted for cash flows through December 31. Foreign exchange and futures contracts are marked-to-
market daily with changesin fair value recognized as part of investments and investment income. The fair values of swaps are
determined no less than monthly based on the return of the underlying indices, which is generally exchanged for a short-term
rate plus a spread.

The Collective Trust Funds (CTF) consists primarily of domestic and international institutional mutual and index funds. The
funds do not pay interest or dividends to shareholders, and reinvest all income earned on securities held by the fund. The fair
value of CTF is based on the reported share value of the respective fund.

Unsettled investment sales are reported as investment proceeds receivable and unsettled investment purchases are reported as

investment purchases payable. Investment expenses consist of investment managers' fees and those expenses directly related
to the SERS' investment operations.
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Public School Employees' Retirement System

Plan Description: The PSERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit retirement system established to provide
pension and other benefits for public school employee members. At June 30, 2007 there were 739 participating employers,
generaly school districts. The PSERS provides retirement, death, disability and health care benefits. In most cases, retirement
benefits vest after 5 years of credited service. Members are digible for full monthly retirement benefits upon reaching (a) age
62 with at least one year of service, (b) age 60 with 30 or more years of service, or (c) 35 or more years of service regardless of

age.

Act 9 of 2001 provided for members to elect Membership Class T-D and convert from Membership Class T-C effective July 1,
2001. Benefits for full retirement are generally equal to 2 percent (Membership Class T-C) or 2.5 percent (Membership Class
T-D) of the member’s final average salary multiplied by number of years of credited service. The Commonwealth has the
authority to establish or amend benefit provisions.

Funding Policy: The Public School Employees’ Retirement Code provides that the PSERS Board has the authority to establish
or amend periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined rates, expressed as a percentage of annual covered payroll.
The active plan member contribution rates for employees in Membership Class T-C and T-D hired before July 22, 1983 are
5.25 and 6.50 percent of covered payroll, respectively; for employees in Membership Class T-C and T-D hired after July 21,
1983, the rate are 6.25 and 7.50 percent, respectively. Theincreased member contribution rates for Class T-D became effective
January 1, 2002. Commonwealth law determines member contribution rates.

Since 1995, employers defined as school entities (school districts, area vocational-technical schools, and intermediate units) are
required to pay the entire employer contribution. The Commonwealth partially reimburses school entities in accordance with
Act 29 of 1994. The amount of reimbursement is at least one half of the total employer contribution. For employers that are
not school entities, the employer and the Commonwealth pay the employer contribution equally to the PSERS; no
Commonwealth reimbursement occurs.

Act 40 of 2003 amended the actuarial cost method in three areas that affect employer contribution rates. Act 40 changed the
amortization period from 10 years to 30 years for: unfunded liabilities accrued as a result of Act 9 of 2001; outstanding
balances of net actuarial losses during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2001 and 2002; and net gains and losses in future years.
Act 40 continued a 10-year amortization period for unfunded liabilities accrued prior to Act 9 of 2001; any future active
member improvements; and any retiree cost-of-living adjustments. Finally, Act 40 established an employer contribution rate
‘floor’ of 4 percent, exclusive of the premium assistance contribution rate, beginning July 1, 2004.

During each of the three fiscal years ended June 30, the annual required employer contributions (in thousands) and the related
percentage of that amount actually contributed are as follows:

Fiscal year Annual Required Percentage

Ended June 30 Contribution Contributed
2007 $1,708,821 39
2006 $1,328,373 34
2005 $ 945,107 46

At June 30, 2007, the PSERS disclosed that $133,608 of $256,932 (in thousands) of member receivables for purchases of
service credit is due subsequent to June 30, 2008.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: The PSERS financial statements are prepared on the accrua basis of
accounting, whereby expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred, revenues are recorded in the accounting period in
which they are earned and become measurable, and investment purchases and sales are recorded as of the related trade date.
Member and employer contributions are recognized in the period in which employees sdlaries are reported. Benefits and
refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Investment Valuation: Investments are reported at fair value, which is the amount that the PSERS can reasonably expect to
receive for an investment in a current sale between a willing buyer and a willing seller, that is, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. Short-term securities are reported at cost, which approximates fair value, unless they have a published market
price or quotation from national security exchanges or securities pricing services, in which case they are reported at the
published market price. Fixed income securities and common and preferred stocks are generally reported based on published
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market prices and quotations from national security exchanges or securities pricing services. Securities that are not traded on a
national security exchange are valued by the respective fund manager or other third parties based on similar sales. Real estate
is primarily valued based on appraisals performed by independent appraisers or, for properties not appraised, at cost or the
present value of projected future net income.

Alternative investments, which include private equity, private debt, venture capital and equity real estate, are primarily valued
based on amounts established by valuation committees; such amounts include cash flow activity through fiscal year-end.
Futures contracts, foreign exchange contracts, and options are marked-to-market daily; changes in market value are recognized
as part of net appreciation/depreciation in the fair value of investments. Initial margin requirements for such financial
instruments are provided by investment securities pledged as collatera or by cash.

Collective trust fund investments (CTF) consist primarily of domestic and international institutional funds. The funds do not
pay interest or dividends to shareholders and reinvest all income earned on securities held by the fund. The fair value of CTF
is based on the reported share value of the respective fund. CTF are managed by state chartered banks for which various state
banking departments have regulatory oversight and investment advisors for which the Securities and Exchange Commission
has regulatory oversight.

Other Postemployment Benefits

The Commonwealth funds certain health care benefits for retired primary government and certain component unit employees
(that meet specified length-of-service and age requirements) and their eligible dependents. These benefits are provided as a
result of negotiated union contracts and through administrative policy. The Commonwealth recognizes the cost of providing
these benefits as paid, which totaled $580 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. Approximately 101,000 individuals
were covered by these benefits during the fiscal year.

The Commonwealth provides several other postemployment benefits, including disability life insurance and certain benefits to

beneficiaries of state police officerskilled in the line of duty. The amount expended for these benefits was not material during
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.
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Primary Gover nment

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, the Commonwealth did not issue any tax or bond anticipation notes or any other
short-term debt and no short-term debt was repaid. At June 30, 2007 and 2006, no short-term debt was outstanding except for
the current portion of a governmental activities statutory liability for an other financing obligation to the Underground Storage
Tank Indemnification Fund, an Agency Fund, at June 30, 2007 amounting to $6 million, and at June 30, 2006 amounting to
$6.5 million; the noncurrent portion of this statutory liability, also reported as an other financing obligation, amounted to $70.5
million at June 30, 2007 and amounted to $76 million at June 30, 2006.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), a discretely presented component unit, has reported
$9,089,176 of demand revenue bonds outstanding and $2,695,748 of notes payable and other obligations, consisting of student
loan financing of $960,919, student loan floating rate notes of $1,547,106, capital financing of $74,467, term financings of
$69,930 and lines of credit of $44,000, net of unamortized discount of $674 at June 30, 2007 as follows (amounts in
thousands):

Balance Balance
June 30, 2006 Additions Reductions  June 30, 2007

Student loan demand revenue bonds due
2017-2047, at weighted average interest

rates of 4.91 and 4.86 percent at

June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively................. $ 7774900 $ 1325000 $ - $ 9,099,900

Less. deferred amount on current refundings

of student loan demand revenue bonds............... 11,524 - 800 10,724

Total demand revenue bonds payable................. $ 7763376 $ 1325000 $ 800 $ 9,089,176
Notes payable:

Student loan financings, due on demand
at weighted-average interest rates of 5.67
percent at June 30, 2007..........c.vuvieieiiininannen. $ 857919 $ 313,000 $ 210,000 $ 960,919

Student loan floating rate notes, due

2017-2043 at weighted average interest

rates of 5.45 and 5.19 percent at June 30,

2007 and 2006, respectively..........cccovveeeennnn.. 379,341 1,250,000 82,235 1,547,106

Total notespayable..............ccceviiiiiiiiiiiin. $ 1237260 $ 1563000 $ 292235 $ 2,508,025

Capital and other financing obligations:
Capital financings, due 2008-2017, at
weighted average interest rates of 5.98
and 6.13 percent at June 30, 2007 and
2006, respeCtiVElY.......c.ovviiviiiiiiiiie e e $ 67,765 $ 9,004 $ 2302 % 74,467

Term financings, due 2008-2031, at weighted
average interest rates of 5.09 and 5.10 percent
at June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.............. 71,999 - 2,069 69,930

Lines of credit, due 2012, at weighted
average interest rate of 6.32 percent

atdunNe 30, 2007......c.o it 49,900 119,000 124,900 44,000
SUBbtOtal. ... 189,664 128,004 129,271 188,397
Less: unamortized discount..........c.covvvininnnes, 747 - 73 674
Total capital and other financing obligations...... $ 188,917 $ 128004 $ 129,198 $ 187,723

109



NOTESTO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS June 30, 2007

NOTE J- NOTESAND DEMAND REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE (continued)

The note and bond indentures, among other things, require the PHEAA to comply with various covenants including minimum
parity levels as defined, student loan and investment yields, and program expenses. The demand bonds payable are subject to
purchase, at par plus accrued interest, by the PHEAA on demand of the bondholders upon seven days prior irrevocable written
notice. Under the irrevocable letters of credit, the trustee is entitled to draw an amount sufficient to pay the purchase price of
the bonds delivered to it. The letters of credit are valid from 2007 through 2015. The PHEAA is required to pay annual
commitment fees ranging from 10 to 30 basis points on the stated amount of the letter of credit coverage. At June 30, 2007
total letter of credit coverage was $1.8 hillion.

All student loan demand revenue bonds payable and financing notes payable are collateralized by student loans and
investments. At June 30, 2007, $11.6 hillion of debt was collateralized by $11.6 billion of student loan principal and related
interest receivable and $329.3 million of investments and related interest receivable. Capital financings are collateralized with
capital assets. Amounts due under other lines of credit are generally unsecured. At June 30, 2007 the PHEAA had $399.1
million of available credit under student loan financing arrangements, $2.7 million available credit under capital financings,
and $106.0 million available under other lines of credit.

Debt service requirements subsequent to June 30, 2007, based upon stated maturities of bonds payable, notes payable and other
financing obligations are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Student L oan Bonds and Notes Other Financing Obligations
Year of
Maturity Principal Inter est Principal I nter est
2008.......ccociiiiiiiiiins $ 960,919 $ 549457 $ 4849 $ 10,669
2009......coiiiiiiiis - 531,247 4,997 10,407
2010....cciiiiiiiiis - 531,247 4,954 10,141
2011, - 531,247 64,691 7,854
2012, - 531,247 47,225 4,988
201317 398,313 2,644,285 12,156 14,165
2018-22.......ccceiin 891,208 2,452,628 13,970 10,865
202327, 674,500 2,307,573 17,820 6,831
2028-32.......ccciiiinn, 425,000 2,167,348 17,735 1,822
203337, 1,219,485 2,079,252 - -
2038-42.......cccciiinnn, 1,306,000 1,700,841 - -
204347 5,732,500 933,446 - -
Total.......coiiiin $ 11,607,925 $16,959,818 $ 188,397 $ 77,742

Reported as:

Demand revenue bonds payable.................. $ 9,089,176 -

Add: Deferred amount on current refundings... 10724 -

Total principal owed on

demand revenue bonds payable................... 9,099,900 -

Notes payable - current.......................... 960,919 -

Notes payable - noncurrent........................ 1,547,106 -

Other financing obligations, current ............. - 4,849

Other financing obligations, noncurrent.. ....... - 182,874

Add: Unamortized discount....................... - 674

Total principal. ....coovvviiiiii $ 11,607,925 $ 188,397

The PHEAA has $11.6 hillion of student loan bonds and notes that are variable-rate debt, of which $1.7 billion resets based
upon auctions every seven days, $6.7 billion resets based upon auctions every 28 days, $791.0 million resets based upon
auctions every 35 days, $698.9 million isindexed to 91-day U.S. Treasury hills, $1.6 hillion is indexed to the 3-month LIBOR
and the remaining $112.0 million is indexed to the 1-month LIBOR. PHEAA notes and bonds payable, as well as all other
debt, are limited obligations of the PHEAA. The PHEAA has no taxing power, and the Commonwealth is not obligated to pay
the principal, redemption price, if any, or interest on any of the PHEAA’ s debt.

Additionally, at June 30, 2007, the Philadelphia Regiona Port Authority reported current and non-current notes payable,
respectively, of $382 and $2,408; component unit organizations of the State System of Higher Education reported non-current
notes payable of $69,518; and the Philadel phia Shipyard Development Corporation (PSDC) reported non-current notes payable
of $24,432 at its December 31, 2006 year end. Therefore, total reported notes payable — current and non-current for all
discretely presented component units totaled $961,301 and $1,643,464 (amounts in thousands) at June 30, 2007 (December 31,
2006 for the PSDC).
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Long-term obligations of the Commonwealth’s governmental activities at June 30, 2007 and changes for the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2007 are as follows (amounts in thousands):
Maturity Bonds
Issue Interest Dates Authorized Balance Balance
GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONSDates Rates Through But Unissued July 1, 2006 Additions  Reductions June 30, 2007
General Obligation Bonds Payable From
Tax Revenues:

Capital Facilities........cocovveeeerrreees 1992-07 3.50-6.25% 2027 $ 56,292,355 $ 3,861,505 $ 898000 $ 501,410 $ 4,258,095
Disaster Reli€f .....ccoveeuveene ... 2000-01 5.00-6.00% 2014 105,908 8,070 - 1,565 6,505
Land and Water Development..... e 1992 6.00-6.25% 2012 300 1,440 - 170 1,270
Nursing Home L oan Development......... - - - 31,000 - - - -
Volunteer CompaniesLoan.................... 1992-98 5.00-6.25% 2012 50,000 1,415 - 545 870
Vietnam Conflict Veterans
ComPENSALioN .........cueueenererereieeresenieees - - - 3,000 - - - -
Water FacilitiesLoan ........cooveeereeerrenee 1992 6.00-6.25% 2012 11,500 10,735 - 1,440 9,295
Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization 1992 6.00-6.25% 2012 14,000 2,880 - 340 2,540
Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment AUthOFItY ........cceveerrerieennes 1992-07 3.50-6.25% 2027 152,000 67,325 65,000 4,475 127,850
Agricultural Conservation Easement
PUrChase.........ocoeeennnnreces 1992-98 4.50-6.25% 2013 - 10,135 - 1,905 8,230
Local Criminal JUSLiCe.......c.oeevreiveirennnne 1997-06 4.00-5.25% 2026 4,500 6,470 - 985 5,485
Keystone Recreation, Park and
CONSENVALION ... 1997-98 5.00% 2008 - 1,650 - 700 950
Water Supply and Wastewater
TreamMeNt .....cceeeeeereceereereseee e 2005-07 3.50-5.50% 2027 117,000 50,000 83,000 560 132,440
Growing Greener ........ccceeeeueerererenereneens 2005-06 4.10-5.50% 2027 415,000 183,000 27,000 1,410 208,590
Persian Gulf Conflict Veterans
CompPeNSatioN........cccouvvveereererereneenens - - - 20,000 - - - -
Refunding Bonds 1992-06 3.00-6.40% 2021 - 3,090,344 247,319 245,503 3,092,160
Total prinCipal ........ccceverrnnnenieees 57,216,563 7,294,969 1,320,319 761,008 7,854,280
Unamortized premium on bondsissued. - 530,984 60,642 31,447 560,179
Unamortized deferred net refunded loss - (168,279) (14,771) (14,264) (168,786)
Total genera obligation bonds payable 57,216,563 7,657,674 1,366,190 778,191 8,245,673
Other General Long-Term Obligations
Payable From Tax and Other Revenues:
Installment Purchase Obligations........... - - - - 2,571 1,439 - 4,010
Capital Lease Obligations - - - - 39,487 297 3,145 36,639
Sdlf-Insurance—Note M * ... - - - - 736,372 557,836 533,981 760,227
Compensated Absences™* .........ccovnunne - - - - 730,772 441,257 479,204 692,825
Other ..o - - - - 960,265 77,870 324,248 713,887
Subtotal .......cceeeeeieieie - 2,469,467 1,078,699 1,340,578 2,207,588
TOTAL GENERAL LON
TERM OBLIGATIONS.....ooovvviiiie. $ 57,216,563  $10,127,141 $2444889 $ 2118769 $10,453,261

* The estimated current portion of self-insurance and compensated absence liabilities, respectively, is $154,816 and $117,313.

Revenue bond obligations of discretely presented component units at June 30, 2007 (May 31, 2007 for the Pennsylvania
Turnpike Commission (PTC)) and changes for the fiscal year then ended are as follows (amounts in thousands):

Maturity Bonds PTC
Issue  Interest Dates Authorized Balance  Reporting Balance
REVENUE BONDSPAYABLE Dates Rates Through But Unissued July1,2006 Change Additions Reductions June 30, 2007
Philadelphia Regional Port Authority 2003 5.19% 2020 $ 45900 $ - $ - $ 2000 $ 43900
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency Various Various 2038 3,446,835 - 929,534 365,694 4,010,675
Pennsylvania Industrial Development
AULNOTITY ..o 1994-04  4.00-6.00% 2021 453,805 - - 28,040 425,765
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission ....1998-06  Various 2041 2,410,610 - 594,540 296,400 2,708,750
Commonwealth Financing Authority ...2005-06 4.50-5.60% 2026 375,000 - 187,500 10,280 552,220
Pennsylvania Infrastructure | nvestment
AULNOTITY .. 1998-05 2.00-5.00% 2014 $ 75,815 - - 14,775 61,040
6,807,965 - 1,711,574 717,189 7,802,350
Less: Bond discounts..........ccccevnnee. - - - (8,913) - (2,376) (1,659) (9,630)
Add: Bond premiums - - - 56,163 - 17,667 5,526 68,304
Less: Deferred net refunded loss...... - - - (30,221) (66,204) (13,278) (9,096) (100,607)
TOTAL REVENUE BONDSPAYABLE ..o $ 6,824,994 ($66,204) $1,713,587 $ 711,960 $ 7,760,417
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Additionally, the Port of Pittsburgh Commission and component unit organizations of the State System of Higher Education
reported $2,000 and $517,740, respectively, of revenue bonds payable at June 30, 2007. Total reported current and noncurrent
component unit revenue bonds were $282,788 and $7,997,369, respectively, at June 30, 2007 (May 31, 2007 for the PTC)
(amounts in thousands).

Primary Gover nment

The Commonwealth has pledged its full faith and credit for the payment of principal and interest on its general obligation
bonds. Typically only the General Fund and the Motor License Fund transfer amounts to Debt Service funds for genera
obligation bond principal and interest payments. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, respectively, these two Funds
transferred $820,585 and $41,862 to the Capital Debt Fund, which reported $850,648 (nearly 97 percent) of total Debt Service
funds principal and interest expenditures of $879,631 (amounts in thousands). Typically, except for Catastrophic Loss
Benefits Claims, which are funded by motorist violation fines, general long-term obligations other than general obligation
bonds are funded by the General Fund and/or the Motor License Fund. In specific, limited instances, a variety of individual
Funds will fund some obligations; such instances include capital assets being procured using long-term vendor or other
financing; where employees earn compensated absences; or where self-insurance claims originate.

The total “Additions” of $1,366,190 for General Obligations Bonds Payable at June 30, 2007 consists of total bond and
refunding bond proceeds of $1,130,420 and $253,892, respectively, for Governmental Funds (including premium of $60,642),
less net principal accretion on maturing debt for capital appreciation bonds of $3,351 less deferred net refunded loss of $14,771
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. As part of the tota “Additions’ the total principal of $1,320,319 for Generd
Obligations Bonds Payable consists of bonds issued of $1,073,000 and refunding bonds issued of $250,670, less net principal
accretion on capital appreciation bonds of $3,351. In December 2006 and May 2007, $50,000 and $15,000, respectively, of
bonds issued were distributed to the PA Infrastructure Investment Authority, a discretely presented component unit.

The total “Reductions’ of $778,191 for General Obligations Bonds Payable from Tax Revenues at June 30, 2007 consists of
total principal of $761,008, plus $31,447 of bond premium that was amortized and credited to bond interest expense in the
Statement of Activities (unamortized premium in the Statement of Net Assets at June 30, 2007 is $560,179), less $14,264 of
deferred net refunded loss that was amortized and charged to bond interest expense in the Statement of Activities (unamortized
deferred net refunded lossin the Statement of Net Assets at June 30, 2007 is $168,786) (amounts in thousands):

Additions Reductions
Bonds/refunding bondsissued............cccceveveeieiciencseecene, $1,323,670 $ 761,008
Net principal @CCretion..........cceveveriere s (3,351) -
Total PrinCiPal ...cceeeeeerere e 1,320,319 761,008
Unamortized premium on bonds/refunding bonds issued.......... 60,642 31,447
Unamortized deferred net refunded [0Ss........ccovevveieciecieeneee, (14,771) (14,264)
Changesin general obligation bonds payable....................... $1,366,190 $ (78,191

The Commonwealth uses fiscal agents to process payments for the servicing of certain bond issues. Additional cash with fiscal
agentsis held by the Federal government for unemployment compensation claims.

The balance outstanding at June 30, 2007 for general obligation refunding bonds includes $8 million of accreted value for
capital appreciation bonds. No principal or interest is payable on the capital appreciation bonds until maturity.

Included in “Other” for Other General Long-Term Obligations payable from workers compensation assessments, investment
income and/or General Fund tax revenues are the following at June 30, 2007 (amounts in thousands):

Workers' Compensation Security Trust Claims..........ccccccvevnee. $ 563,855
Catastrophic Loss Benefits Claims..........ccoeeveniienenenicncnenne 100,482
Public Utility Realty Tax Act (PURTA) .....ccooveireirerecreeeenns 30,000
Litigation—NOtE N .....ccceiiieiiiieeeeeeere e 17,397
Restricted RECEIPLS .....coveiviieeeieererie e e 2,153
1o, | TS $ 713,887
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The Workers Compensation Security Trust Fund provides for payment of valid claims under the Workers' Compensation Law
to individuals whose employers are insured by insolvent insurance carriers. The Catastrophic Loss Benefits Trust Fund
provides specific benefits to qualifying claimants who sustained severe injuries in motor vehicle accidents. The PURTA
provides for a tax on utility realty property whereby amounts received during the fiscal year are used as a Genera Fund
revenue source. The Act also provides for payment of a mgjority of the PURTA revenues as a distribution to local taxing
authorities during the following fiscal year (normally in October). Such payments are appropriated for expenditure in the
following fiscal year and are, therefore, not expendable during the fiscal year the related revenue is received. The other
amounts included in General Long-Term Obligations at June 30, 2007 relating to Workers Compensation Claims,
Catastrophic Loss Benefits Claims, and Litigation are not payable with currently expendable available financial resources.

The Commonwealth’s constitutional debt limit, which allows for the incurrence of debt to be used for capital projects without
electorate approval as specificaly itemized in a capital budget, was $51.3 billion as of August 31, 2007, with net debt
outstanding of $6.8 billion.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), the
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority, the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC) and the Pennsylvania
Infrastructure Investment Authority, discretely presented component units, have pledged substantially all of their revenues for
the redemption of revenue bonds outstanding. Revenue bonds outstanding as reported in this note disclosure for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007 (May 31, 2007 for the PTC) include unamortized bond discount, unamortized bond premium, and
deferred net refunded losses of $9.6 million, $68.3 million, and $100.6 million, respectively.

The following table presents annual principal and interest payments for long-term debt outstanding for the primary government

and discretely presented component units at June 30, 2007 (May 31, 2007 for the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission)
(amounts in thousands):

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013-17 2018-22
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS:
Capital Facilities........ccoovererrenicrennns $ 526183 $ 517470 $ 500456 $ 480,367 $ 425885 $ 1,519,871 $ 1,183,611
Disaster Reli€f ........cooevennienne 1,876 1,794 1,708 1,622 178 334 -
Land and Water Development 253 251 255 257 253 253 -
Nursing Home L oan Development......... - - - - - - -
Volunteer CompaniesLoan.................... 403 239 86 82 82 83
Vietnam Conflict Veterans
CompPENSatioN .........c.oveeerererereerenrererennns - - - - - -
Water FacilitiesLoan .......c.cooveervereeenne. 1,860 1,858 1,856 1,852 1,850 1,846 -
Pennsylvania Economic Revitaization.. 510 507 509 503 505 505 -
Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment AUthOrity ........c.cccveerrennecnnes 12,128 12,172 11,780 11,404 11,285 47,531 45,254
Agricultural Conservation Easement
PUrChase.......coveveeerneereeseereeee 1,830 1,785 1,739 1,250 1,226 1,715 -
Local Criminal JustiCe........c.cccvunruerrennne 920 892 619 505 503 1,759 1,389
Keystone Recreation, Park and
COoNSENVALiON......covrvereiirccie e 741 256 - - - -
Water Supply and Wastewater
Treatment.....cccvveeeneeeeereereseeeeeee 8,046 10,346 10,345 10,363 10,355 51,807 51,989
Growing Greener 16,585 16,601 16,586 16,584 16,583 82,834 82,880
Refunding Bonds 375,014 367,940 350,206 349,786 377,682 1,535,769 775,920
Total Principal and Interest ................. 946,349 932,111 896,145 874,575 846,387 3,244,307 2,141,043
Less: Interest Payments...........coeeerne. 386,948 354,213 324,615 294,626 264,756 921,597 432,083
Total general obligation bonds............ 559,401 577,898 571,530 579,949 581,631 2,322,710 1,708,960
Other General Long-Term Obligations.. 363,062 94,071 95,546 91,673 78,392 522,923 537,126
TOTAL GENERAL LONG-
TERM OBLIGATIONS ..o $ 922463 $ 671,969 $ 667,076 $ 671622 $ 660,023 $ 2,845,633 $ 2,246,086

The portion of Total General Long-Term Obligations principal due by June 30, 2008 amounts to $922,463 (in thousands).
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PRIMARY GOVERNMENT (continued)

2023-27 2028-32 2033-37 2038-42 2043-47 Total
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS:
Capital Facilities........coocveveeieinines $ 862760 $ 22507 $ - $ - $ - $ 6,039,110
Disaster Reli€f ........ccovvenneenecninienne - - - - - 7,512
Land and Water Development................ - - - - - 1,522
Nursing Home Loan Development......... - - - - - -
Volunteer CompaniesLoan................... - - - - - 975
Vietnam Conflict Veterans
COoMPENSALION ... - - - - - -
Water FacilitiesLoan ..o - - - - - 11,122
Pennsylvania Economic Revitdlization.. - - - - - 3,039
Pennsylvania Infrastructure
Investment AULhOTitY ........cocevrerereennes 41,796 1,185 - - - 194,535
Agricultural Conservation Easement
PUrChase.........cccocminnieieccccceee - - - - - 9,545
Local Criminal Justice...........cccovuveininne 812 - - - - 7,399
Keystone Recreation, Park and
CONSEIVALION....c..cveiicrieiee e - - - - - 997
Water Supply and Wastewater Treatment 50,937 5,373 - - - 209,561
Growing Greener ..........coeeeeeeeerererereneenes 79,478 - - - - 328,131
Refunding Bonds...........ccveeeieeinnininnne - - - - - 4,132,317
Total Principa and Interest ................. 1,035,783 29,065 - - - 10,945,765
Less: Interest Payments.......... 111,979 670 - - - 3,091,487
Total general obligation bonds 923,804 28,395 - - - 7,854,278
Other General Long-Term Obligations.. 424,796 - - - - 2,207,589
TOTAL GENERAL LONG-
TERM OBLIGATIONS ... $ 1348600 $ 28395 $ - $ - $ - $10,061,867

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013-17 2018-22

Philadelphia Regional Port Authority ... $ 4428 $ 4406 $ 4391 $ 4456 $ 4427 $ 22,100 $ 17,631
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency . 342,893 281,881 294,049 279,201 273,225 1,286,953 1,226,877
Pennsylvania Industrial Development

AU oo 54,262 56,635 64,843 50,331 45,174 187,660 110,158
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission...... 173,098 185,444 185,746 186,034 186,087 933,496 820,820
Commonwealth Financing Authority ..... 47,038 47,042 47,043 47,048 47,045 235,262 235,313
Pennsylvania I nfrastructure Investment

AU ..o 15,672 14,687 13,607 9,991 7,054 7,940 -
Total Principal and Interest ................... 637,391 590,095 609,679 577,061 563,012 2,673,411 2,410,799
Less: Interest Payments...........covevevienceee 354,603 342,475 330,767 318,660 306,880 1,345,681 1,026,012

TOTAL REVENUE BONDS.........ccooevnee. $ 282788 $ 247620 $ 278912 $ 258401 $ 256,132 $1,327,730 $ 1,384,787
2023-27 2028-32 2033-37 2038-42 Total

Philadelphia Regional Port Authority ....  $ - $ - 3 - 8 - $ 61,839
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency 1,142,944 1,002,011 679,724 23,944 6,833,702
Pennsylvania Industrial Development

AULNOTTY oo - - - - 569,063
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission...... 799,797 667,881 377,661 130,488 4,646,552
Commonwealth Financing Authority..... 172,582 - - - 878,373
Pennsylvania I nfrastructure Investment

AUhONILY ... - - - - 68,951

Total Principal and Interest 2,115,323 1,669,892 1,057,385 154,432 13,058,480
Less: Interest Payments..........ocoveveeveneee 703,864 392,611 122,505 12,072 5,256,130

TOTAL REVENUE BONDS........cccoevne. $ 1411459 $ 1277281 $ 934880 $ 142,360 _$7,802,350

Additionally, the Port of Pittsburgh Commission and component unit organizations of the State System of Higher Education
reported $2,000 and $517,740, respectively, of revenue bonds payable at June 30, 2007.
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NOTE K —GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS—
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIESAND COMPONENT UNITS (continued)

The Commonwealth has entered into certain agreements to lease various facilities and equipment. Such agreements are in-
substance purchases (capital leases) and are reported as Capital Lease Obligations. In addition, the Commonwealth also makes
purchases using installment purchase arrangements. The following is a schedule by fiscal year of future minimum payments
under capital leases and installment purchase obligations, together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments
as of June 30, 2007 (amounts in thousands):

Primary Government Discretely Presented
Component Unit
State System
Capital I nstallment of
Lease Purchase Higher
Obligations Obligations Education
Fiscal year ending June 30
$ 6675 $ 1,008 $ 57,633
6,585 927 56,551
6,348 833 55,547
6,224 698 52,802
6,195 507 47,121
24,781 1,258 256,768
- - 217,198
- - 122,125
Total minimum lease payments..........ccceeeveevreeeenne. 56,808 5,231 865,745
Less: amount representing estimated
executory cost included in
MiNimMum |ease Payments..........coceererereeeenerenes 7,291 -
Net minimum lease payments and
Installment purchases..........c.cooeeennnsccieneene 49,517 5,231 865,745
Less: amount representing interest ... 12,879 1,221 263,445
Total Capital Lease and
Installment Purchase Obligations............ccccocvenne. $ 36,638 $ 4,010 $ 602,300

At June 30, 2007 genera capita assets included $89.7 million of buildings and $8.9 million of equipment being procured by
capital leases. A total of $16.6 million in genera capital assets is being procured by vendor-financed installment purchase
arrangements.

Capital lease obligations outstanding as of June 30, 2007 reported by the State System of Higher Education (SSHE), a
discretely presented component unit, relate to various capital projects currently under construction for which a related public
financing authority is the lessor. Revenue bonds were issued by the public financing authority to provide funding for these
capital projects. SSHE capital assets include $159.0 million of construction in progress related to capital leases at June 30,
2007.

Conduit Debt

The State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA), a discretely presented component unit, finances construction and
improvement projects for public schools through the issuance of tax-exempt instruments (bonds, notes or other obligations) for
the purpose of making lower cost tax-exempt financing available to school districts and community colleges. The debt
instruments issued by the SPSBA represent limited obligations payable solely from lease/loan payments made by the
borrowing institutions and related assets held by trustees. At June 30, 2007 the SPSBA has $1.77 hillion of debt outstanding.
Neither the SPSBA nor the Commonwealth has any obligation for this debt. Therefore, neither the financed assets nor the
bonds are included in the accompanying financial statements.

The Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority (PHEFA), a discretely presented component unit, finances projects
through the issuance of tax-exempt instruments (bonds, notes or other obligations) to provide a source of tax-exempt financing
for colleges and universities. The debt instruments issued by the PHEFA represent limited obligations payable solely from
payments made by the related borrowing institutions and related assets held by the trustees. At June 30, 2007 the PHEFA has
$5.36 hillion of debt outstanding. Neither the PHEFA nor the Commonwealth has any obligation for this debt. Therefore,
neither the financed assets nor the bonds are included in the accompanying financia statements.

The Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority (PEDFA) finances projects on behalf of local industrial and
commercia development authorities to promote economic growth within the Commonwealth. Revenue bonds issued by the
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NOTE K —GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS—
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIESAND COMPONENT UNITS (continued)

PEDFA represent limited obligations payable solely from Authority financed project revenues. At June 30, 2007 the PEDFA
had $1.62 hillion of debt outstanding. Neither PEDFA nor the Commonwealth has any obligation for this debt. Therefore,
neither the financed assets nor the bonds are included in the accompanying financial statements.

The Pennsylvania Energy Development Authority (PEDA) finances projects related to energy conservation and research. Fees
are assessed to recover related processing and application costs incurred. The bonds issued by the Authority represent limited
obligations payable solely from payments made by the borrowing entities. The majority of the bonds are secured by the
property financed. Upon repayment of a bond, ownership of acquired property transfers from the trustees to the entity served
by the bond issuance. The PEDA had $51.6 million in revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 2007. The Commonwealth has no
obligation for this debt. Accordingly, neither the financed assets nor the bonds are included in the accompanying financial
Statements.
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NOTE L - REFUNDED DEBT

Primary Gover nment

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 the Commonwealth issued $250.7 million in genera obligation bonds, First
Refunding Series of 2006, with average interest rate of 4.06 percent to advance refund $239.2 million of previoudly issued
general obligation bonds with average interest rate of 5.01 percent. The refunding bond proceeds of $253.9 million (including
bond premium of $3.3 million) after payment of underwriting fees, insurance and other issuance costs, were deposited in an
irrevocable trust to provide for al future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. As a result, the bonds refunded are
considered to be defeased and have been removed from the Commonwealth’s financial statements. The Commonwealth
refunded its previously issued bonds to reduce debt service payable on its genera obligation bonds by $14 million and to
obtain an economic gain of $11.7 million.

In prior years, the Commonwealth defeased certain general obligation bonds by placing the proceeds of refunding bonds in
irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. At June 30, 2007, $1,631.53 million
of general obligation bonds outstanding that were previously accounted for in the Commonwealth’s financial statements were
defeased through advance refundings.

Discretely Presented Component Units

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, in current refundings, the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA)
redeemed prior to maturity $231.1 million of certain Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds. A deferred loss of $1.2 million
and an economic gain of $6.2 million resulted from the refundings. The PHFA reduced its aggregate debt service payment as a
result of these transactions by atotal of $12.5 million over the next 30 years.

Also, in early extinguishments, the PHFA redeemed prior to maturity $35.2 million of certain Revenue Bonds resulting in
current year expense of $280 thousand.

In prior years, the PHFA defeased Multifamily Residential Development Bonds, Issues H and M. At June 30, 2007, $3.7
million of bonds outstanding that were previously accounted for in the financial statements of the PHFA have been defeased
through advance refundings.

In November 2006, the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission issued Series A and B Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue
Refunding Bonds in the total amount of $240.7 million to partially defease Series A and B of the 1998 and Series A and B of
the 2003 Qil Company Franchise Revenue Bonds. A deferred loss of $12.1 million resulted from this advance refunding and
resulted in an economic gain of $7.3 million. Total debt service payments will be reduced by $22.7 million over the next 26
years.

At May 31, 2007, $1,085.5 million of bonds outstanding that were previously accounted for in the financial statements of the
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission have been defeased through refundings.

At June 30, 2007, $38.6 million of bonds that were previously accounted for in the financial statements of the Pennsylvania
Infrastructure Investment Authority have been defeased through refundings.
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NOTEM —SELF-INSURANCE

The Commonwealth is self-insured for statutory workers' compensation, which includes indemnity and medica benefits
(employee disability), for its employees injured on the job. The Commonweath is aso self-insured for annuitant
medical/hospital claims and for tort liability claims. Major tort risks include automobile, employee and genera torts. For
property losses, the Commonwealth has $1 million retention with excess commercia insurance coverage up to $250 million
per occurrence ($350 million, as of September 19, 2007.) The Commonwealth is also self-insured for claims against the
Department of Transportation (transportation claims). The Commonwealth has established various administrative policies that
are intended to avoid or limit the aforementioned risks. Accrued liabilities for statutory workers' compensation and annuitant
medical/hospital claims are established based on reserves computed from the Commonwealth’s claim experience; such claims
are not discounted and do not include non-incremental claims adjustment expenses.

There were no reductions in commercial insurance coverage during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. No settlements
exceeded commercial insurance coverage during any of the past three fiscal years.

Accrued liabilities for tort and transportation claims are established based on reserves computed from the Commonwealth’s
claim experience; such claims are not discounted and do not include non-incremental claims adjustment expenses. These
liabilities include liabilities for allocated claim adjustment expenditures/expenses and include salvage and subrogation.
Salvage and subrogation were not material for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. No accrued liability has been reported for
property losses.

At June 30, 2007, none of the accrued liabilities for governmental activities were payable from current expendable available
financial resources. It is anticipated that the General Fund and the Motor License Fund, respectively, will fund
governmental activities liabilities of $505,646 and $236,425. Business-type activities liabilities are primarily owed by the
State Lottery Fund ($1,278), the State Workers' Insurance Fund ($1,661) and the State Stores Fund ($18,698), all
Enterprise Funds. All accrued self-insurance liabilities at June 30, 2007 are summarized as follows (amounts in thousands):

Governmental Activities Business Type Activities Fiduciary Fund Types

ICurrent Non-current! ICurrent Non-current! Current Non-current!

Employee disahility.............. $ 82,691 $ 327,026 $ 4,610 $ 18,233 $ 70 $ 275
Annuitant medical/hospital .. 48,025 - - - - -
Automobiletort.................... 3,650 20,928 - - - -
Employeetort........c.cccveneee. 4,200 51,674 - - - -
General tort .......cccoeeeveeeeenne. 1,250 42,110 - - - -
Transportation...........cccceeeeee. 15,000 163,673 - - - -
TotalS...coooeveeeeee e 154,816 $ 605411 $ 4610 $ 18,233 $ 70 $ 275

The following summary provides aggregated information on June 30, 2006 reported self-insurance liabilities; incurred claims
and payments during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 and reported self-insurance liabilities at June 30, 2007 (amounts in
thousands):

June 30, Incurred June 30,
2006 Claims Payments 2007

Liability ! Current Prior I Current Prior ! Liability

Employee disahility.............. $417721 $ 62,735 $ 23947 $ 9848 $ 61,650 $ 432,905
Annuitant medical/hospital .. 43,574 445,830 - 397,805 43,574 48,025
Automobiletort.................... 18,035 5,796 3,317 1,043 1,527 24,578
Employeetort.........cccvvneee. 34,440 9,818 17,082 20 5,446 55,874
Genera tort .....ccoccveeevveenee, 41,360 6,356 (3,380) 29 947 43,360
Transportation ...........ccceen... 202,892 31,604 (45,268) 407 10,148 178,673
TotalS...covceeceeeececeeins $ 758,022 $562,139 $ (4,302) $409,152 $123292 $ 783,415
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NOTE M — SELF-INSURANCE (continued)

The following summary provides aggregated information on June 30, 2005 self-insurance liabilities; incurred claims and
payments during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006 and reported self-insurance liabilities at June 30, 2006 (amounts in
thousands):

June 30, Incurred June 30,
2005 Claims Payments 2006

Liability | Current Prior | | Current Prior | Liability
Employee disahility.............. $ 399689 $ 67425 $ 36895 $ 10629 $ 75659 $ 417,721
Annuitant medical/hospital .. 34,497 410,558 - 366,984 34,497 43,574
Automobiletort.................... 20,581 3,919 (4,091) 1,001 1,373 18,035
Employeetort.......cccoeueenne. 31,038 1,835 5,687 - 4,120 34,440
Genera tort .......ccceveeeeeeeennee. 42,464 8,310 (8,707) 66 641 41,360
Transportation..........c..ee..... 310,398 52,361 (147,823) 416 11,628 202,892

TOtalS. e $ 838,667 $544408 $(118,039) $379,096 $127918 $ 758,022
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NOTEN-COMMITMENTSAND CONTINGENCIES

Construction and Other Commitments: At June 30, 2007, the Department of Transportation and at May 31, 2007, the
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, a discretely presented component unit, had contractual commitments of approximately
$2,174 million and $1,066 million, respectively, for various highway construction and mass transit projects. Financing for
these future expenditures will be primarily from approved federal grants and general obligation bond proceeds. In addition, the
Commonwealth has a variety of contractual and other commitments for future subsidies and purchases of goods and services
for approximately $6.3 billion a June 30, 2007. Actual expenditures are contingent upon approved spending authority and/or
availabhility of financia resources.

Investment Commitments: At December 31, 2006, the SERS had contractual commitments totaling approximately $3.7
billion to fund future alternative investments and $548 million to fund future real estate investments.

L oan Commitments: At June 30, 2007, primary government funds had approved over $120 million in loans that had not been
disbursed. Also at June 30, 2007, the following discretely presented component units had approved loans that had not been
disbursed (amounts in millions):

Pennsylvania Housing Finance AQeNCY ........ccocvvvvveereereeseereenenns $ 131
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority ........ccccvevevenennne $ 69
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority ..........ccccccveue.e. $ 366
Commonwealth Financing AUthOrtY.........cccoveinrneinnceseiee $ 300

Commitment to Purchase Student Loans. At June 30, 2007 the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency, a
discretely presented component unit, had commitments to purchase approximately $1.2 billion of student loans.

Operating Lease Commitments: As of June 30, 2007 the Commonwesalth has commitments to lease certain buildings and
equipment. Future minimum rental commitments for non-cancelable operating leases as of June 30, 2007 were as follows
(amounts in thousands):

Fiscal year ending June 30: Amount
2008 .....ceeeeiieieie e $ 282,736
2009 ... e re s 179,662
2000 ..t e e 139,513
2001 oo e 107,718
2002 ..t 76,115
2013-2017 ..ttt 149,277
2018-2022....c.cceeeieeeiereeee s 32,179
2024-2026 ......ccveieeeeririeeeie e 10,956

Total Minimum Lease Payments.............c........ $ 978,156

Rental expenditures/expenses for all operating leases for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007 amounted to $283.8 million.

Child Support Payments: At June 30, 2007, the Commonwealth was contingently liable for approximately $21.1 million in
payments received by a contractor to be used for child support payments.

Litigation: The Commonwealth is a defendant in numerous legal proceedings pertaining to matters normally incidental to
routine operations. Such litigation includes, but is not limited to, claims asserted against the Commonwealth arising from
alleged torts, alleged breaches of contracts, condemnation proceedings and other alleged violations of Commonwealth and
Federal laws. The Commonwealth has reported accrued liabilities at June 30, 2007 with respect to torts as described in Note M
for probable losses, and, separately, other General Long-Term Obligations with respect to litigation cases in the amount of
$17.4 million for which the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome is probable.

Additionally, the Commonwealth is currently involved in certain legal proceedings for which the likelihood of an unfavorable
outcome is reasonably possible, for which liabilities have not been reported as of June 30, 2007. Unfavorable outcomes for
such cases, which the Commonwealth is vigorously contesting, could range from approximately $130 million to $1,487 million
for the General Fund; $1 million to $219 million for the Motor License Fund, a Special Revenue Fund; and $.1 million to
$1.1 billion of possible additional liabilities for the State Employees’ Retirement System, a fiduciary fund. The range of
potential liability for governmental activitieswas from $130 million to $1.7 billion; there is no potential liability for business-
type activities at June 30, 2007.
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NOTE N-COMMITMENTSAND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

Federal Grants. The Commonwealth receives significant financial assistance from the Federal government in the form of
grants and entitlements, including several non-cash programs (which are not included in the basic financia statements).
Receipt of grantsis generally conditioned upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements and applicable
Federal regulations, including the expenditure of resources for eligible purposes. Substantially al grants are subject to either
the Federal Single Audit Act or to financial and compliance audits by the grantor agencies of the Federal government or their
designees. Disallowances and sanctions as a result of these audits may become liabilities of the Commonweslth. The
Commonweadlth is currently involved in administrative and legal proceedings, with certain Federal agencies, contesting various
disallowances and sanctions related to Federal Assistance Programs ranging from $19 million to $1,205 million at June 30,
2007. The Commonwealth’ s management believes ultimate disallowances and sanctions, if any, will not have a material effect
on the basic financia statements.

Loan Guarantees: The Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), a discretely presented component unit,
guarantees loans made by private lenders to certain resident students. Total original principal of outstanding guarantees issued
by PHEAA approximated $47.5 billion at June 30, 2007. Under the Federal Family Education Loan Program, as amended, the
PHEAA has entered into agreements with the U.S. Department of Education for reinsurance of death, disability, bankruptcy,
default, school closure and borrower ineligibility claims paid to lenders. Pursuant to these agreements, PHEAA receives
reimbursement of claims paid to lenders, provided that PHEAA is in compliance with numerous Federa requirements.
Reinsurance rates vary from 75 percent to 100 percent depending upon default rates in the portfolio guaranteed by PHEAA and
upon the time period when specific loans were guaranteed by PHEAA. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, PHEAA's
default rate was in arange that permitted the maximum reinsurance reimbursement from the U.S. Department of Education.

The Commonwealth Financing Agency (CFA), a discretely presented component unit, through various economic devel opment
programs, provided loan guarantees for the fiscal years ending June 30 as follows (amounts in thousands):

2007 2008
First industries loan guarantees..............cccceveve... $ 9,220 $ 1,375
Tax increment financing guarantees.................... 15,000 5,000
Second stage loan guarantees..........cccceeveeeeienens 2,660 375
Venture capital guarantees..........cocvvvevreeceeinennens 172,500 -
Total [oan guarantees..........ccceecvveeeeevieceeesienens $ 199,380 $ 6,750

The CFA has not been called upon, with respect to any loan guarantees, to make principal or interest payments on behalf of the
ultimate borrowers.

Lottery Prizes. The State L ottery Fund, an Enterprise Fund, awards a variety of prizes, including immediate, lump-sum cash
prizes and certain large prizes, which provide for periodic payments to winners for specific periods of time (in some cases
throughout the winners' lifetimes, and to designated beneficiaries). At June 30, 2007, the amount of future payments owed to
prizewinners was $817 million. To satisfy its financial obligation to these prizewinners, the Fund purchases annuity contracts
from insurance companies whereby the insurance companies make periodic payments to prizewinners. Generaly, in the event
of insurance company default, the Fund is liable for the related annuity payments. However, certain prizewinners voluntarily
assign their annuity rights to other parties and receive lump-sum paymentsin return. In the event of insurance company default
where annuity rights have been voluntarily assigned by prizewinners, the Fund is not liable for the related annuity payments.
At June 30, 2007, prizewinners had voluntarily assigned future payments of $474 million.
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NOTE O - CERTAIN AGENCY FUND CLAIMSLIABILITIES

The Pennsylvania Medical Care Availability and Reduction of Error Fund, an Agency Fund, acts as a service agent to facilitate
the payment of medical malpractice claims exceeding basic liability coverage carried by healthcare providers practicing in the
Commonwealth. The Fund levies healthcare provider surcharges, as a percentage of insurance premiums for basic coverage,
and receives certain motorist moving vehicle violation assessment surcharges to pay claims and administrative expenses paid
on behalf of healthcare providers during the prior year. The actuarially computed liability for outstanding claims for injuries
caused by alleged negligence by certain healthcare providers totaled $2.12 billion at June 30, 2007. The claims will be funded
exclusively through surcharge assessment in future years as claims are settled and paid.

The Underground Storage Tank Indemnification Fund (the Fund), an Agency Fund, is used to collect fees from underground
storage tank owners and operators sufficient to pay owners and operators for costs associated with corrective actions or for
bodily injury or property damage caused by underground tank leaks and other releases. Owners and operators are assessed
actuarially determined amounts to accumulate sufficient assets to pay claims. The estimated actuaria liability for existing and
potential future claims totaled $4.3 billion at June 30, 2007. There are statutory limits on the extent of the Fund's liability to
participating owners and operators; the Fund is not obligated beyond assets held at June 30, 2007. Owners and operators will
be assessed for any claims exceeding Fund assets and no financial liability is reported for those claims.
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NOTE P - DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Commonwealth sponsors a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.
The plan, which is administered by the State Employees Retirement System, permits participants to defer a portion of their
sdlary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plan are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or

unforeseeable emergency.

Of the $1,697 million in net assets reported in the Deferred Compensation Fund, a Pension Trust Fund, at December 31, 2006,
$1,632 million relates to primary government employees and $58 million relates to employees of discretely presented
component units. The remaining balance of $7 million relates to organizations not included in the Commonwealth’s financial

reporting entity.
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NOTE Q - JOINT VENTURE

The Commonwealth and various labor unions representing Commonwealth employees participate in a joint venture, the
Pennsylvania Employees Benefit Trust Fund (PEBTF). The PEBTF establishes and provides health and welfare benefits for
active Commonwealth employees and is a third party administrator for Commonwealth annuitant medical/hospital benefits.
The Commonwealth has, in its collective bargaining agreements with unions subject to the agreement, obligated itself to
provide certain contributions on behalf of al bargaining unit employees. The Commonwealth aso remits contractually
established contributions on behalf of non-union employees and other employees covered by contracts between the
Commonwealth and other unions. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, total contributions amounted to approximately
$1,305 million. Neither the Commonwealth nor the unions have an equity interest in the PEBTF.

At June 30, 2007, the PEBTF reported total assets of $246 million, total liabilities of $61 million, total benefit obligations of
$84 million, and an excess of net assets over benefit obligations of $101 million. The financia status of the PEBTF is
monitored on an ongoing basis; financial stressis evident as aresult of increasing benefit and other expenses. During the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2007 the PEBTF reported an increase in net assets over benefit obligations of $75 million for the Active
Plan program.

On July 15, 2004, the PEBTF received $30 million from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as an interest-free advance
payment of the Commonwealth’s active employee contribution. The PEBTF repaid the Commonwealth during the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2007.

Audited financial statements for the PEBTF are available, by request, from:

William K. Schantzenbach

Chief Financial Officer

Pennsylvania Employees Benefit Trust Fund
150 South 43rd Street

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17111-5700
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NOTE R -SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to June 30, 2007 (May 31, 2007 for the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission), the Commonwealth issued general
obligation bonds and several component unit organizations issued other debt, as follows:

Primary Gover nment

On December 20, 2007 the Commonwealth plans to issue $588 million of General Obligation Bonds, Second Series A and B of
2007, at interest rates ranging from 3.45 to 5.00 percent. The Commonwealth will issue the bonds to finance the following:
capital facilities projects including construction and major rehabilitation of public buildings, redevelopment assistance projects,
and transportation assistance projects; Pennworks Acts grants and loans for construction, expansion and improvement of water,
wastewater and sewerage infrastructure; and environmental initiatives related to the Growing Greener program including open
space and farmland preservation, watershed protection, abandoned mine reclamation, and acid mine drainage remediation
among others.

Also, on December 20, 2007 the Commonwealth plans to issue $118.145 million of General Obligation Bonds, First Refunding
Series of 2007, at an interest rate of 5.00 percent. The Commonwealth will issue the bonds to refund a portion of a previous
refunding bond issue to reduce future debt service requirements.

Discretely Presented Component Units

On July 18, 2007 Governor Rendell signed into law House Bill 1590, titled Act 44 of 2007, which include amendments to
existing Title 74, Chapter 13, of the Pennsylvania Tax Reform Code regarding the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC).
The provisions require the PTC to enter into a 50-year lease agreement by October 15, 2007 with the Department of
Transportation (PennDOT) for the conversion of Interstate 80 to atoll facility and to provide annual payments to PennDOT to
fund highway, bridge, and transit programs throughout the Commonwealth. For the fiscal years ending May 31, 2008, 2009
and 2010, the PTC is required to provide $750 million, $850 million, and $900 million, respectively, to PennDOT. The
payment for the fiscal year ending May 31, 2011, and each fiscal year thereafter for the remainder of the lease term, will be the
amount calculated for the previous year increased by 2.5 percent. The PTC will issue bonds and beginning in 2009, will raise
tolls as necessary to provide funds required to meet its payment obligations to PennDOT.

On July 19, 2007 the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA) issued $400 million of variable-rate student
loan demand revenue bonds with an initial interest rate of 3.7 percent; this rate will reset based upon auctions every seven days.

In July 2007, the Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority (PHEFA) issued Series AF tax-exempt bonds in the
amount of $68,230,000. In connection with the bond issuance, the State System of Higher Education (SSHE) entered into a
loan agreement with PHEFA under which SSHE pledged its full faith and credit for repayment of the bonds. The bonds were
issued to provide funds to undertake various capital projects at SSHE universities.

On September 6, 2007 the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA) issued $200 million Single Family Mortgage
Revenue Bonds, Series 2007-99A through 2007-99D. The bonds are general obligations of the PHFA that bear interest at fixed
and variable rates payable on each April 1 and October 1, with a final maturity date of April 1, 2038. The bonds will be
primarily secured by program obligations consisting of qualifying single-family mortgage loans purchased using bond
proceeds.

Also, on September 6, 2007 the PHFA entered into two separate interest rate swap agreements. The purpose of the swap
agreements is to effectively convert the variable rate interest associated with the Series 2007-99C and 2007-99D bonds to a
synthetic fixed rate in an effort to hedge the PHFA’ s exposure to interest rate fluctuations and to take advantage of interest rate
environments in the financial markets. Under the term of the agreement, the PHFA is to pay the counterparty a fixed rate of
3.885 percent and 5.149 percent respectively, for Series 2007-99C and Series 2007-99D bonds and receive from the
counterparty a variable rate equal to 69 percent of one-month LIBOR and one-month LIBOR, respectively, for Series 2007-
99C and Series 2007-99D bonds.
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NOTE R —SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

On September 7, 2007 Congress passed the College Cost Reduction and Access Act and the President signed the Act into law
on September 27, 2007. This Act affects the PHEAA and is expected to cause the following revenue decreases or expense
increases:

e For Stafford and Consolidation loans first disbursed on or after October 1, 2007, special allowance paymentsto
PHEAA will be 0.4 percent lower;

e For PLUSIoansfirst disbursed on or after October 1, 2007, specia allowance paymentsto PHEAA will be 0.7
percent lower;

e For al loansfirst disbursed on or after October 1, 2007, lender origination fees paid to the United States
Department of Education (USDE) will increase from 0.5 percent to 1.0 percent;

e Effective October 1, 2007, retention of collections on defaulted loans will decrease from 23 percent to 16
percent;

e Effective October 1, 2007, the account maintenance fee received from USDE for outstanding loan guarantees
will decrease from 0.1 percent to 0.06 percent;

e Effective October 1, 2007, the exceptional performer section of applicable law will be eliminated,;

o Effective October 1, 2012, lender insurance for loans first disbursed on or after October 1, 2012 will decrease
from 97 percent to 95 percent; and

e Effective July 1, 2009, the parent PLUS program will be converted to an auction-type program.
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Farm Produce, Green Dragon Market, Ephrata

Lancaster County
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Budgeted Major Funds
General Fund

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

REVENUES:
State Programs:
Taxes, net of refund:

Liquor store profits transfer.

Licenses and fees.

Fines, penalties and interest
Investment income.

Unclaimed property

Departmental services.

Miscellaneous.

TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS

Federal Program:

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
State Programs:
Direction and supportive services.

Protection of persons and property.
Health and human services.

Public education.

Recreation and cultural enrichment

Debt service.

Economic development
Transportation.

TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS

Federal Program:

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUES OVER/(UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Prior year lapses.

Transfer to Budget Stabilization Reserve Fund

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).....cc.covcuimminrunninceinninns

REVENUESAND OTHER SOURCESOVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURESAND OTHER USES

UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES

(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 2006, RESTATED.........ccoecnmuiniminiinnnne

UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 2007.

Actual
Original Final (Budgetary

Budget Difference Budget Difference Basis)
25,074,800 204399 $ 25,279,199 354816 $ 25,634,015
150,000 - 150,000 - 150,000
118,900 207 119,107 477 119,584
30,400 3,425 33,825 7,872 41,697
156,600 33922 190,522 77,955 268,477
47,900 11,730 59,630 26,955 86,585
2,234,327 222,112 2,456,439 - 2,456,439
120,900 (6,647) 114,253 (15,275) 98,978
27,933,827 469,148 28,402,975 452,800 28,855,775
15,909,531 210,591 16,120,122 (178,321) 15,941,801
43,843,358 679,739 44,523,097 274,479 44,797,576
1,020,162 (8,433) 1,011,729 (533) 1,011,196
2,921,225 497,847 3,419,072 (1,013) 3,418,059
11,093,498 (31,132) 11,062,366 (19,080) 11,043,286
10,895,331 (65,699) 10,829,632 - 10,829,632
325,389 3,034 328,423 - 328,423
849,033 (341) 848,692 - 848,692
836,466 32,062 868,528 (254) 868,274
406,972 - 406,972 - 406,972
28,348,076 427,338 28,775,414 (20,880) 28,754,534
15,909,531 210,591 16,120,122 (178,321) 15,941,801
44,257,607 637,929 44,895,536 (199,201) 44,696,335
(414,249) 41,810 (372,439) 473,680 101,241
- 84,483 84,483 - 84,483
- - - (176,971) (176,971)
- 84,483 84,483 (176,971) (92,488)
(414,249) 126,293 (287,956) 296,709 8,753
522,161 - 522,161 - 522,161
107,912 126293  $ 234,205 296709 $ 530,914

- The notes to required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule. -
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Budgeted Major Funds

Special Revenue Fund-Motor License For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands) Actual
Original Final (Budgetary
Budget Difference Budget Difference Basis)
REVENUES:
State Programs:
Taxes, net of refund: $ 1,275,090 $ - $ 1,275,090 $ (19,729) $ 1,255,361
Licenses and fees. 874,110 - 874,110 (4,071) 870,039
Fines, penalties and interest 30,740 - 30,740 951 31,691
Investment income. 114,000 - 114,000 (2,726) 111,274
Departmental services. 66,353 (9,428) 56,925 - 56,925
Miscellaneous. 28,880 - 28,880 (6,469) 22,411
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS 2,389,173 (9,428) 2,379,745 (32,044) 2,347,701
Federal Program: 1,454,810 31,540 1,486,350 (194,619) 1,291,731
TOTAL REVENUES, 3,843,983 22,112 3,866,095 (226,663) 3,639,432

EXPENDITURES:

State Programs:
Direction and supportive services. 83,477 192 83,669 (66) 83,603
Protection of persons and property. 682,185 2,839 685,024 (5,255) 679,769
Public education. 1,230 - 1,230 - 1,230
Recreation and cultural enrichment 1,000 - 1,000 - 1,000
Debt service. 22,883 - 22,883 (89) 22,794
Transportation 1,837,703 (9,179) 1,828,524 (6,000) 1,822,524
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS 2,628,478 (6,148) 2,622,330 (11,410 2,610,920
Federal Program: 1,454,810 31,540 1,486,350 (194,619) 1,291,731
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. 4,083,288 25,392 4,108,680 (206,029) 3,902,651
REVENUES UNDER
EXPENDITURES, (239,305) (3,280) (242,585) (20,634) (263,219)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Prior year lapses. - 76,132 76,132 - 76,132
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES........cccocvviiinininaens - 76,132 76,132 - 76,132
REVENUESAND OTHER SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES. (239,305) 72,852 (166,453) (20,634) (187,087)
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 2006.........ccererererererererenerenenes 283,719 - 283,719 - 283,719
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 2007......cceveerererererererereneenenes $ 44414 $ 72852  $ 117,266  $ (20634 $ 96,632

- The notes to required supplementary information are an integral part of this schedule. -
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Note 1 - Budget Preparation Process

The process of preparing the General Fund Budget for the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania begins nearly one year before the
new budget takes effect on July 1 each year. The budget process beginsin August of the year previous to the budget year with
the distribution of both the Budget Instructions and Program Policy Guidelines by the Office of the Budget and the Governor’s
Office, respectively. These provide detailed guidelines and define major policy issues to be considered when agencies
complete their budget requests. As required by statute, agencies must prepare budgets that indicate the cost of supporting
activities at the level expected in the immediate budget year and the ensuing four budget years. The five-year horizon does not
include future program changes but considers the requirements and demands of current law, regulation, policy and program
decisions.

Agencies submit budget requests to the Secretary of the Budget beginning in early October. From October through January,
the Office of the Budget reviews these requests for accuracy and adherence to policy guidelines and prepares funding
recommendations for the Secretary of the Budget and the Governor.

During December, the Governor meets with leaders of the General Assembly to inform them of anticipated spending and
revenue levels and to discuss related budgetary issues. The Governor then conducts reviews to make the final budget
decisions. The Governor's Executive Budget is finalized in January and is submitted to the Genera Assembly in early
February.

After receiving the budget document, the appropriations committees of both houses of the legidature hold hearings to review
agency funding requests. The General Assembly passes the budget in the form of a General Appropriations Bill and individual
appropriations bills. At the time of passage of these bills and their presentation to the Governor, the officia revised revenue
estimates for the budget year are issued. If the combined appropriations bills passed by the legidature exceed the revenue
estimates, the Governor is required and has the authority to either veto entire appropriations bills or to reduce the amount of
appropriations in order to produce a budget that isin balance. The Governor also has the power to reduce or veto any specific
appropriation even if the total appropriations do not exceed estimated revenues. The Governor’s signing of the appropriations
bills and any revenue billsis the last step in the approval stage of the budget.

Additional information regarding Pennsylvania’ s budgeting process may be located at: http://www.oit.state.pa.us/budget

Note 2 — Basis of Budgeting

On the budgetary basis, certain estimated tax revenue accruals are recorded at fiscal year end for the General Fund and the
Motor License Fund, a Special Revenue Fund. Accruals include sales and use taxes and persona income taxes, both
applicable to the General Fund, and liquid fuels taxes applicable to the Motor License Fund. These taxes are estimated to be
owed to the Commonwealth but are not collected by fiscal year end. Also, estimated encumbrances are established for all funds
at fiscal year end to pay certain direct expenditures for salaries, wages, travel, and utility costs payable against current year
appropriation authority but expended in the subsequent year. Over-estimates of prior year encumbrances are lapsed in the
subsequent year and under-estimates are charged to subsequent year appropriation authority.

Budgeted revenues in the Budgetary Comparison Schedules represent official estimates while expenditures represent amounts
originally adopted or legally amended. Actual amounts are presented on the budgetary basis. Because the budgetary basis
differs from the modified accrual basis of accounting for governmental funds, a reconciliation of the differences between
budgetary basis and the modified accrual basis of reporting is presented.

Note 3 - Reconciliation of Budgetary to GAAP Basis Amounts

The Commonwealth adopts formal annual budgets for two major governmental funds (General Fund and Motor License
Fund, a Special Revenue Fund) and three nonmajor governmental funds (Workers' Compensation Administration, Banking
Department, and Milk Marketing, Special Revenue funds). The Budgetary Comparison Schedules for Budgeted Major and
Nonmajor Funds presents comparisons of the legally adopted budget, as amended, with actual data on a budgetary basis, which
differs from governmental fund statement information primarily by the omission of certain revenue and expenditure accruals.
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The following presents a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrua basis of reporting (amounts in
thousands):

Major Budgeted Funds

Motor
General License
Fund Fund
Budgetary basis — revenues and other
sources over expenditures
and Other USES..........ovvvvvveveeieennnnnn, $8,753 $(187,087)
Adjustments:
To adjust revenues, other financing
sources and related receivables
and deferred revenue...................... (1,377,766) 933,749
To adjust expenditures, other financing
uses and related accounts payable and
and accrued liabilities..................... 1,770,330 (876,959)
Net adjustments..........c.coovveveninnns 392,564 56,790
M odified accrual basis— net changein
governmental fund balance............ $401,317 $(130,297)

The above revenue adjustments include net revenue accruals/deferrals, amounts to recognize certain pass-through grants and
amounts to recognize certain intergovernmental revenues that are not reported for budgetary reporting purposes. Likewise, the
above expenditure adjustments include net expenditure accruals; amounts to recognize certain pass-through grants and amounts
to recognize certain expenditures related to Federal and other grants that are not reported for budgetary reporting purposes.

Note 4 — Budgetary Compliance

The General Assembly passes, and the Governor approves (or reduces or vetoes), individual appropriations as part of the
annual budget adoption process. Budgetary expenditure control occurs at the appropriation level; this is the lowest level of
legislative spending control. Encumbrances and expenditures within individual appropriations may not exceed total amounts
appropriated plus actual augmentations (certain revenues credited to specific appropriations). Also, appropriation transfers
between or within departments and any supplemental appropriations require both legisative and gubernatorial approval. The
legidlatively adopted budget for the General Fund includes $291.1 million in supplemental appropriations approved during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2007.

A separately available report, the “ Status of Appropriations,” demonstrates budgetary expenditure compliance for the Gener al
Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007. This report includes a variety of detail information and summaries related to
individual appropriations. A second “ Status of Appropriations’ report (for Special Funds) demonstrates compliance for the four
budgeted Special Revenue funds: Motor License, Workers Compensation Administration, Banking Department and Milk
Marketing. Both “Satus’ reports are available online at the Office of the Budget internet site: http://www.budget.state.pa.us.
The Governor controls spending by using executive authorizations for Special Revenue funds not controlled by legidlatively
adopted budgets.
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NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Total reported actual expenditures for “Total State Programs’ included in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule — Budgeted
Magjor Funds are based on appropriation, augmentation and lapse amounts reported in the respective June 30, 2007 “ Status of
Appropriations’ (Total All Current State L edgers) as follows (in thousands):

“Satus’ Total Total Total Actual
Page Approved Actual Actual Expenditure
Reference Appropriations + Augmentations - Lapses = Amounts

General Fund amounts........... 7' $ 27,368,975 $ 2,456,439 $ 20,880 $ 29,804,534
Less: tax refunds................... 7 (1,050,000) - - (1,050,000)
Amount reported................... $ 26,318,975 $ 2,456,439 $20880 $28,754,534

Special Revenue Funds:

Motor License Fund............... 52 $ 3,546,853 $ 1,327,093 $ 32493 $ 4,841,453
less: reductions’ ................... 981,448) (1,270,168) (21,083) (2,230,533)
Amount reported.................. $ 2,565,405 $ 56,925 $ 11410 $_2610920

Workers' Compensation
Administration Fund ............ 256 $ 61,231 $ 184 $ - $ 61,415

Banking Department Fund........ 97 $ 18,009 $ - $ 5 $ 18,004

Milk Marketing Fund............... 103 $ 2,742 $ - $ 5 % 2,737

Total actual expenditures for “Federal Programs” for the General Fund are derived from the General Fund “ Satus’, page no.
241 “Summary of All Current Federal Ledgers by Character of Expenditure’ as follows (in thousands): Commitments of
$726,444, Expenditures of $12,970,598, and Available Balances of $2,244,759 for atotal of $15,941,801.

Total actual expenditures for “Federal Programs,” for the Motor License Fund are derived from the Special Funds “Satus’,
page no. 81 “Summary of Federal Ledgers by Type’ as follows (in thousands): Commitments of $2,958, Expenditures of
$17,585, and Available Balances of $2,367 for a total of $22,910; plus $1,268,821 (source in footnote 3 below) for a Motor
License Fund total of $1,291,731.

! Page no. 7, “Summary of All Current State Ledgers by Character of Expenditure,” General Fund “Satus of
Appropriations.”

2 Excludes the following appropriation symbols, beginning on page 55, Special Funds “Satus of Appropriations:”
010-78-571-06-16; 010-78-572-06-16; 010-78-579-06-16; 010-73-132-06-26; 010-38-226-06-26; 010-78-172-06-26;
010-78-173-06-26; 010-78-174-06-26; and 010-78-177-06-26 through 010-78-185-06-26.

% The amount of $1,268,821 is found in the Y ear-to-Date column for “Total Federal Revenue Augmenting Current
State Expenditure Symbols’ on page 116 of the June 30, 2007 “Report of Revenues and Receipts’. This amount, less
$221,585 (for revenue codes 010811-008181-101; 010811-008232-101; 010811-008284-101; 010811-008284-102;
010811-008289-101; and 010811-008289-102) equals $1,047,236, the net reduction of federa funds from Motor
License Fund Actual Augmentations.
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Combining Financial Statements

Including
Nonmajor Budgetary Comparison Schedules

Kennywood Amusement Park, West Mifflin
Allegheny County
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET-NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Special Debt Capital
Revenue Service Projects
Funds Funds Funds Total
ASSETS
Cash $ 8,678 $ - $ - $ 8,678
Temporary investment: 1,766,344 20,885 770,667 2,557,896
LONG-term iNVESIMENLS.......c.c.cueururrecsciceeeeeereeeecceeee s 476,678 - - 476,678
Receivables, net:
Taxes. 24,400 - - 24,400
Accounts. 16,152 3,379 4,371 23,902
Accrued interest 6,158 51 3,164 9,373
Notes and loans. 39,859 - - 39,859
Lease rentals. - 652 - 652
Investment Sale ProCeadS..........coieececeeuernenieeecieeeeeeeee e 1,730 - - 1,730
Other. 20,889 - - 20,889
Due from other funds. 29,930 - 19,219 49,149
Due from component units. - - 25,570 25,570
Due from Federal government 19,557 - - 19,557
Due from political subdivisions. - - 91 91
Advances to other funds. 3,000 - - 3,000
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2413375 $ 24,967 $ 823,082 $ 3,261,424
LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities..........ccoovovvvriricrnnnnnn $ 173,143 $ - $ 169,409 $ 342,552
Investment purchases payable. 7,361 - - 7,361
Securities lending obligations. 235,611 462 17,369 253,442
Due to other funds. 6,469 - 8,444 14,913
Due to component units. 12 - - 12
Due to pension trust fUNdS...........coceeerrrniieeesseeeeees 244 - - 244
Dueto political subdivisions, 31,968 - 62,187 94,155
Due to other governments. 8,502 - 993 9,495
Unearned revenue. 19,820 4,031 - 23,851
Advances from other funds............coouevieienienenciees 10,333 - - 10,333
TOTAL LIABILITIES 493,463 4,493 258,402 756,358
Fund balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances. 384,899 - 945,051 1,329,950
Advances., 3,000 - - 3,000
Loans receivable, 39,859 - - 39,859
93,790 - 3,796 97,586
Capital projects. - - 65,455 65,455
Debt service:
Retirement of general obligation bonds.... - 20,474 - 20,474
11,268 - - 11,268
Undesignated (deficit) 1,387,096 - (449,622) 937,474
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 1,919,912 20,474 564,680 2,505,066
TOTAL LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES..

$ 2413375 $ 24,967 $ 823,082 $ 3261424

134



COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGESIN FUND
BALANCES-NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)

REVENUES:

Licenses and fees...
Intergovernmental
Charges for sales and services.
Investment income.
Lease rental principal and interest...
Interest on notes and loans...

TOTAL REVENUES. ...

EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Direction and SUppOrtive SerVices.........coveveerunenn
Protection of persons and property..
Health and human services...
Public education
Recreation and cultural enrichment....
Economic development....
Transportation
Capital OULIAY........coreeeeeeierreeereee e
Debt service:
Principal retirement...........ccooeveviencnnccneenns
Interest and fiscal Charges...........ccovevenecrnicinnns

TOTAL EXPENDITURES........ccocovvininnne

REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES.......cccooviinicnicces

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
BONAS iSSUEM. ..o
Refunding bonds issued.............cocvevriecinicnnenns
Premium on bonds/refunding bonds issued..........
Discount on bonds iSSUEd...........cveeureeieneriecenennes
Transfersin.
Transfers out
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent....

NET OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES.......ccoomiiiii s

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES...........
FUND BALANCESJULY 1, 2006.........ccccovuune

FUND BALANCES JUNE 30, 2007............cc0.....

$

Special
Revenue

Funds

464,974
709,590
161,708
126,492
152,200
128
19,079

1,634,171

146,201
450,880
375,986

59,266
138,547
229,234
178,466

50,149

1,628,729

5,442

110,006

5,208
(157)
372,504
(170,626)

317,025

322,467

1,597,445
1,919,912

Debt Capital
Service Projects
Funds Funds Total
$ - $ 18,698 $ 483,672
- - 709,590
- - 161,708
- 20,631 147,123
318 30,752 183,270
99 - 99
- - 128
1,017 48 20,144
1,434 70,129 1,705,734
- 377) 145,824
R 1,148 452,028
- - 375,986
- 7,538 66,804
R 52,144 190,691
- 299,458 528,692
- 149,397 327,863
- 374,182 424,331
521,773 - 521,773
357,858 - 357,858
879,631 883,490 3,391,850
(878,197) (813,361) (1,686,116)
- 898,098 1,008,104
250,557 - 250,557
3,336 49,532 58,166
- - (157)
890,552 - 1,263,056
- - (170,626)
(253,892) - (253,892)
890,553 947630 2155208
12,356 134,269 469,092
8,118 430,411 2,035,974
$ 20,474 $ 564,680 $ 2,505,066
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Special Revenue Funds

Including
Nonmajor Budgetary Comparison Schedules

Whitewater Rafting, Ohiopyle State Park
Fayette County
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION
NONMAJOR FUNDS

Specia revenue funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expenditure for specified purposes.

Banking Department Fund — to account for the administration of the Department of Banking and regulation of financial
ingtitutions. Revenue is received from fees, assessments, charges and penalties collected or recovered from persons, firms,
corporations or associations regulated by the Department of Banking.

Milk Marketing Fund — to account for the operation of the Milk Marketing Board and to serve as a depository for amounts
due to dairy farmers from underpayments by dealers. Revenue is received from license fees, fines, penalties and permits
relating to the milk industry.

Workers Compensation Administration Fund — to account for the administration of the Pennsylvania Workers
Compensation Act and the Pennsylvania Occupational Disease Act. Insurance companies and self-insured businesses are
assessed a periodic fee for costs incurred in administering these acts.

Workers Compensation Security Fund — to account for the payment of workers' compensation claims to individuals who
are insured by an insolvent insurance company and for the costs to administer the program. Funds are derived from an
annual assessment on all insurance carriers authorized to transact and provide workmen’s compensation insurance in the
Commonwealth.

Catastrophic Loss Benefits Fund — to account for the payment of medical and rehabilitative expenses over $100,000 to a
lifetime aggregate of $1 million to residentsinjured in a motor vehicle accident.

Environmental Stewardship Fund — to account for revenues from certain landfill fees and expendituresfor farmland
preservation projects, open space protection, abandoned mine reclamation, watershed protection and restoration, water and
sewer infrastructure, and the improvement of conservation of Commonweath and community parks and recreational
facilities.

Recycling Fund — to account for grants for recycling solid waste, market and waste minimization studies and public
information and educational activities. Financing for the planning, processing, resource recovery and recycling of solid waste
is generated by afee on all waste disposed of in landfills or processed by resource recovery facilities.

Gaming Fund — to account for the administration of the Race Horse Development and Gaming Act. Revenue is received
from license fees and a percentage of the gross terminal revenue (GTR) generated by licensed gaming facilities.

Growing Greener Bond Fund — to account for certain bond issuance financing and expenditures for environmental
projects such as watershed protection, mine drainage remediation, advanced energy, flood protection, brownfields
remediation, state parks and forest facilities, open space conservation, farm land preservation, capital improvement projects
for fishing, boating and hunting, and for county environmental initiatives.

Water Supply and Wastewater Treatment Fund — to provide single-year or multiyear grants to municipalities and
municipal authorities and loans to municipalities, municipal authorities, industrial development corporations and investor-
owned water or wastewater enterprises for projects which construct, expand or improve water and wastewater infrastructure.

Other — to account for programs related to restoration, conservation, protection and management of natural resources; the
payment of prescription drugs for eligible citizens 65 years or older; the preservation of historical landmarks; administrative
and regulatory activities of various departmental programs; and miscellaneous Commonwealth activities. This “Other”
category is an aggregation of sixty-four individual special revenue funds.

There are a total of seventy-six individual special revenue funds; Motor License and Tobacco Settlement specia revenue
funds are reported as Mgjor Funds in the basic financial statements.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET-NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds June 30, 2007
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands) Budgeted Funds
Workers' Workers' Catastrophic Growing Water Supply
Banking Milk Compensation Compensation Loss Environmental Greener and Wastewater
Department Marketing Admin. Security Benefits Stewardship Recycling Gaming Bond Treatment Other Total
ASSETS
Cash $ 2 $ - $ - $ 1,454 $ 1 $ - $ 3 $ 5,462 $ - $ - $ 1,756 $ 8,678
Temporary iNVEStMENtS...........crvwuueriemrresinrissssnssannes 38,772 2,754 77,355 151,067 123,849 73,955 87,550 339,665 109,351 99,474 662,552 1,766,344
Long-term investment: - - - 476,678 - - - - - - - 476,678
Receivables, net:
Taxes. - - - - - - - - - - 24,400 24,400
Account: 4,993 - 9 1 - - - 24 - - 11,125 16,152
Accrued interest. - - - 3,621 - - - 1,344 477 379 337 6,158
Loan: - - - - - - - - - 12,258 27,601 39,859
Investment sale proceed: - - - 1,730 - - - - - - - 1,730
Other. - - - - - - - - - - 20,889 20,889
Due from other fund: - - - - - - - - - - 29,930 29,930
Due from Federal government. - - - - - - - - - - 19,557 19,557
Advances to other funds..... - - - - - - - - - - 3,000 3,000
TOTAL ASSETS. $ 43,767 $ 2,754 $ 77,364 $ 634,551 $ 123,850 $ 73,955 $ 87,553 $ 346,495 $ 109,828 $ 112,111 $ 801,147 $ 2,413,375

LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. $ 1,095 $ 91 $ 3,119 $ 1,237 $ 1,463 $ 5,027 $ 1,454 $ 27,817 $ 10,105 $ 2,243 $ 119,492 $ 173,143
Investment purchases payable... - - - 7,361 - - - - - - - 7,361
Securities lending obligations... 4,321 307 - 113,174 13,802 8,242 9,757 7,655 2,465 2,242 73,646 235,611
Dueto other fund 182 30 109 29 12 - 1 27 - - 6,079 6,469
Due to component unit: - - - - - - - - - - 12 12
Dueto pension trust funds..... 13 2 36 - - - - - - - 193 244
Due to political subdivisions. - - - - - 1,945 4,831 11,601 2,687 5,486 5418 31,968
Due to other governments.. 13 4 52 - - 89 - - - - 8,344 8,502
Unearned revenue. 3,955 684 278 - - - - - - - 14,903 19,820
Advances from other funds..........cccceeveeeverersniseennns - - - - - - - - - - 10,333 10,333
TOTAL LIABILITIES......cooiiinicciinicciieieis 9,579 1,118 3,594 121,801 15,277 15,303 16,043 47,100 15,257 9,971 238,420 493,463
Fund balances
Reserved for:
Encumbrances. 334 45 3,066 8,134 508 45,923 14,076 359 111,985 164,792 35,677 384,899
Advances. - - - - - - - - - - 3,000 3,000
Loans receivable. - - - - - - - - - 12,258 27,601 39,859
Other. - - 738 - - - 819 18,489 - - 73,744 93,790
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Other - - - - - 11,268 - - - - - 11,268
Undesignated (defiCit)........ccorrrminmiinininieriiniincinns 33,854 1,591 69,966 504,616 108,065 1,461 56,615 280,547 (17,414) (74,910) 422,705 1,387,096
TOTAL FUND BALANCES................ 34,188 1,636 73,770 512,750 108,573 58,652 71,510 299,395 94,571 102,140 562,727 1,919,912

TOTAL LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES.

$ 43,767 $ 2,754 $ 77,364 $ 634,551 $ 123,850 $ 73,955 $ 87,553 $ 346,495 $ 109,828 $ 112,111 $ 801,147 $ 2413375




COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands) Budgeted Funds
Workers' Workers' Catastrophic Growing Water Supply
Banking Milk Compensation Compensation Loss Environmental Greener and Wastewater
Department Marketing Admin. Security Benefits Stewardship Recycling Gaming Bond Treatment Other Total
REVENUES:
Taxes. $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 251,059 $ - $ - $ 213,915 $ 464,974
Licenses and fees. 6,163 2,483 10 37,206 - 79,710 43,031 324,968 - - 216,019 709,590
Intergovernmental - - - - - - - - - - 161,708 161,708
Charges for sales and services. 10,400 - 60,435 - - - - 15 - - 55,642 126,492
Investment income. 2,870 215 3,222 52,935 9,221 6,675 6,456 8,240 7,597 2,651 52,118 152,200
Interest on notes and |oans. - - - - - - - - - - 128 128
Other 64 - 114 182 7 - 18 5 - 78 18,611 19,079
TOTAL REVENUES 19,497 2,698 63,781 90,323 9,228 86,385 49,505 584,287 7,597 2,729 718,141 1,634,171
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Direction and supportive services.... 28 - - 1 - - - 144,220 21 61 1,870 146,201
Protection of persons and property.. 17,549 2,632 171 69,152 7,945 17,700 40,917 9,341 62,469 - 223,004 450,880
Health and human services. - - 55,320 - - - - 43 - - 320,623 375,986
Public education. - - - - - - - - 2,061 - 57,205 59,266
Recreation and cultural enrichment.............cccceveveeeeeveceenenne - - - - - 3,822 - 8,416 14,664 - 111,645 138,547
Economic development. - - 169 - - 13,148 - - 5,451 38,520 171,946 229,234
Transportation. - - - - - - - - - - 178,466 178,466
Capital outlay. - - 100 - - 9,898 - - 32,430 - 7,721 50,149
» TOTAL EXPENDITURES .....cooviivirniniiinininens 17,577 2,632 55,760 69,153 7,945 44,568 40,917 162,020 117,096 38,581 1,072,480 1,628,729
g REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 1,920 66 8,021 21,170 1,283 41,817 8,588 422,267 (109,499) (35,852) (354,339) 5,442
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bonds issued. - - - - - - - - 27,004 83,002 - 110,006
Premium on bonds/refunding bonds issued.............c.ocvvereunee - - - - - - - - 1,528 3,770 - 5,298
Discount on bonds issued - - - - - - - - - (157) - (157)
Transfersin - - - - - - - - - - 372,504 372,504
Transfers out : : (1,000) : : (38,210) : (125,000) : - (6,416) (170,626)
NET OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) - - (1,000) - - (38,210) - (125,000) 28,532 86,615 366,088 317,025
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES. 1,920 66 7,021 21,170 1,283 3,607 8,588 297,267 (80,967) 50,763 11,749 322,467
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 2006. 32,268 1,570 66,749 491,580 107,290 55,045 62,922 2,128 175,538 51,377 550,978 1,597,445

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 2007........ccccecovimuriciiennnnns $ 34,188 $ 1,636 $ 73,770 $ 512,750 $ 108,573 $ 58,652 $ 71,510 $ 299,395 $ 94,571 $ 102,140 $ 562,727 $ 1,919,912




BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Budgeted Nonmajor Funds

Special Revenue Fund-Banking Department For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands) Actual
Original Final (Budgetary
Budget Difference Budget Difference Basis)
REVENUES:
State Programs:
Licenses and fees. $ 14,582 $ 1,041 $ 15,623 $ 220 $ 15,843
Fines, penalties and interest 420 580 1,000 (505) 495
Investment income. 1,334 266 1,600 669 2,269
Miscellaneous. - - - 2 2
TOTAL REVENUES. 16,336 1,887 18,223 386 18,609

EXPENDITURES:

State Programs:
Direction and supportive services. 5 - 5 5
Protection of persons and property. 18,004 - 18,004 - 18,004
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 18,009 - 18,009 (5) 18,004
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES........cccovuniirerninianns (1,673 1,887 214 391 605

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Prior year lapses. - 1,208 1,208 - 1,208

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, - 1,208 1,208 - 1,208
REVENUESAND OTHER SOURCES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES (1,673) 3,095 1,422 391 1,813

UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES

(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 2006 28,648 - 28,648 - 28,648
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 2007 $ 26975 $ 3095 $ 30,070 $ 391 $ 30,461

Reconciliation of Budgetary to GAAP Basis Amounts

The Commonwealth adopts a formal annual budget for the Banking Department Fund. The Budgetary Comparison Schedule presented above presents a comparison of
the legally adopted budget, as amended, with actual data on a budgetary basis, which differs from governmental fund statement information primarily by the omission of
certain revenue and expenditure accruals. The following presents a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of reporting (amountsin
thousands):

Budgetary basis — revenues and other sources over

expenditures (from Actual column @00VE)..........ccvvreeeirereirreen e $ 1,813
Adjustments:
To adjust revenues, other financing sources and related
receivables and deferred FeVENUE. ...t (320)

To adjust expenditures, other financing uses and related
accounts payable and accrued liabilities...........occcrriccniceccee s 427

NEt BOJUSIMENS......oiieiiice e 107

M odified accrual basis — net changein
governmental fund DalanCe...........c.ouiururiniriurineeie e $ 1,920

The above revenue adjustments include net revenue accrual s/deferral's, amounts to recognize certain pass-through grants and amounts to recognize certain
intergovernmental revenues that are not reported for budgetary reporting purposes. Likewise, the above expenditure adjustments include net expenditure accruals,

amounts to recognize certain pass-through grants and amounts to recognize certain expenditures related to Federal and other grants that are not reported for budgetary
reporting purposes.

- The notes on pages 130 to 132 are an integral part of this schedule. -
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Budgeted Nonmajor Funds

Special Revenue Fund-Milk Marketing For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands) Actual
Original Final (Budgetary
Budget Difference Budget Difference Basis)
REVENUES:
State Programs:
Licenses and fees. $ 2,420 $ 80 $ 2,500 $ (35) $ 2,465
Fines, penalties and interest 50 - 50 (32) 18
Investment income. 101 - 101 75 176
Miscellaneous. - - _ 1 1
TOTAL REVENUES. 2,571 80 2,651 9 2,660

EXPENDITURES:

State Programs:
Direction and supportive services. 5 - 5 (5) -
Protection of persons and property. 2,737 - 2,737 - 2,737
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,742 - 2,742 (5) 2,737
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES. (171) 80 (91) 14 (77)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Prior year lapses. - 234 234 - 234

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES........cccocvvninirerrninnns - 234 234 - 234
REVENUESAND OTHER SOURCESOVER

(UNDER) EXPENDITURES. (171) 314 143 14 157

UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES

(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 2006........cccoovmrmresnrrnrinnrnianns 1,166 - 1,166 - 1,166
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 2007........cooonmmrmreemrnriensinienns $ 995 $ 314 $ 1,309 $ 14 $ 1,323

Reconciliation of Budgetary to GAAP Basis Amounts

The Commonwealth adopts a formal annual budget for the Milk Marketing Fund. The Budgetary Comparison Schedule presented above presents a comparison
of the legally adopted budget, as amended, with actual data on a budgetary basis, which differs from governmental fund statement information primarily by the
omission of certain revenue and expenditure accruals. The following presents areconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of reporting
(amounts in thousands):

Budgetary basis — revenues and other sources under

expenditures (from Actual column above)..........cccvereirirnieenennieeenseeens $ 157
Adjustments:
To adjust revenues, other financing sources and related
receivables and deferred reVENUE...........c.ccoveeernieeinseee s (196)

To adjust expenditures, other financing uses and related

accounts payable and accrued labilities............ccceeveeiinrrnsecee 105
NEt AQJUSIMENES.......eviteieeerir b 91

Modified accrual basis — net changein

governmental fund balance. $ 66

The above revenue adjustments include net revenue accruals/deferral's, amounts to recognize certain pass-through grants and amounts to recognize certain
intergovernmental revenues that are not reported for budgetary reporting purposes. Likewise, the above expenditure adjustments include net expenditure
accruals, amounts to recognize certain pass-through grants and amounts to recognize certain expenditures related to Federal and other grants that are not reported
for budgetary reporting purposes.

- The notes on pages 130 to 132 are an integral part of this schedule. -
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

Budgeted Nonmajor Funds

Special Revenue Fund-Workers Compensation Administration

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

REVENUES:
State Programs:
Taxes, net of refund:

Fines, penalties and interest

Investment income.

Departmental services.

Miscellaneou

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES:
State Programs:
Direction and supportive services.

Economic development

TOTAL EXPENDITURES.

REVENUESOVER
EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:

Prior year |apses.

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES..........ccccovumirriieran

REVENUESAND OTHER SOURCESOVER
EXPENDITURES.

UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES
(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 2006

UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES

(BUDGETARY BASIS), JUNE 30, 2007........cccocmmmrmirercirinninnans

Reconciliation of Budgetary to GAAP Basis Amounts

Actual
Original Final (Budgetary

Budget Difference Budget Difference Basis)

60231 $ 60,231 19 60,250

4 8 12 @) 10

1,347 2,310 3,657 (436) 3,221

184 184 184

49 82 131 (15) 116

61,815 2,400 64,215 (434) 63,781

61,231 61,231 61,231

184 184 184

61,415 61,415 61,415

400 2,400 2,800 (434) 2,366

3,810 3,810 3,810

3,810 3,810 3,810

400 6,210 6,610 (434) 6,176

61,780 61,780 61,780

62,180 $ 6,210 68,390 (434) 67,956

The Commonweal th adopts a formal annual budget for the Workers' Compensation Administration Fund. The Budgetary Comparison Schedule presented above
presents a comparison of the legally adopted budget, as amended, with actual data on a budgetary basis, which differs from governmental fund statement
information primarily by the omission of certain revenue and expenditure accruals. The following presents a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified

accrual basis of reporting (amounts in thousands):

Budgetary basis — revenues and other sources over
expenditures (from Actual column above).............ceeue.

Adjustments:

To adjust revenues, other financing sources and related
receivables and deferred revenue.............cccoeeeveecvniennns

To adjust expenditures, other financing uses and related
accounts payable and accrued ligbilities............cccoeunee

Net adjUSEMENS.......c.eireriecirie s

M odified accrual basis — net changein

governmental fund balance...........c.coceeeiieeernirisnncnenes

6,176

(3.810)

4,655

845

7,021

The above revenue adjustments include net revenue accruals/deferral's, amounts to recognize certain pass-through grants and amounts to recognize certain
intergovernmental revenues that are not reported for budgetary reporting purposes. Likewise, the above expenditure adjustments include net expenditure
accruals, amounts to recognize certain pass-through grants and amounts to recognize certain expenditures related to Federal and other grants that are not reported

for budgetary reporting purposes.

- The notes on pages 130 to 132 are an integral part of this schedule. -
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Debt Service Funds

Sculpture Garden, Frank Lloyd Wright’s House on Kentuck Knob
Fayette County
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION
NONMAJOR FUNDS

Debt service funds account for the accumulation of resources, principaly from transfers from
other Funds, for the payment of general long-term debt principal and interest.

Disaster Relief Redemption Fund — these funds account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
rehabilitation of areas of the Commonwealth affected by the floods of 1971, 1972, and 1977. Funding consists of transfers
from the General Fund and investment income.

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) Redemption Fund — to account for the payment of
principal and interest on bonds issued for loans to loca water companies for the repair, construction, extension and
improvement of water supply systems, dams and port facilities and water control systems. Funding consists of transfers from
the General Fund and the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority Fund and investment income.

Capital Debt Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest related to general obligation bonds issued for
capital projects authorized by Capital Budget Acts. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Motor
License Fund, facility rental and investment income.

Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Sinking Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds
issued for the promotion of economic redevelopment throughout Pennsylvania for grants and loans for industrial and small
business development. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization
Fund and investment income.

Water Facilities Loan Redemption Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
implementation of the water project loan referendum to provide loans to local water companies for repair, construction and
improvement to water supply systems. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Water Facilities Loan
Fund, investment income and proceeds from the sale, lease or disposal of loan collateral.

Land and Water Development Sinking Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
acquisition, development and improvements to Commonwealth land and water facilities. Funding consists of transfers from
the General Fund, the Land and Water Development Fund and investment income.

Other — these funds account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for loans to nursing homes and
volunteer fire companies, compensation to Vietnam conflict veterans, finance of various environmental initiatives and for
water and wastewater infrastructure projects related to economic development. Funding consists primarily of transfers from
the General Fund and investment income. This other category is an aggregation of eleven individual debt service funds.

There are atotal of seventeen individual debt service funds; all are reported as nonmajor funds.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET-NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Debt Service Funds

June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Temporary investment:

Receivables, net
Account:

Accrued interest

L ease rental

TOTAL ASSETS.

LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Securities lending obligations.

Unearned revenue.

TOTAL LIABILITIES.

Fund balances:
Unreserved:
Designated for
Debt service:
Retirement of general obligation bonds..
TOTAL FUND BALANCES...............
TOTAL LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCE

Pennsylvania
Infrastructure Pennsylvania Water Land and
Disaster Investment Economic Facilities Water
Relief Authority Capital Revitalization Loan Development
Redemption Redemption Debt Sinking Redemption Sinking Other Total

$ $ 374 $ 20,131 $ - $ $ 231 149 20,885
- - 3,379 - - - 3,379
- - 50 - 1 - 51
- 652 - - - 652
$ - $ 374 $ 24,212 $ - $ $ 232 149 24,967
$ $ - $ 454 $ - $ $ 5 3 462
- - 4,031 - - - 4,031
. s 2,485 5 5 3 4,493
374 19,727 - 227 146 20,474
- 374 19,727 - 227 146 20,474
$ - $ 374 $ 24,212 $ - $ $ 232 149 24,967
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGESIN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Debt Service Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA Pennsylvania
(Expressed in Thousands) Infrastructure Pennsylvania Water Land and
Disaster Investment Economic Facilities Water
Relief Authority Capital Revitalization Loan Development
Redemption Redemption Debt Sinking Redemption Sinking Other Total
REVENUES:
Investment income. $ - $ 6 $ 54 $ - $ - $ 258 $ - $ 318
Leaserental principal and interest............cooueirieinceccinieninienns - - 929 - - - - 99
Other. - 1,017 - - - - - 1,017
TOTAL REVENUES - 1,023 153 - - 258 - 1,434
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Debt service:
Principal retirement 1,510 4,225 508,834 340 1,440 169 5,255 521,773
Interest and fiscal charges. 450 3,566 341,814 166 617 83 11,162 357,858
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ... 1,960 7,791 850,648 506 2,057 252 16,417 879,631
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES (1,960) (6,768) (850,495) (506) (2,057) 6 (16,417) (878,197)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Refunding bonds issued - - 250,557 - - - - 250,557
Premium on bonds/refunding bonds issued............ccccuiinciccines - - 3,336 - - - - 3,336
Transfersin. 1,958 7,142 862,447 506 2,057 25 16,417 890,552
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent............cccccuvcicciniennins - - (253,892) - - - - (253,892
NET OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES. 1,958 7,142 862,448 506 2,057 25 16,417 890,553
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES..........cccocouoviiiiiinin (¢ 374 11,953 - - 31 - 12,356
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 2006.... 2 - 7,774 - - 196 146 8,118
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 2007.. $ - $ 374 $ 19,727 $ - $ - $ 227 $ 146 $ 20,474
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Capital
Projects

Funds

Farm Animals, Ridley Creek State Park

Delaware County
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CAPITAL PROJECTSFUNDS
DESCRIPTION
NONMAJOR FUNDS

Capital projects funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities, including those provided to political subdivisions or other
public organizations.

Capital Facilities Fund — to account for general obligation bond proceeds used to fund capital projects specifically itemized
and authorized by Capital Budget Acts.

Keystone Recreation, Park and Conservation Fund — to account for bond proceeds and a percentage of the state realty
transfer tax. The amounts are used to acquire, improve and expand Commonwealth and community parks, recreation
facilities, historic sites, zoos, public libraries, nature preserves and wildlife habitats and other recreational areas and facilities.

Local Criminal Justice Fund — to account for the proceeds of bonds issued for grants to counties and multi-county
authorities for the repair, expansion, construction, rehabilitation and improvement of local correctional facilities or multi-
county regional prison facilities.

Land and Water Development Fund — to account for the proceeds of bonds issued for pollution remediation; grantsto local
governments for sewage treatment facilities;, the development of public outdoor recreation areas; and, acquisition and
development of park and recreation lands and related studies to determine such needs.

There are atotal of four individual capital projects funds; al are reported as nonmajor funds.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET-NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Capital Projects Funds

June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands) Keystone
Recreation,
Capital Park and
Facilities Conservation
ASSETS
Temporary investment: $ 608,093 $ 160,623
Receivables, net:
Account 4,371 B
Accrued interest 2,456 700
Due from other fund: 11,697 7,522
Due from component unit 25,570 -
Due from political subdivision: 91 -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 652,278 $ 168,845
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities..............ccccoervvverninnne $ 162,683 $ 6,726
Securities lending obligation: 13,705 3,620
Due to other fund: 4 8,440
Due to political subdivision 60,972 1,215
Due to other government: 993 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 238,357 20,001

Fund balances:
Reserved for:

Encumbrance: 859,043 83,389

Other. 2,159 -
Unreserved:

Designated for:

Capital projects. - 65,455
Undesignated deficit. (447,281) -
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 413,921 148,844

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES. $ 652,278 $ 168,845

149

Local
Criminal
Justice

304

305

2,259

(1,961)
298
305

Land and
Water

Development

$ 1,647

$ 1,654

360
1,637

(380)
1617

$ 1,654

Total
770,667

4,371
3,164
19,219
25,570
91

823,082

169,409
17,369
8,444
62,187
993
258,402

945,051
3,796

65,455
(449,622)

564,680

$

823,082



COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES-NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Capital
Facilities
REVENUES:
Taxe: $ -
Charges for sales and service 20,631
Investment income..... . 21,125
Other 8
TOTAL REVENUES ........coooiiiiccccens 41,764
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Direction and supportive Services.............c.c.c..... 377)
Protection of persons and property... 644
Public education............ccccccuecunnnae 79
Recreation and cultural enrichment.. -
Economic development. 299,458
Transportation.... 149,397
Capital outlay. 359,610
TOTAL EXPENDITURES .......ccoeovvviinnnn 808,811
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES .....ccoooovviiiiciiii (767,047)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
BONdS iSSUE.........covuieiciciiicicieseee s 898,098
Premium on bonds/refunding bonds issued........ 49,532
NET OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES 947,630
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 180,583
FUND BALANCES JULY 1, 2006. 233338
FUND BALANCES JUNE 30, 2007..........c...... $ 413,921

Keystone
Recreation,
Park and
Conservation

$ 18,698
9,592
40

28,330

7,459
52,144

14,572
74,175

(45,845)

(45,845)
194,689

$ 148,844

150

Local Land and
Criminal Water
Justice Development Total

$ - $ - $ 18,698
- - 20,631

28 7 30,752

- - 48

28 7 70,129

- - (377)
501 3 1,148
- - 7,538
B B 52,144
- - 299,458
- - 149,397
- - 374,182

501 3 883,490

473 4 (813,361)

- - 898,098
- - 49,532

- - 947,630
@73) 134,269

4
771 1,613 430,411
$ 298 $ 1,617 $ 564,680



Enterprise Funds

Coal Mine Tour, Scranton

Lackawanna County
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION
NONMAJOR FUNDS

Enterprise funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises. Costs of providing goods and services to the general public on a
continuing basis, including depreciation, are financed or recovered primarily through user
charges.

State Stores Fund — to account for the general operations of the Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board. Expenses include all
costs associated with the operation and administration of the liquor store system and enforcement of the Liquor Control Law.

Small Business First Fund — to account for and provide loans to eligible small businesses for capital development projects
which will create or preserve employment opportunities and which will enhance business development in Pennsylvania
Sources of revenue and financing include loan principal and interest payments, transfers from the Genera Fund, Federal
funds and investment income.

Volunteer Companies Loan Fund — to account for and provide low-interest loans for acquisition and replacement of
volunteer fire, ambulance and rescue company equipment and facilities.

Machinery and Equipment Loan Fund — to account for and provide low-interest loans to finance machinery and equipment
purchases for eligible Pennsylvania businesses to facilitate their growth, competitiveness and value-added capacity. Sources
of revenue and financing include loan principal and interest payments, General Fund appropriations, capital contributions
from the Commonwealth Financing Authority and investment income.

Coal and Clay Mine Subsidence Insurance Fund — to account for and provide insurance coverage to homeowners in
mining areas against damages resulting from mine subsidence.

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Bank Fund — to account for and provide loans to, or enter into leases with, quaified
borrowers to finance the costs of transportation projects.

Minority Business Development Fund — to account for and provide low-interest and short-term loans, loan and bond
guarantees and other financial and technical assistance, to eligible minority business enterprises and for operating expenses of
the Pennsylvania Minority Business Development Authority. Sources of revenue and financing include loan principal and,
interest payments, transfers from the General Fund and investment income.

Other — to account for enterprise operations including activities associated with low interest loans to manufacturers,
vocationa rehabilitation services, and loans and grants provided to attract industrial, manufacturing or research and
development enterprises to the Commonwealth. This other category is an aggregation of five individual enterprise funds.

There are a total of sixteen individual enterprise funds, Unemployment Compensation, State Workers Insurance, State
Lottery and Tuition Payment enterprise funds are reported as Mg or Fundsin the basic financia statements.
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS-NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Enterprise Funds

June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

State Small Volunteer Machinery Coal and Clay PA Minority
Stores Business Companies  and Equipment Mine Sub. Infrastructure Business
(June 26, 2007) First Loan Loan Insurance Bank Development Other Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
. $ 18,562 $ 204 $ 44 $ - $ - $ 1 5 $ 369 $ 19,185
Temporary investment 102,380 52,405 23,274 115,128 71,480 29,120 4,196 15,742 413,725
Receivables:
Accounts 2,014 - - - - 359 - 47 2,420
Accrued interest. - 223 96 116 - - 20 5 460
Loans... - 16,526 14,654 11,407 - 3,870 1,250 514 48,221
Other ... - 1 - 33 - - 8 - 42
Due from other funds . 29 - - - - - - 2,857 2,886
Due from pension trust funds. - - - - - - - 16 16
Due from component units..... - - - - - - - 6 6
Due from Federal governmen - - - - - - - 57 57
Inventory. 189,128 - - - - - - 4 189,132
Total CUMTENt SSELS ... 312,113 69,359 38,068 126,684 71,480 33,350 5,479 19,617 676,150
Noncurrent assets:
Receivables:
LOANS. ... - 71,742 94,871 35,011 - 28,130 2,348 1,604 233,706
323 - - - - - - - 323
Construction in progres: - - - - - - - 4,813 4,813
Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings and building improvements. 21,794 - - - - - - 18,862 40,656
Machinery and equipment. 64,191 - - - 68 - - 4,788 69,047
Less: accumulated depreciation (51,638) - - - (20) - - (16,196) (67,854)
Net depreciable capital assets. 34,347 - - - 48 - - 7,454 41,849
Total noncurrent assets 34,670 71,742 94,871 35,011 48 28,130 2,348 13,871 280,691
TOTAL ASSETS 346,783 141,101 132,939 161,695 71,528 61,480 7,827 33,488 956,841
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. 130,639 170 719 1 422 150 1 1,453 133,555
Securities lending obligations. 11,083 5,840 2,594 12,830 7,966 3,245 468 1,754 45,780
Due to other funds. 3,221 - - 3 6 - 1 99 3,330
Due to pension trust funds.. 208 - - - 1 - 1 210
Due to other governments.. 937 - - - 2 - - 2 941
Unearned revenue. - - 80 - 2,951 - - 147 3,178
Self insurance 3,774 5 - 5 22 - 3 208 4,017
Compensated absences 4,283 - - 45 - - 20 4,348
Advances from other funds. 85,000 3,000 - - - - - - 88,000
Total current liabilities............coviviviiiicieiienins 239,145 9,015 3,393 12,839 11,415 3,395 473 3,684 283,359
Non-current liabilities:
Insurance loss liability.... - - - - 1,002 - - - 1,002
Compensated absences 22,487 - - - 239 - - 1,836 24,562
Self insurance.......... 14,924 18 - 20 89 - 12 824 15,887
Total non-current liabilities.. 37,411 18 - 20 1,330 - 12 2,660 41,451
TOTAL LIABILITIES. 276,556 9,033 3,393 12,859 12,745 3,395 485 6,344 324,810
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt................ 34,670 - - - 48 - - 12,267 46,985
Restricted for:
Smoking cessation and other health-related programs - - - - - - - 2,413 2,413
Transportation...........ccceccueicnicisiicsssesees s - - - - - 58,085 - - 58,085
Economic stimulus.... - 132,068 - 148,836 - - 7,342 - 288,246
Emergency support.... - - 129,546 - - - - - 129,546
Other purposes 35,557 - - - 58,735 - - 12,464 106,756
TOTAL NET ASSETS.. .._$ 70,227 $ 132,068 $ 129,546 $ 148,836 $ 58,783 $ 58,085 $ 7,342 $ 27,144 $ 632,031
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGESIN FUND NET ASSETSNONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Enterprise Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

State Small Volunteer Machinery Coal and Clay PA Minority
Stores Business Companies and Equipment Mine Sub. Infrastructure Business
(June 26, 2007) First Loan Loan Insurance Bank Development Other Total
OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales and services. $ 1,364,524 $ - $ - $ 189 $ 6,393 $ - $ 17 $ 2,125 $ 1373248
Interest on loans. - 3,583 1,386 1,466 - 743 170 36 7,384
Other - 991 - 710 - - 3 556 2,260
OPERATING REVENUES BEFORE PROVISION
FOR UNCOLLECTABLE ACCOUNTS........covvimniiininisiniians 1,364,524 4,574 1,386 2,365 6,393 743 190 2,717 1,382,892
Provision for uncollectable accounts. - - 31 - - - (660) - (629)
NET OPERATING REVENUES. 1,364,524 4,574 1,417 2,365 6,393 743 (470) 2,717 1,382,263
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales and services. 1,271,825 789 - 496 3,594 - 272 6,900 1,283,876
Depreciation 6,046 - - - - - - 1,790 7,836
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,277,871 789 - 496 3,594 - 272 8,690 1,291,712
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 86,653 3,785 1,417 1,869 2,799 743 (742) (5,973) 90,551
NONOPERATING REVENUES:
= Investment income. 15,693 4,168 1,624 5,968 4,972 2,325 406 1,301 36,457
& Other revenues. - - - - - - - 1,700 1,700
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES...........cccooeniriniciniiiian, 15,693 4,168 1,624 5,968 4,972 2,325 406 3,001 38,157
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS
AND TRANSFERS. 102,346 7,953 3,041 7,837 7,771 3,068 (336) (2,972 128,708
CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS:
Capital contributions. - - - 60,000 - - - - 60,000
Transfersin - - - - - 2,057 - - 2,057
Transfers out (152,000) - - - - - - - (152,000)
TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS..........cccooeviiennnae (152,000) - - 60,000 - 2,057 - - (89,943)
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS. (49,654) 7,953 3,041 67,837 7,771 5,125 (336) (2,972) 38,765
TOTAL NET ASSETS, JULY 1, 2006 119,881 124,115 126,505 80,999 51,012 52,960 7,678 30,116 593,266

TOTAL NET ASSETS, JUNE 30, 2007. $ 70,227 $ 132,068 $ 129,546 $ 148,836 $ 58,783 $ 58,085 $ 7,342 $ 27,144 $ 632,031
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Enterprise Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

9GT

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

CASH FLOWSFROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from customers.
Receipts from borrowers.
Receipt of premiums.
Payments to claimants
Payments to borrowers.
Payments for vendors, employees and other costs.
(O 141 = = T o
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES.....

CASH FLOWSFROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfersin
Transfersout.....
Capital contributions....

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)

NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES.....ccoovrerierreernieinens

CASH FLOWSFROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Disposition of capital assets
NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES. ..ot

CASH FLOWSFROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
PUrchase Of INVESIMENES.........ccoiiiieirireieee e
Sales and maturities of investments.
Investment income
Change in securities [ending Obligations...........c.coceiiieeeeeeeeeeeeenes
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) INVESTING ACTIVITIES.......

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH AT JULY 1, 2006,
CASH AT JUNE 30, 2007

State Volunteer Machinery Coal and Clay PA Minority
Stores Companies and Equipment Mine Infrastructure Business
(June 26, 2007) Loan Loan Insurance Bank Development Other Total
$ 1,365,366 $ = - - 3 -3 - $ 3416 $ 1,368,782
- 1,862 13,794 - 4,690 843 - 23,067
- - - 6,566 - - - 6,566
- - - (3,068) - - - (3,068)
- - (20,671) - (13,303) (2,718) (475) (37,167)
(1,230,280) - (515) (59) - (266) (6,991) (1,238,740)
- - 265 - - 15 556 1,827
135,086 1,862 (7,127) 3,439 (8,613) (2,126) (3,494) 121,267
- - - - 2,057 - - 2,057
(152,000) - - - - - - (152,000)
- - 60,000 - - - - 60,000
(152,000) - 60,000 - 2,057 - - (89,943)
(3,047) - - 47) - - (677) (3,771)
21 - - - - - - 21
(3,026) - - (47) - - (677) (3,750)
(809,292) (15,131) (83,328) (9,979) (5,669) (817) (20,166) (964,036)
816,060 11,509 18,535 2,020 11,078 2,825 24,012 899,866
15,693 1,258 4,602 3,632 1,796 342 1,094 31,241
(1,253) 385 7,183 847 (648) (235) (454) 6,430
21,208 (1,979) (53,008) (3,480) 6,557 2,115 4,486 (26,499)
1,268 (117) (135) (88) 1 (11) 315 1,075
17,294 161 135 88 - 16 54 18,110
$ 18,562 $ 4 % - - $ 1 3 5 § 369 3% 19,185




LST

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Enterprise Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

State Small Volunteer Machinery Coal and Clay PA Minority
Stores Business  Companies and Equipment Mine Infrastructure Business
(June 26, 2007) First Loan Loan Insurance Bank Development Other Total
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (l0ss) $ 86653 $ 378 $ 1417  $ 1869 $ 279 $ 743 % (742) $ (5973) $ 90,551
Depreciation and amortization 6,046 - - - - - - 1,790 7,836
Provision for uncollectible accounts.... - - (31) - - - 660 - 629
NON-0PEraLiNg FEVENUES........cceiiieiirereeeeeresesese sttt en e ee s - - - - - - - 1,700 1,700
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accountsreceivable.............. 703 (1,605) (234) (8,977) - (9,506) (2,050) (48) (21,717)
Due from fiduciary funds. - - - - - - - 3 3
Inventory 26,160 - - - - - - - 26,160
Due from other funds.... 135 - - - - - - (917) (782)
Due from component units. - - - - - - - 1 1
Due from other governments, - - - - - - - (57) (57
Other current assets. 4 - - - - - - - 4
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. 15,984 170 719 (23) 133 150 1 (169) 16,965
Due to other funds. (115) 8) - - 6 - [€0)] 9) (127)
Due to other governments 263 - - - 1 - - - 264
Unearned revenue.......... . . - (100) 9) - 173 - - 145 209
Insurance loss liability... - - - - 392 - - - 392
Other liabilities...... (747) (2) - 4 (65) - 6 40 (764)
Total Adjustments............. 48,433 (1,545) 445 (8,996) 640 (9,356) (1,384) 2,479 30,716
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES.....ocoiniiiitnnieesitesisee s $ 135086 $ 2240 $ 1862 $ (7127)  $ 3439 $ (8613) $ (2126) $ (3494 $ 121,267
Increase in fair value of investments during the fiscal year...........coccevvieeeee $ 1433  $ 854 $ 366 $ 1017 $ 1340 $ 528 % 65 $ 13 % 5,616

There were no material investing, capital or financing activities that did not result in cash receipts or cash payments during the fiscal year.



Internal
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Funds

Tuscarora Academy, Academia

Juniata County
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Internal service funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department
or agency to other departments or agencies of the Commonwealth, or to other governmental
units, on a cost-reimbursement basis.

Purchasing Fund — to account for the purchase of materias, supplies, motor vehicles and other equipment by the
Department of General Services for the sale or lease to other Commonwealth departments, boards or commissions. This fund
is also used to account for all Commonwealth telecommunication activities, which are accounted for by the Governor’s
Executive Offices. Revenue is derived from reimbursements from Commonwealth agencies that use Fund services or

products.

Manufacturing Fund — to account for the manufacture and sale of goods and services by inmates in the correctiona
institutions to the Department of Corrections, other government agencies and government-aided organizations.

There are atotal of two individual internal service funds.
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS- NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Internal Service Funds

June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Current assets:

Temporary iNVESIMENtS.........ccveeeereeesereeesee e
Receivables:

Noncurrent assets:
Non-depreciable capital assets:

Depreciable capital assets:
Land improvements...........coecvveeenneneeneneseeenennns
Buildings and building improvements..............cc.c....
Machinery and equipment.........oceeevrerveeeierereeeerenenns
Less: accumulated depreciation
Net depreciable capital assets
Total noncurrent assets..............

TOTAL ASSETS.....ciiiiiir e

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities....................
Securities lending obligations............ccccoeeevienisienienens
Dueto other funds.........cccccovveviveneiinieiseceeee
Dueto pension trust funds
Due to other governments.........occceveveeerieiesieevsenienens
UNEarned rEVENUE........c.ccevvereveeieteeee et
Self insurance liahilities....
Compensated absences.
Advances from other funds...........cccccevveeiiievcciieiienne

Total current liabilitieS.........covevveveeveiece e

Non-current liabilities:
Compensated abSenCeS..........cceveeveieiereeesee e
SElf INSUFANCE......ceeverecrecrececrececee et
Total non-current liabilities........cccceveeeieieieceniens
TOTAL LIABILITIES.....ccoi e
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debit..............
Restricted for:
Correctional industries and procurement..................
TOTAL NET ASSETS.....c.cooieeeteeeceecee e
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Purchasing

$ 3813
21,990

1,396
8,601
9

603

135

36,547

17,757
2,451
298

5

20

90
80
14,300

35,001

421
354
775

35,776

29,945

771

$ 30,716

Manufacturing

28,998

1,576
939

10,524
171

42,785

421
5,530
23,510
(15,929)
13,532
13,538

56,323

7,582
3,232
28

16

28

8

220
196

11,310

1,028
870
1,898

13,208
13,538

29,577
$ 43115

Total

$ 429
50,988

1,480
10,177
948
606

10,659
171

79,332

6

421
5,530
99,823
(62,297)
43,477
43,483
122,815

25,339
5,683
326

21

48

8

310
276
14,300

46,311

1,449
1,224
2,673
48,984

43,483

30,348
3 Bl



COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGESIN FUND
NET ASSETS-NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Internal Service Funds

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:

OPERATING REVENUES BEFORE PROVISION
FOR UNCOLLECTABLE ACCOUNTS.......ccoouiiviiiicicins

Provision for uncollectible accounts..........c.cocvevernncnccceeeieeienes

NET OPERATING REVENUES........ccootinirreiereeireneieeneneinens
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Cost Of SAES AN SEIVICES.......eereeereiciieieieieieieis e

Depreciation.
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES..

OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS)....ccoriurureeeeerireeneeieereseeseseesesessenens
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
INVESEMENE INCOMIE........ceuiiiieiet ettt
OLNEY FEVENUES.......coviereireeirie ettt
OthEr EXPENSES......ovvtiieieirirese sttt
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES), NET.....
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS........cccooteniririneinens

TRANSFERS:
TTANSFEIS QUL

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS......coooiminiiniiininiesisesenns
TOTAL NET ASSETS, JULY 1, 2006........cccccmmrremniremnnrninieiniinenns

TOTAL NET ASSETS, JUNE 30, 2007.......cccoeviinirnirninicicieienens

Purchasing

$ 25,912

25,912

(3,579

22,333

39,751
5,276
45,027

22,694)

3,027
1
925

2,103

20,591)

(20,591)
51,307

$ 30,716

161

Manufacturing

$ 33,744
27

33,771

33,771

31,835
1,218
33,053
718
3,001
598
2,493

3,211

(17,500)
(14,289)
57,404

$ 43,115

Total

$ 59,656
27

59,683

(3,579

56,104

71,586
6,494
78,080

21,976)

6,118
1

(1,523)

4,596

17,380)

(17,500)
(34,880)
108,711

$ 73,831



COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Internal Service Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

There were no material investing, capital or financing activities that did not result in cash receipts or cash payments during the fiscal year.

162

Purchasing Manufacturing Total
CASH FLOWSFROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customer $ 32,967 $ 33,160 $ 66,127
Payments for vendors, employees and other costs. (37,283) (27,731) (65,014)
Other receipts. - 27 27
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES, (4,316) 5,456 1,140
CASH FLOWSFROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Transfers out - (17,500) (17,500)
NET CASH USED FOR NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES - (17,500) (17,500)
CASH FLOWSFROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets. (9,520) (2,761) (12,281)
NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES......cocooreeenrreceens (9,520) (2,761) (12,281)
CASH FLOWSFROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
PUCNESE Of INVESIMENES.......oviiiecicecieie ettt n s sean (259,785) (21,287) (281,072)
Sales and maturities of investments. 271,396 35,060 306,456
Investment income. 2,910 2,637 5,547
Change in securities lending obligations. (1,383) (1,613) (2,996)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 13,138 14,797 27,935
NET DECREASE IN CASH (698) ® (706)
CASH AT JULY 1, 2006 4,511 491 5,002
CASH AT JUNE 30, 2007. $ 3,813 $ 483 $ 4,296
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (10ss) $ (22,694) $ 718 $ (21,976)
Depreciation and amortization, 5,276 1,218 6,494
Provision for uncollectible accounts. 3,579 - 3,579
Non-operating revenue. 1 - 1
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable. 89 253 342
Inventory. 143 (282) (139)
Due from other funds. 6,917 (727) 6,190
DuUE from Other GOVEIMMENES.........oveuciieeieieiriees it n s - 209 209
Due from component units. (101) 2 (99)
Due from political subdivisions. 6 14 50
Other current assets - (83) (83)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. 2,729 4,077 6,806
DUE O OLNEI FUNGS........eceeii ettt ees (126) 15 (111)
Due to other government; 8 - 8
Other liabilities. (143) 12 (131)
TOtAl AGJUSIMENTS......eiiiiiiccicice et n e 18,378 4,738 23,116
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES, $ (4,316) $ 5,456 $ 1,140
Increasein fair value of investments during the fiscal year $ 117 $ 454 $ 571
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PENSION (AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT) TRUST FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Pension (and other employee benefit trust) funds account for assets that are required to be held in
trust for the members and beneficiaries of defined benefit pension plans and other postemployment
benefit plan and are held by the Commonwealth in a trustee capacity.

PENSION (AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT) TRUST FUNDS

State Employees Retirement System — is a component unit organization and accounts for the payment of retirement, disability and
death benefits to members of the State Employees’ Retirement System and their beneficiaries.

Deferred Compensation Fund — is a pension trust fund that collects and administers amounts contributed by Commonwealth
employees who are deferring a portion of their income until future years, in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.

Public School Employees' Retirement System — is a component unit organization that administers and provides pension benefits
to public school employees in Pennsylvania.
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trust Funds

June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)

Temporary investments.
Long-term investments..
Short-term funds....
Corporate obligations.
Collective trust funds.
Red estate...
Alternative..
Securities lending collateral ..
Asset-backed securities.
Domestic equities......
International equities.....
International private debt securities.
International public debt securities..
Mortgage-backed securities......
Private placements.....
State and municipal obligations...
U.S. Treasury obligations............ .
U.S. government agency debt securities..................
Receivables, net:

ACCrUE INEEIESE......cveeeeeeeeee s

Pension contributions
Investment sale proceeds.

Due from other funds
Due from pension trust funds...
Due from component units.
Due from political subdivisions...
Due from other governments
Depreciable capital assets:
Machinery and equipment

Less: accumulated depreciation.
Net depreciable capital assets.

TOTAL ASSETS......coiiiiiicnc s

LIABILITIES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities....
Investment purchases payable......
Securities lending obligations.
Dueto other funds.................
Due to pension trust funds.
Other liabilities......
TOTAL LIABILITIES....

NET ASSETS:

Held in trust for:
Pension and other employee benefits...................
Healthcare benefits..........ccovveciicniniiicinnns
Employee salary deferrals....

TOTAL NET ASSETS.

Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trust

State Employees'
Retirement
System
(December 31, 2006)

$ -

670,717
1,290,576
3,535,532
2,521,418
4,227,663
3,239,461

332,130
9,394,008
6,402,963

561,376
550,471
345,986

1,898,745
201,960

86,140

275,157
2,926
1,956
1,880
2,959
3,321

68,552
186,232
3,239,461

270

3,494,515

32,052,830

$ 32,052,830

Deferred
Compensation

(December 31, 2006)

$ 1,899
8,413

20,839

33,508

102,967

13,709
871,011
104,093

9,060
48,612
12,191

234
119,447
346,544

4,715
233
95

1,697,570

817

103

920

1,696,650

$ 1,696,650
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Public School
Employees'
Retirement

System

$ -

4,164,010
3,783,287
5,767,684
3,887,986
5,839,066
8,806,979

15,185,715
18,964,922
672,500
1,462,333
6,190,646

2,488,201
120,183

520,653
1,013,317
230,845
31

2,037

23

11,526
(10,656)
870

79,101,288

74,970
2,462,341
8,806,979

852
4,616
228,826

11,578,584

67,340,997
181,707

$ 67,522,704

Total

$ 1,899
8,413
20,839
4,868,235
5,176,830
9,303,216
6,409,404
10,066,729
12,046,440
345,839
25,450,734
25,471,978
672,500
2,032,769
6,789,729
358,177
234
4,506,393
668,687

86,140
525,368
1,288,707
233,866
1,987
3,917
2,959
3,321

23

11,526
(10,656)
870

116,346,203

144,339
2,648,573
12,046,440
852

4,989
228,826
15,074,019

99,393,827

181,707

1,696,650
ERECE



COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trust Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trust

State Employees’ Public School
Retirement Deferred Employees'
System Compensation Retirement
(December 31, 2006) (December 31, 2006) System Total
ADDITIONS:
Pension contributions:
Employer... $ 196,420 $ - $ 774,097 $ 970,517
Employee.. 317,790 126,467 999,507 1,443,764
Transfer in from other plans.. - 20,731 - 20,731
Total contributions 514,210 147,198 1,773,604 2,435,012
Investment income:
Net appreciation in
fair value of investments.... 4,364,878 140,804 10,457,561 14,963,243
Interest income. 350,783 25,918 903,057 1,279,758
Dividend income............... 152,690 - 1,019,322 1,172,012
Rental and other income. 149,390 - 610,614 760,004
Tota investment activity iNCOME.........ovuveevrreereeiiceiiissrisens 5,017,741 166,722 12,990,554 18,175,017
Less: investment expenses
Investment activity expense. (298,204) (1,508) (313,758) (613,470)
Net investment earnings. 4,719,537 165,214 12,676,796 17,561,547
Securities lending activities:
Income 170,675 - 419,762 590,437
Expenses.. (160,169) - (393,837) (554,006)
Tota securities lending income.... 10,506 - 25,925 36,431
Total net investment income. 4,730,043 165,214 12,702,721 17,597,978
TOTAL ADDITIONS. ...ttt seenees 5,244,253 312,412 14,476,325 20,032,990
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefit PAYMENES......c.cvvveeeieiereicciiir e 1,911,330 41,280 4,296,250 6,248,860
Refunds of contributions. 8,096 - 18,180 26,276
Transfers to other plans. - 73,715 6,010 79,725
Administrative expenses... 23,868 224 50,482 74,574
Other expenses....... - 2,811 - 2,811
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS:.. 1,943,294 118,030 4,370,922 6,432,246
CHANGE IN PLAN NET ASSETSHELD IN TRUST FOR:
Pension and other employee benefits..... 3,300,959 - 10,105,330 13,406,289
Healthcare benefits............... - - 73 73
Employee salary deferrals. - 194,382 - 194,382
Net assets, July 1, 2006..... 28,751,871 1,502,268 57,417,301 87,671,440
Net assets, June 30, 2007.. $ 32,052,830 $ 1,696,650 $ 67,522,704 $ 101,272,184
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Agency Funds

Autumn Scene

Potter County
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AGENCY FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Agency funds account for assets held by the Commonwealth as an agent for individuas, private
organizations, or other governmental units.

AGENCY FUNDS

Statutory Liquidator Fund — to convert the remaining assets of insolvent insurance companies to cash for remittance to creditors,
policyholders and stockholders in accordance with the order of distribution established in Article V of the Pennsylvania Insurance
Department Act of 1921 and on a court approved percentage of claim basis. Although not yet determined, the actual amounts to be
paid based on the amount of the remaining assets are expected to be less than the amounts actualy claimed by creditors,
policyholders and stockholders.

Medical Care Availability and Reduction of Error Fund — to collect surcharges from health care providers and remit payments
for judgments, awards, or settlementsin medical malpractice claims which exceed basic limits of coverage provided in professional
liability insurance policies. Succeeded the Medical Professional Liability Catastrophe Loss Fund effective October 1, 2002.

Allegheny Regional Asset District Sales and Use Tax Fund — to collect an additional 1% sales tax remitted by Allegheny County
business entities to the Department of Revenue, as established per Act 1993-77. On a monthly basis, the Treasury Department
distributes the fund balance to qualified County entities in accordance with the requirements of the Act.

Underground Storage Tank Indemnification Fund — to collect assessments and remit claim payments to owners and operators of
underground storage tanks who incur a liability for taking corrective action, for bodily injury or for property damage caused by a
release from underground storage tanks.

Municipal Pension Aid Fund — to collect foreign (out-of-state) casualty insurance company tax assessments, which are remitted to
municipalities to help defray municipal police and fire pension fund costs.

Fire Insurance Tax Fund — to collect a two-percent premium tax received from foreign (out-of-state) fire insurance companies
conducting business in the Commonwealth, which are remitted to local governments. The municipalities must pay these monies to
therelief, pension or retirement fund of their recognized fire fighting organization.

Agency Custodial Accounts — to account for the assets of patients, residents, inmates and other non-Commonwealth funds for
which the Commonwealth is the account custodian.

Other — to collect and administer funds from various sources for distribution to other state and local governments or the Federal
Government. This other category is an aggregation of five individua agency funds.

Pennsylvania Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Association and Pennsylvania Property and Casualty Insurance Guaranty
Association — are component unit organizations which protect policy owners, insured persons/organizations and others from losses
due to potential insurer failure due to the impairment or insolvency of member insurance carriers.

There are atotal of fourteen individual agency funds.
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
Agency Funds June 30, 2007

69T

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Allegheny PA Life and Health  PA Property and
Medical Regional Asset Underground Insurance Casualty Insurance
Care Availability District Storage Fire Agency Guaranty Guaranty Total
Statutory & Reduction Sales and Tank Municipal Insurance Custodian Association Association Agency
Liquidator of Error Use Tax Indemnification Pension Aid Tax Accounts Other (December 31, 2006) (December 31, 2006) Funds
ASSETS

Cash. $ - $ 2 $ 129 $ 652 $ - $ - $ 13,636 $ 196 $ 12,398 $ 4,949 $ 31,962
Cash with fiscal agents.... 67,990 - - - - - - - - - 67,990
Temporary investments... 110,418 152,148 14,488 63,225 217,855 86,095 13,395 33,038 257,870 88,709 1,037,241
Long-term investments.... 2,317,358 - - 85,040 - - - - - 3,489 2,405,887

Receivables, net:
Taxes. - - 11,089 - - - - 13,903 - - 24,992
Accounts. 208,171 1,379 - - - - 3,428 - - 247 213,225
Accrued interest. 71 - 28 566 918 348 1 56 - - 1,988
Loans. - - - 2,030 - - - - - - 2,030
Investment sale proceeds...........cocvecvrrcecineee - - - 295 - - - - - - 295
Other. - - - - - - - - - 183,964 183,964
Advancesto other funds..........c.ccccceeueevieeenenes - - - 76,500 - - - - - - 76,500
Other assets. 2,251,109 - - - - - 3,077 - - 133 2,254,319
TOTAL ASSETS.....ocovimrieinicinieiiiinns $ 4,955,117 $ 153,529 $ 25,734 $ 228,308 $ 218,773 $ 86,443 $ 33,537 $ 47,193 $ 270,268 $ 281,491 $ 6,300,393

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.......... $ - $ 3,379 $ 416 $ 23,105 $ - $ - $ 9,407 $ 139 $ - $ - $ 36,446
- - - 587 - - - - - - 587
Securities lending obligations. 8,641 16,955 327 16,017 4,910 1,940 - 1,031 - - 49,821
Due to political subdivisions... . - - 24,991 - 213,863 84,503 - 43,127 - - 366,484
Due to other governments.... - 10 - 3 - - - - - - 13
Self insurance liabilities..........cccoocvininiciciias - 296 - 49 - - - - - - 345
Other liabilities. 4,946,476 132,889 188,547 24,130 2,896 270,268 281,491 5,846,697

TOTAL LIABILITIES....oiiiiiiiriiinnns $ 4,955,117 $ 153,529 $ 25,734 $ 228,308 $ 218,773 $ 86,443 $ 33,537 $ 47,193 $ 270,268 $ 281,491 $ 6,300,393




COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

Agency Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

STATUTORY LIQUIDATOR FUND
ASSETS

Cash with fiscal agents.
Temporary investment:

Long-term investment:
Receivables, net:
Accounts

Accrued interest.

Other assets.

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities..........ccoccvviciriericinien

Securities lending obligation:

Other ligbilities.

TOTAL LIABILITIES

MEDICAL CARE AVAILABILITY AND
REDUCTION OF ERROR FUND
ASSETS

Cash

Temporary investment:

Receivables, net:
Accounts.

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities............ccoverericrinineens

Securities lending obligations.

Due to other fund:

Due to political subdivision:

Due to other government:
Self insurance liabilities.

Other lighilities.

TOTAL LIABILITIES

ALLEGHENY REGIONAL ASSET DISTRICT
SALESAND USE TAX FUND
ASSETS
Cash

Temporary investment:

Receivables, net:
Taxes.

Accrued interest.

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities..........c.oceverienicrininien

Securities lending obligation:

Due to political subdivision:
TOTAL LIABILITIES

UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK
INDEMNIFICATION FUND
ASSETS

Cash

Temporary investment:

Long-term investment:

Receivables, net:
Accrued interest.

Loans.

Investment sale proceed:

Advances to other funds.

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued l1abilities............ooovvveicriiiiicinns

Investment purchases payable.

Securities lending obligations.
Due to other funds.

Due to political subdivisions.
Due to other government

Self insurance liabilities.

Other liahilities.

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Balance

July 1, 2006

63,869
174,781
1,856,381

224,159
358
1,928,428

4,247,976

180
19,457
4,228,339

4,247,976

173,083

5,367
178,450

2,373
19,817

9

244
156,007
178,450

52
14,128

10,438
25
24,643

883
23,760
24,643

596
55,742
74,690

3,097
180
82,500
217,285

16,784
151
6,786

29
41

193,492
217,285

170

Additions

982,149
54,994
2,415,502

41,153

71
399,699
3,893,568

11,566
3,882,002
3,893,568

1,179,342
650,887

1,384

1,831,613

1,431,473
22,695
22

24

16

296

1,454,526

1,533,329
1,043,959

12,086
27

2,589,401

416
437
11,703
12,556

791,057
238,603
206,713

9,051

295

1,245,719

250,003
587
21,440
6

512

3

49
14,965
287,565

Deductions

$ 978,028
119,357
1,954,525

57,141
358
77,018

$ 3,186,427

$ 180
22,382
3,163,865

RN Y

$ 1,179,340
671,822

5,372

$ 1,856,534

$ 1,430,467
25,857

22

24

15

244

23,118

$ 1,479,447

$ 1,533,252
1,043,599

11,435
24

993
10,472

3 nms

$ 791,001
231,120
196,363

8,965
1,067

180
6,000

$ 243,682
151

12,209

6

541

2

41

19,910

$ 276,542

$

Balance

June 30, 2007

67,990
110,418
2,317,358

208,171
71
2,251,109

4,955,117

8,641
4,946,476

4,955,117

2
152,148

1,379
153,529

3,379
16,955

10

296
132,889
153,529

129
14,488

11,089
28
25,734

416
327
24,991
25,734

652
63,225
85,040

566
2,030
295
76,500
228,308

23,105
587
16,017

3

49
188,547
228,308

(continued)



COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

Agency Funds (continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)

MUNICIPAL PENSION AID FUND
ASSETS
Cash

Temporary investment
Receivables, net:
Accrued interest.

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Securities lending obligation:

Due to political subdivisions.
TOTAL LIABILITIES

FIRE INSURANCE TAX FUND
ASSETS
Cash

Temporary investment:

Receivables, net:
Accrued interest.

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Securities lending obligation:

Due to political subdivisions.
TOTAL LIABILITIES

AGENCY CUSTODIAL ACCOUNTS
ASSETS
Cash

Temporary investment:

Receivables, net:
Accounts.

Accrued interest

Other assets.

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.
Other liabilities.

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Balance
July 1, 2006

215,498

802
216,300

13,467
202,833
216,300

87,827
87,827

5,489
82,338
87,827

9,446
13,393

2,242

3,538
28,619

7,527

21,092
28,619

171

Additions

1,395,550
315,115

918

1,711,583

6,572
12,633
19,205

591,231
93,781

348
685,360

5,192
2,165
7,357

8,258
10,661

3,180
3,095

25,195

8,780

16,422
25,202

Deductions

1,395,550
312,758

802

1,709,110

15,129
1,603
16,732

591,231
95,513

686,744

8,741

8,741

4,068
10,659

1,994

3,556
20,277

6,900

13,384
20,284

Balance
June 30, 2007
$ -

217,855

918

$ 218,773
$ 4,910
213,863
3 s
$ -
86,095

348

$ 86,443
$ 1,940
84,503

$ 86,443
$ 13,636
13,395

3,428

1

3,077

$ 33,537
$ 9,407
24,130

$ 33,537

(continued)



COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

Agency Funds (continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

OTHER FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash

Temporary investment:

Receivables, net:
Taxes.

Accrued interest.

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued l1abilities............ooovvveiciiiiiicinnns

Securities lending obligations.

Due to other funds.

Due to component units.

Dueto political subdivisions.

Other liahilities.

TOTAL LIABILITIES

PENNSYLVANIA LIFE AND HEALTH
INSURANCE GUARANTY ASSOCIATION

ASSETS
Cash

Temporary investment

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Other liabilities.

TOTAL LIABILITIES

PENNSYLVANIA PROPERTY AND CASUALTY
INSURANCE GUARANTY ASSOCIATION
ASSETS

Cash

Temporary investment
Long-term investment:

Receivables, net:
Account:

Other

Other assets.

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Other lighilities.

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Balance

July 1, 2006

142
34,527

14,244
51
48,964

173
2,321

43,702
2,768
48,964

4,562
244,817
249,379

249,379
249,379

1911
116,183
7,907

1,125
177,371
151
304,648

304,648
304,648

172

|

»|e

Additions

3,586,882

1,118,261

14,047
65

4,719,255

70,907
1,628
353

1
46,026
128
119,043

28,505
231,765
260,270

20,889
20,889

47,283
19,742

45,796

112,821

24,040
24,040

R R

e

Deductions

3,586,828
1,119,750

14,388
60

4,721,026

70,941
2,918
353

1
46,601

120,814

20,669
218,712
239,381

44,245
47,216
4,418

878
39,203
18
135,978

47,197
47,197

Balance

June 30, 2007

$ 196
33,038

13,903

56

$ 47,193
$ 139
1,031

43,127

2,896

$ 47,193
$ 12,398
257,870

$ 270,268
$  on0268
3 0w
$ 4,949
88,709

3,489

247

183,964

133

$ 281,491
S 281401
$ 281,491

(continued)



COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGESIN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

Agency Funds (continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

July 1, 2006

TOTAL — AGENCY FUNDS
ASSETS
Cash $
Cash with fiscal agents.
Temporary investment:
Long-term investment:
Receivables, net:
Taxes.

Account:
Accrued interest.
Loan

Investment sale proceed

Other
Advances to other funds.
Other assets.

TOTAL ASSETS $

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.............cccoceririciirinnnnce $
Investment purchases payable.
Securities lending obligation:
Due to other funds.
Due to component unit:
Due to political subdivisions.
Due to other government
Self insurance liabilities.
Other liabilities.

TOTAL LIABILITIES $

Balance

16,709
63,869
1,129,979
1,938,978

24,682
232,893
1,716
3,097

180
177,371
82,500
1,932,117

5,604,091

27,037
151
68,220

352,662
11
285

5,155,725
5,604,091

173

$

$

$

$

Additions

9,161,437

982,149
3,777,768
2,622,215

26,133
45,717
10,481

295
45,796

402,794

17,074,785

1,761,579
587
69,530
381

1

73,063

19

345

3,958,446
5,863,951

Balance

Deductions June 30, 2007
$ 9,146,184 $ 31,962
978,028 67,990
3,870,506 1,037,241
2,155,306 2,405,887
25,823 24,992
65,385 213,225
10,209 1,988
1,067 2,030
180 295
39,203 183,964
6,000 76,500
80,592 2,254,319
$ 16,378,483 $ 6,300,393
$ 1,752,170 $ 36,446
151 587
87,929 49,821
381 -
1 -
59,241 366,484
17 13
285 345
3,267,474 5,846,697
$ 5,167,649 $ 6,300,393



Nonmajor
Discretely Presented
Component Units

The Butterfly House at Hershey Gardens
Dauphin County
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NONMAJOR DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
DESCRIPTION

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary
government are financially accountable, or other organizations for which the nature and
significance of the relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause
the reporting entity’ s financia statements to be misleading.

State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA) — issues limited obligation revenue bonds, the proceeds of which are used
to finance the construction of facilities for school districts. These bonds are repaid solely from lease/loan payments from the
schoals.

Philadelphia Shipyard Development Corporation (PSDC) — assists the primary government (PG) and other governmental
entities in financing a shipbuilding facility at the former Philadelphia Naval Shipyard. For the purposes of this report, the
PSDC has a December 31, 2006 fiscal year end.

Ben Franklin Technology Development Authority (BFTDA) — promotes economic development through interaction of
technology development, modernization and training programs. Industrial resource centers and technology centers,
established through the PTDA, also increase Pennsylvania business competitiveness.

Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority (IFPA) — assists in the prevention, discovery, investigation and prosecution of
insurance fraud. The IFPA is funded through assessments paid by the insurance industry and through certain criminal and
civil fines, penalties and awards.

Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority (PHEFA) — issues limited obligation revenue bonds, the proceeds
of which are used to finance the construction of facilities for public/private colleges and universities. These bonds are repaid
solely from lease/loan payments from the colleges and universities.

Patient Safety Trust Authority (PSTA) — takes steps to reduce and eliminate medical errors by identifying problems and
recommending solutions that promote patient safety in hospitals, ambulatory surgical facilities and birthing centers.

Port of Pittsburgh Commission (PPC) — promotes economic development throughout waterways in southwestern
Pennsylvania by constructing and/or financing transportation and recreation facilities.

Pennsylvania I ndustrial Development Authority (PIDA) — collaborates with local industrial development corporations to
make |loans that help preserve or expand the work force, assist targeted economic areas or assist specific companies.

Philadelphia Regional Port Authority (PRPA) — operates a port facility and manages port-related activities to promote
commerce and economic development in southeastern Pennsylvania.

Commonwealth Financing Authority (CFA) — administers and funds economic stimulus programs.

Thaddeus Stevens College of Technology (College) — presents a financial burden to the PG, as the PG appropriates monies
for College operations. The College was financially reported as part of the PG through and including the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2003; legidlation effective July 1, 2003 made the College a legally separate entity.

There are atotal of twenty-two component units; sixteen are discretely presented. The State Employees Retirement System
(SERS) and Public School Employee’ s Retirement System (PSERS) are reported as Pension Trust Funds in the Statement of
Fiduciary Net Assets, while the Pennsylvania Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Association (PLHIGA) and Pennsylvania
Property and Casualty Insurance Guaranty Association (PPCIGA) are reported as Agency Funds. The Pennsylvania
Turnpike Commission (PTC), Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), Pennsylvania Higher Education
Assistance Agency (PHEAA), Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST), and State System of
Higher Education (SSHE) are reported as major component units. The Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing
Authority (PEDFA) and Pennsylvania Energy Development Authority (PEDA) are not reported because their only activities
involve conduit debt.
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
Nonmajor Discretely Presented Component Units

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash

Authority

Philadelphia

State Public Shipyard
School Development
Building Corporation

(December 31, 2006)

Ben Franklin
Technology

Development
Authority

Insurance
Fraud
Prevention
Authority

Pennsylvania
Higher
Educational
Facilities
Authority

Temporary investment:

Receivables:
Accounts

Accrued interest

Loans.

Leaserentals,

Other

Due from primary government

Due from Federal government.

Due from other governments
Inventory.

Prepaid and deferred expenses.
Other assets.

Total current assets

18,495 -

33,222

3,460

Noncurrent assets:

21,462 5114

3,515

Long-term investment:
Receivables (net):
Loans.

Lease rentals.

Non-depreciable capital assets:
Land.

Construction in progres:

Depreciable capital assets:

Land improvement:

Buildings and building improvement;

Machinery and equipment
Library book:

Other capital assets.

Less: accumulated depreciation

Net depreciable capital assets.

8,505 -

1,853 24,432

508 -

(457) -

(46)

Other assets.

51 -

35

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS,

10,409 24,593

35

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

Securities lending obligations.

Due to primary government

31,871 29,707

3,550

Interest payable.
Unearned revenue,

Notes payable.

Revenue bonds payable.

Compensated absences.

Other liabilities.

Total current lighilities,

Non-current liabilities:
Notes payable.

Revenue bond payable.
Compensated absences.

Other liabilities.

Total non-current liabilities.

TOTAL LIABILITIES,

NET ASSETS:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt............cccccveiiiicnns

Restricted for:

Smoking cessation and other health-related programs..................

Capital projects.

1,752 24,436

Debt service.

Economic stimulus.

Other purposes.
Unrestricted,

TOTAL NET ASSETS
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June 30, 2007

Patient Pennsylvania Philadelphia Thaddeus
Safety Port of Industrial Regional Commonwealth Stevens
Trust Pittsburgh Development Port Financing College of
Authority Commission Authority Authority Authority Technology Total
- 4 $ 329 1,011 $ 335,334 1,698 $ 346,915
2,587 2,965 145,328 - - - 202,597
- 2 - 862 - 71 951
- 17 2,129 - 326 - 2,676
- 7 56,171 - 2,367 - 61,446
- - 6,167 607 - - 6,774
- - 3,004 65 - 248 3,407
2,255 - - - - - 2,255
- - - 20 - - 20
- - - - - - 30
- - - - - 298 298
- 33 - 1,122 - 118 1,329
- - - - 5,865 - 5,869
4,842 3,008 213,218 3,687 343,892 2,433 634,567
- - 39,050 - - 1,300 48,855
- 274 463,009 - 122,545 - 650,338
- - 8,380 - - - 8,380
- - - 5,556 - - 5,717
- - - 8,548 - - 8,548
- - - 3,797 - - 3,797
- - - 140,557 - 745 141,302
- 2,106 - 33,609 - 3,446 39,750
- - - - - 485 485
- - - - - 152 152
- (654) - (98,433) - (2,736) (102,326)
- 1,452 - 79,530 - 2,092 83,160
- - 6,526 12,821 - 388 19,735
- 1,726 516,965 106,455 122,545 3,780 824,733
4,842 4,824 730,183 110,142 466,437 6,213 1,459,300
1,550 67 1,284 2,119 6 1,600 11,235
288 - - - - - 3,990
4 - - 34 359 - 398
- - 11,622 - 2,410 - 14,032
- - - 4,690 - 85 4,775
- - - 382 - - 382
- - 32,035 2,200 18,115 - 52,350
- - - 94 - 327 471
- - - 268 - 50 382
1,842 67 44,941 9,787 20,890 2,062 88,015
- - - 2,408 - - 26,840
- 2,000 406,502 41,700 538,316 - 988,518
- 37 - 577 - 1,188 1,978
- - 7,967 3,653 - 389 12,615
- 2,037 414,469 48,338 538,316 1577 1,029,951
1,842 2,104 459,410 58,125 559,206 3,639 1,117,966
- (548) - 44,766 - 2,092 46,557
3,000 - - - - - 3,000
- - - 575 - - 575
- 942 - 6,051 - - 6,993
- 2,326 - 625 - - 72,251
- - - - - 482 33,954
- - 270,773 - (92,769) - 178,004
3,000 2,720 $ 270,773 52,017 $ (92,769) 2,574 $ 341,334
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Nonmajor Discretely Presented Component Units

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands) Philadelphia Pennsylvania
State Public Shipyard Ben Franklin Insurance Higher
School Development Technology Fraud Educational
Building Corporation Development Prevention Facilities
Authority (December 31, 2006) Authority Authority Authority
EXPENSES.....covvirieieieiniticieise ittt $ 323 % 2375 % 50,402 9410 $ 1,238
Program revenues:
Charges for goods and ServiCes...........covueeveeeueeeeneens 1,415 - 530 10,558 1,238
Operating grants and contributions.. 1,331 1,688 52,724 492 -
Capital grantsand contributions.............ccvvevveueeeeenenee. - - - - -
Total program revenUES...........coeeerereeereeereseeeenenes 2,746 1,688 53,254 11,050 1,238
Net (EXPENSE) FEVENUE.........cerereeeerieereee s (489) (687) 2,852 1,640 -
Changein Net assets.........ocoevreerenenenneereeeresieens (489) (687) 2,852 1,640 -
Net assets, July 1, 2006 (restated).........c.oeeeerererunns 30,608 5,958 61,338 1,799 -
Net assets, JuNe 30, 2007 .........ccceeerrerieeeremrereesernenens $ 30,119 $ 5271 $ 64,190 3439 % -
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For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Patient

Pennsylvania Philadelphia Thaddeus
Safety Port of Industrial Regional Commonwealth Stevens
Trust Pittsburgh Development Port Financing College of
Authority Commission Authority Authority Authority Technology Total
3768 $ %0 $ 25903 $ 26411 % 123,475 $ 16,744  $ 263,921
- 91 18,652 6,213 2,240 3,646 44,583
2,852 1,692 11,407 13,802 51,600 12,089 149,677
- - - 10,654 - - 10,654
2,852 1,783 30,059 30,669 53,340 15,735 204,914
(916) 823 4,156 4,258 (69,635) (1,009) (59,007)
(916) 823 4,156 4,258 (69,635) (1,009) (59,007)
3,916 1,897 266,617 47,759 (23,134) 3,583 400,341
3000 $ 2720 % 270,773 $ 52017 % (92,769) $ 2574 % 341,334
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STATISTICAL SECTION June 30, 2007

Satistical Section Table of Contents

Financial Trends

These tablesiillustrate how the Commonwealth’ s financial position has changed over time by providing
information on the Commonwealth’ s net assets, change in net assets, fund balance and changesin fund
balance.

Table 1-Net ASSELS DY COMPONENT .......oouiiiriiitiiei ettt b e e e e e et b et sn e e enes
Tahle 2-ChangeS iN INEE ASSELS......c..eieeie ettt et e sttt e e te et e s teese e eesaeese e tesaeeneesseaneeseesseensesneeneensens
Table 3-Governmental Fund Type FUNA Bal@NCES ........cccveiiriieie e te e e et saeenneennee s
Table 4-Revenues by Source and Expenditures by Function-All Governmental Fund TYPeS ......ccccevvvveeennene.

Revenue Capacity

These tables contain information on the factors that affect the Commonwealth’s ability to generate its
own-source revenues. The Commonwealth's largest source of revenues is taxes. Information for the
three largest is contained within these tables. Personal income, sales and corporation taxes account for
81% of all general revenues for the June 30, 2007 fiscal year (as disclosed in the Statement of Activities).

Table 5-Personal Income Tax-Personal INcCome by INAUSLIY ..........coiiiiiiieiee e
Table 6-Personal Income Tax-Personal Income Tax Filersand Liability by Income Level .........ccccoceveneee.
Table 7-Sales Tax-Estimated Sales by Industry Classification of the Vendor ...........cccccoeveiieieveiecce e,
Table 8-Sales Tax-Sales Tax Remittances by Major Industry ClassifiCation............ccceoererenineneneeieeeeeeiens
Table 9-Corporate Tax-Corporate Net INCOME TaX .......eeiriieierieeieeeesie e et eeeseeseeeeseeeeeseeseeeeeseesneeeeseeeneens
Table 10-Corporate Tax-Capital Stock/Foreign FranChiSe TaX .......cccieeieeieeiieeieerieeseeseeseesee e see e enees

Debt Capacity

These tables contain information on the Commonwealth’' s debt burden as well as information about the
Commonwealth’s ability to issue additional debt.

Table 11-Outstanding Debt and Outstanding Debt RatiOS........c..coeeieiiiieieiiere st
Table 12-Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt OQUESIANING.........c.eeieeieeiiericriecie et
Table 13-Computation of Legal DEDt MaIQiN .........cciiieiieieiiese et ee e e st re e s e sre e esnesreennens

Demogr aphic and Economic | nfor mation

These tables contain information on the socioeconomic environment in which the Commonwealth
operates.

Table 14-Employment by Nonfarm Related INAUSETY .........c.oooeeiieie e
Table 15-Population and Per Capita Personal INCOME...........cceiiiieiiiiiiece it
Table 16-Employment INFOMMELTON .......c.oiiiiieieieeeese sttt b ettt e e b

Operating | nfor mation

These tables provide information about the Commonwealth’ s operations and resources and assist in
relating financial statement information to the Commonwealth’ s economic condition.

Table 17-Commonwealth Employees by FUNCLION @nd AGENCY.......cccouriririnirienieieeeeee s
Table 18-Operating Indicators by FUNCLION AN AGENCY ...e.veiueeierieeeenie et steeee e ee e ree e e e see e eeeseeeneens
Table 19-Capital Asset Information by FUNCLION @NA AGENCY ....ccveiueeeieiieceece ettt s
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FINANCIAL TRENDS TABLE 1
Net Assets by Component The Last Six Fiscal Years As of June 30

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Accrual basis of accounting-expressed in thousands)

(Restated)
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt...........ocvveeeeereeercereere s $ 14806435 $ 16106064 $ 16944913 $ 18258125 $ 19,068573 $ 20,015,677
Restricted for:
Smoking cessation and other health-related programs............occceevereeeeeirencenns N/A N/A N/A 1,215,291 1,320,703 1,454,502
TIANSPOTTAIION. ...t esee et ese et ees e se et esseeneas 605,606 553,212 775,900 990,743 1,578,753 1,266,928
Capital projects... 3,937 301,628 245,926 173,790 196,301 213,556
Debt service........ - 32,685 61,029 83,885 8,118 20,474
Unemployment/worker's COMPENSatiON...........ccurureieueireneseeeiseneeieeseseeieeseenas 141,678 48,847 - - 29,754 104,579
Elderly programs........c.oeeeereeeeneeresensereneneens 1,434 111,659 90,713 92,531 32,327 10,808
Environmental and conservation programs. 480,182 445,350 430,071 420,600 435,976 473,210
Economic stimulus. N/A N/A N/A N/A 18,171 16,217
Gaming licensing/regUIBLION..........cc.eueveeireririeieireeeee e N/A N/A N/A N/A 2,128 299,396
Correctional industries and procurement.... N/A N/A N/A N/A 133,934 30,348
Emergency support.... N/A N/A N/A N/A 56,543 60,917
Other purposes 384,027 1,003,117 1,366,072 303,409 82,770 87,077
(81010 1o ='o I (oI T T 1,312,334 (603,472) (228,981) (739,160) (372,089) 343,162
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIESNET ASSETS....cccocoenieens 17,735,633 17,999,090 19,685,643 20,799,214 22,591,962 24,396,851
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt...........ocvveeecererencercenee s 30,426 42,421 45,927 46,567 82,694 56,010
Restricted for:
Smoking cessation and other health-related programs..... N/A N/A N/A - 4,814 2,413
Transportation 30,336 31,742 33,227 50,433 52,960 58,085
Unemployment/worker's COMPENSatiON...........cceurerieueireneeeeinenesieeseseeieesenenas 2,836,069 1,960,499 1,506,877 1,808,170 2,397,720 2,547,726
Elderly programs. 180,814 142,284 158,343 291,329 325,925 340,836
Economic stimulus. N/A N/A N/A N/A 212,792 288,246
Emergency support.... N/A N/A N/A N/A 126,505 129,546
OLNET PUMPOSES. ... e eeeeeeeeseereseeeeseseeeesesseseesesessessssessssesseesesassesssessssnssssssssssasane 422,971 361,993 403,527 450,961 152,629 165,168
Unrestricted (deficit) (26,005) (71,756) (47,849) (43,812) - -
TOTAL BUSINESSTYPE ACTIVITIESNET ASSETS. 3,474,611 2,467,183 2,100,052 2,603,648 3,356,039 3,588,030
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt...........ovurveeerererereeriere s 14,836,861 16,148,485 16,990,840 18,304,692 19,151,267 20,071,687
Restricted for:
Smoking cessation and other health-related programs............ccoeveeereeeerreniennns N/A N/A N/A 1,215,291 1,325,517 1,456,915
Transportation 635,942 584,954 809,127 1,041,176 1,631,713 1,325,013
Capital projects... 3,937 301,628 245,926 173,790 196,301 213,556
DIEDE SEIVICE. ...eceeeeceeereireie ettt ettt nnsenas - 32,685 61,029 83,885 8,118 20,474
Unemployment/worker's compensation.. 2,977,747 2,009,346 1,506,877 1,808,170 2,427,474 2,652,305
Elderly programs.... 182,248 253,943 249,056 383,860 358,252 351,644
Environmental and conservation programs.... 480,182 445,350 430,071 420,600 435,976 473,210
ECONOMIC SMUIUS......cveeeeeeeeeeceeeeeeeeeeteeee ettt eae e se e seeneneas N/A N/A N/A N/A 230,963 304,463
Gaming licensing/regulation N/A N/A N/A N/A 2,128 299,396
Correctional industries and procurement.... N/A N/A N/A N/A 133,934 30,348
EMEIQENCY SUPPOM......ucecueiireeeieereseeeeeiseseieessseseisass s seenesesssaens N/A N/A N/A N/A 183,048 190,463
OLNET PUMPOSES. ..o ereeeseereereseeeeeeseeeeseseesessesessesssseesesesseesesessessssesssesssessessssasane 806,998 1,365,110 1,769,599 754,370 235,399 252,245
Unrestricted (deficit) 1,286,329 (675,228) (276,830) (782,972) (372,089) 343,162

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT NET ASSETS..

$ 21210244 $ 20466273 $ 21785695 $ 23402862 $ 25948001 $ 27,984,881

Sour ce: Statement of Net Assets, as presented in the Commonwealth's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the applicable fiscal year.

Note: This schedule presents information beginning with the 2002 fiscal year, when the Commonwealth implemented GASB Statement 34. Also, since implementation additional restricted net asset
categories have been created to provide amore refined description of the restrictions. These restrictions were not applied retroactively and are marked with N/A in the years prior to the creation of the
new restricted net asset category. These new categories were created either for new funds or funds previously reported in the "Other purposes” category. The "Gaming licensing/regulation” category
was created for anew fund, the Gaming Fund, in the 2006 fiscal year. The most significant fund previously reported in the "Other purposes' category that is now being reported in a new classification|
is the Tobacco Settlement Fund, amajor governmental fund type, which beginning with the 2005 fiscal year is now being reported in the " Smoking cessation and other health-related programs”
category. Other notable funds being reported in new categories are the Internal Service funds-reported in the "Correctional industries and procurement” category; Machinery and Equipment Loan
Fund and Small Business First Fund (both Proprietary fund types)-reported in the "Economic Stimulus' category; and the VVolunteer Companies Loan Fund (a Proprietary fund type)-reported in the
"Emergency support” category.
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FINANCIAL TRENDS
Changes in Net Assets

TABLE 2

For the Last Six Fiscal Years Ended June 30

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Accrual basis of accounting-expressed in thousands)

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:

Expenses:

Direction and SUPPOItIVE SEIVICES..........ceurrirerrerirerrereieeneseesessseierssienenne
Protection of persons and property
Public education
Health and human services
Economic development.
Transportation.....
Recreation and cultural enrichment.
Interest .

TOLAl EXPENSES. ..ottt

Program revenues:
Charges for sales and services:
Direction and SUPPOIIVE SEIVICES.........c.euvurermrrreernieeiereieieereeeneenes
Protection of persons and property ..
Public education
Health and human services.
Economic development.
Transportation...
Recreation and cultural enrichment..
Operating grants and contributions.
Capital grants and contributions..
Total program revenues,

Total governmental activities net program revenues/(expenses).......
General revenues and other changes in net assets:

General revenues:
Taxes:
Personal income
Sales and use..
Corporation....
Liquid fuels and motor carriers..

Inheritance..
Cigarette..

Total taxes...

Investment income

Total general revenues..
Special item-revenues from component unit..
Transfers from business-type activities
Net general revenues, special items and transfers.............c.cccoovvene

Total governmental activities change in net assets.............ccovveenenee

(Restated)
2002

$ 1,262,359
3,758,867
9,642,272

18,893,434
1,416,557
2,581,898

481,948
344,482
38,381,817

393,856
373,329
6,043
2,095,669
145,119
956,406
188,829
13,122,608
125,502
17,407,361

20,974,456

6,713,861
7,419,373
3,160,714
1,696,418
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
1,642,731
20,633,097

15,394
20,648,491
256,206
481,022
21,385,719

411,263

2003

$ 1,024,071
3,921,413
10,219,211
20,454,323
1,455,272
2,998,824
435,864
370,284
40,879,262

347,910
627,529
2,049,640
142,914
914,129
143,221
14,574,283
136,140
18,935,766

21,943,496

6,691,957
7,511,233
3,418,599
1,666,795
N/A
634,365
N/A

N/A
1,616,368
21,539,317

115,829
21,655,146
551,807
22,206,953

263,457

2004

$ 2,034,883
3,873,972
10,571,307
21,750,153
1,340,015
3,164,086
394,273
341,455
43,470,144

1,097,730
925,502
3,514
1,297,338
1,011
1,008,886
138,750
16,556,717
30,473
21,059,921

(22,410,223)

7,352,877
7,654,405
4,004,112
1,723,816
N/A
726,605
933,973
N/A
893,589
23,289,377

199,151
23,488,528

422,786
23,911,314

1,501,091

2005

$ 2,229,850
4,244,332
11,428,452
24,166,791
1,314,636
3,261,642
448,585
296,267
47,390,555

1,377,293
831,785

1,702

2,871,487
11,028
1,029,406
153,641
16,773,012
14,944
23,064,298

(24,326,257)

8,312,440
7,917,396
4,400,995
1,863,223
N/A
668,992
811,578
N/A
992,343
24,966,967

131,629
25,098,596
341,232
25,439,828

1,113,571

2006

$ 2,162,552
4,439,794
11,816,608
24,139,762
1,409,506
3,229,351
520,330
337,142
48,055,045

991,541
1,080,708
13,161
1,913,377
16,373
949,533
166,750
16,532,924
55,761
21,720,128

(26,334,917)

9,093,338
8,381,262
5,074,730
2,033,227
N/A
793,279
1,033,099
646,870
418,110
27,473,915

188,750
27,662,665

465,000
28,127,665

1,792,748

2007

$ 1,208,409
4,487,633
12,464,663
24,264,933
1,738,172
3,922,517
569,510
344,557
49,000,394

143,290
1,309,256
14,793
1,730,965
12,277
952,866
162,168
17,229,000
23,495
21,578,110

(27,422,284)

9,951,585
8,629,815
4,985,031
2,072,442
251,059
716,788
983,580
583,991
475,197
28,649,488

320,342
28,969,830
257,343
29,227,173

1,804,889
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FINANCIAL TRENDS
Changes in Net Assets

TABLE 2

For the Last Six Fiscal Years Ended June 30

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Accrual basis of accounting-expressed in thousands)

(Restated)
2002 2003 2004
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
Expenses
State lottery 1,682,675 1,827,306 2,051,646
State workers' insurance 174,929 225,483 435,429
Tuition payment............. 191,188 288,118 293,737
Unemployment compensation.. 2,819,878 3,470,257 2,563,318
Liquor control 907,261 954,763 1,024,365
Economic development and other... 16,820 12,663 13,980
TOLAl EXPENSES. ....coveeiiieieieieeie ettt 5,792,751 6,778,590 6,382,475
Program revenues
Charges for sales and services:
SEALE TOETY......eoeeeciciccie s 1,955,820 2,103,644 2,349,644
State workers' insurance.. 149,688 180,664 266,551
Tuition payment.............. 151,149 234,460 206,739
Unemployment compensation 1,862,530 1,532,213 1,628,215
Liquor control...........cccovurinene 975,300 1,025,813 1,121,853
Economic development and other. 24,031 15,878 21,467
Operating grants and contributions. 463,554 1,223,591 840,763
Capital grants and contributions . - 6,706 1,121
Total Program FEVENUES..........coueeiereruereeerereierseesesseeseeseseseessssees 5,682,072 6,322,969 6,436,353
Total business-type activities net program revenues/(expenses)........ (210,679) (455,621) 53,878
Other changes in net assets
Transfers to governmental actiVities............ccoovvviernienccncens (481,022) (551,807) (422,786)
Total business-type activities change in net assets, (691,701) (1,007,428) (368,908)
Total primary government change in net assets. $  (280438) $ (743,971) $ 1,132,183

2005

2,298,417
449,880
192,802

1,774,676

1,088,875

16,456

5,821,106

2,644,407
355,883
141,817

1,961,085

1,183,667

17,201
361,874

6,665,934

844,828

(341,232)

503,596

1,617,167

$

2006

2,704,265
412,104
138,275

1,998,613

1,178,434

18,433

6,450,124

3,047,978
427,970
113,831

2,373,163

1,272,101

17,585
414,887

7,667,515

1,217,391

(465,000)

752,391

2,545,139

2007

3,100,523
553,512
267,941

2,074,382

1,277,871

14,470

7,288,699

3,076,013
374,088
151,121

2,172,900

1,364,524

20,068
619,319

7,778,033

489,334

(257,343)

231,991
2036880

Source: Statement of Activities, as presented in the Commonwealth's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the applicable fiscal year.

Note: This schedule presents information beginning with the 2002 fiscal year, when the Commonwealth implemented GASB Statement 34. With the original implementation, inheritance, cigarette and real estate taxes were reported within the "Other" taxes category.
To provide a more refined description of the Commonwealth's taxes, separate captions were created in the Statement of Activities for these taxes in succeeding fiscal years. Beginning with the 2003 fiscal year, inheritance taxes were reported separately; in the 2004
fiscal year, cigarette taxes were reported separately; and in the 2006 fiscal year, real estate taxes were reported separately. These captions are marked with N/A in the fiscal years prior to when the particular tax was reported separate from the "Other" taxes category.

During the 2007 fiscal year, the first licensed gaming facilities opened and the resulting taxes from their activities were reported in the Gaming Fund, a special revenue fund.
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FINANCIAL TRENDS
Governmental Fund Type Fund Balances

TABLE 3
The Last Ten Fiscal Years As of June 30

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Modified accrual basis of accounting-expressed in thousands)

(Restated)
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 (1) 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
GENERAL FUND
Reserved for:
ENCUmbIranCes..........c.occiviiiisicincnsees $ 224929 % 279912  $ 397,827 % 426,956 $ 479314  $ 341881 $ 259,178  $ 617,861 $ 709,115 $ 570,027
Advances.......... . 74,808 74,808 20,808 52,808 29,111 114,108 114,108 114,108 114,108 114,108
Loans receivable...... - - - - - 9,470 6,283 4,496 10,953 11,113
Tax Stabilization/Budget Stabilization Reserve (2).... - 944,031 1,104,954 1,093,213 - - - 70,303 171,362 538,764
Oher. ..o 17,502 329,014 362,027 308,125 286,711 307,974 501,901 621,004 454,639 844,229
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Budget Stabilization Reserve Fund... - - - - 300,000 - 70,303 - - -
Other......... 1,144,001 180,490 677,897 1,079,047 323,884 269,775 421,415 514,174 719,414 923,966
Undesignated.. 497,641 1,055,165 1,700,128 1,524,846 1,603,822 1,314,505 1,633,326 927,163 789,958 368,659
TOTAL GENERAL FUND.... 1,958,881 2,863,420 4,263,641 4,484,995 3,022,842 2,357,713 3,006,514 2,869,109 2,969,549 3,370,866
ALL OTHER GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Reserved for:
Encumbrances.. 1,041,392 916,662 1,233,014 1,220,710 1,336,227 1,168,535 1,444,875 1,454,129 1,630,382 1,927,151
Advances... 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 223,000 210,000 3,000 3,000
Loans receivable.. 70,803 60,483 68,834 56,264 39,963 38,186 39,804 32,065 32,684 39,859
16,976 31,754 38,020 38,050 407,029 445,411 560,284 817,668 857,253 1,329,707
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Capital Projects........ccveiiiininisiiieienssieiies 86,981 81,817 86,644 79,867 79,286 54,026 96,787 133,024 131,026 65,455
Debt service:

Retirement of general obligation bonds... 195,691 396,847 409,762 152,085 21,887 32,685 61,029 83,885 8,118 20,474
Highways.... 223,234 213,622 250,743 182,670 175,249 215,946 209,647 218,885 203,118 235,730
Other.... 33,552 275 264 264 12 - - 4,355 4,528 11,268

Unreserved: Undesignated, reported in:
Special Revenue funds 891,798 983,723 992,985 970,427 1,791,400 1,703,534 1,520,236 1,631,980 2,412,047 1,971,829
Debt Service funds (deficit). (40) - (53) 8) (3,782) - - - - -
Capital Projects funds (deficit)... (730,438) (399,809) (710,378) (668,091) (494,795) (398,644) (368,295) (473,110) (601,823) (449,622)
TOTAL ALL OTHER
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 1832949 $ 2283374 $ 2372835 $ 2035238 $ 3355476 $ 3262679 $ 3787367 $ 4112881 $ 4680333 $ 5,154,851

Notes:

governmental fund type classification.

Source: The Commonwealth's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, as presented for the applicable fiscal year. For fiscal years 1998-2001, the information can be found in the Combined Balance Sheet-All Fund Types, Account Groups and
Discretely Presented Component Units statement. Beginning with the 2002 fiscal year, the information can be found in the Balance Sheet-Governmental Funds statement.

(1)-Beginning with the 2002 fiscal year, the Commonwealth implemented GASB Statement 34. As a result, two funds (State Lottery Fund and Historical Preservation Fund) were reclassified from the Special Revenue governmental fund type
classification to a Proprietary fund type classification. Two additional funds (Workmen's Compensation Security Trust Fund and Catastrophic Loss Trust Fund) were reclassified from an Expendable Trust fund type classification to a Special Revenue

(2)-The Tax Stabilization Fund was abolished and its last year of existence was the 2001 fiscal year. In the 2002 fiscal year, the new Budget Stabilization Reserve Fund was created by Act 91 of 2002. The reservations for both funds are reported on the
same line because they are considered to be the Commonwealth's Rainy Day Fund within the General Fund. Note A in the Notes to the Financial Statements provides additional details.
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FINANCIAL TRENDS

Revenues by Source and Expenditures by Function-All Governmental Fund Types

TABLE 4

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years Ended June 30

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Modified accrual basis of accounting-expressed in thousands)

(Restated)
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 (1) 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
REVENUES BY SOURCE
Taxes $ 19,043,735 $ 20,105276 $ 20,956,743 $ 21,232,196 $ 20,636,762 $ 21,469,170 $ 23,237,117 $ 24973125 $ 27,117,823 $ 28,548,280
Licenses and fees. 1,004,050 1,019,256 1,143,789 1,172,372 1,246,232 1,350,016 1,475,948 1,568,659 1,611,868 1,954,788
Intergovernmental 9,669,407 10,563,455 11,093,738 12,086,372 13,259,463 14,575,716 16,379,096 16,585,336 16,347,975 16,891,212
Charges for sales and services. 1,697,933 2,057,375 2,489,196 2,388,536 2,535,775 2,019,842 2,068,019 4,027,745 2,970,585 1,598,564
Investment income. 225,805 258,525 396,499 307,202 29,615 249,791 402,132 322,199 425,356 769,820
Lottery receipts (2) 1,684,015 1,659,305 1,695,371 1,788,333 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Other (3) 178,042 214,254 656,086 539,830 755,226 837,918 957,494 552,422 576,180 607,201
TOTAL REVENUES 33,502,987 35,877,446 38,431,422 39,514,841 38,463,073 40,502,453 44,519,806 48,029,486 49,049,787 50,369,865
EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION
Direction and supportive services . 2,586,529 2,722,917 2,817,426 3,292,188 968,563 914,794 1,538,729 2,134,421 2,337,112 1,104,793
Protection of persons and property. 2,613,021 2,785,269 2,933,612 3,044,074 3,876,449 3,882,843 3,886,666 3,892,572 4,410,969 4,621,119
Health and human services. 14,341,539 15,320,410 16,486,542 17,483,315 18,990,802 20,510,849 21,689,392 24,118,288 24,103,077 24,293,011
Public education 7,714,443 7,842,732 8,283,144 8,677,284 8,814,273 10,198,076 10,529,504 11,400,985 11,731,884 12,439,920
Recreation and cultural enrichment... 396,087 436,601 510,732 568,757 480,245 471,920 382,179 442,783 447,264 544,117
Economic development. 338,984 469,005 539,068 745,143 1,245,292 1,507,584 1,334,071 1,310,093 1,413,995 1,736,388
Transportation 3,243,334 3,654,269 3,679,188 4,065,124 4,003,291 3,935,785 2,310,434 2,607,793 2,448,165 3,089,544
Capital outlay. 360,238 582,863 586,801 655,248 694,219 407,080 2,008,141 1,805,913 2,082,644 2,121,632
Debt service:
Principal retirement 435,090 443,675 479,350 477,001 479,395 998,396 455,890 478,112 492,355 521,773
Interest and fiscal charge: 263,356 262,669 277,044 281,590 278,428 313,681 311,686 320,887 348,418 361,088
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ......ccoovviiiirininisninnininnes 32,292,621 34,520,410 36,592,907 39,289,724 39,830,957 43,141,008 44,446,692 48,511,847 49,815,883 50,833,385
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES.........cooooniiiniiciniiniinenins 1,210,366 1,357,036 1,838,515 225,117 (1,367,884) (2,638,555) 73,114 (482,361) (766,096) (463,520)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES)
Bonds issued 415,135 856,839 590,731 663,919 1,042,813 1,324,167 625,247 401,816 914,000 1,008,104
Refunding bonds issued - - - - 376,854 837,991 459,223 1,468,439 - 250,557
Premium on bonds/refunding bonds issued.............cccccoceunnee - - - - - - 88,006 197,291 54,420 58,166
Discount on bonds issued - - - - - - - - - (157)
Transfers in 1,179,051 1,344,985 1,372,501 1,097,698 2,272,414 1,729,539 1,337,090 1,276,443 1,408,351 1,463,620
Transfers out (1,126,251) (1,292,832) (1,320,181) (1,056,533) (1,791,392) (1,177,733) (914,304) (1,035,211) (943,351) (1,188,779)
Transfers from component units (4).. - - - - 256,206 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Transfers to component units (4)... (760,758) (781,636) (833,976) (877,609) (1,079,197) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent.. . - - - - (376,854) (837,991) (511,884) (1,639,510) - (253,892)
Capital lease and installment purchase obligations................. 5,250 28,835 14,556 6,607 5,767 4,656 1,535 1,202 568 1,736
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/(USES)...... (287,573) 156,191 (176,369) (165,918) 706,611 1,880,629 1,084,913 670,470 1,433,988 1,339,355
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES.. $ 922,793 $ 1513227 $ 1,662,146 $ 59,199 $ (661,273) $ (757,926) $ 1,158,027 $ 188,109 $ 667,892 $ 875,835
Debt Service as a Percentage of Noncapital Expenditures (5) 2.19% 2.08% 2.10% 1.96% 1.94% 3.07% 1.81% 1.71% 1.76% 1.81%

Source: The Commonwealth's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, as presented for the applicable fiscal year. For fiscal years 1998-2001, the information can be found in the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance statement. Beginning with the 2002 fiscal year, the information can be found in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-Governmental Funds statement.

Notes:

(1)-Beginning with the 2002 fiscal year, the Commonwealth implemented GASB Statement 34. As a result, two funds (State Lottery Fund and Historical Preservation Fund) were reclassified from the Special Revenue governmental fund type
classification to a Proprietary fund type classification. Two additional funds (Workmen's Compensation Security Trust Fund and Catastrophic Loss Trust Fund) were reclassified from an Expendable Trust fund type classification to a Special
Revenue governmental fund type classification.

(2)-The change in the State Lottery fund type classification was not retroactively applied, thus the lottery receipts are reported in the Governmental Fund Types through the 2001 fiscal year. Subsequent years after the reclassification are marked
with an N/A.

(3)-Other revenues include immaterial amounts of lease rentals revenues and interest on notes and loans.

(4)-With the implementation of GASB Statement 34, the Commonwealth was required to begin reporting transfers from and to component units as ordinary revenues and expenditures. These changes were made to the Commonwealth's accounting
system beginning with the 2003 fiscal year and were not retroactively applied. Subsequent fiscal years are marked with a N/A.

(5)-Ratio is calculated as Principal Retirement plus Interest and Fiscal Charges divided by Total Expenditures less Capital Outlay. There are no expenditures for capitalized assets contained within the functional expenditure categories.




REVENUE CAPACITY-PERSONAL INCOME TAX TABLES
Personal Income by Industry For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Millions)

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003(1) 2004(1) 2005(1) 2006

TOTAL PERSONAL INCOME BY INDUSTRY (2)
Workplace Earnings:
Farm Earnings. $ 786 $ 921 $ 881 $ 1,148 $ 943 $ 675 $ 1,103 $ 1,304 $ 1,115 $ 947
Nonfarm Earnings:
Private earnings:

Forestry, fishing/hunting, agriculture...................... 359 416 445 509 553 466 450 422 448 463
Mining 1,552 1,475 1,463 1,406 1,703 1,517 1,657 1,936 2,105 2,421
Utilities 2,730 2,821 2,912 3,153 3,311 3,593 3,490 3,625 3,586 3,422
Construction. 12,358 13,188 15,007 15,258 16,019 16,406 17,208 18,254 19,967 21,141
Manufacturing 41,486 43,083 44,471 47,143 45,299 45,458 44,253 45,448 46,438 47,948
Wholesale trade. 10,602 11,557 12,128 12,936 13,273 13,680 14,497 15,695 16,703 17,708
Retail trade. 16,067 17,014 17,874 18,213 19,174 19,391 20,067 20,186 20,686 21,025
Transportation and WarehouSINg............c.evererecnens 8,025 8,706 9,265 9,874 10,485 10,606 10,688 11,743 11,991 12,541
Broadcasting/publishing/internet technology........... 6,619 7,362 8,125 8,798 9,007 8,511 8,925 9,092 9,419 9,833
Finance and insurance. 14,655 16,063 17,144 18,678 18,792 19,708 20,518 22,493 23,343 24,913
Real estate and rental and leasing.. 3,613 5,313 4,869 5,872 5,504 5,652 6,222 6,543 6,712 6,559
Professional and technical services... 18,530 21,172 23,602 25,184 25,716 25,726 26,226 28,439 30,819 33,182
Management of companies and enterprises.. . 4,875 4,168 4,540 4,205 4,726 5,144 6,629 7,854 9,047 9,926
Administrative services 7,079 7,601 8,080 8,498 8,514 8,864 8,788 9,521 9,995 10,408
Educational services, 5,289 5,622 5,897 6,342 6,837 7,332 7,721 8,141 8,541 8,962
Health care and social assistance... 26,774 27,991 29,109 30,410 31,467 33,702 35,461 38,357 39,896 42,450
Arts, entertainment, and recreation. 1,828 1,987 2,130 2,359 2,330 2,473 2,663 2,745 2,837 3,021
Accommodation and food services. 5,086 5,310 5,576 5,873 6,129 6,470 6,693 6,999 7,243 7,564
Other services, except public administration. 7,112 7,580 7,846 8,285 8,242 8,889 9,160 9,489 9,942 10,289
Total private earnings. 194,639 208,429 220,483 232,996 237,081 243,588 251,316 266,982 279,718 293,776
Government:
Federal, civilian 6,794 6,842 7,005 7,460 7,633 7,971 8,196 8,807 9,175 9,564
Military. 842 830 863 882 992 1,198 1,623 1,697 1,823 1,776
State government 6,494 6,659 6,833 7,089 7,422 7,900 8,430 8,556 8,764 9,097
Local government 17,016 18,156 17,928 18,593 19,327 20,429 21,464 22,648 23,409 24,200
Total government €arnNings..........c.coeevvreeeneenns 31,146 32,487 32,629 34,024 35,374 37,498 39,713 41,708 43,171 44,637
Total nonfarm earnings... 225,785 240,916 253,112 267,020 272,455 281,086 291,029 308,690 322,889 338,413
Total workplace earnings.. 226,571 241,837 253,993 268,168 273,398 281,761 292,132 309,994 324,004 339,360
Other earnings/deductions (3). 84,936 88,324 88,619 96,669 98,941 100,491 101,776 103,907 107,832 117,069
Total personal iNCOME........cuveeeeerererereeereraes $ 311,507 $ 330,161 $ 342,612 $ 364,837 $ 372,339 $ 382,252 $ 393,908 $ 413,901 $ 431,836 $ 456,429
Total personal income subject
to the direct personal incometax rate (4)(5)........ $ 202,024 $ 215,027 $ 224,591 $ 237,070 $ 230,926 $ 229,685 $ 237,961 250,921 N/A N/A
Direct personal incometax rate...........coceeneeeneiene 2.80% 2.80% 2.80% 2.80% 2.80% 2.80% 2.80% 3.07% 3.07% 3.07%

Sour ces:

Personal income by industry are provided by the U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis through estimates released September 2007 (http://www.bea.gov/bea/regional/spi/default.cfm).

Total personal income subject to the direct tax rate and the direct personal income tax rate are provided by the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue.

Notes:

(1)-Calendar years 2003-2005 differ from the totals shown in the Commonwealth's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for June 30, 2006. The amounts shown in the prior year were based on estimates released by the U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of
Economic Analysisin September 2006. These estimates have subsequently been revised (as provided in March and September 2007 rel eases).

(2)-Personal income by industry are reported under the North American Industry Classification System (N.A.I.C.S. Group).

(3)-Other earnings/deductions include dividends, interest and miscellaneous employee/employer contributions/deductions.

(4)-Total persona income subject to the direct personal income tax rate consists of taxable compensation, interest, dividends, net profits and other income, prior to the application of varioustax credits. Thisamount is self-assessed by the taxpayer on their tax returns
for the tax year. Due to the complexity and length of the tax return filing and review process, the total compilation is not yet available for release by the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue for the 2005 and 2006 tax years.

(5)-Thisinformation is presented by tax year, rather than by calendar year, as the personal income by industry is presented. Anindividual filer'stax year is defined as that period for which that person must file atax return. Generally, many filers have the last day of
their filing year fall on December 31st; however, for various reasons, other filers have afiling year that falls on a different date (i.e. March 31st). The information presented is based on those returns of the filers whose tax year ended during the the applicable
calendar year.




REVENUE CAPACITY-PERSONAL INCOME TAX TABLE 6
Personal Income Tax Filersand Liability by Income L evel 1995 and 2004 Tax Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Liability Expressed in Thousands)

1995 Tax Year (1)(2)(3) 2004 Tax Year (1)(2)(3)
Per sonal Per sonal
Number Per centage Income Per centage Number Per centage Income Per centage

Taxable of of Tax of Taxable of of Tax of
Income L evel Filers Total (5) Liability(4) Total Income L evel Filers Total (5) Liability(4) Total

$0 65,009 117% $ - 0.00% $0 85,100 150% $ - 0.00%
$1-999 452,355 8.14% 5,551 0.11%  $1-999 410,015 7.24% 4,937 0.06%
$1,000-2,999 535,496 9.64% 28,950 0.59%  $1,000-2,999 418,962 7.40% 24,928 0.32%
$3,000-4,999 388,002 6.99% 43,012 0.87%  $3,000-4,999 314,283 5.55% 38,193 0.50%
$5,000-6,999 308,751 5.56% 51,486 1.04%  $5,000-6,999 252,227 4.45% 46,180 0.60%
$7,000-8,999 235,223 4.23% 52,503 1.06%  $7,000-8,999 210,303 3.71% 51,448 0.67%
$9,000-10,999 199,681 3.59% 55,748 1.13%  $9,000-10,999 181,442 3.20% 55,616 0.72%
$11,000-12,999 183,061 3.30% 61,440 1.25%  $11,000-12,999 167,445 2.96% 61,609 0.80%
$13,000-14,999 172,156 3.10% 67,442 1.37%  $13,000-14,999 155,060 2.74% 66,590 0.86%
$15,000-16,999 165,538 2.98% 74,104 150%  $15,000-16,999 149,055 2.63% 73,176 0.95%
$17,000-18,999 158,733 2.86% 79,979 1.62%  $17,000-18,999 143,605 2.54% 79,333 1.03%
$19,000-21,999 224,658 4.04% 128,829 2.61%  $19,000-21,999 209,511 3.70% 131,812 1.71%
$22,000-24,999 206,996 3.73% 136,088 2.76%  $22,000-24,999 199,842 3.53% 144,110 1.87%
$25,000-29,999 309,669 5.58% 237,850 4.82%  $25,000-29,999 307,911 5.44% 259,440 3.37%
$30,000-34,999 272,906 4.91% 247,936 5.03%  $30,000-34,999 270,966 4.79% 269,875 3.50%
$35,000-39,999 244,298 4.40% 256,141 519%  $35,000-39,999 236,982 4.19% 272,407 3.54%
$40,000-49,999 404,071 7.21% 506,620 10.27%  $40,000-49,999 396,348 7.00% 545,093 7.08%
$50,000-74,999 583,373 10.50% 989,941 20.07%  $50,000-74,999 682,958 12.06% 1,286,790 16.70%
$75,000-99,999 220,399 3.97% 527,610 10.70%  $75,000-99,999 374,536 6.61% 990,164 12.85%
$100,000-149,999 129,871 2.34% 432,386 8.77%  $100,000-149,999 289,397 5.11% 1,064,139 13.81%
$150,000 or more 94,165 1.70% 948,153 19.23%  $150,000 or more 206,506 3.65% 2,237,435 29.05%
Total (5) 5,554,411 100.00% $ 4,931,769 100.00%  Total 5,662,454 100.00% $ 7,703,275 100.00%

Sour ces:
The number of filers per taxable income level, the personal income subject to the direct personal income tax rate per income level (used in the Personal
Income Tax Liability estimation) and the direct persona income tax rate are provided by the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue.

Notes:

(2)-Due to statutory requirements protecting taxpayer identification (confidentiality provisions), the Commonwealth can not disclose the names of the ten
largest personal income tax filers. Therefore, this scheduleis presented as an alternative comparison regarding the sources of the Commonwealth's personal
income tax revenue.

(2)-Anindividud filer's tax year is defined as that period for which that person must file atax return. Generally, many filers have the last day of their filing
year fall on December 31st; however, for various reasons, other filers have afiling year that falls on a different date (i.e. March 31st). Thistable presents
information based on all filers whose tax year ended during the the 1995 or 2004 calendar years.

(3)-Also, due to the complexity and length of the tax return filing and review process, the total compilation of personal income subject to the direct tax rate
per income level was not yet available for release by the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue for the 2005 and 2006 tax years. This compilationisused in
the calculation of the estimated personal income tax liability. Therefore, the 1995 and 2004 tax years are presented as an alternative comparison.

(4)-The estimated total personal income tax liability is calculated by multiplying the total personal income (as self-assessed by the individual tax filer) for
the income level by the tax rate applicable during the tax year. The estimated liability is presented before any applicable tax credits were applied. For the
1995 tax year, the direct tax rate in effect was 2.80% for al income levels, while the rate increased to 3.07% for the 2004 tax year.

(5)-Totals may not foot due to rounding.
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REVENUE CAPACITY-SALESTAX TABLE 7
Estimated Taxable Sales by Industry Classification of the Vendor For the Last Ten Fiscal Years Ended June 30

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

By S.I.C. Group (2) By N.A.I.C.S. Group (2)
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 (3) 2003 (3) 2004 (3) 2005 (3) 2006 (3)(4)
Estimated Taxable Sales by Industry (1)
Manufacturing. $ 5,842,000 $ 6,060,783 $ 6,698,400 $ 6,812,867 $ 6,241,417 $ 5,712,633 $ 6,222,633 $ 6,386,100 $ 6,858,033 $ 7,107,483
Public utilities. 8,321,367 8,521,333 9,287,767 9,736,283 3,991,083 3,920,667 3,981,383 4,229,717 4,473,817 4,667,117
Wholesale trade. 3,723,517 3,743,100 3,868,450 4,037,633 10,142,600 9,687,583 7,625,950 7,987,583 9,112,350 11,407,750
Building material 6,320,167 5,948,183 6,298,083 6,741,133 6,654,533 6,969,217 7,216,967 8,209,967 8,719,850 9,607,267
Genera merchandise. 7,482,583 7,472,933 7,961,050 8,262,033 9,039,983 16,724,483 17,595,700 18,383,833 18,243,083 18,766,300
Food and beverage Stores............oceueeeeereereereerenens 11,899,567 12,059,150 12,950,617 13,337,550 12,875,267 5,353,500 5,602,267 5,770,967 5,764,533 5,859,017
Automotive dealers. 2,765,667 2,860,067 3,211,517 3,418,567 4,994,600 3,163,400 3,329,383 3,487,217 3,691,150 3,761,500
Furniture and appliances.. 3,605,550 3,568,050 3,864,200 4,021,383 2,544,383 5,231,483 5,553,117 5,844,450 6,338,250 6,148,383
Other retail stores. 13,676,000 13,919,900 14,950,433 15,571,467 13,929,117 5,054,200 5,022,117 5,212,517 5,376,183 5,529,683
Agriculture and MiNING..........c.oeererreneererererrenens 15,983,300 16,223,233 17,909,917 18,881,667 22,357,250 509,467 484,717 559,400 644,983 717,950
Construction. N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 2,076,850 2,171,750 2,342,833 2,742,150 3,010,383
Service. N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 34,221,217 35,405,917 35,164,650 37,378,583 39,336,950
Transportation, delivery, and warehousing.............. N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 272,833 275,150 312,250 330,783 420,617
Other 2,685,600 2,802,067 3,109,783 3,160,300 6,484,767 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Government. 88,617 69,567 105,850 105,650 298,483 264,517 280,250 278,833 296,717 294,600
Unclassified 3,676,583 3,542,817 3,448,283 4,481,200 1,457,483 1,911,367 2,538,850 2,228,010 1,472,017 1,442,950
Motor vehicle. 13,688,767 14,861,183 15,490,150 17,495,383 18,000,200 19,362,581 20,764,773 21,144,925 20,506,470 19,484,594
Liquor sales. 848,633 883,900 941,283 1,005,367 1,051,300 1,105,526 1,254,926 1,265,798 1,383,587 1,341,449

Total salestax estimated base (5).. $ 100,607,917 $ 102,536,267 $ 110,095,783 $ 117,068,483 $ 120,062,467 $ 121,541,524 $ 125,325,849 $ 128,809,049 $ 133,332,540 $ 138,903,993

Total direct salestax rate..........cocooeeeereereceennnnns 6.0% 6.0% 6.0% 6.0% 6.0% 6.0% 6.0% 6.0% 6.0% 6.0%

Sour ces:
Sales tax remittances by industry and total direct sales tax rate (both used in the calculation of estimated taxable sales by industry) are provided by the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue.

Notes:

(2)-Estimated taxable sales are calculated based on sales tax remittances (made by vendors with their tax returns processed during the fiscal year) divided by the direct sales tax rate of 6%.
(2)-Estimated taxable sales are organized by major industrial activity of the vendor and do not represent sales by product type. Fiscal years 1997 through 1999 are presented by Standard
Industrial Classification (S.I.C. Group). Beginning with the 2000 fiscal year, the Commonwealth began reporting under the North American Industry Classification System (N.A.I.C.S. Group).
The two classifications are similar, but not 100% comparable.

(3)-Beginning with the 2006 fiscal year, the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue reclassed various subcategories within major industrial activity into either adifferent major industrial activity
or anew major industrial activity. New major industrial activity are "Construction”, "Service", and "Transportation, delivery, and warehousing”. The "Other" category was eliminated. This
reclassification had the most effect on the "General merchandise”, "Food and beverage stores', "Other retail stores', and "Agriculture and mining" major industrial activity categories. These
reclassifications were applied retroactively back to the 2002 fiscal year.

(4)-Due to the complexity and length of the tax return filing and review process, the total compilation of sales tax remittances was not yet available for release by the Pennsylvania Department
of Revenue for the 2007 fiscal year. Therefore, fiscal years 1997 through 2006 are presented as an alternative comparison.

(5)-Totals may not foot due to rounding.




REVENUE CAPACITY-SALESTAX

Sales Tax Remittances by
Major Industry Classification

TABLE 8

Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 1997 and June 30, 2006

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
($ Expressed in Thousands)

June 30, 1997 (1)(2)

June 30, 2006 (1)(2)

Sales(3) Per centage Sales(3) Per centage
Tax of Tax of
Industry (S.1.C. Group)(4) Liability Total Industry (N.A.I.C.S. Group)(4) Liability Total
Manufacturing $ 350,520 5.81% Manufacturing. . $ 426,449 5.12%
Public utilities. 499,282 8.27% Public utilities....... 280,027 3.36%
Wholesaletrade.........cocoovveereineeeenieeesereeeeenens 223,411 3.70% Wholesale trade 684,465 8.21%
Building materials.. 379,210 6.28% Building materials. 576,436 6.92%
General merchandise... 448,955 7.44% General merchandise.. 1,125,978 13.51%
Food and beverage stores... 713,974 11.83% Food and beverage stores... 351,541 4.22%
Automotive dedlers..... 165,940 2.75% Automotive dedlers..... 225,690 2.71%
Furniture and appliances..... 216,333 3.58% Furniture and appliances. 368,903 4.43%
Other retail stores..... . 820,560 13.59% Other retail stores. 331,781 3.98%
Agriculture and MiNiNG...........ceveerveeininieeenenens 958,998 15.89% Agriculture and MiNING.........ccovevevrinininieniens 43,077 0.52%
Construction. N/A N/A Construction. 180,623 2.17%
Service e —— N/A N/A Service e ——— 2,360,217 28.32%
Transportation, delivery, and warehousing......... N/A N/A Transportation, delivery, and warehousing. 25,237 0.30%
Other....... 161,136 2.67% Other.. N/A N/A
GOVEIMMENL......coovimiiiiieiniieiieieee e 5,317 0.09% GOVEIMMENL. ..ot 17,676 0.21%
UNCISSIfIEd. ... 220,595 3.65% UNCIaSSIfied......oiiicceccccs 86,577 1.04%
Motor vehicle........ 821,326 13.61% Motor vehicle.... 1,169,076 14.03%
LiQUON SAES.....cviiieecccceee s 50,918 0.84% Liquor sales.......... 80,487 0.97%
Tota (6)...... . $ 6,036,475 100.00%  Total (6).. . $ 8,334,240 100.00%
Sales Tax LiCeNSES (7)...cccovvverereeeieieeieieisisisinisnenns 300,257 Sales Tax LiCenSeS (7)..c.cvvevreiverereneneeereeeeninnns 237,971

Sour ces:

Notes:

Sales tax remittances by industry and the number of sales tax licenses are provided by the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue.

(1)-Due to statutory requirements protecting taxpayer identification (confidentiality provisions), the Commonwealth can not disclose the names of the ten largest salestax filers.
Therefore, this schedule is presented as an alternative comparison regarding the sources of the Commonweal th's sales tax revenue.

(2)-Also, due to the complexity and length of the tax return filing and review process, the total compilation of sales tax remittances was not yet available for release by the
Pennsylvania Department of Revenue for the 2007 fiscal year. Therefore, fiscal years 1997 and 2006 are presented as an alternative comparison.

(3)-Salestax liability is based on sales tax remittances made with tax returns processed during the fiscal year. The direct sales tax rate applicable to both years is 6%.
(4)-Sales tax remittances are organized by major industrial activity of the vendor and does not represent sales by product type. The 1997 fiscal year is presented using the

Standard Industrial Classification (S.1.C. Group), and the 2006 fiscal year is presented using the North American Industry Classification System (N.A.I.C.S. Group). Thetwo
classifications are similar, but not 100% comparable.

(5)-Beginning with the 2006 fiscal year, the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue reclassed various subcategories within major industrial activity into either a different major
industrial activity or anew major industrial activity. New major industrial activity are "Construction", "Service", and "Transportation, delivery, and warehousing”. The "Other"
category was eliminated. This reclassification had the most effect on the "General merchandise", "Food and beverage stores", "Other retail stores', and "Agriculture and mining"
major industrial activity categories.

(6)-Totals may not foot due to rounding.

(7)-The Commonwealth does not maintain alist of salestax filers by either the S.I.C. or N.A.I.C.S. standard industry grouping, and as noted in Note (1), can not disclose the
names of the largest filers. Therefore, the number of sales tax licenses are presented to indicate the potential number of filers during the applicable fiscal year.
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REVENUE CAPACITY - CORPORATE TAX
Corporate Net Income Tax

TABLE9

For theLast Ten Tax Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 (6) 2003 (6) 2004 (6)
ESTIMATED CORPORATE NET INCOME TAXABLE BASE (1)(2)
Corporate Tax Report Compilation (expressed in thousands).................. $ 13,396,710 $ 16,440,187 $ 14,407,934 $ 15,667,338 $ 15,304,130 $ 14,164,465 12,367,911 13,280,711 $ 13,446,684 $ 16,746,693
NUMBER OF FILERSBY CORPORATE NET
INCOME TAX LIABILITY RANGE (3)
$0 94,830 92,518 89,790 83,935 89,482 98,121 96,637 102,333 95,109 86,375
$1-300. 9,772 11,161 11,502 13,125 12,364 11,746 11,128 10,832 10,323 8,977
$301-500. 2,551 3,019 3,148 3,529 3,319 3,038 2,900 2,875 2,631 2,377
$501-1,000 4,945 5,464 5,677 6,410 6,297 5,808 4,768 4,345 4,173 3,652
$1,001-5,000. 10,578 12,235 12,813 14,080 13,136 12,354 11,060 10,665 10,046 8,974
$5,001-10,000 3,450 4,017 4,421 4,807 4,532 4,058 3,741 3,456 3,258 3,140
$10,001-25,000. 2,756 3,211 3,486 3,646 3,485 3,116 2,751 2,760 2,640 2,449
$25,001-50,000. 1,396 1,538 1,650 1,780 1,653 1,480 1413 1319 1,362 1,284
$50,001-100,000. 929 1,124 1,135 1,238 1,172 1,053 903 945 952 905
$100,001-250,000. 806 890 954 990 916 880 756 763 785 801
$250,001-500,000. 353 391 413 398 370 332 313 309 391 359
$500,001-1,000,000. 194 186 206 209 195 201 162 178 178 235
>%$1,000,000. 172 177 184 190 191 201 184 192 217 231
Total corporate net incometax filers (4)(5)......cooveeeernens 132,732 135,931 135,379 134,337 137,112 142,388 136,716 140,972 132,065 119,759

Total direct corporate net incometax rate........oooeeevrininns 9.99%

9.99%

9.99%

9.99%

9.99%

9.99%

9.99%

9.99%

9.99%

9.99%

Sour ces:
Information provided by the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue.

Notes:

(1)-Pennsylvaniais one of only afew statesthat levy atax on corporate net income (corporate net income tax - CNIT) aswell as capital stock (capital stock/foreign franchisetax - CSFT). Recent
legislation will gradually eliminate the capital stock tax so that the last year for which atax will apply will be the 2010 tax year. Thistable presents the positive corporate net income tax base, as well
as the number of filers associated with thistax by liability range. It also presents the statutory corporate net income tax rate.
(2)-The CNIT is based on separate company Federal taxable income and includes a number of additions to/subtractions from that base. This table shows the compilation of all reported taxable
income (Federal income adjusted to the PA base and then apportioned). Many corporations report negative federal taxableincome. In addition, the net operating loss deductions that Pennsylvania
allows reduce otherwise profitable corporations’ incomes below $0.

(3)-Due to statutory requirements protecting taxpayer identification (confidentiality provisions), the Commonwealth can not disclose the names of the ten largest corporate net income tax filers.
Therefore, the schedule of the number of filers by corporate net income tax liability range is presented as an alternative comparison regarding the sources of the Commonwealth's corporate net income
tax revenue. Those filers that report negative state taxable income are reported in the tax liability range of $0, which accounts for the large number of filers within that range.

(4)-Also, due to the complexity and length of the tax return filing and review process, the total compilation of corporate net income subject to the direct corporate tax rate was not yet available for
release by the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue for the 2005 and 2006 tax years. Therefore, tax years 1995 through 2004 are presented as an alternative comparison.
(5)-The corporate filer's tax year is defined as that period for which it must file atax return. Though some filers have the last day of their filing year fall on December 31st, many filers have afiling
year that falls on adifferent date (i.e. March 31st). Thistable presentsinformation based on all filers whose tax year ended during the associated calendar years.

(6)-For tax years 1995 through 2002, the amounts presented are actual. The amounts presented for the 2002 tax year may differ from the amounts presented in the same table in the Commonwealth's
Comprehensive Annua Financial Report (CAFR) for the June 30, 2006 fiscal year, since that was an estimate. For the 2003 tax year, the amounts presented are a revised estimate from what was
presented in the June 30, 2006 CAFR. And for the 2004 tax year, the amounts presented are an estimate.
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REVENUE CAPACITY - CORPORATE TAX
Capital Stock/Foreign Franchise Tax

TABLE 10
For thelLast Ten Tax Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

CAPITAL STOCK AND FRANCHISE TAXABLE BASE (1)(2)
Apportioned Capital Stock Value Compilation (expressed in thousands)...................

NUMBER OF FILERSBY CAPITAL STOCK/
FOREIGN FRANCHISE TAX LIABILITY RANGE (3)
$0-300.
$301-500
$501-1,000.
$1,001-5,000.
$5,001-10,000.
$10,001-25,000.
$25,001-50,000.
$50,001-100,000.
$100,001-250,000.
$250,001-500,000.
$500,001-1,000,000.
>$1,000,000.

Total capital stock and franchise tax filers (4)(5).....c.ccoveerrereennnne

Total direct capital stock and franchisetax rate.

1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 (6) 2003 (6) 2004 (6)

72,654,892 $ 79,854,213 $ 84,640,644 $ 98,094,135 $ 108,450,000 $ 123,400,000 $ 128,540,000 137,650,000 $ 147,450,000 $ 148,540,000

154,773 159,124 166,014 177,957 187,654 199,147 212,381 224,961 232,880 231,912

6,374 6,951 6,593 7,166 5,815 6,294 7,234 7,282 7,346 7,539

9,697 10,089 9,605 10,262 11,494 12,337 12,523 12,580 13,095 13,833

21,380 22,789 22,606 24,645 25,983 26,701 26,440 28,484 29,479 28,145

6,186 6,635 6,936 7,506 7,804 7,152 6,883 7,139 7,387 7,037

4,852 5325 5,641 6,017 6,190 5,783 5,219 5,348 5,541 5,432

2,000 2,184 2,426 2,506 2,601 2,369 2,112 2,171 2,270 2,204

1,085 1,199 1,300 1,416 1,353 1,222 1,103 1,140 1,215 1,165

680 721 851 902 897 814 686 711 787 742

219 253 282 287 303 275 253 274 271 273

101 106 127 145 140 114 100 112 152 112

89 95 110 104 109 117 103 97 98 81

207,436 215,471 222,491 238,913 250,343 262,325 275,037 290,299 300,521 298,475
12.75 mills 12.75 mills 12.75 mills 11.99 mills 10.99 mills 8.99 mills 7.49 mills 7.24 mills 7.24 mills 6.99 mills

Sour ces:

Information provided by the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue.

Notes:

(1)-Pennsylvaniais one of only afew states that levy atax on corporate net income (corporate net income tax - CNIT) aswell as capital stock (capital stock/foreign franchise tax - CSFT). Recent legislation will
gradually eliminate the capital stock tax so that the last year for which atax will apply will be the 2010 tax year. This table presents the capital stock/foreign franchise apportioned tax base, as well asthe

number of filers associated with thistax by filing class. It aso presents the statutory capital stock/foreign franchise tax rate.

(2)-The CSFT is based on afixed formulainvolving net worth and average book income. This schedule shows the compilation of all reported taxable capital stock value, as reported by corporate taxpayers

required to file atax return with the Commonwealth.

(3)-Due to statutory requirements protecting taxpayer identification (confidentiality provisions), the Commonwealth can not disclose the names of the ten largest capital stock/foreign franchise tax filers.
Therefore, the schedule of the number of filers by capital stock/foreign franchise tax liability range is presented as an aternative comparison regarding the sources of the Commonwealth's capital stock/foreign
franchise tax revenue. All corporate filers were required to pay a statutory minimum tax of $300 through 1998 and $200 in 1999, which accounts for the large number of filers within the range of $0-$300. This

minimum does not apply to tax years 2000 and after.

(4)-Also, due to the complexity and length of the tax return filing and review process, the total compilation of all reported taxable capital stock val ue subject to the statutory capital stock/foreign franchise tax
rate was not yet available for release by the Pennsylvania Department of Revenue for the 2005 and 2006 tax years. Therefore, tax years 1995 through 2004 are presented as an alternative comparison.
(5)-The corporate filer's tax year is defined as that period for which it must file atax return. Though some filers have the last day of their filing year fall on December 31st, many filers have afiling year that

falls on adifferent date (i.e. March 31st). Thistable presentsinformation based on al filers whose tax year ended during the the associated calendar years.

(6)-For tax years 1995 through 2002, the amounts presented are actual. The amounts presented for the 2002 tax year may differ from the amounts presented in the same table in the Commonwealth's
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the June 30, 2006 fiscal year, since that was an estimate. For the 2003 tax year, the amounts presented are a revised estimate from what was presented in

the June 30, 2006 CAFR. And for the 2004 tax year, the amounts presented are an estimate.
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DEBT CAPACITY TABLE 11
Outstanding Debt and Outstanding Debt Ratios For the Last Six Fiscal Years Ended June 30

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands, Except Debt per Capita)

(Restated)
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT (1)(2) 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Governmental activities:

Genera obligation bonds. $ 6,134,761 $ 7,030,618 $ 7,225,165 $ 7,150,667 $ 7,657,674 $ 8,245,673

Capital leases/installment purchase obligations..... 629,437 62,131 53,951 47,276 42,059 40,649

Other financing obligations. - - 100,000 90,000 82,500 76,500

Total governmental 6,764,198 7,092,749 7,379,116 7,287,943 7,782,233 8,362,822
Business-type activities:

Capital leases/installment purchase obligations. - - - - 28,259 17,375
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT.. $ 6,764,198 $ 7,092,749 $ 7,379,116 $ 7,287,943 $ 7,810,492 $ 8,380,197
Debt as a Percentage of Personal Income (3)(4).....ceereeererrenennns 1.82% 1.86% 1.87% 1.76% 1.81% 1.84%
Amount of Debt per Capita (3)(4) $ 550 $ 576 $ 597 $ 589 $ 630 $ 674

Sour ce: Statement of Net Assets, as presented in the Commonwealth's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the applicable fiscal year.

Notes:

(1)-Each caption includes the reported current and noncurrent amounts of the outstanding debt.

(2)-Details on the Commonwealth's total outstanding debt for June 30, 2007 can be found in Note K.

(3)-See Table 15 for summarized totals for persona income and population data that were used in the calculations of these ratios. Persona income detail is presented in Table 5. Asdetailed in Table 5 or 15 (as appropriate), the
personal income and population data have changed in several calendar years from what was presented in those tables in the Commonwealth's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the June 30, 2006 fiscal year. Asa
result, the calculated ratios based on the data from those calendar years may differ from what was presented in this table in the June 30, 2006 CAFR.

(4)-Debt ratios use total outstanding debt which is presented by fiscal year ended June 30, while the personal income and population data used in the cal culations are presented by calendar year.




DEBT CAPACITY TABLE 12
Ratios of Net General Bonded Debt Outstanding
For the Last Six Fiscal Years Ended June 30

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands) Total
2 Net 3)
(@D} Less: General Per centage
General Amounts Bonded of Actual 4
Obligation Restricted to Debt Tax Per
Fiscal Y ear Bonds Paying Principal Outstanding Revenues Capita
2002 $ 6,134,761 $ - $ 6,134,761 29.73% $ 499
2003 7,030,618 (32,685) 6,997,933 32.49% 568
2004 7,225,165 (61,029) 7,164,136 30.76% 580
2005 7,150,667 (83,885) 7,066,782 28.30% 571
2006 7,657,674 (8,118) 7,649,556 27.84% 617
2007 8,245,673 (20,474) 8,225,199 28.71% 661
Sour ces:

Information was obtained from the Commonwealth's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the
applicable fiscal year. General obligation bonds can be found in the Statement of Net Assets, and the tax
revenues used in the percentage of actual tax revenues can be found in the Statement of Activities.

Notes.

(1)-General obligation bonds include the reported current and noncurrent amounts.

(2)-Amounts restricted to paying principal equal the amount restricted for debt service in the Statement of

Net Assets.

(3)-The Commonwealth's general obligation bonds are expected to be repaid with general tax revenue.
Therefore, the total taxes shown in the Governmental Activities sections of the Statement of Activitiesis

used in this calculation.

(4)-Total net general bonded debt outstanding used in the per capita calculation is presented as of the fiscal
year. The population data used in the calculation is shown in Table 15, and is as of July 1 of the applicable
fiscal year. Asdetailed in Table 15, the population data has changed in several calendar years from what
was presented in Table 15 in the Commonwealth's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the
June 30, 2006 fiscal year. Asaresult, the per capita calculation based on the data from those calendar years
may differ from what was presented in this table in the June 30, 2006 CAFR.
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DEBT CAPACITY TABLE 13
Computation of Legal Debt Margin As of August 31 for thelast ten years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Average annual tax
revenues deposited in the
previous fivefiscal years.

e X 175 x 175 x 175 x 175 x 175 x 175 x 175 x 175 x 175 x

$ 20,392,050,801 $  21,241,970,890 $ 22,097,372,526 $  23,008,382,095 $ 23,661,031,603 $  24,285747,191 $ 25,091,013,830 $  26,141,233,164 $  27,536,515,720 $ 29,300,406,649

Constitutional factor
Constitutional debt limit

for debt incurred without

the approval of the electors (A)............ 35,686,088,902 37,173,449,058 38,670,401,921 40,264,668,666 41,406,805,305 42,500,057,585 43,909,274,203 45,747,158,037 48,188,902,510 51,275,711,636
Less outstanding net debt

(non-electorate approved).... 3,682,944,258 3,882,412,712 4,106,897,637 4,554,304,562 5,257,508,994 6,021,247,141 6,230,365,064 6,146,947,312 6,399,655,454 6,839,080,189
Legal debt margin (B).....cceveverieverienenee $ 32,003,144,644 $  33,291,036,346 $ 34,563,504,284 $ 35,710,364,104 $ 36,149,296,311 $  36,478,810,444 $ 37,678,909,139 $  39,600,210,725 $  41,789,247,056 $ 44,436,631,447

Total outstanding net debt applicable
to the constitutional limit asa per centage
of the constitutional limit..........cccccoevee 10.32% 10.44% 10.62% 11.31% 12.70% 14.17% 14.19% 13.44% 13.28%

Source: The Governor's Office of the Budget

Notes:

(A)-Theformulafor the legal debt limit is contained in Article V111, Section 7(a) of the Pennsylvania Constitution, which provides:

No debt shall beincurred by or on behalf of the Commonwealth except by law and in accordance with the provisions of this section.

(1) Debt may be incurred without limit to suppress insurrection, rehabilitate areas affected by man-made or natural disaster, or to implement unissued authority by the electors prior to the adoption of this article.

(2)The Governor, State Treasurer and Auditor General, acting jointly, may (i) issue tax anticipation notes having a maturity within the fiscal year of issue and payable exclusively from revenues received in the same fiscal year, and (ii) incur debt for the purpose of
refunding other debt, if such refunding debt matures within the term of the original debt.

(3) Debt may be incurred without limit for purposes specifically itemized in the law authorizing such debt, if the question whether the debt shall be incurred has been submitted to the electors and approved by a majority of those voting on the question.

(4) Debt may be incurred without the approval of the electors for capital projects specifically itemized in a capital budget if such debt will not cause the amount of all net debt outstanding to exceed one and three-quarters times the average of the annual tax revenues
deposited in the previous five fiscal years as certified by the Auditor General. For the purposes of this subsection, debt outstanding shall not include debt incurred under clauses (1) and (2)(i), or debt incurred under clause (2)(ii) if the original debt would not be so
considered, or debt incurred under subsection (3) unless the General Assembly shall so provide in the law authorizing such debt.

(B)-Each of the above figures used in the calculation of the legal debt margin are abstracted from a certification of the Auditor General dated August 31 of the subsequent fiscal year.
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DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC
Employment by Nonfarm Related I ndustry

TABLE 14

For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Employment by nonfarm related industry (1)(2):
Private earnings:

Goods producing:
Natural resources and mining .. . 20,400 20,800 20,300 19,400 19,500 18,800 17,900 18,700 19,700 20,500
Construction. 213,500 220,800 234,500 247,300 249,900 248,100 245,700 249,200 255,700 261,800
Manufacturing 868,800 871,800 862,400 862,300 820,600 758,900 711,600 690,100 679,400 671,900
Total goods producing...........cceeereeerereneureneneens 1,102,700 1,113,400 1,117,200 1,129,000 1,090,000 1,025,800 975,200 958,000 954,800 954,200

Service providing:
Trade. 1,073,600 1,084,400 1,109,500 1,136,500 1,129,900 1,119,500 1,114,600 1,119,800 1,120,200 1,126,300
Information 118,700 123,100 128,700 135,700 135,400 128,200 120,400 112,100 109,500 108,300
Financial aCtiVIties ........ccccouvieinicrniiecsiine 322,600 329,800 335,200 338,100 338,300 336,200 337,900 335,700 335,700 335,500
Professional and business services .. 539,000 571,100 594,100 611,200 612,300 604,600 609,400 637,200 660,500 676,900
Education and health services .. 879,700 897,100 903,500 917,000 939,100 963,400 979,000 997,900 1,030,000 1,055,400
Leisure and hospitality . 422,700 429,200 440,300 448,800 454,400 465,200 469,400 475,700 484,800 490,300
Other services 232,800 235,200 242,000 249,900 254,800 259,000 259,800 263,400 261,600 259,900
Total service providing........ccoeeeeeeeenceenereneenenne 3,589,100 3,669,900 3,753,300 3,837,200 3,864,200 3,876,100 3,890,500 3,941,800 4,002,300 4,052,600
Total private earning: 4,691,800 4,783,300 4,870,500 4,966,200 4,954,200 4,901,900 4,865,700 4,899,800 4,957,100 5,006,800
Government 714,600 711,500 715,600 725,100 728,300 738,900 745,600 744,400 745,100 746,400
Total nonfarm 5,406,400 5,494,800 5,586,100 5,691,300 5,682,500 5,640,800 5,611,300 5,644,200 5,702,200 5,753,200

Notes:

not been benchmarked.

Source: Information provided by the Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry (http://www.paworkstats.state.pa.us/default.asp).

(1)-Due to statutory requirements (confidentiality provisions), the Commonwealth can not disclose the number employed by the ten largest employers. As an alternative comparison, this schedule presents the number employed by nonfarm related industries.
Theten largest employers are nonfarm related; therefore, the number employed by those employers could be expected to fall within this schedule. Farming related employment is not included on this schedule because most farms are not large enough to be
required to provide the necessary data to the Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry.

(2)-Data presented for calendar years 1997-2005 are estimates that were benchmarked to universe counts derived from administrative files of employees covered by unemployment insurance. Asaresult of this benchmarking, the data provided for the 2005
calendar year has changed from what was presented in this table in the Commonwealth's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the June 30, 2006 fiscal year. The amount presented in the 2006 calendar year is a sample-based estimate that has




DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC TABLE 15
Population and Per Capita Personal Income For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Population (1) Personal Income (2) Per Capita (3)
(Expressed in thousands) (Expressed in millions) Personal Income
Pennsylvania
United Pennsylvania United Pennsylvania United percentage
Pennsylvania States as% of U.S.  Pennsylvania States as% of U.S.  Pennsylvania States  above/(below) U.S.
Calendar Year

1997 12,228 272,647 448% $ 311,507 $ 6,907,332 451% $ 25,475 $ 25,334 0.56%
1998 12,246 275,854 4.44% 330,161 7,415,709 4.45% 26,961 26,883 0.29%
1999 12,264 279,040 4.40% 342,612 7,796,137 4.39% 27,937 27,939 -0.01%
2000 12,287 282,217 4.35% 364,837 8,422,074 4.33% 29,693 29,843 -0.50%
2001 12,296 285,226 4.31% 372,339 8,716,992 4.27% 30,281 30,562 -0.92%
2002 12,322 288,126 4.28% 382,252 8,872,871 4.31% 31,023 30,795 0.74%
2003 12,351 290,796 4.25% 393,908 9,150,320 4.30% 31,892 31,466 1.35%
2004 12,377 293,638 4.22% 413,901 9,711,271 4.26% 33,440 33,072 1.11%
2005 12,405 296,507 4.18% 431,836 10,284,378 4.20% 34,810 34,685 0.36%
2006 12,441 299,398 4.16% 456,429 10,966,808 4.16% 36,689 36,629 0.16%

Sources: Population datais obtained from the U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis website (http://www.bea.gov/regional/spi/defualt.cfm) , whose
sourceisthe U.S. Bureau of Census December 2006 release of annual population estimates. Persona income details can be found in Table 5.

Notes:

(2)-Population datais presented as of July 1 of the calendar year. The U.S. Bureau of Census' December 2006 release included revisions to the annual population estimate
back to the 2000 calendar year. Therefore, the totals shown may differ from what was presented in the Commonwealth's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for
the June 30, 2006 fiscal year.

(2)-Personal income data is provided as of the calendar year. Calendar years 2003-2005 differ from the totals presented in the June 30, 2006 CAFR. See Table 5 for details.
(3)-Asaresult of changes noted in Notes (1) and (2), the Per Capita Personal Income may differ from what was presented in the June 30, 2006 CAFR.

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC TABLE 16
Employment Information For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Pennsylvania (1) United States
PA rate

Civilian Civilian per centage
Labor Unemployment Labor Unemployment Above/(Below)

Force Employed Unemployed Rate Force Employed Unemployed Rate U.S. Rate

Calendar Year

1997 6,086 5,775 311 51 136,297 129,558 6,739 49 4.08%
1998 6,068 5,788 281 46 137,673 131,463 6,210 45 2.22%
1999 6,078 5,810 268 44 139,368 133,488 5,880 42 4.76%
2000 6,086 5,831 255 42 142,583 136,891 5,692 4.0 5.00%
2001 6,168 5,874 293 48 143,734 136,933 6,801 47 2.13%
2002 6,218 5,869 349 5.6 144,863 136,485 8,378 5.8 -3.45%
2003 6,169 5,818 351 5.7 146,510 137,736 8,774 6.0 -5.00%
2004 6,229 5,890 339 54 147,401 139,252 8,149 55 -1.82%
2005 6,279 5,966 313 5.0 149,320 141,730 7,591 51 -1.96%
2006 6,306 6,010 296 47 151,428 144,427 7,001 46 2.17%

Sources: Employment data was provided by the Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry, Center for Workforce Information & Analysisin cooperation with the United
States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics.

Notes:

(2)-Beginning with the 2002 Calendar Y ear, the amounts presented for Pennsylvania may differ from the amounts presented in the same tablein the June 30, 2006 CAFR, asa
result of revised data provided bv the Pennsvlvania Department of Labor and Industrv.
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OPERATING INFORMATION TABLE 17
Commonwealth Employees by Function and Agency For theLast Ten Fiscal YearsEnded June 30

66T

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Direction and supportive services
Legisiative 2,937 2,751 3,018 3,040 3,005 3,161 3,206 3,268 3,336 3,339
Revenue. 2,385 2,406 2,454 2,519 2,421 2,382 2,272 2,322 2,377 2,385
Executive Offices. 2,457 2,508 2,521 2,569 2,611 2,513 1,986 1,962 1,990 1,966
Generdl Services. 1,273 1,249 1,267 1,338 1,319 1,313 1,242 1,255 1,295 1,305
Auditor General 774 780 793 799 785 770 768 736 740 711
Treasurer. 525 517 551 543 537 524 511 497 534 565
Other 601 600 556 602 643 361 425 379 376 327
Total direction and SUPPOrtive ServiCeS............ccoccccceeens 10,952 10,811 11,160 11,410 11411 11,024 10,410 10,419 10,648 10,598
Protection of personsand property
Corrections. 12,333 12,831 13,707 14,421 14,612 14,323 14,384 14,826 15,301 15,441
State Police. 5,352 5,507 5,564 5,648 5,673 5,705 5,790 6,039 6,191 6,272
Liquor Control Board 3825 3,860 3,941 4,032 4,146 4,205 4,407 4,580 4,772 4,704
Environmental Protection 2,912 2,890 2,965 3,022 3,016 2,938 2,836 2,831 2,890 2,799
Judiciary. 1,740 1,775 1,940 1,962 2,048 2,031 2,100 2,102 2,140 2,130
Transportation. - - - - - - 1,208 1,253 1,251 1,253
Agriculture. 805 809 815 903 973 950 997 968 1,032 1,056
Probation and Parole Board 876 892 917 951 975 966 972 1,001 1,008 967
Attorney General 904 955 971 1,017 990 952 944 886 919 935
Public Utility Commission. 515 499 502 509 503 494 467 469 529 485
Military and Veterans Affairs. - - - - - - 459 489 529 517
Other 1,085 1,103 1,110 1,139 1,170 1,310 2,012 2,025 2,106 2,088
Total protection of personsand property............ 30,347 31,121 32,432 33,604 34,106 33,874 36,576 37,469 38,668 38,647
Public education
Educetion. 1,219 1,230 861 908 873 852 624 672 674 665
Other 20 20 19 22 21 20 20 18 18 18
Total public education 1,239 1,250 880 930 894 872 644 690 692 683
Health and human services
Public Welfare. 23,475 22,322 21,575 21,480 21,115 20,189 19,773 19,769 19,655 18,786
Labor and Industry. 5815 5,585 5,480 5,557 5,841 5,821 4,431 4,370 4,462 4,277
Military and Veterans Affairs. 1,827 1,868 1,964 2,053 2,106 2,262 1,939 2,015 2,060 2,095
Hedlth 1,242 1,258 1,305 1,347 1,399 1,444 1,404 1,429 1,524 1,465
Other 100 103 101 107 108 104 99 109 112 107
Total health and human Services...........nns 32,459 31,136 30,425 30,544 30,569 29,820 27,646 27,692 27,813 26,730
Economic development
Labor and Industry. - - - - - - 923 911 960 927
Community and Economic Development 299 313 322 325 327 296 298 324 336 346
Total economic development 299 313 322 325 327 296 1,221 1,235 1,296 1,273
Transportation
Transportation. 12,195 12,094 12,302 12,360 12,393 12,086 10,645 10,578 10,810 10,509
Total transportation 12,195 12,094 12,302 12,360 12,393 12,086 10,645 10,578 10,810 10,509
Recreation and cultural enrichment
Conservation and Natural RESOUICES..........ccvvreereeeieennens 2,674 2,690 2,742 2,775 2,768 2,707 2,632 2,608 2,639 2,573
Game Commission 679 692 747 810 769 754 758 734 732 734
Fish and Boat Commission 530 521 522 537 514 468 482 492 497 514
Historical and Museum COMMISSION.........coevvierreeireeieiernnenns 438 462 480 494 504 503 488 444 435 419
Other 20 20 20 20 20 20 116 111 114 113
Total recreation and cultural enrichment 4,341 4,385 4511 4,636 4575 4,452 4,476 4,389 4,417 4,353
Total Commonwealth Employees. 01.832 91110 02,032 93.800 04275 02424 01618 QAT 94344 92793

Source: Employees for the Legislature, Judiciary, Auditor General, Treasury and Attorney General were provided by theindividual agency. All other agencies fall within the Governor's jurisdiction and were provided by the Office of
Administration.

Notes: Beginning with the 2004 fiscal year, employee data was available both by function and agency and is shown appropriately in the table. For the fiscal years prior to 2004 employee data was only available by agency. For purposes of
this table, the complement for fiscal years 1998 through 2003 is reported by function based on the agency's most prevalent functional activity.
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OPERATING INFORMATION
Operating Indicators by Function and Agency

TABLE 18
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years Ended June 30

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Direction and supportive services:
Executive Offices
Contact hours of briefings/training for Human Resource professionals/others
Treasury
Disbursements - check:
Disbursements - wires.
Total disbursement:

Legisature
General and appropriation acts (1)
House/Senate billsintroduced (1)

Protection of personsand property:

Corrections
Inmates (2)
Inmates enrolled in academic educational programs (2)...........ccecereerecrreureennens

Environmental Protection

Inspections completed

Revenue

Total - electronic.

Total - paper.

Total personal income tax returns processed
State Police
Traffic citations issued.

Criminal arrests for crimes against persons or property (3).........coccereereecereunees
Background Checks:
Firearms checks conducted for the purchase of afirearm............cooecrericirenns
Criminal history checks for employment purposes.
Judiciary
Caseload (cases fil ed/reopened/appeals) (2)
Public education:
Education
PreK-12 EDUCATION (BASIC EDUCATION):
Public school enrollment (preK-12) (4)
HIGHER EDUCATION:

Full-Time Equivalent Enrollments at State-Supported Institutions of Higher Education:

State System of Higher Education
Community Colleges.
State-Related Universities.
Non-State Related Universities and Colleges.
Health and human services:
Aging
Comprehensive PACE/PACENET Program:
Older Pennsylvanians enrolled (average)
Total prescriptions per year
Health
Surveys completed in atimely manner by facility type:
Hospitals within 24 months
Nursing homes surveys completed within 15 months.
Intermediate care facilitiess MR within 12 months,
Home health agencies within 12 months.
Vita events (births, deaths, fetal deaths) registered and processed (5).............
Total number of encounters by State Health Care Centers...........cccocureevecrrennes

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 (9) 2007(9)
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 14,778 18,000 18,000
N/A 6,400,000 6,317,110 8,454,206 5,831,568 6,012,497 5,217,339 5,000,249 4,838,121 4,147,577
N/A 3,300,000 3,628,047 3,947,535 4,269,328 4,571,640 5,355,924 6,047,788 6,484,759 6,252,916
10,006,950 9,700,000 9,945,157 12,401,741 10,100,896 10,584,137 10,573,263 11,048,037 11,322,880 10,400,493
320 N/A 291 N/A 433 N/A 385 N/A 364 N/A
4,571 N/A 4,481 N/A 4,613 N/A 4,242 N/A 4,450 N/A
34,964 36,377 36,384 36,810 37,995 40,090 40,817 40,965 42,446 44,365
8,884 9,190 9,162 10,357 10,600 11,286 11,749 11,680 13,457 14,453
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 100,042 104,237 82,392 81,000
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 2,272,861 2,520,663 2,813,228 2,575,000
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 3,494,305 3,288,166 3,994,634 3,375,000
5,797,000 5,704,755 5,707,558 5,895,045 5,901,402 5,862,231 5,767,166 5,808,829 6,807,862 5,950,000
461,998 486,104 449,430 484,749 503,352 484,602 438,328 451,160 479,086 470,889
11,946 12,440 11,534 12,288 12,600 12,122 12,030 13,024 14,054 14,436
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 10,406 514,287 512,686 517,813
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 964,507 1,074,325 1,183,426 1,242,597
3,465,108 3,726,054 3,581,305 3,709,824 3,813,843 3,789,239 3,598,042 3,790,068 3,783,987 3,810,660
1,815,151 1,816,566 1,816,716 1,814,311 1,821,627 1,816,747 1,821,146 1,828,089 1,830,684 1,821,710
87,286 88,160 89,010 89,924 93,520 96,235 95,523 98,657 100,392 101,369
63,913 64,808 64,394 67,030 75,088 80,874 86,935 88,494 88,150 90,908
127,822 128,967 130,805 133,200 136,581 140,375 140,806 140,697 139,894 143,106
33,608 35,034 36,626 38,199 39,399 39,741 41,678 43,106 43,662 44,432
266,787 251,314 240,298 232,372 230,949 223,119 242,755 290,482 306,138 325,735
8,989,455 9,140,390 9,530,401 9,744,249 10,228,661 10,672,686 10,888,090 12,794,090 13,253,256 14,829,153
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 115 115 115 127 115
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 744 735 736 763 740
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 186 186 194 215 214
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 364 364 364 400 364
393,500 390,367 397,495 390,134 328,033 272,860 274,664 273,432 274,105 273,800
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 375,240 422,220
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TABLE 18
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years Ended June 30

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 (9) 2007(9)
Public Welfare
Persons participating in Medical Assistance (monthly average) 1,457,151 1,419,562 1,409,095 1,433,228 1,476,708 1,533,024 1,621,901 1,747,615 1,833,760 1,905,529
Persons receiving cash assistance (monthly average) 417,976 333,740 272,990 242,214 229,660 225,396 250,581 278,474 278,496 264,407
Children participating in subsidized child care (unduplicated) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 182,102 185,971 195,211 200,650 221,186
Total persons provided mental health services (6).................. 203,089 204,076 200,732 203,812 207,269 202,460 208,345 398,590 418,749 522,162
Persons receiving Mental Retardation services during fiscal year (7).. 71,575 73,900 74,000 76,988 82,220 85,000 89,985 72,538 45,414 45,965
Economic development:
Community and Economic Development
Jobs pledged to be created in Business and Technology Development. N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 63,870 78,500 154,951 97,355
Jobs retained in Business and Technology Devel opment . N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 54,209 108,864 92,768 71,765
Total Jobs created/retained in Business and Technology Development (8)..... 139,372 150,969 185,520 249,876 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Businesses Assisted in Business and Technology Development 2,560 2,451 2,662 2,739 8,243 9,113 22,305 19,781 16,215 18,151
Local Governments assisted. 573 664 675 420 475 594 766 711 1,265 720
Persons participating in Community Services Block Grant...............coececuneeee. 633,991 330,000 244,844 243,497 272,983 270,006 324,436 339,564 339,564 339,964
Labor and Industry
Total public health and safety inspections performed..........c..ccvcrercrrenircrnens 139,321 131,215 131,365 135,590 135,567 134,352 122,584 117,056 82,123 84,000
Total Vocational Rehabilitation Caseload. 68,808 74,999 78,138 77,622 81,391 83,696 82,262 86,814 84,619 82,891
Transportation:
Transportation
Miles of State maintained highways. 40,244 40,162 40,101 40,051 39,935 39,906 39,893 39,890 39,890 39,841
Passengers carried by State-assisted operators (millions annually)............c...... 284.4 2825 293.7 310.1 301.8 301.9 303.5 310.0 400.8 4118
Safety and Emissions inspections. 12,340,200 12,657,225 12,641,070 13,603,449 13,589,000 13,617,103 15,000,000 17,100,000 17,388,858 17,450,000
Registrations:
Registrations-Total New and Renewed. 9,990,000 9,921,000 10,015,000 10,052,000 9,825,000 10,099,000 9,978,000 10,017,000 9,864,461 9,882,306
Licensed drivers-Total New and Renewed. 2,337,300 2,259,500 2,284,900 2,320,900 2,130,859 2,302,100 2,476,213 2,377,057 2,345,311 2,400,000
Recreation and cultural enrichment:
Conservation and Natural Resour ces
State park attendance (visitor days per calendar Year).........cccvveuerrenecrrenienn 36,400,000 34,700,000 36,712,000 36,438,000 36,627,000 36,031,000 34,692,000 35,095,476 36,295,873 36,300,000
Fish and Boat Commission
Fishing licenses sold. 995,659 978,925 934,723 953,032 935,845 907,313 909,053 834,877 843,302 850,000
Game Commission
Hunting licenses sold 1,063,366 961,662 1,033,315 1,038,846 1,047,820 1,017,154 1,018,248 1,007,613 964,158 964,000
Historical and Museum Commission
Records maintained by the State Records Center N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 709,821 726,747 753,354 768,747
Annual visitsto commission historical sites and museums (in thousands) 1,377 1,244 1,273 1,295 1,406 1,517 1,528 1,477 1,516 1,563
BUSINESSTYPE ACTIVITIES
Labor and Industry
Number of new unemployment compensation claims...........cc.creeereereceeeneens 1,101,409 1,138,641 1,036,558 983,951 1,309,511 1,314,267 1,341,118 1,177,499 1,148,256 1,176,669

Sources: Governor's Office of the Budget, comptroller offices, various agencies

Notes:

(1) Legislation acts and bills are presented per the Legislature's two-year session. Amounts presented for the 2005-2006 session are final. Results are not yet known for the 2007-2008 session.
(2) Amounts are presented as of December 31 .

(3) Arrests per 100,000 population in State Police jurisdiction areas.

(4) PreK enrollment is not included through the 2003 fiscal year.

(5) Thedecrease in Vital Events from 2001 to 2002 is due to Act 82 of 2001, which eliminated some requirements for the processing of marriage and divorce records.

(6) Beginning with the 2005 fiscal year, this amount was revised to include individuals receiving services from community mental health funds, Medical Assistance expenditures, and BHS! funds.
(7) Beginning with the 2005 fiscal year, this amount was revised to remove those receiving Early Intervention services.

(8) Beginning with the 2002 fiscal year, this category was reevaluated and then no longer measured in its current form. Subsequent years are then marked with N/A.

year have been revised. Therefore, the amounts shown may differ from what was presented in the June 30, 2006 CAFR.

(9) For the 2007 fiscal year, amajority of the indicators presented are estimates. For the 2006 fiscal year, the amounts that were presented as estimates in the Commonwealth's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the June 30, 2006 fiscal
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TABLE 19
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years Ended June 30

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Direction and Supportive Services
Department of General Services
Number of buildings (1)
Total pieces of machinery and equipment (2)
Capital and Agency projectsin design and/or construction (3).........cocereeerreennee
Vehiclesin fleet (4)

Protection of personsand property
Department of Corrections
State Correctional Institutions (5)

State Police
Patrol vehicles
Police stations and/or troop headquarters (5)

Department of Military and Veterans Affairs
Number of armories,

Public education
State System of Higher Education (SSHE)-Component Unit (6)
Number of SSHE universities using Commonwealth owned buildings and land

Health and human services
Department of Public Welfare
Total number of hospital or treatment center complexes (1)(5).......ccovvvuvrvrenrenns

Transportation
Department of Transportation
Total pieces of equipment
Total lane miles of highways (state or locally maintained)..........c.ccvvervcrnicnnees
Recreational and cultural enrichment
Department of Conservation and Natural Resources
Acres of land in state parks and forests (in millions)
Game Commission
Acres of game lands (in millions)
Fish Commission
Public boat launches
Total number of fish hatcheries.
Historical and Museum Commission
Museums and historic sites.

Economic Development
Department of Labor and Industry
Square footage of rehabilitation centers owned by the Commonwedlth..............

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
32 33 33 33 33 36 36 36 85 85
56 58 71 80 48 164 137 137 137 139
479 428 422 426 367 389 375 500 409 590
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 16,544 16,337 16,307
24 25 25 25 26 26 26 27 26 26
1,848 1914 2,009 2,199 2,215 2,207 2,188 2,282 2,316 2,173
20 20 20 20 20 20 21 23 23 23
105 96 96 97 97 97 96 117 117 117
14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14
26 25 23 22 22 22 22 21 19 19
N/A N/A N/A 25,211 20,434 21,281 21,256 20,858 20,434 22,000
115,308 115,467 115,677 115,939 116,282 116,570 115,402 116,055 116,100 116,335
24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24
13 1.36 1.36 1.36 141 141 14 14 14 14
N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 178 153
15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15
28 28 28 26 26 26 26 26 25 25
444,035 444,035 444,035 444,035 444,035 444,035 444,035 444,035 444,035 444,035

Notes:

the reported number of buildings).

Sources: Governor's Office of the Budget, Comptroller Offices and various agencies.

(2)-Beginning with the 2003 fiscal year, the reported machinery and equipment includes assets that were depreciated in full.
(3)-This category was expanded to include all reported projects, including those in the design phase, and was applied retroactively to each of the ten years shown in thistable. Therefore, the amounts presented may differ from what was presented
in the Commonwealth's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the June 30, 2006 fiscal year.
(4)-Beginning with the 2007 fiscal year, this category was added to this table, and has been retroactively reported for the 2005 and 2006 fiscal years.

(5)-State Correctional Institutions, police station/troop headquarters and hospital/treatment center complexes include nondepreciable capital assets (i.e. land) and depreciable assets (i.e. machinery and equipment, buildings, improvements, etc.).
(6)-The State System of Higher Education (SSHE) is a discretely presented component unit. However, each of its universities uses land, buildings, and improvements which were purchased by the Commonwealth and are still reported as
governmental activities capital assetsin the Commonwealth's Statement of Net Assets. See Note A in the Notes to the Financial Statements for a detailed description of this relationship.

(1)-Beginning with the 2006 fiscal year, the control of the Harrisburg State Hospital was transferred from the Department of Public Welfare (reducing the reported number of hospital complexes) to the Department of General Services (increasing
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